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The expenses are classified in the consolidated statetnents of comprehensive income as

follows:

Cost of sales and
services

Selling and
administrative
expenses

22. FINANCE INCOME (COSTS)

Note

2014

2013 2012

20

.

P 31,404,503,935 P 40,248,166,084 P 31,061749 413

1.916,826,177

1,991.460,138

1,473.661,606

P 33321330112 P 42239626222 P. 33435411,019

The bteakdown of these accounts follows:

22 1 Finance Costs

Interest expense on
bank loans and
other bortowings

Impairment Josses
on trade and
other receivables

Toreign currency
exchange
losses — net

Bank charges

Loss on settlement of
insurance claims

Interest expense from
post-employment
defined benefit
obligation — net

Interest expense from
security deposits

Notes 2014 2013 2012
17 P 728,178,099 P 617451,997 P 467,358,205
7 40,077,464 17,959,002 37,851,057
19,247,244 27,100,014 -
9,455,061 3,343,182 11,969,046
7 3,898,441 - -
23.2 2,296,995 2,413,691 1,499,078
19 984,592 762,178 1,043,107
P 804,137,806 P 669030064 P 519720493

.
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22.2 Finance Income

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Interest income from

cash in banks 6 P 2,750,097 P 7,831,603 P 0,406,440
Interest income on

amortization of

rental deposits 15 644,746 649,974 1,161,552
Foreign currency

exchange gains — net - - 14.061.359

P 3394843 P 8481577 P 24629351

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
23.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are presented below.

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Short-term benefits:
Salaties and wages P 283,624,069 P 225401424 P 91,118,445
Employee welfare
and other benelits 23,142,795 42,348,608 101,719,266
13" month pay and
bonuses 11,618,034 10,645,506 10,975,301
Post-employment
defmed benefit 23.2 10,977,276 9,217,663 4,921,335

21 B.329362174 P 287,613,200 P 208734347
23.2 Post-employment Defined Benefir Plan

(@) Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plar

In 2014, the Group has maintained 2 partially funded, tax-qualified, nonconttibutory
post-employment defined benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee bank that
is legally separated from the Group. The ttustee bank managed the fund in coordination
with the Group’s management who acts in the best interest of the plan assets and is
responsible for setting the investment policies. The post-employment plan covers all
regular full ttme employees.

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of 5 years of credited service, Nommal
retirement benefit is an amount equivalent to 75% of the final monthly covered
compensation (average monthly basic salary during the last 12 months of credited
service) for every year of credited service. :

19%
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(b)  Explanation of Amosunis Presenied in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retitement benefit costs and the
amount of contributtons. All amounts presented below are based on the actuarial
valuation report obtained from an independent actuary in 2014 and 2013.

The amounts of post-employment defined benefit obligation, which is presented as part
of Other Non-current Liabilities account (see Note 19) in the consolidated statements of
financtal position, ate determined as follow:

.

2014 2013
Present value of obligation P 88,610,880 P 51,100,685
Fair value of plan assets ( 12,213,907) -

P_76396,973 P _51,100,685

The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined benefit obligation
recognized in the books are as follows:

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P - 51,100,685 P 36,440,105
Current service cost 10,977,276 9,217,663
Interest expense 2,751,078 2,413,691
Remeasurements:

Actuarial losses (gains) atising from: ,
Experience adjustments 14,461,165 37,016,452
Changes in financial assumnptions 6,981,384 7,880,254
Changes in demographic assumptions 3,643,648 (  41,748,870)

Benefits pmd ( 1,304.356) | 118.610)
Balaace at end of ycar P__ 88610880 P_51.100685
The movements in the fair value of plan assers ate presented below.
2014 2013

Balance at beginning of year P - P -
Contributions to the plan 18,661,947 -
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts

included in net interest) ( 6,131,556) -
Benefits paid ( 770,567) -
Interest income 454,083 -
Balance at end of year P 12213907 P -

*

v
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The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period by
category and risk characteristics is shown below.

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents P 100,624 P -
Quoted equity securities:
Telecommunications 2,460,120 -
Manufacturing 2,449,440 -
4,909,560 -
Unit nvestment trust funds (UITF) 7,203,723 -

r 19213907 P - .

The fair value of the above investment is determined based on quoted market prices in
active markets (classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy).

The plan assets incurred a negative retuen of P6.1 million in 2014.

Plan assets do not comprise any of the Group’s own financial instruments or any of its
assets occupied and/or used in its operations.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income in respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows:

.

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Reported in profit or loss:
Current service cost 231 P 10,977,276 P 9,217,663 P 4921335
Net interest
expense 224 2,296,995 2,413,691 1.499.078
P 13274271 P 11631354 P 6420413
Reported inn other
comprehensive inconte!
Actuatial losses

(gains) ansing .
from changes io:
Experience
adjustments P 14461165 P 37016452 P 13,678,177
Financial
assumptions 6,981,384 7,880,254 ( 371,380)
Demographic
assumptions 3,643,648 ( 41,748,870) -
Return on plan .
assets (excluding
amounts included
in net interest
expense) 6,131,556 - -

P 31217753 P 3147836 P 13,306,797
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Current service cost is presented as pait of salaries and employee benefits under Selling

and Administrative Fxpenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 23.1).

The net interest expense is included as part of Finance Costs under the Other Charges
(Income) account {(see Note 22.1).

In determining the amounts of the defined benefit post-employment obligation, the
following significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2014 2013 2012
Discount rates 4.49% to 4.78% 4.60% to 5.32% 5.20% to 6.20%
Expected rate of salary
increases 5.00% to 8.00% 5.00% to 3.00% 5.00% to 7.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on published statistics and
mortality tables. These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance
of an independent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to the end of each
reporting period by reference to the intetest rates of a zero coupon government bond
with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the rctitement obligation. Other
assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical
expetience.

(e)  Risks Assosiated with the Rettrement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, intcrest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

(i) Investment and lnterest Rick N

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, 2
decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bond will increase the plan
obligation. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on
the plan’s investments and if the return on plan asset falls below this fate, it will
create a deficit in the plan. Cutrently, the plan has investment in cash and cash
equivalents, quoted equity securities and UTTE.

(#) Longevity and Salary Ricks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both duting and after
theit employment, and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases ia the life
expectancy and salary of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan
obligation.
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(d)  Otber Information

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions
and the timing and uncertainty of futute cash flows related to the retirement plan are
described below.

(i) Sensitivity Anafyits .

The following table summatizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the post-employmeut defined benefit
obligation as of December 31:

2014
Impact on Post-employment Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Assumption

Discount rate +/- 1.0% (I 8,001,285) P 9,813,193
Salary increase rate +/- 1.0% 8,761,574  {  7,364,342)
2013
Impact on Post-employment Benefit Obligation
Change in Tncrease in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Agsumption

Discount rate +/-1.0% (P 4,520,745} P 5,438,812
Salary increase mate +/-1.0% 4,865,011 {  4166,542)

'The above seasitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding
all other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the
actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions
may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been caleulated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensttivity analysis did
not change compared to the previous years. ‘
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(5) Asset-liability Matehing Strategies

To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Group through its BOD, ensures
that the investment positions are managed in accordance with its asset-liability
matching strategy to achieve that long-term investrents ate in line with the
obligations under the retirement scheme. A large portion of the plan assets as of
December 31, 2014 is allocated to UI'TF.

(551) Funding Arrangements and Excpecied Contributions .

As of December 31, 2014, the plan is underfunded by P76.4 million based on the
latest actuarial valuation. While thete are no minimum funding requitement in the
country, the size of the may pose a cash flow risk in about 21 years' time when a
significant number of employees is expected to retire.

'The Group expects to make contribution of P1.9 million to the plan during the
next reporting period. '

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan
within ten years as of December 31, follows:

2014 2013
Within one year P 18,890,357 T 11,722,940
More than one year to five years 21,183,125 10,885,698
More than five years to ten years 39,055,703 34.341.627

P 79129185 P 56.950.265

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period is 21 years.

N§L
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24. REGISTRATION WITH THE BOARD OF INVESTMENTS
24.1 BOI Registration as New Industty Participant — Ba tangas Depot

The Parent Company was registered with the Board of Investments {(BOI) on
February 26, 2010 as a new industry participant with new investment in storage,
matketing and distribution of petroleum products undcr Republic Act (R4A) 8479,
Downsireans O! Industry Dersgulation Adi, for its storage tanks in Calaca, Batangas. Under
its registration, the Pareat Company 1s required to observe certain general and specific
ternis and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of
1987.

Under its registration, the Parent Company is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax
incentives as follows:

(1) Income tax holiday (ITH) for five years from February 26, 2010, without extension
or boaus year from the date of registration;

(b} Additional deduction from taxable income of 50% of the wages corresponding to
the increment in the number of ditect labor for skilled and unskilled workers in the
yeat of availment as against the previous year if the project meets the prescribed
ratio of capital equipment to number of workers set by the board of not more thar
1JS$10,000 to one worker and provided that this inceutive shall not be availed of
simultaneously with the I'TH;

(¢ The Parent Company may qualify to import capital tequirement, spate parts and
accessories at zero percent (0%) from the date of registration up to Juae 16, 2011
pursuant to the Executive Order No. 528 and its implementing rules and
regulations.

Special transport equipment such as but not limited to tanks, trucks/lorries may be
impotted with incentives subject to land transportation operation requireiments;

{d) Tax credit on domestic capital equipment shall be granted on locally fabricated
capital equipment;

(¢) Importation of consigned equipment for a period of five years from the date of
registration, subject to posting of a re-export band; and,

()  Other non-fiscal incentives, which may be applicable.

24.2 BOI Registration as New Industty Participant — Zamboanga Depot

The Parent Company was also registered with the BOI on November 25, 2010 as a new
industry participant with new investment in storage, matketing and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 for its storage tanks in Talisayan, Zamboanga City.
Under its tegistration, the Parent Cornpany is required to observe certain general and
specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Tnvestments Code
of 1987,
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Under its tegistration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating to Zamboanga Depot is
also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned in Note 24.1. The
ITH will expire five years from November 25, 2010.

24.3  BOI Registration for the New Investmnent in Downstream Oil Industry
Activities — Davao Expansion

On May 14, 2010, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI for the new
investment in downstream oil industiy activities under RA 8479 for the additional two
storage tanks for petroleum products with storage capacity of 7.4 million liters in Davao
depot. Under its registration, the Parent Company shall be entitled to avail of the
incentives as cited in the previous page. However, ITH for five years from May 14, 2010
is subjected to the base figure of 148.2 million liters representing the Parent Company’s
highest attained sales volume of its existing depot facilities {in Davao Depot) prior to the
Alling of application for registration of new investment.

24.4 BOI Registration for New Investment — Bacolod Storage Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new industry
participant with new investment in storage, matketing and distribution and bulk
marketing of petrolenm products under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Bacolod
City. Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general
and specific terts and condittons stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments
Code of 1987. )

Undet its registration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating to Bacolod storage
terminal is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned in the
previous page. The I'TH will expire five yeats from May 10, 2012,

24.5 BOI Registration for New Investment — Cagayvan De Oro City Storage
Terminal :

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the 301 as a new industry
participant with new investment in storage, matketing and distribution and bulk
matketing of petroleum products under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Bacolod |
City. Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to ohserve certain general
and specific tertns and conditions stated in the provisions of the Ommnibus lnvestments
Code of 1987,

Undey its registration, the Patent Company’s transaction relating Cagayan de Oro City
storage terminal is also entitled to certain tax and hon-tax incentives as also mentioned
in the previous page. The ITH will expite five years from May 10, 2012.
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24.6 BOI Registration for MT Chelsea Thelma and MT Cherylyn

On November 23, 2011 and December 10, 2008, CSC had registered its activity for -
MT Chelsea Thelma and MT Cherylyn, respectively, with the BOI under Fxecutive
Order No. 226, otherwise known as the Omanibus Investments Code of 1987 as 2 new
opetator of dotnestic/interisland shipping on a pioneer status. As a tegistered entity,
CSC 1s entitled to tax and non-tax incentives which include a six-year ITI. For

MT Cherylyn, the related tax incentives started in April 2009. Meanwhile, the tax
incentive for MT Chelsea Thelma started in November 2011. TTH incentives shall be
limited only to the revenues generated by the registered project.

24.7 BOI Regristration for MT Chelsea Donatela

On September 3, 2013, PNX — Chelsea had registered its activity for MT Chelsea
Donatela with the BOT under Executive Order No. 226 as a new operator of
domestic/inter-island shipping on a pioneer status. As a registered entity, the

PNX — Chelsea is entitled to tax and non-tax incentives which include a six-year ITHL
The related tax incentives started in January 2014, ITH incentives shall be limited only
to the revenues generated by the registered project.

TAXES

The components of tax expense as reported in the consolidated profit or loss and in the
consolidated ather comprehensive income follow:

Reported in profit or loss:
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate income
tax (RCIT) at 30%
Minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) at 2%
Final tax at 20% and 7.5%

Deferred tax expense (income)
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

Reported in other comprebensive incomse:
Deferred tax expense
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences

2013 2012

2014

P 32,174,095 P

28,432,954 P 14,677,522

3,998,694 1,822,943 462,671

610.696 1,500,944 1.564.032
36,783,485 31,765,841 16,704,225

( 33,992,758) ( 30.386,688) 3,169,323

P 2,790,727 D

1379153 P 19.873 548

P 29334251 P

1109855 P 95,550,091

&)
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A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax
expense teported in the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

2014 2013 2012

Tax on pretax profit at 30% P 185,746,110 P 199,931,027 P 201,355,110
Adjustment for income

subjected to lower
income tax rates ( 330,316) ( 839,537)( 1,257,900}
Tax effects of:
Adjusttnent for income and
expenses under ITH ( 189,717,081) { 201,393,953) ( 186,809,228)
Derecognition of previously
unrecognized deferred

.

tax assets 2,812,324 - i -
Non-deductible expenses 2,554,185 3,633,628 11,600,817
Revessal of net operating

loss catty over INOLCQO) 1,097,619 - 354,713

Reversal of MCIT 673,510 - -t
Non-taxable mcome { 102,149) - ( 5,392,024}
Unrecognized defersed tax

asset 56,525 47,988 22.060

Tax expense reported
in profit or loss P 2,790.727 D 1,379,153 P 19,873 548

LT
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The amounts of NOLCO and the applicable years these are valid and deductible from
the taxable income are shown below.

Original Valid

Taxable Years Amount Tax Bffect Until
2014 P 111,422,978 P 33,426,893 2017
2013 14,139,899 4,241,970 2016
2012 18,714,721 5614416 2015

P_144277,598 P 43283279

Deferred tax asset on NOLCO of PGMI amounting to P0.1 million and P0.2 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was not recognized since management
assessed that this is not recoverable as PGMI does not expect any taxable income in the
coming yeats.

"The Group is subject to the MCIT which is computed at 2% of gross income, as defined
under the tax regulations or RCIT, whichewver is higher. SPTT’s MCIT was higher than
RCIT in 2014, PPIPC’s MCIT was higher than RCIT for the years 2013 and 2012, PPMTI’s
MCTT was higher than RCIT for all the years presented.

The amounts of MCIT and the applicable years that are valid and deductible from future
regular income tax payable are shown below.

Excess of
Normal MCIT over Valid
Taxable Years Income Tax MCIT Income Tax Tax Effect Until
2014 P - P 3998964 P 3998964 P 3,998,964 2017
2013 - 6,433,147 6,433,147 6,433,147 2016
2012 - 88.177 88177 88,177 2015
P - PI0.520288 P 10520288 P10.520.288 ,

In 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Group chimed itemized deductions in computing for its income
tax due.

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include the ultimate parent company, the parent company,
stockholders, the Group’s key management personnel, entities under common
ownership by the ultireate patent compauy and others as described in the succeeding

pﬂgCS.
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The summary of the Group’s transactions with its related parties as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 1s presented below.

Related Party Amount of Transactions Outstanding Balance
Category Notes 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013

Other related parties
under common

ownership

Sale of goods 7,261 P 1,473,214 P 39,139,112 P 125,553,735 P 25,524,583 1 37,334,222
Purchases of seevices  26.2 - - 654,413,710 - -
Advances to

suppliees 7,262 10,024,800 - - 10,024,800 2,000,000
Rentals 18,26.3 66,398,252 43,119,800 53,004,744 7,145,631 -
Due from related

partes 26.4 7,625,362 ( 5,552,006) 15,311,686) 10,373,356 2,747,904
Due to related

parties 264 ( 46,956,518)( 21,390,502) 24,371,146 17,204,725 . 52,161,243
Donations 26.8 200,000 1,500,500 5,298,172 - -

Associate

Technical ship

Services 18,20.2,26.5 33,584,854 15,842,825 - 2,011,000 1,981,597

Other related party
Due to related
pathes 26.4 - - - - 2,000,000

Key management
personncl
Salarics and
employee
benefits 26.7 54,692,790 50,027,748 45,610,775 - -

26.1 Sale of Goods

The Group sells products to certain related patties under common ownership. Goods
are sold on the basis of the price lists in force with non-related parties. Revenues arising
from these transactions are preseated as patt of Sale of Goods in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. The outstanding receivables from sales of goods:
to other related parties are presented as part of Trade Recervables under the Trade and
Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of fnancial position

(see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from related parties are unsecured, do not bear any interest
and collectible in cash on demand. No impairment loss was recognized in 2014, 2013
and 2012 based on managcment’s assessment. ‘

26.2 Purchases of Services

In 2012, the Group purchased services from related parties under common ownership
on the basis of price lists in force with non-related parties. The amount of transaction is
presented 2s part of the Cost of Sales and Setvices account in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 20). There is no related outstanding
payable as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
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In 2014, the Group advanced a certain amount to a related party under common
ownership for the purchase of setvices. The amount is credited upen the performance
of the contractual obligation by the related party. The outstanding advances, which are
unsecured and non-interest-bearing, are presented as part of advances to suppliers under
Trade and Other Receivables account in the 2014 consolidated statement of financial
position (see Note 7).

26.3 Rentals

The Group has the following lease agreements with the following related parties under
common ownership:

(@) Udenna Corporation — of which total rent expense incurted in the years 2014, 2013
and 2012 amounted to P7.4 million, P6.5 million and P6.6 million, respectively. The
outstanding rental payable amounting to P7.1 million and nil in 2014 and 2013,
respectively, is presented as part of trade payables under Trade and Other Payables
in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 18). )

(4} Udenna Development (UDEVCQ) Corporation — of which total rent expense in
2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P47.3 million, P28.5 miliion and P26.4 million,
respectively. Rental deposit for the lease amounted to P6.4 million and P7.1 million
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is presented as part of
refundable rental deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 15).

(c) Valueleases, Inc. — of which total tent expense in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to
P11.7 million, P8.1 million and P20.0 million, respectively. Refundable Rental
Deposits amounted to P6.1 million and P0.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and is presented as part of refundable rental deposits under Qther
Non-current Assets in the consolidated statements of financial position )
(see Note 15).

The rent expenses aforementioned are presented as pait of Selling and Administrative
Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
{see Notes 21 and 30.3).

26.4 Due from and Due to Related Parties

The Group grants and obtains unsecured advances to and from related patties under
common ownership for working capital requirements and other purposes.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding receivable and payable balances
from these advances ate shown as Inze From Related Parties and Diue to Related Parties,
respectively, in the consolidated statements of financial position. Due from Related
Parties and Due to Related Parties - current are either receivable in cash or paid through
offsetting, unsecured non-interest-beating liabilities and ate expected to be paid within
one year. Non-current Due to Related Parties, on the other hand, are unsecured
non-interest-beating liabilities. These are stated at their carrying value since the date of
repayment is not currently determinable.

660
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Due from related patties represent outstanding advances to PhoenixPhilippines
Foundation, Inc. (PPFI), a foundation created by the Group, amounting to P10.4 million
as of December 31, 2014, and outstanding advances to Udenna Envitonmental Services,
Inc., an entity under common ownership, amounting to P2.7 million as of

December 31, 2013. )

The movement of Due from Related Parties as of December 31 is as follows:

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 2747994 P 8,300,000
Additions 10,373,356 17,362,078
Collections ( 2,747,994) | 22.914.084)
Balance at end of year P_10.373356 P 2,747,994

No impaitment loss is recopnized in 2014, 2013 and 2012 related to advances to
related parties.

The breakdown of the Due to Related Parties a5 of December 31 is as Follows:

2014 2013
Related parties under
compoon ownership P 17,204,725 P 62,161,243
Other related party - 2,000,000
P 17.204,725 P 64161243

The movement of Due to Related Parties in 2014 and 2013 follows: )

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 64,161,243 P 85,551,745
Payments { 46,956,518) | 21.390,502)
Balance at end of year P 17,204725 P 64161243

26,5 Technical Ship Services Agreement

On April 1, 2013, the Group entered into a Technical Ship Setvices Agreement

(the Agreement) with NPMSC, a newly incorporated associate of CSC. Under the
Agreement, NPMSC shall cany out technical services in respect of CSC’s tanker vessel
as agents for and on behalf of the CSC. NPMSC’s responsibilities include crew
management, technical management, accounting services, and the arrangement for the
supply of provisions.

(T
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Total technical ship services fee incurred amonating to P33.6 million and P15.8 million
in 2014 and 2013, respectively, is presented as part of Service Fees under the Cost of
Sales and Services account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 20.2), while the related outstanding liability (unsecured and non-interest
bearing) of P2.0 million as of both December 31, 2014 and 2013 is presented as part of

Trade and Other Payables in the consolidated statements of Anancial position
(see Note 18).

26.6 Loan Collateral

{a)  Sutety and a negative pledge over the remaining shares of a stockholder secured the
liabilifies under LC and TR (see Note 17.1).

(2)  The TLA with DBP, OLSA with BDO and PBComm, loan agreement with RBC
and certain banks loans of the Group were guaranteed by certain stockholders
through a surety agreement with the respective banks.

26.7 Key Management Compensations

'The compensation of key management personnel are broken down as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Salaries and wages P 43,955,837 P 40,724,453 P 36,822,265
13™ month pay and bonuses 5,567,610 4,586,418 4,129.412
Honoraria and allowances 4,894,118 4,447,058 4,416,398
Post-employment henefits 275,225 269,819 242,700

P_54,692,79¢ P 50027748 P 45610775

.

26.8 Others

The Group has made donations amounting to P0.2 million, P0.5 million and P1.5 million
in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, to Udenna Foundation, Inc., a non-stock, non-profit
organization established by the ultimate parent company. Lo addition, the Group has also
made donations amounting to nif, P1.0 million and P3.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, to PPFL, a non-stock non-profit organization established by the Patent
Company. The donations are presented as part of miscellaneous under Selling and
Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income

(see Note 21).

0¥
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27. EQUITY
27.1 Capital Stock

Capital stock consists of:

Shares Amount
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012.

Prefecred — cumulative,

nonvoting,

non-pacticipating,

non-converbble into

comumon shaces -

P1 par value
Authonzed: —_ B, 000 0,000,000 30,000,000 P _R0.000006 T 50000000 T 50000 000
lssued and outstanding 5,000,000 5,000,006 5000000 P 50004000 B 5000000 P 3 000
Common shares — Pt par value
Authorized:

Balance at beginning of year  2,500,600,000  2,500,000,000 750,000,000 P2,500,000,006 P2500,000,000 P 750,000,000

Increase in autherized stack - - 1 a] - - 1, 750,000,004

Balance at end of year 2,500,000.000 2500000000 2500000000 P2E500.000,000 P2S00000000 E.2,500000000

Issued:
Balance at beginning of year  1,428,777,232 906,059,416 480,872215 P1,428,777,232 P 906,059,416 1P 489,872,215
Issuance during the year - 193,000,000 171,250,794 - 193,000,000 171,250,799
Stock dividends " 329,717 816 244,936,202 - 320717816 244,936,202
Reclassification - - 200 - .- 200)

Balance at end of year 4428777030 1408777200 _906C0416 PLA2RTI7.23% PLARTIT2I2 P 9060
B1433,777,232 P1433777,2302 P 058

On April 23, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s increase in authorized
capital stock from P800.0 million divided into 750.0 million common shates with a pat
value of P1 and 50.0 million preferred shares with pat value of P1 per shate into
P2,550.0 million divided into 2,500.0 common shates with part value of P1 per share and
50.0 mallion preferred shares with par value of P1 per share.
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The preferred shares shall have the following features:
(@) Non-convertible into common shares;

(&) Non—pamqpaﬂng in any other corporation activilies or other furthe: dividends,
non-voting, except in cases specified by law;

{¢) No pre-emptive rights over the holders of common shares as to distribution of nct
assets in the event of dissolution or liquidation and in the payment of dividends at a
specified rate. ‘The BOD shall determine its issued value at the time of issuance and
shall determine its dividend rates and the dividends shall be paid cumulatively; and,

(d) 'The preferred shares shall be redeamable at the Parent Company’s option under
such terms as the BOD may provide at the time of issuance. It shall also be re-
issuable when fully redeemed.

Moreover, preferred shares have the following features among others as provided in the
subscription agreement;

(@ Drvidends on the Preferred Shares shall have a fixed rate of 11.50% per annum
calculated in respect of each share with reference to the Issue Price thereof in
respect to each dividend periond.

(¢) Dividends shall be payablc every September 21, Decemher 21, March 21 and
June 21 of each year (each a “Dividend Payment Date™). The dividends on
the Preferred Shares shall be calenlated on a 30/360 day basis and shall be
paid quartetly in acreacs on the last day of each 3-month dividend period
(each a Dividend Payment Date), as and if declared by the BOD. If the Dividend
Payment Date is not a hanking day, dividends shall he paid on the next succeeding
banking day, without adjustment as to the amounts of dividends to be paid.

(¢} The Preferred Shares shall have priority in the payment of dividends at the
stipulated rate at the time of issuance and in the distribution of corporate assets in *
the event of liquidation and dissolution of the Parent Company. As such, the BOD
to the extent permitted hy law shall declare dividends each quarter sufficient to pay
the equivalent dividend. Dividends on the shares shall be cumulative. If for any
reason the Parent Company’s BOD does not declare a dividend on the Preferred
Shares for a particular dividend period, the Parent Company shall not pay a
dividend for said dividend period. However, on any future Dividend Payment Date
on which dividends are declared, the holders of the shares shall receive the
dividends accrued and unpaid to the holders of the Preferred Shares prior to such
Dividend Payment Date. Holders of Preferred Shares shall not he entitled to
participate in any other further dividends heyond the dividends specifically payable
on the Preferred Shares. .

Moreover, the suhscription agreement requires that the Pacent Company undertakes to

_maintain a long-term debt to equiry ratio of 1:1 throughout the life of the prefecred.
shares.

On December 20, 2013, the Parent Company redeemed the preferred shares issued in
2010 and re-issued the same amount and features of preferred shares except for the rate,

10
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which was reduced to 8.25% per anaum

Based on its plans, the BOD of the Parent Company will also declare and disttibute casb
dividends in 2015 out of the Parent Company’s retained earnings as of
December 31, 2014,

27.2 Listing with PSE

On July 11, 2007, tbe Parent Company offeted a portion of its stocks for listing with the
PSE. Numbe: of common sbares registered was 29.0 million with an issue price of
P9.80. As of December 31, 2014, the number of bolders of such securities is 62. The
market price of the Parent Company’s shates as of December 31, 2014 is P3.09. The
total number of issued sbares not listed with the PSE ammounted to P116.0 miltion
shares. .

The history of public offerings and private placements of the shates of the Parent
Company lodged at PSE ate as follows:

Transaction Subscriber Issue Date Number of Sbaves
Initial public offering  Various July 11, 2007 29,000,000
30% stock dividends Various August 6, 2008 ‘ 43,000,198
40% stock dividends Various August 3, 2009 73,660,476
Placement Social Security System  November 13, 2009 7,500,000
40% stock dividends Various October 20, 2010 107,664,266
30% stock dividends Various May 6, 2011 113,047,475
50% stock dividends Various April 26, 2012 244,936,203
Sbhares issuance for
CSC acquisition UMRC September 6, 2012 171,250,798
Placement Various March 11, 2013 130,000,000
30% stock dividends Various June 10, 2013 329,717 816
Payment of
subscription PPHI October 8, 2013 63,000,000
1312777232

27.3 Additional Paid-in Capital

In 2013, the Parent Company issued 130.0 million of its common shares at P9.40 per share
and 63.0 million common sbares at P5.10 per sbare. The excess of the par value for such
subscriptions amounting to P1,350.3 million was recorded as part of Additional Paid-in
Capital account In addition, direct cost of the sbare issuances amounting to

P34.1 million was deducted from the Additional Paid-in Capital account.

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171,250.8 million sbares in favor of UMRC in
relation to the sbare-for-sbare swap acquisition of CSC (see Note 1.3}. The business
combination under common control was accounted for under pooling of interest-type
method, The excess of par value of such issuance amounted to P1,248.9 million was
recorded as part of the beginning balance of the Additional Paid-in Capital account.

Al
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In 2010, the Parent Company issued 5.0 million of its prefetred shares at P100 per share.
The excess of par value for such subscription amounting to P495.0 million was recorded
25 part of Additional Paid-in Capiral account in the consolidated statements of financial
position. In addition, the excess of the selling price over the acquisition cost of the
treasury shaves sold in 2010 also constitutes the Additional Paid-in Capital account. The
preferred shares issued in 2010 were redeemed on December 20, 2013 and on the same
date, the same share and value of preferred shares were issued, except for the reduced rate.

In 2009, the Social Secutity System has bought an initial 2.83% stake in the Parent
Company representing 7.5 million subsctibed common shares for P42.0 million or at
P5.60 per share. The excess of par value for such subscription amounting to P34.5 million
was recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

In 2007, the Parent Company listed its shares of stock with PSE. Premiums received in
excess of the par value during the public offering amounting to P227.1 million were
recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of
finaneial position.

27.4 Other Reserves

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171,250.8 million common shates plus cash of
P157.8 million in exchange of the net assets of CSC. The acquisition of CSC is accounted
for under business combination using pooling-of-interest method wherein the difference
between the considetation given up over the cartying value of the net assets of C3C is
recognized as Other Reserves (see Note 2.3).

27.5 Revaluation Reserves
The components and reconcbiation of items of other comprehensive income presented 1n

the consolidated statements of changes in equity at their aggregate amount under
Revaluation Reserves account, are shown below and on the succeeding page.

Defined
Propesty and Benefit
Eguipment Obligation. Total

Balance as of January 1, 2014 P 286,554,327 (P 13,932,556 272621771
Remeasurements of defined
post-employment

obligation - ( 31,217,753) { 31,217,753)
Revaluation of tankers 180,637,550 - 180,637,550
Depreciation transfer to .

retained earnings —

tevalued tankets { 29,384,140 - { 29.384.140)
Other comprehensive

income (foss) before tax 151,253,410 ( 31,217,753) 120,035,657
Tax income (expense) { 29.884.334) 9.365325 ( 20,519,009
Other comprehensive

income (Joss) after tax 121.369.076 ( 21.852.428) 99.516.648
Balance as of

December 31, 2014 2 407,923403 (2 3578498y P 372.138.419

"
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Defined
Property and Benefit
Eguipment Obligation Total

Balance as of January 1, 2013 P 294152102 P 11,729.072) P 282.423.030

Remeasurements of defined .
post-employment
obligation - { 3,147,836) { 3,147,836)
Revaluation of tankers 6,847,358 - 6,847,358

Depreciation transfer to
retained earnings —

revalued tankers ( 17.701.323) - ( 17.701.323)
Other comprehensive

loss before tax ( 10,853,965) ( 3,147,836) ( 14,001,801)
Tax income 3,256,190 944 352 4.200.542
Orther comprehensive

loss after tax ( 7.597.775) ( 2.203.484) { 9.801.259)

Balance as of :
December 31, 2013 P 286,554,327 (P 13.932,.556) P 272621771

Balance as of January 1, 2012 P 73.957.965 (B 241431y P 71.543.651
Remeasurements of defined

post-employment

obligation - ( 13,306,797) ( 13,306,797)
Revaluation of tankers 331,807,097 - 331,807,097
Depreciation transfer to

retained earnings —

revalued tankers ( 17 244 043 - { 17,244 .043)
Other comprehensive incotne

(loss) before tax 314,563,054 ( 13,306,797} 301,256,257
Tax income {expense) ( 94.368.917) 3.992,039 90,376.878)
Other comprchensive income

(loss) after tax 220194137 | 9.314.758) 210,879,379

Balancc as of
December 31, 2012 P 294152102 (P 11,7290.072) P 282.423 030

27.6 Retained Earmings

On January 29, 2014, the BOD approved the declaration of common shate cash dividend
of 10 centavos per share totaling to P142.9 million to stockholders of record as of

March 17,2014, In addition, total cash dividends declared and distributed to preferred
stockholders amounted to P41.2 million in 2014. No stock dividends were declared and
distributed in 2014.

On Match 8, 2013, the stockholders ratified the BOD approval of 30% siock dividends
(or a total of 329.7 million shares), valued at par and distributed on June 10, 2013 to
stockholders of record as of May 15, 2013. Cash dividends of 10 centavos per common
shares totaling to P103.6 million were also declared and paid in 2013. In addition, total
cash dividends declared and diststbuted to preferred stockholders amounted to

P57.5 million in 2013.

6f?
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On March 8, 2012, the stockholders ratified the BOD’s approval of 50% stock dividends
(or a total of 244.9 million shates), valued at pat and distributed on April 26, 2012 to
stockholders of record as of March 28, 2012 In addition, cash dividends of 10 centavos
pet common shates totaling to P49.0 million were also declared and paid in 2012, In

addition, total cash dividends declared and distributed to preferred stockhclders amounted
to P57.5 million in 2012.

27.7 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedutes

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

* To ensute the Group’s ability to continue as 2 going concern; and,
* To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of nisk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the cartying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting
periods under review is summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Total liabilities P 17,949,934,696 P 15,839,647,662
Tota! equity 7,050,226.,099 6,497,905,304
Debt-to-equity ratio 2.55:1.00 244 : 1.00

The increase of the total liabilities in 2014 is the result of the additional borrowings for the
procurement of petroleum and construction of depot facilities, tankers and retail stations.
The increase in equity is due to the accumulated earnings.

The Group’s intemal goal in capital management is to maintain a debt-to-equity .
structure ratio not in excess of 2.7 to 1. All externally imposed key ratios have been
complied with in all the yeats presented, otherwise, bank waivers had been obtained
(see Note 17).

The Group sets the amount of capital in propottion to its overall financing structure, ie.,
equity and financial lizbilities. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structiue, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
teduce debt

(ry
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS were computed as fq]lows:

2014 2013 2012
4} Net profit pertaining to
common shares P 575,112,972 P 608,047,331 P 593,810,152
&) Net profit attributable to '
common shares and
potential common shares 575,112,972 608,047 331 593,810,152

¢} Weighted average number of
outstanding common shares 1,428,777,232 1,357,005,010 1,235,777,232

d) Weighted average number of
outstanding common and
potential common shates 1,428,777,232 1,357,005,010 1,235,777,232

Basic EPS (a/c) P 040 P 045 P 0.48

.

Diluted EPS (b/d) P 040 P 045 P 0.48

The options and warrants attached on the convertible notes do not have dilutive effect
since the average market price of the common shares of the Parent Company duting the
year does not exceed the exercise price of the options or warrants [see Note 17.2/]].

SEGMENT REPORTING
29.1 Business Segments

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s service
Lines, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group, namely
fuels, lubricants, depot services and real estate. These are aiso the bases of the Group in
feporting its primary segment information.

(4} Trading segment is engaged in marketing, merchandising, purchasing, selling, dealing,
acquiring, disposing and distribution of goods and wares such as but not limited to
petroleum products (on wholesale basis), adhesives, glues, bonding agents, epoxy
resing, lubricants and other products.

(4 Depot and logistics sexvices segment is engaged in operating of oil depots, storage
facilities and provides logistics services to various entitics.

(¢} Shipping and casgo services segment is engaged in hauling of petroleum products,
operation of intet-island going vessels for domestic trade, chartering in and out any
such vessels and providing complete marine services, either as principal or agent to
ship owners, operators and managers.

(4} Real estate segment is involved in real estate development, management and
operations.



29.2 Segment Assets and Liabilitics

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of
operating cash, receivables, inventories and property and equipment, and other assets,
net of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and
counsist principally of trade payable, trust receipts, wages, and accrued Nabilities. Segment
assets and liabilities do not include deferred tax assets or liabilities,

29.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purehases between
segments and between geographical segments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated
upon combination.

The tables presented in the next pages present revenue and profit information regarding
business segments of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
and certain asset and lability information regarding industry segments as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013 {in thousands).

. UG
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29.4 Reconciliations

_92.

Presented below is a reconciliation of the Group’s segment information to the key

fmaacial information presented in its consolidated financial statements (in thousands).

Revenues
Total segment revenues
Elimination of intersegment
revenies

Revenues as reported
in profit or loss

Profit or loss

Segment operating
profit

Orther unallocated income

Other unallocated expense

Operating profit as reported
in profit or loss

Finance costs

Finance income

Profit before tax as reported
in profit or loss

Assets
Segment assets
Elimination of intercompany
accouilts

Total assets reported in the
consolidated statements of
financial position

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Deferred tax liabiities - net
Elimination of intercompany
acconnts

Total liahilities as reported in the
consolidated statements of
financial position

2014 2013 2012
P39,279,160 DP48,887,042 P 46,839,991
(__4,544.776) ( _5335.056) (_12254.430)

P34,734,384 D43.551986  P34.585,552

P 1,420,829 P 1315283 P 1,164,626

6,842 22,845 5,863

( 7774y 11.143) ( 4214)

1,419,897 1,326,985 1,166,275

( 804,138y ( 669,030) (  519,720)

3,395 8,482 24,629

P_ 619154 D 666437 P 671184
P27,854,676 25771975
(__2.854,515) (_ 3.434.422)
£.25,000,168 P22537.553
P20,732,578  P19,197,539
71,872 76,531
854,515) (_3.434.420)

717,949,935

P15.830.648

74
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30. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
30.1 Capiral Comnmitments

As of December 31, 2014, the Group has commitments of more than 1,000.0 million for
expansion on petrolenm retail network, depot, terminalling and logistics facilities,
information technology infrastructure and other major expansions related to its business
development. The Group has a network of 418 operating retail service stations as of
Decetmber 31, 2014. An additional of 61 retail service stations are nder various stages
of completion as of December 31, 2014. ‘

In 2014, the Group plans to expand further its pettoleum retail service stations and carty
out its investments in its subsidiaries to put up depot and texminalling facilities in strategic
locations and complete its chain of logistical suppott to strengthen its foothold in the
industry.

H.2 Letters of Credits

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company has unused LCs amounting to
P7,131.7 million and P1,021.0 million, respeetively.

30.3 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessec under several operating leases. The leases have terms ranging
from 2 to 25 years, with tenewal options, and include annual escalation rates ranging
from 2.00% to 10.00%. The future minimutn rentals payable under these caneelable
operating leases are presented as follows;

2014 2013
Within one yeat P 306,965,591 P 259337311
After one year but not
more than five years 1,019,563,212 1,042,366,014
More than five years 3.054,218,327 2.,009,559.064

14.380,747.130 P3.311.262.389

Total rent expense for the yeats 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P390.4 million,
P 364.4 million and P240.9 million, respectively (see Note 21).

Gl7
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30.4 Operating Lease Commitments — Gtoup as Lessor :

The Group is a lessor under several operating leases with third partes. The leases have
terms ranging from 2 to 15 yeats, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates
manging from 2.00% to 10.00%. The frture minimum rentals recetvables under these
cancelable operating leases are presented below:

2014 2013
Within one year P 77,559,213 P 45,535,652
After one year but not
morte than five years 241,175,866 100,847,748
More than five years 2,254,311 5,499,057

32 20 P__151.882457

Rent income in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounting to P94.5 million, P47.5 million and
P54.3 million, respectively, is presented as part of Rent and Storage Income account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

30.5 Finance Lease Cormmitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee under several finance lease covering certain hauling trucks with a
lease term of 2 to 5 years. The leases provide options to purchase the transportation
equipment at the end of the lease terms. Future minimum lease payments (MLP) under
the finance leases together with the present value (PV) of the net minimum lease payments
(INMLP) is as follows:

2014 2013
Future PV of Future PV
MIP NMLP ML of NMLY

Within one year P 8,284,913 P7,462,207 P 2,007,429 P 7,554,140
After one year but not more than five years  __5,926.834 5,671,371 14,253,842 13.236.187

14,211,747 13,133,668 23261,271 20,785,577
Amounts representing finance charges (1,078,079 - (2475894 -
Present value of MLP P13,133,668 P13,133.668 I 20785377 1220785377

.

The liabilities relating to the finance leases are shown as part of Interest-bearing Loans and
Borrowings (see Note 17.6).

30.6 Chatter Agreements

The Group has existing comumnittnents to charterers under T'C, CVC and BB agreements
for the use of its tankers in transporting oil products for a fixed period. Also associated
with these charter agreements is the cbligation to keep the Group’s tankers in good
working condition and compliant with all the shipping regulations as required by the
Philippine Maritime Industty Authority.
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30.7 Purchase Commitments

On September 4, 2014, PNX — Chelsea enteted into a MOA with China Shipbuilding & °
Exports Corporation for the importation of one unit of oil tanker (MT Chelsea

Denise IT) for a total consideration of US$7.3 million. As of December 31, 2014,

PNX — Chelsea has made an initial downpayment of US$ 2.0 million and is presented as
part of Advances to suppliets under the Trade and Qther Receivables account in the 2014
consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 7).

30.8 Legal Claims

The Group filed a complaint for a swm of money against one of its customers for unpaic
charter fees including damages. A Wit of Garnishment on the customer’s funds for the
amount of P16.0 million has been issued by the trial court in favor of the Group.

The same customer filed a suit against the Group for reimbutsement and damages,
amounting to P13.7 million, for the loss it incurred from the contamination of its cargo,
which was on board on one of the Group’s vessels in 2010. In the same year, the Group
made a provision in the amount of P6.9 million for the amount of probable liability that it
could answer for such claim. The related liability is presented as part of Others under the
Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 18). No additional loss was recognized related to this claim in the succeeding
years.

30.9 Others

In May 2011, the Bureau of Customs (BOC) filed before the Department of Justice fDO])
a complaint against the Group’s President and Chief Executive Officer and other
respondents for alleged violation of Sections 3602, 2501(D(1) & (5), 1801, 1802 and 3604
of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines. In November 2012, the DOj
dismissed the case for lack of probable canse against all tespondents. In April 2013, the
DO, upon motion for reconsideration filed by the BOC, reversed its eatlier resolution
and recommended the filing of Criminal Information against the respondents. Criminal
Information for alleged violations of Section 3602, in relation to Sections 3601,

25301 (1) & 5, 1801 and 3604 of the Tasiff and Customs Code of the Philippines were
filed befote the Regional Trial Courts (RTC) of Batangas and Davao City in August 2013.
Separately, in Septeniber and October 2013, RTC Batangas and Davao City, respectively,
have dismissed all charges against the Parent Company’s President and Chief Execntive
Officer. .

On October 7, 2013, the DQJ filed 2a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for
Iahibition of Judge Ruben A. Galvez dated October 7, 2013 with RTC Batangas. On the
other hand, on November 15, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with
Motion for Inhibition of Judge Geotge A. Omelio dated November 15, 2013 with RTC
Davao. On December 6, 2013, RTC Batangas issued an Order dated December 6, 2013
denying the DOJ’s Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inlubition. On

July 7, 2014, RTC Batangas issued 2 Certificate of Finality of even date stating that its
Order dated December 6, 2013 affinming the Order dated September 17, 2013 is now final
and executory since no appeal was filed.

02
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On August 18, 2014, RT'C Davao issued an otder of even datc denying the DOJ’s Motion
for Reconsideration. The Office of the Solicitor General, on behalf of the Pcople of the
Philippines, filed the Pctition for Certiorari dated October 27, 2014 with the Coust of
Appeals seeking the reversal of the Orders dated October 4, 2013 and August 18, 2014
issued by public respondents Judges Omelio and Hon. Loidz $. Posadas-ICahulugan. The
Petition for Certiorari, with Docket No. CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN, is now pending .
with the Court of Appeals.

There is also 2 pending Motion for Reconsideration filed by the DOJ and the BOC,
seeking the reversal of the decision dated 25 July 2014 of the Court of Appeals’ Special
Former Special Tenth (10") Division in the Consolidated Petitions of Dennis Uy,
docleeted as CA-G.R. SP No. 131702, and Jorlan Cabancs, docketed 2s CA-G.R. 8P
No. 129740, with the Court of Appeals, which involve the same basic facts and issues as
those raised in CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN.

In the normal course of busincss, the Group makes vatious commitments agd incurs
certain contingent liabilities that are not given recognition in the consolidated financial «
statements. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, thc manapgement believes that losses, if
any, that may arise from these commitments and contingencics will not have material
effects on the consolidated financial statements.

G2V



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Comparable discussion on Material Changes in Results of Operations Period Ended
December 31, 2014 vs. December 31,2013

Revenues

The Group generated total revenues of Php 34.734 billion in 2014, which is 20% lower than
its 2013 level of Php 43.552 billion, primarily due to the 18% decrease in sales volume of
refined petroleum products plus the decline in average price in 2014. However, this was
minimized due to the higher revenues from fuels service, shipping, storage and other
revenue by 549%,

Sales revenues from trading and distribution of petroleum products decreased by 21%
from Php 43.14 billion in 2013 to Php 34.10 billion in 2014 resulting principally from a
decline in volumme for the wholesale. The effect was however minimized as volume in retail
(station sales) increased by 22% due to wider distribution network and growth in same
store sales. The decrease on wholesale account is a conscious effort of the Company to
manage resources and profitability. The Parent Company had four hundred eighteen (418)
Phoenix Fuels Life retail service stations as of December 31, 2014 compared to three
hundred sixty-eight (368) retail stations as of the same period last year. The Parent
Company has a number of retail stations undergoing construction and projected to be
~opened within the year and early next year.

The Group generated Php 634 million from its fuels service, storage, port and other income
in 2014 versus Php 412 million in 2013, a 54% increase compared to the same period last
year. This is due to the increase in turnover of storage service compared to last.year,
additional service of charter hire to third party, and revenue from tug-boat operations for
the year.

Cost and expenses

The Group recorded cost of sales and services of Php 31.405 billion, a decline of 22% from
its 2013 level of Php 40.248 billion, primary due to an 18% decrease in the sales volume of
petroleum products. The higher decline in percentage of costs of sales by 22% compared to
the decline of 18% in volume is a result of lower average costs of petroleum products for
this year. This year's average for the three major petroleum products such as Gasoil
(Diesel), MOGAS (Gasoline) and Kerosene (JETA1) is lower by 8% compared to the.same
period of 2013. Furthermore, for 2014, the ratio of retail compared to
commercial/industrial {C&I) accounts improved compared to the same period in 2013 due
to the Company's strategy to push more volume in Retail. Retail stations normally sell more
premium products like gasoline as opposed to C&! which is more diesel.
|
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Selling and administrative expenses declined by 3.5% as a result of lower variable costs but
minimized by the increase in rentals, depreciation, salaries & wages as a result of the
continuous expansion of the Group’s business operations. With its growing retail presence
nationwide and the scaling-up of operations, the Company incurred increases in manpower
and logistics costs, resulting to an increase in operating costs.

Net Income

The Group’s net income for the year 2014 is Php 616 million versus 2013 net income of
Php 665 million, a decrease of 7%. Despite the lower volume by 18%, the Company was
able to temper the drop in profit by improving its sales mix in favor of retail as wel] as
increased efficiencies and savings particularly from its trading and supply management
operations. With the better sales mix, the net income to sales ratio (return on sales)
improved to 1.77% in 2014 compared to 1.53% in 2013. '

The Parent Company is registered with the Board of Investments on November 16, 2005 as
a new industry participant with new investments in storage, marketing, and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 (Downstream Oil Industry Re gulation Act) and, as
such, continues to enjoy an income tax holiday for five (5) years from November 16, 2005.

The Parent Company obtained additional registration approval from the Board of
Investments (BOI) under R.A. 8479 or Oil Industry Deregulation Law for its Calaca,
Batangas Terminal. This entitles the Parent Company to an Income Tax Holiday (ITH) on
the revenue activities from this additional storage capacity for five (5) years stérting
February 2010. Another BOI registration was granted for the Davao Terminal Expansion
facility effective February 2010, thus entitling the Parent Company another set of
incentives including the five (5) year ITH in its Davao Terminal Marketing and Storage
activities, These additional ITH incentives will allow the Company to enjoy an effective
income tax rate well below 309 as it continuously expands its storage and obtains further
incentives from the BOI.

The Parent Company was also registered with the BOI on November 25, 2010 as new
industry participant with new investment in storage, marketing, and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 (Downstream Oil Industry Deregulation Act) for its
storage tanks in Talisayan, Zamboanga City. Under its registration, the Company is required
to observe certain general and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the
Omnibus Investments Code of 1987.

The Parent Company also received new approvals from the BOI for its two (2) new
facilities. Both the Cagayan de Oro City and the Bacolod City facilities were registered and
issued certification by the BOI on May 12, 2012. The registration entitles the Parent
Company ITH for five years from registration plus other fiscal and non-fiscal incentives
accorded to BOI registered entity. -

Financial Condition
(As of December 31, 2014 versus December 31, 2013)
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Total resources of the Group as of December 31, 2014 stood at Php 25 billion, higher by
12% compared to the Php 22.338 billion as of December 31, 2013. This is mainly due to
increase in Property, Plant, and Equipment with the continuous expansion on retail
stations, storage and including shipping assets. The increase by 4% on current assets also
contributed to the total increase in assets.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 56% from Php 357 million in December 31, 2013
to Php 556 million due to timing of collections of receivables as against payment of various
liabilities and the objective of the Company on certain level of cash and cash equivalent
needed for day to day operations.

The Group’s liquidity position, though lower against last year, thus continued to be strong
with Current Assets amounting to Php 13.576 billion as of December 31, 2014, compared to
Php 13.054 billion as of December 31, 2013. The increase in Cash contributed to the
increase in Current Assets. .

Trade and other receivables increased by 7% from Php 7.344 billion as of December 31,
2013 to Php 7.832 billion as of December 31, 2014, which were mainly due to Company
receivables from various customers and suppliers. The Group continues to enhance its
credit policies to minimize overdue accounts.

Inventories declined by 25% at Php 2.871 billion as of December 31, 2014 from Php 3.812
billion as of December 31, 2013. The volume year on year is comparably same level for
both years. However, the average unit price in 2014 year-end inventory is lower by 37%
compared to 2013, The Company maintains an average of one month worth of inventory to
ensure stable supply in retail stations and commercial/industrial clients. However, this
may go higher than the desired level due to vessel arrival timing.

Due to related parties in December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is Php 10.373 million
and Php 2.748 million respectively. The decrease of Php 7.625 million or 277% is due to
charges made during the year.

[nput taxes-net decrease by 349% in December 31, 2014 is the result of offsetting of higher
output taxes this year due to increased level of inventory, as well as input taxes of capital
expenditures and increase in inventory level in which input taxes have been paid.

Other current assets are at Php 1,147 million and Php 489.9 million as of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013 respectively. The increase represents prepaid rentals on
leased retail service stations properties and depot sites, prepaid insurance, creditable
withholding taxes, and other current assets.

As of December 31, 2014, the Group's property and equipment, net of accumulated
- depreciation, increased to Php 10.689 billion compared to Php 8.628 billion as of December
31, 2013 due to investments in additional shipping vessel, depot capacity in existing areas,
and new sites. In the first quarter, the Parent Company took delivery of a brand new




marine tanker for fuel importation, plus costs to ongoing storage facility expansions.
Additional retail stations were also constructed and or under construction in Luzon,
Mindanao and Visayas as part of the Company objective to further expand retail network.

Loans and Borrowings, current and non-current, increased merely by 1% from Php 13.752
billion as of December 31, 2013 to Php13.843 billion as of December 31, 2014. The slight
increase of Php 90 million was a result of timing of availment of working capital lines.

Trade and other payables increased by 138% from Php 1.570 billion as of December 31,
2013 to Php 3.735 billion as of December 31, 2014. This is the result of longer suppliers'
credit to finance inventory.

Total Stockholders’ Equity increased to Php 7.050 billion as of December 31, 2014 from
Php 6.498 billion as of December 31, 2013 as a result of the period net income for the three
quarters less the cash dividend declared and paid during the year for both common shares
and preferred shares.

Key Performance Indicators and Relevant Ratios

The Company’s key performance indicators and relevant ratios and how they are computed
are listed below: '

December 31, December 31, 2013

2014
Current Ratiol 1.11:1 1.33:1
Debt to Equity-Total? 2.55:1 2.44:1
Return on Equity-Common3 9.01% 12.10%
Net Book Value Per Share? 4.93 4.54
Debt to Equity-Interest Bearing® 1.96:1 212:1
Earnings Per Share-Adjusted © 0.40 0.45

Notes:

1 - Total current assets divided by current liabilities

2 - Total liabilities divided by tangible net worth

3 - Period or Year Net income divided by average total stockholders’ equity

4 - Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferred) divided by the total numper of

shares issued and outstanding

5 - Interest Bearing Debts divided by Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferred)

6 - Period or Year Net income after tax divided by weighted averdage number of '
outstanding common shares

(26



These key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Company’s financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the Company’s ability
to maximize the value of its stockholders’ investment in the Company (Return on Equity,
Net Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per Share). Likewise, these ratios are used to
compare the Company’s performance with similar companies.

The Company’s debt to equity (DE) ratio for 2014 is higher at 2,55 : 1 due to higher
accounts payable trade. However, interest bearing DE this year improved to 1.96 : 1,
compared to 2.12: 1in 2013,

The foregoing key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Group’s financial strength [Current Ratioc and Debt to Equity) and the Group's ability to
maximize the value of its stockhoelders’ investment in the Group’s [Return on Equity, Net
Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per Share). Likewise these ratios are used to compare
the Group’s performance with its competitors and similar-sized companies.

Material Changes to the Group’s Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014 compared to
December 31, 2013 (Increase/decrease of 5% or more)

56% increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
This is a result of collection and disbursement timing during the period. Certain levels of
Cash are also maintained to support maturing obligations.

7% increase in Trade and other receivables
Primarily due to increase in advances to suppliers as a result of various shipment in transit
and final price computation.

25% decrease in inventory
A result of lower average price per unit by 37% in 2014.

277% increase in Due from related parties
Various charges and billings during the period-net.

47% increase in other current assets
As a result of increased prepayments e.g. rental, insurance, etc. plus the creditable
withholding taxes.

34% increase in Value Added Tax-net
Increase in Input VAT as a result of higher inventory plus accumulated Input Taxes on
capital expenditures.

134% increase in other current assets
Increase in Prepayments, Creditable Withholding Taxes and Supplies Inventories.
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24% increase in property, plant and equipment
Due to vessel acquisition, retail network expansion, storage expansions and other capital
expenditures.

138% increase in Trade and other payables
Trade Payable to foreign suppliers for purchases of inventory.

73% decline on Due to related parties
Settlement of various advances from prior years.

6% decrease in deferred tax liability
As aresult of decline on the deferred tax liability for tanker vessel appraisals increments.

25% reduction on non-current liability
Due to some retirement of cash security deposits in favor of other form of security.

Material changes to the Group’s Income Statement as of December 31, 2014
compared to December 31, 2013 (Increase /decrease of 5% or more)

21% decrease in Sales for petroleum products

Principally due to 18% lower sales volume compared to 2013. However, it was minimized
by the higher service revenue.

54% increase in fuel service, shipping, storage income, and other revenue

Higher turnover on service volume specifically on storage volume of new terminal,
additional revenue on charter hire, and tugboat revenue.

22% decrease in cost of sales
Primarily due to decreased sales of petroleum products minimized by the effect of the
lower unit prices this year compared to 2013.

20.2% increase in Finance Costs [net)
Due to interest on the installment payables, bank term loans used for expansion, plus Trust
receipts availed to finance inventory. .

53.2% increase in other income/Costs
Due to periodic inventory losses recorded during the period plus other various costs.

102% increase in income tax
Due to the increase of income not related to its BOI registered activity.

There are no other material changes in the Group’s financial position [5% or more) and
condition that will warrant a more detailed discussion. Furthermore, there are no material
events and uncertainties known to management that would impact or change the reported
financial information and condition of the Group. :
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. For the quarterly period ended: June 30, 2015
SEC identification number: A200207283
BIR Tax |dentification No. 006-036-274
.. Exact name of issuer as specn‘led in its P-H-0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM
- charter : ‘ PHILIPPINES, INC.

Provmce country or other jurisdiction of Davao City, Philippines.
Jincorporaticn -or organization _

. “Industry Classification Gode: [i

{SEC Use Only)

. Address of issuer's principal office: Stella Hizon Reyes Road; Bo,
' : “ Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City

Postal Code: 8000

".--lssuer‘s telephone number, mcludmg area (08?1 233—0‘[
~ code: : ‘
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.June 30, 2015 L

\. Are any ar all of the securities fisted an Yes [v] No [ ]
- the Steck Exchange?
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-}, AS AMENDED

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

10.

For the quarterly period ended:
SEC identification number:
BIR Tax Identification No.

Exact name of issuer as specified in its
charter

Province, country or other jurisdiction
of incorporation or organization

Industry Classification Codéd
Address of issuer's principal office:
Postal Code:

Issuer's telephone number, including
area code:

Former name, former address and
former fiscal year, if changed since last
report:

June 30, 2015
A200207283
006-036-274

P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM -
PHILIPPINES, INC.

Davao City, Philippines.

(SEC Use Only)

Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bo.
Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City
8000

(082) 233-0168

Not Applicable

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4

and 8 of the RSA

COMMON 1,428,777,232.00
PREFERRED 10,000,000.00
Amount of Debt Outstanding as of Php 18,134,862,615.00

une 30, 2013:
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the Stock Exchange?

If yes, state the hame of such Stock Philippine Stock Exchange
Exchange and the class/es of securities
listed therein:
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- (a} has filed all reports required to be  Yes [v] No [ ]
filed by Section 17 of the SRC and
SRC Rule 171  thereunder or
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P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2015 AND December 31, 2014
{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes __June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014
ASSET
CURRENT ASSETS *
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 823,258,617 P~ 555,508,720
Trade and other reccivables - net 7 6,846,673,302 7,832,712,10M
Inventories 5 3,502,257,061 2,870,920 (69
Land held for sale and land development costs 9 485,985,811 485,985,811
Due from related partics 26 13,685,843 10,373,356
Restricted deposits 10 70,766,970 70,406,743
Input value-added tx - net 576,906,854 603,608,784
Prepayments and other current assets 11 1,108,384,147 1,146,632,540
Total Cursent Asscts 13 427,918,606 13,576,057,214
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Land held for future development 14 312,617,496 312,617,496
Property and equipment - net 12 11,256,715,777 10,688,608,904
Investment in an associate 13 2,250,200 2,250,000
Goodwill - net 16 84,516,463 84,516,663
Other non-curreat assets 15 449,956,660 336,110,518
Total Mon-current Assets 12,106,056,596 11,424,103,581
TOTAL ASSETS P 25,533,075,202 P 25,000,160,795
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Tnterest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 P 9,972,674,655 P - 8479,025,750
T'rade and other payables 18 1,924,238,563 3,734,569,995
Due to related parties 26 4] 17,204,725
Total Corrent Liabilities 11,896,913,218 12,230,800,470
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 5,832,547,323 5,363,617,647
Deferred tax liabilities - net 25 142,290,800 71,872,184
Other non-current liabilitics 19 263,111,274 283,644,395
Total Non-curtent Liabilities 6,237,949,397 5,719,134,226
Total Liabitities 18,134,862,615 17,949,934.694
EQUITY z7 '
Common stock 1,428,777,232 1,428,777,232
Preferred stock 5,000,000 5,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 3,367,916,774 3,367,916,774
Revaluation reserves 391,651,876 372,138,419
Other reserves 622,952,239 ) 422,952,239 )
Refained carnings 2,828,718,944 2,499,345,913
Total Equity 7,399,112,586 7,050,226,009

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P 25,533,975,201

P 25000,160,795

See Nores to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 8 2014
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

YTD (January-June) Unaudited

Znd Quarter (April-June) Unaudited

2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes
REVENUES
Sale of goods - NET 14,133,769,828 18,332,113,166 6,815,382,976 9,876,496,429
Fuel service, storage income and other revenue 273,935,082 182,715,860 192,066,312 110,824,306
14,407,704,911 18,514,829,026 7,007,449,289 9,987,320,735
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 19 12,558,107,708 16,897,866,438 6,101,706,450 9,217,155,675
Selling and administrative expenses 20 1,012,242,198 891,229,739 500,171,961 429,121,520
13,570,349,907 17,789,096,177 6,601,878,412 9,646,277,195
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES) B8.85% 92.18%
PFinance costs - net (396,081,655} (312,415,161) {211,253,721) (151,286,317)
Others (2,509,031 1,133,448 (611,952} 7,398,198
(398,590,686) (311,281,713) (211,865,673 (143,588,620
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 438,764,318 414,451,136 193,705,204 197,154,921
TAX INCOME (EXPENSE) (13,542,468) (12,617,925) 1,314,706 (7.193,033)
NET PROFIT 425,221,850 401,333,211 195,019,910 189,961,888
Earnings Per Share 0.28 0.27

See Notes o Consolidated Financinl Strtemenis.
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P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMEN'TS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 and JUNE 30, 2014

(Amounts in Philippinc Pesos)

nc 30, 2015

Notes Ju June 30, 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax P 438,764,318 r 414,451,136
Adjustments for: .
Interest expense 22 406,839,199 325,441,451
Depreciation and amortization 12,15 353,167,618 274,148,421
Impaimment losses 22 6,000,000 600,000
Interest income 22 { 864,984 ) { 1,001,713 )
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,203,906,151 1,013,639,295
Decrease (increase) in trade and other recetvables 980,038,889 2,968,440,551
Dectease (increase) in inventoties ( 631,427,992 ( 332,642,750)
Drecrease (inceease) in land held for sale and land
devclopment costs - 9,177,106
Dectease (increase) in restricted deposits ( 360,227 ) 45,929,016
Decrease (Increase) in input value-added rax 26,701,930 ( 136,939,386 )
Deerease (increase) Inerease in prepayments and other current assets 38,248,393 ( 104,708,557 }
Deercase {increase) in installment contract receivable - ( 34,766,254 )
Increase {decreasc) in trade and ather payables ( 1,810,331,432 ) : 263,063,773
Cash genemted from (used in) operations { 193,224,289 o 3,691,192,793
Provision for "I'axes { 610,696 ) ( 12,617,925)
Net Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities { 193,834,985 ) 3,678,574,868
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of property and equipment 12 { 850,552,973 ) ( 1,289,031,054)
Increase in other non-current asscts ( 115,846,142 ) ( 77,349,275 )
Increase in land held for funue development - 2,631,599
Advances to related patties 26 { 3,312,487 ) -
Interest received 864,984 1,001,713
Colleetions from related pacties 26 - 799,500
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 15,728,499 -
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities { 951,118,119 } (_ 1361,.897,517)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
Proceeds from additional interest-bearing loans and borrowings -
Net Inctease (Decrease) increase in Joans and borrowings 1,962,578,581 { 1,287,288,072)
Interest patd ( 477,560,717 ) { 325,441,451)
Payments of cash dividends a7 { 92,063,802 ) { 163,502,723 )
Increase in other non-current labilitics 36,953,722 { 71,017,752)
Repayments to related partics 26 ( 17,204,725 ) ( 64,161,243 )
Prior Period adjusments - ( 6,014,655 )
Increase (Deerease} on Other reserves - ( 1,460,192)
Net Cash From (Uscd in) Binancing Activities 1,412,703,001 ( _1,918,886,088)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 267,749,897 397,791,263
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 555,508,720 357,220,520
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR P 823,258,617 Iy 755,011,783

See Notes to Congolidated Financial S$tatements.
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(A Subsidiary of P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Holdings, Inc, )
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

COMMON STOCK
Balance at beginning of year
Stock dividends

Issuance during the pedod

Balance at end of year*

PREFERRED STOCK
Balance at beginning of year
Stock dividends

Additional issuance duting the year

Balance at end of period

Note
27

27

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 27

Balance ar beginning of year
Additions

Balance at end of period
Revaluation Reserves
Other Reserves
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balauce at beginning of year
Net profit
Stock Dividend

Adjustments from Priot year
Cash dividends

Balance at cnd of period

TOTAL EQUITY

27

27

june 30, 2015

June 30,2014

(Unaudited)

{Unaudited)

P 1,428,777,232 1,428,777,232
1,428,777,232 1,428,777,232
5,000,000 5,000,000

P 5,000,000 5,000,000
3,367,916,774 3,367,916,774
3,367,916,774 3,367,916,774
391,651,876 272,621,771
(622,952,239) (622,952,239
2,499,345,913 2,046,541,766
425,221,850 401,833,211
(3,784,958) (6,014,656)
(92,063,862) (163,502,723)
2,828,718,943 2,278,357,598

P 7,399,112,586 6,730,221,136

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND DECEMBER 31, 2014
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
11 Incotporation and Operations

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incozporated in the
Philippines on May 8, 2002 and is 41% owned by P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Holdings, Inc.
(PPHI), a company otganized in the Philippines.

The Parent Company’s shares of stock are listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).
The Patent Company is presently engaged in trading of refined petroleum products on
wholesale and retail basis and opetating of gas stations, oil depots, storage facilities and other
allied services. The registered office of the Parent Company, which is also its principal place
of business, is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bartio Pampanga, Davao City.

PPHI, on the other hand, was incotporated in the Philippines on May 31, 2006. PPHI’s
primary purpose is to provide management, investment and technical advice for commetcial,
industtial, manufacturing and other kinds of enterptises. PPHD’s registered office is located at
Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barric Pampanga, Davao City.

The ultimate parent company is Udenna Cotporation, which is primarily organized to
putchase, acquire, take over and manage all or any patt of the rights, assets, business and
propetty; undettake and assume the liabilities of any person, firm, association, partnership,
syndicate of corporation; and to engage in the distribution, selling, importation, installation of
pollution control devices, units and services, and all other pollution control related products
and emission test servicing, The ultimate patent company’s registered office is located at
Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Battio Pampanga, Davao City.

The Parent Company has a total of 443 operating tetail service stations, comptising of 158
service stations in Luzon, 62 in the Visayas and 223 in Mindanao and a total of 61 service
stations under construction as of June 30, 2015.

12 Subsidiaries, Associate and their Operations

The Parent Company holds ownetship interests in the following entities as of December 31
(the Parent Company and the subsidiaties ate collectively refetred to as “the Group™):

2014 2013

P-F-L Petroleumn Management, Inc. (PPMI) 100% 100%
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Global

Mercantile, Inc. (PGMI) 100% 100%
Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial :

Park Corp. (PPIPC) 100% 100%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport

Phils., Inc. (SPTT) 100% 100%
Chelsea Shipping Corp. (CSC) 100% 100%
Bunkers Manila, Inc. (BMI)* 100% 100%
Michael, Inc. (MI}* 100% 100%

P



PNX — Chelsea Shipping Corp.

(PNX — Chelseay* 100% 100%
Chelsea Ship Management Marine

Services Cotp. (CSMMSC)* 100% 100%
Fortis Tugs Corp. (FTCy* 100% 100%
Norse/Phil Marine Services Corp. (INPMSC)** 45% 45%

* Wbo@-amm& subsidiaries of CSC
*¥Assoviatz of CSC

All the subsidiaries were organized and incorporated in the Philippines.

PPMI s primarily engaged in organizing, managing, administering, running and supervising
the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-oriented companies such as
petroleum service stations. PPMI was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on January 31, 2007.

PGMI was registered with the SEC on July 31, 2006 to engage in the manufacture,
production and creation of all kinds of motor, and all other transportation lubticants, fluids
and additives of all kinds and other petroleum products purposely formotor vehicles and
other transportation. PGMI has temporarily ceased its operation since 2008.

PPIPC is engaged in real estate development. PPIPC was registered with the SEC on
March 7, 1996. PPIPC is also registered with the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(HLURB) under Executive Order No. 648 and was granted to sell parcels of land on the
Group’s project, the Phoenix Petroleum Industrial Patk (the Parls),

SPTT was registered with the SEC on February 20, 2007 and is engaged in buying and
selling, supply and distribution, importation and exportation, storage and delivery of all
types of petroleum for industrial, marine, aviation and automotive use. Tt does not carry
any inventory at any given time.

CSC was incorporated in the Philippines on July 17, 2006 and started commercial
operations on January 1, 2007 and is engaged in maritime trade through conveying,
carrying, loading, transporting, discharging and storing of petroleum products, goods and
merchandise of every kind, over waterways in the Philippines.

BMI was registered with the SEC on March 7, 2000 to serve the growing demand of marine
fuel (bunker) of foreign vessels calling on the ports of the Philippines. Aside from
international bunkering, BMT also ventures into hauling of marine fuel and petroleum
products for major oil companies. ‘

MI, which was registered with the SEC on December 26, 1957 and whose corporate life
was approved to be extended for another 50 years by the SEC on May 6, 2008, is engaged
in the business of acquiting and operating floating equipment for charter or hire and for the
conveyance and carriage of goods, wares, and merchandise of every description in the
Philippines coastwise traffic without any fixed schedule. MI is also engaged in the trading
of fuel oil.

PNX - Chelsea was incorporated on February 2, 2011 and is engaged in the ownership and

operation of vessels for domestic trade for the purpose of conveyance or catriage of
petroleutn products, goods, wares and merchandise of every kind and description.

o/
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CSMMSC was incorporated on March 30, 2012 to carry on the business of ship
management and to act as agent, broker, ship chandlex or representative of
foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals for the purpose of managing,
operating, supetvising, administering and developing the opetation of vessels.

FTC was incorporated on April 8, 2013 and started commercial operations on
November 8, 2013. It is engaged in the towage and salvage of marine vessels and other
crafts including their cargoes upon seas, lakes, tivers, canals, bays, harbours, and other
waterways between the various ports of the Philippines, and to acquire by purchase,
charter, lease or modes recognized by law of obtaining title to or use of such equipment
and properties, real or personal, which may be necessary to achieve such purpase,

NPMSC was incorporated on January 30, 2013 to engage in the business of providing
technical ship setvices and to act as agent, broker, ship handler or representative of
foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals for the purpose of operating,
supetvising, administering and developing the operation of vessels belonging to or which
are or may be leased or operated by said shipping corporations and individuals, and to
equip any and all kinds of ships, barges and vessels of every class and description owned by
any shipping corporation. NPMSC started commercial operations on June 10, 2013,

PPMU’s registered office is located at Penthouse, Valero Tower, 122 Valero Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati City and its principal place of business is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road,
Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The registered office of PGMI, CSC, BMI, MI and PNX — Chelsea, which is also their
ptincipal place of business, is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao
City.

PPIPC’s registered office is located at 4™ Floor, Phinma Plaza, 39 Plaza Drive, Rockwell
Center, Makati City and its principal place of business is located at 26" Floor, The Fort
Legend Tower, 3* Avenue corner 31 Street, The Fort Global City, Taguig City.

The registered office of SPTT, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Units
113 and 115 Subic International Hotel, Alpha Building, Rizal Highway, Subic Bay Freeport
Zone, Zambales. )

The registered address of CSMMSC and FTC, which is also their principal place of business, is
located at the 26/F, Fort Legend Towers, 3 Ave. corner 31% St., Bonifacio Global City,
Taguig City. ' .

The registered office of NPMSC, which is also its ptincipal place of business, is located at
2/F Harbor Centre II Bldg,, Railroad and Delgado Sts., South Harbor, Port Area, Manila.

13 Acquisition of CSC

On September 6, 2012, C8C became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company
upon the approval of the Parent Company’s stockholders of the acquisition of the 100% of
CSC’s outstanding shares from Udenna Management Resources Corp. (UMRC), a related
party under common ownership (see Note 27.3). The acquisition was initially approved by
the Parent Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) on July 6, 2012 and was subsequently
ratified by the Parent Company’s stockholders on September 6, 2012.
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14 Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consclidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2014 (including the comparative consolidated financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012) were authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s
President and Chief Executive Officer on February 11, 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are surnmarized below and in the succeeding pages.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Finaacial Statements

(@)

(8)

()

Staterment of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting S tandards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the Philippine Board
of Accountancy (BOA).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement
bases specified by PFRS for each type of assets, liabilities, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group presents
all items of income and expenses in a single consolidated statement of comprekensive
income.

The Group presents a third consolidated statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively,
or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material
effect on the information in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
beginning of the preceding period. The related notes to the third consolidated
statement of financial position are not required to be disclosed.

Functional and Presentation Currency

"These consclidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Group’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except
when ctherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured

using its functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic envircnment in which the Group operates.

05
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2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
(@) Effective in 2014 that are Relevant 1o the Group

In 2014, the Group adopted for the first ime the following amendments and
interpretation to PFRS that are relevant to the Group and effective for the
consolidated financial statements for the annual petiod beginning on or after
January 1, 2014:

PAS 32 (Amendment) :  Financial Instruments: Presentation -
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities .
PAS 36 (Amendment) ¢ Impairment of Assets — Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets
PAS 39 (Amendment) :  Financial Instrument: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting
PFERS 10, 12 and PAS 27
(Amendments) :  Consolidated Financial Statements,
Disclosure of Interests in QOther
Entities, Separate Fipancial
Statements — Exemption from
Consolidation for Investment Entities
Philippine Interpretation
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC} 21 : Levies

Discussed in the succeeding pages are the relevant information about these amended
standards and interpretation.

() PAS 32 (Amendment}, Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offvetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendment provides guidance to address
inconsistencies in applying the criteria for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. It clarifies that an entity must currently have a right of set-
off that is not contingent on a future event, and must be legally enforceable in
the normal course of business; in the event of defanlt; and, in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the counterparties. The
amendment also clarifies that gross settlement mechanisms (such as through a
clearing house} with features rhat both eliminate credit and liquidity risks and
process tecetvables and payables in a single settlement process, will satisfy the
criterion for net settlement. The amendment has been applied retrospectively
in accordance with its transitional provisions. The Group’s existing offsetting
and settlement artangements for its financial instruments with its
counterparties are not affected by the amendment; hence, such did not have an
impact on the presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for any periods presented.

A7
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PAS 36 (Amendment), Impairment of Assets — Recoverable Amount Disclosures Sfor
Nonfimaniial Assets. The amendment clarifies that disclosure of informatipn
about the recoverable amount of individual asset (including goodwill) or a
cash-generating unit is required only when an impairment loss has been
recogrized or reversed during the teporting period. If the recoverable amount
is determined based on the asset’s ot cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost
of disposal, additional disclosures on fait value measurement required under
PERS 13, Fair Valwe Measurensent, such as but not limited to the fair value
hierarchy, valuation technique used and key assumptions applied should be
provided in the consolidated financial statements. This amendment did not
result in additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements since
the Group did not recognize or reverse impairment losses on its non-financial
assets during the yeat.

PAS 39 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Recogntion and Measurement —
Novation of Derivatives and Contgnuation of Hedge Acconnting. The amendment
provides some relief from the requirements on hedge accounting by allowing
entities to continue the use of hedge accounting when a derivatve is novated
to a clearing countetparty resulting in termination or expiration of the orginal
hedging instrument as a consequence of laws and regulations, or the
introduction thereof. As the Group neither enters into transactions involving
derivative instruments nor does it applies hedge accounting, the amendment
did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 10, PERS 12 and PAS 27 {Amendments), Consolidated Financial § tatements,
Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, Separate Financial Statersents — Eocemption from
Consolidation for Investment Eintities. The amendments define the term
“investment entity” and provide to such an investment entity an exemption
from the consolidation of particular subsidiaries and instead require to measure
investment in each eligible subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with PAS 39, Financial Tnstruments: Recognition and Measurement, or
PYRS 9, Finanaal Instruptents, both in its consolidated or separate financial
statements, as the case maybe. The amendments also require additional
disclosures about the details of the entity’s unconsolidated subsidiaties and the
nature of its relationship and certain transactions with those subsidiades.  This
amendment had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have investment entities.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Lesses. This interpretation clarifies that the
obligating event as one of the criteria under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabibities and Contingent Assets, for the recognition of a liability for levy imposed
by a government is the activity described in the relevant legislation that triggers
the payment of the levy. Accordingly, the liability is recognized in the
consolidated financial statements progressively if the obligating event occurs
over a period of time and if an obligation is triggered on reaching a minimum
threshold, the liability is recognized when that minimum threshold is reached.
This amendment had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financtal statements.
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(6)  Effestive Subsequent to 2014 but not Adapted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing standards
effective for annual periods subsequent to 2014 which are adopted by the FRSC,
subject to the approval of the BOA. Management will adopt the following relevant
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions, and, unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:

@

@

{iif)

PAS 19 (Amendment), Employec Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans — Employee
Contributions (effective from July 1, 2014). The amendment clarifies that if the
amount of the contributions from employees or third parties is dependent on the
number of years of service, an entity shall attribute the contributions to petiods
of setvice using the same attribution method (i.c., either using the plan’s
contribution formula or on a straight-line basis) for the gross benefit.

PAS 1 (Amendment), Presensation of Pinancial Statements — Disclosure Initiative
{effective from January 1, 2016). The amendment encourages entities to apply
professional judgment in presenting and disclosing information in the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, it clatifies that materiality
applies to the whole consolidated financial statements and an entity shall not
reduce the understandability of the consolidated financial statements by
obscuring material information with immaterial information or by aggregating
material items that have different natutes or functions. Moreover, the
amendment clarifies that an entity’s shate of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method should e
presented based on whether or not such other comprehensive income item will
subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss. It further clatifies that in
determining the order of presenting the notes and disclosures, an entity shall
consider the understandability and comparability of the consolidated financial
statements.

PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equspment — Clarification of Accepiable
Methods of Depreciation and Amoriization (effective from January 1, 2016). The
amendment in PAS 16 clarifies that a depreciation method that is based on
revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset is not
appropriate for property, plant and equipment. The amendment also provides
guidance that the expected future reductions in the selling price of an item that
was produced using the asset could indicate an expectation of technological or
commertcial obsolescence of an asset, which may reflect a reduction of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset.

PAS 28 (Amendment), Investrments in Associates and Joint Veninres — Inpestment
Entities — Applying the Consolidation Exception (effective from January 1, 2016). This
amendment addresses the concetns that have arisen in the context of applying
the consolidation exception for investment entities. This amendment permits a
non-investment entity investor, when applying the equity method of accounting
fot an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, to retain the'fair
value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to
its interests in subsidiaties.
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PFRS 10 (Amendent), Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28
(Amendment), Tnvestments in Assosiates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of
Assets besween an Investor and its Assodates or Joint Ventnre (effective from
January 1, 2016). The amendment to PFRS 10 requires full recognition in the
investor’s financial statements of gains or losses atising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3, Baiiness
Combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the partial recognition of gains or losses {i.e., to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interests in an associate or joint venture) only applies to those sale of
contribution of assets that do not constitute a business. Corresponding
amendment has been made to PAS 28 to reflect these changes. In addition,

PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when determining whether assets that
are sold or contributed constitute a business, an entity shall consider whether the
sale or contribution of those assets is part of multiple arrangements that should
be accounted for as a single transaction.

PERS 9 (2014), Dinancial Insituments (effective from January 1, 2018). This new
standard on financial instruments will eventually replace PAS 39 and PFES 9
(2009, 2010 and 2013 versions}. This standard contains, among others, the
following:

® three principal classification categories for financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its finandial instruments;

* an expected loss model in determining impairment of all financial assets
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), which
generally depends on whether there has been a sighificant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of a financial asset; and, .

¢ anew model on hedge accounting that provides significant improvetmnents
principally by aligning hedge accounting mote closely with the risk
management activities undertaken by entities when hedging their financial
and non-financial risk exposures.

In accordance with the financial asset classification ptinciple of PFRS 9 (2014),
a fiancial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if the asset is held
within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely payments of ptincipal
and interest {SPPI} on the principal outstanding. Moteovet, a financial agset is
classified and subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it meets the SPPI critetion and is held in a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets. All other financial assets ate measured at

FVTIPL.

In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an itrevocable election to
ptesent subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument that is not
held for trading in other comprehensive income.

The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are financial
assets Is simplified by removing the requitement to consider whether or not

they are closely related, and, in most arrangements, does not require separation
from the host contract.

6/t



{vii)

(viif)

-13 -

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation
of embedded derivatives. The amendment also requires changes in the fair
value of an entity’s own debt instruments caused by changes in its own credit
quality to be recognized in other comprehensive income rather than in profit

or loss. .

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt any version of PFRS 9 until
its effective date. In addition, management is currently assessing the impact of
PERS 9 on the consolidated financial statements of the Group and it will
conduct a compzrehensive study of the potential impact of this standard ptior to
its mandatory adoption date to assess the impact of all changes.

FERS 12 (Amendment), Disclosures of Interests in Other Entitics — Investment Entitios:
Applying the Consolidation Exception (effective from January 1, 2016). The
amendment clarifies that an investment entity that measures all its subsidiaries at
fair value should provide the disclosures required by PFRS 12.

Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvements to PERS

(2010-2012 Cycle) and PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle) effective for annual petiods
beginning on or after July 1, 2014, and to PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle) effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, made minor amendments
to a number of PFRS. Among those improvements, the following amendments
are relevant to the Group but management does not expect those to have a
tmatetial impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 Cycle)

{a) PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment. 'T'he amendment
clarifies that when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with a
revaluation of the catrying amount of the asset.

() PAS 24 {(Amendment), Related Party Disclosures. 'The amendment clarifies
that an entity providing key management services to a reporting entity is
deemed to be a related party of the latter. It also requires and clarifies that
the information required to be disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are the amounts incurred by the reporting entity for key
management personnel services that are provided by a separate management
entity and not the amounts of compensation paid or payable by the |
management entity to its employees or directors.

(¢) PFRS 3 (Amendment), Buasiness Combinations. The amendment clarifies that
an obligation to pay contingent consideration which meets the definition of
a financial instrument is classifted as a financial liability or as equity in
accordance with PAS 32. Italso clatifies that all non-equity contingent
consideration should be measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

(@) PERS 8 (Amendment), Operating Segments. The amendment requires

disclosure of the judgments made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments. This includes a description of

Y&
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the segments which have been aggregated and the economic indicators
which have been assessed in determining that the aggregated segments share
similar economic characteristics. It further clarifies the requirement to
disclose for the reconciliations of segment assets to the entity’s assets if that
amount is regulatly provided to the chief operating decision maker.

PERS 13 (Amendment), Fair Vaiue Measurement. 'The amendment, through a
revision only in the basis of conclusion of PFRS 13, clarifies that issuing
PFRS 13 and amending certain provisions of PFRS 9 and PAS 39 telated to
discounting of financial instruments, did not remove the ability to measute
short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate on an
undiscounted basis, when the effect of not discounting is immaterial.

Annual Improvemenis to PERS (2071-2013 Cyele)

(@)

)

(¢)

PERS 3 (Amendment), Business Combinations. The amendment clatifies that
PERS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of any joint
artangement under PFRS 11, Join? Arrangement, in the financial statements
of the joint arrangement itself.

PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fair VVajue Measurement. The amendment clarifies
that the scope of the exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis (the portfolio
exception) applies to all contracts within the scope of and accounted for
in accordance with PAS 39 or PFRS 9, regardless of whether they meet
the definition of financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in

PAS 32.

PAS 40 (Amendment), Invesiment Property. 'The amendment clarifies the
interrelationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 in determining the classification
of property as an investment property or ownet-occupied property, and
explicitly requites an entity to use judgment in determining whether the
acquisition of an investment propetty is an acquisiion of an asset or a
group of asset in accordance with PAS 40, or a business combination in
accordance with PFRS 3.

Annnal Improvements to PFRS (2012-2014 Cyele)

@

()

PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instrumenis — Disclosures. The amendment
provides additional guidance to help entities identify the circumstances
under which a contract to “service” financial assets is considered to be a
continuing involvernent in those assets for the purposes of applying the
disclosure requirements of PFRS 7. Such citcumstances commonly arise
when, for example, the servicing is dependent on the amount ot timing of
cash flows collected from the transfetred asset or when a fixed fee is not
paid in full due to non-performance of that asset.

PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits. The amendment clarifies that the
currency and term of the high quality corporate bonds which were used to
determine the discount rate for post-employment benefit obligations shall
be made consistent with the currency and estimated term of the
post-employment benefit obligations.

/7
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2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Gtroup’s consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries (see Note 1) after the elimination of intetcompany
transactions. All intercompany assets and liabilities, ecuity, income, expenses and cash
flows telating to ttansactions between entities under the Group, are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany transactions that are
tecognized in assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that indicate
impairment ate recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of subsidiaties are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Patent Company, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries and an associate as
follows:

(@) Investmenis in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Patent
Company has control. The Parent Company conttols an entity when it is exposed to,
ot has rights to, vatiable retutns from its involvement with the said entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the same entity. Subsidiaties are
consolidated from the date the Patent Company obtains control. ‘

‘The Parent Company reassesses whether ot not it conttols an entity if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes in one ot more of the three elements of
conttol indicated above. Accotdingly, entities are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquited subsidiaries. This tequires
tecognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The consideration transferted for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incutred and the equity intetests issued by the Parent Company, if any. ‘The
consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-telated costs are expensed
as incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consideration is
recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling
intetest in the acquiree, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controliing
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity
Interest in the acquiree ovet the acquisition-date fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill (see Note 16). If the
consideration received is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly as gain
in profit or loss (see Note 2.13).

On the other hand, business combinations arising from transfers or acquisition of
interests in entities that are under the common control of the shareholder that
controls the Group ate normally accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method
and reflected in the consolidated financial statements as if the business combination
had occurted at the beginning of the earliest compatative period presented, orif later,
at the date that common control was established; for this putpose, comparatives are
testated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognized in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements at the carrying amounts previously recognized. The
difference between the consideration transferred and the net assets of the subsidiary

acquired is recognized as Other Reserves as part of the equity (see Notes 2.13 and
2.24).

Tnvestrment in an Associate

Associates are those entities over which the Parent Company is able to exert
significant influence but which are neither subsidiaties nor interests in a joint venture.
Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost and subsequently accounted
for using the equity method.

Acquired investment in associate is subject to the purchase method. The purchase
method involves the recognition of the acquiree's identifiable assets and liabilides,
including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they wete tecorded in the
financial statements prior to acquisition. Goodwill represents the excess of
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Parent Company's share of the identifiable
net assets of the acquiree at the date of acquisition. Any goodwill or fair value
adjustment attributable to the Parent Company's share in the associate is included in
the amount recognized as investment in an associate. :

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investment in
an associate will not be recovered (see Note 2.17).

Changes resulting from othet comptehensive income of the associate or items
tecognized directly in the associate’s equity are recognized in other comprehensive
income ot equity of the Group, as applicable. However, when the Parent Company’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Patent Company does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
If the associate subsequently tepotts profits, the investor resumes recognizing-its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the accumulated share
of losses that has previously not been recognized.
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Distributions received from the associates are accounted for as a teduction of the
carrying value of the investment.

The Parent Company holds interests in various subsidiaries and in an associate as presented
in Notes 1 and 13.

2.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of
the financial instrument. Financial assets are classified into the following categoties:
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by
management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL ate initially recognized at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVIPL are initially
recorded at fair value and the related transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss.

Curtently, the financial assets category relevant to the Group is loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-detivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active matket. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods ot setvices directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months
after the end of each teporting petiod which are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented as Cash and
Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Due from Related Parties, Restricted
Deposits, and Refundable Rental Deposits (presented as part of Other Non-Current Assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position). Cash and cash equivalents include cash
on hand, savings and demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with
otiginal maturities of three months or less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Refundable rental deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the rental
deposits arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest
method and is presented as part of Finance Income under Other Chatges (Tncome) in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The excess of the ptincipal amount of the
deposit over its present value is immediately recognized as deferred minimum lease
payments (presented as part of Other Non-Curtent Assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position). Meanwhile, rent expense atising from subsequent amottization of
deferred minimum lease payments is accounted for using the straight-line method over the
lease tertn and is presented as part of Rent under Selling and Administrative Expenses in
the consolidated statement of comptehensive income.

A
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Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is provided when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the impairment loss is
determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated futute cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset’s otiginal effective interest rate ot current effective interest
rate determined under the contract if the loan has a variable interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced cither directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occutring after the impairment was recognized {(such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating}, the previously recognized impairment loss
is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognized in
profit or loss. )

Non-compounding interest and other cash lows resulting from holding financial assets are

recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related carrying amount of
financial assets is measured.

The financial assets ate derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the financial instruments expire, ot when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized botrowing for the proceeds
received.

2.5 Inventories

Inventoties are valued at the lower of cost and net tealizable value. Costis determined
using the moving average method. The cost of inventoties include all costs directly
attributable to acquisitions, such as the purchase price, import duties and other taxes that
are not subsequently recoverable from taxing authorities. _

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinaty course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estitnated costs necessaty to make the sale.

2.6 Land Held for Sale and Land Development Costs

Land heid for sale and land development costs are valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Land held for sale and land development costs includes the cost of land
and actual development costs incurred as at the end of reporting period. Interest incurred
during the development of the project is capitalized (see Note 2.19).

6<%
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ondinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of developing and the estimated costs necessaty to make the sale.

2.7 Prepayments and Other Cutrent Assets

Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as
a result of past events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it
is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost

or value that can be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the repotting petiod orin the normal
operating cycle of the business, if longer, are classified as non-current assets.

2.8 Land Held For Forure Development

Land held for future development is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost of land held for future development includes purchase price and other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of land.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of developing and estimated costs necessaty to make the sale.

2.9 Property and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value. Tankers are measured at revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation. All other property and equipment are carried at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in
value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to worldng condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for repairs and maintenance
are charged to expense as incurred, except for periodic drydocking costs performed at least
every two yeats on the vessel, which are capitalized (see Note 2.10).

Following initial recognition, tankets ate catried at revalued amounts which are the fair
values at the date of revaluation, as determined by independent appraisers, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impaitment losses.

Revalued amounts represent fair values determined based on appraisals by external _
professional valuer once every two years unless more frequently if market factors indicate a
material change in fair value (sece Note 5.4).

Any revaluation surplus is recognized in other comprehensive income and credited to the
Revaluation Reserves account in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any
revaluation deficit directly offsetting a previous sutplus in the same asset is charged to other
comprehensive income to the extent of any revaluation surplus in equity relating to this
asset and the remaining deficit, if any, is recognized in profit ot loss. Annually, an amount
from the Revaluation Reserves is transferred to Retained Earnings for the depreciation
relating to the revaluation surplus. Upon disposal of the revalued assets, amounts included
in Revaluation Reserves is transferred to Retained Earnings.

Gf
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0

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Marine Tankers 30 years
Buildings, depot and pier facilities 5-25 years
Transportation and other equipment 1-10 years
Vessel equipment 5 years
Hauling and heavy equipment 1-5 years
Gasoline station equipment 1-5 years
Office furniture and equipment 1-3 years

.

Leasehold and land improvements are amortized over the terms of the related leases or the
useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Hauling and heavy equipment held under finance lease agreements (sec Note 2.15) are
depreciated over their expected useful lives (detetmined by reference to comparable owned
assets) or over the term of the lease, if shorter.

Construction in progress represents propetties under construction and on-going major
repair works and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing -
costs (see Note 2.19) and other direct costs. The account is not depreciated until such time
that the assets are completed and available for use. :

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.17).

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of property and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if approptiate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain ot loss arising on derccognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the cartying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year the item is derecognized.

2.10 Drydocking Costs

Drydocking costs are considered major repairs that preserve the life of the vessel. As an
industry practice, costs associated with drydocking are amortized over two yeats or until the
next drydocking occurs, whichever comes eatlier. When significant drydocking
expenditures occur prior to their expiry, any remaining unamortized balance of the
preceding drydocking costs is expensed it the month of the subsequent drydocking.
Amortization of drydocking costs starts only when the process has been completed and the
related vessel is ready for use.

The carrying amount of drydocking costs, presented as part of the Other Non-current Asset
account in the consolidated statement of financial position, is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (see Note 2.17).
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The carrying amount of drydocking costs is derecognized upon derecognition of the related
tanker. The computed gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the tanker takes into
consideration the carrying amount of drydocking costs and is included in profit or loss in
the year the related tanker is derecognized (see Note 2.9).

2.11 Financial Liabilities

Financial labilities, which include interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables (excluding tax-related payables), due to related parties and security deposits
(presented under Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position), are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of the
instrument. All interest-related charges incurred on financial liability are recognized as an
expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. .
Interest charges that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 2
qualifying asset {ie., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of such asset (see Note 2.19). All
other interest related charges are recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income under the caption Finance Costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are raised for support of long-term funding of
operations. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and
direct issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that these are
not settled in the period in which they arise.

Obligations under finance lease (included as part of Interest bearing Loans and
Borrowings) ate recognized at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property

or, if lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments, at the inception of the lease
{see Notes 2.15 and 30.5).

Trade and other payables (excluding tax-related payables), due to related parties and security
deposits are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one year, less settlement
payments.

Security deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the security deposits
arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method
and is presented as part of Finance Costs. The excess of the principal amount of the
deposit over its present value is immediately recognized as unearned rent (presented as part
of Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position).
Meanwhile, the rent income atising from subsequent amortization of unearned rent is
accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented as patt of
Rent and Storage Income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Dividend distributions to sharcholders ate recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Parent Company. ‘ .

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled within

one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business, if longer), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer

(A%
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settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
Otherwise, these are presented as non-current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through dischatge, cancellatiori or
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
econofnic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legai ot
constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there arc
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an cutflow will be required in settlement
is determined by consideting the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of
money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present vaiues using a
pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions
ate reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the cutrent best
estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the
tecognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized
in the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the
Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.13 Business Combinations

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting and
pooling-of-interest method.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumnulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed
(see Note 2.17).

Negative goodwill which is the excess of the Group’s intetest in the fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost is charged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination



-23-
in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
are identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to it.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to remeasure its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognize
the resulting gain or loss, if any, in the profit or loss or other comptehensive income, as
apprepriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or Liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37, either in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Under the pooling-of-interest method, similar accounts of the entities are combined on a
line-by-line basis except for the equity accounts which were offset with the new shares
issued by the new entity in which the difference between the net assets received and the
amount of the consideration (shares issued and cash) is accounted for as Other Reserves.

2.14 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue comprises revenue from the sale of goods and rendering of services measured by
reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the Group for goods
sold and services rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT), tebates and trade discounts.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can he reliably measured; it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group; and the costs incurred or to be incutred
can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition ctiteria must also
be met before revenue is recognized: .

{a) Sale of goods — Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, i.e. genetally when the customer has acknowledged
delivery of goods or when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of goods.

(b) Charter fees — Revenue, which consists mainly of charter income arising from the charter
hire of tankers, is recognized based on the type of charter arrangement entered into,
either under a time charter (TC), a continuing voyage charter (CVC), or a bareboat
agrecment (BB) [see Note 3.1(7)]. Undera TC and BB, revenue is recognized based on
the terms of the contract, with the distinction thatin a BB, no administration ot technical
maintenance is included as part of the agreement. Under a CVC, revenue is recognized
upon completion of the voyage; however, appropriate accrual of revenue is made at the
end of the reporting period.

(¢) Fuel service and other revenses, port revensues and siorage income — Revenue is recognized when the
perforinance of contractually agreed tasks has heen substantially rendered. This account
includes franchise income, which has minimal amount, In addidon, this includes revenue
arising from port and cargo handling services.
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(d) Rent income — Revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(see Note 2.15).

(¢) Interest income —Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the profit or loss upon utilization of goods or services
or at the date they are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an accrual
basis, except capitalized borrowing costs which are included as part of the cost of the
related qualifying asset (see Note 2.19).

The cost of real estate sold, if any, before the completion of the development is determined
based on the actual costs incurred to date which include the cost of land plus estimated
costs to complete the project development. The estimated expenditures for the
development of sold real estate, as determined by project engineers, are charged to Cost of
Sales and Services account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding credit to accrued expenses presented under the Trade and Other Payables
account in the consolidated statement of financial position. Effects of any revisions in the
total project cost estitnates are recognized in the year in which the changes become known.

2,15 Leases
The Group accounts for its leases as follows:

(a) Group as Lossee
Leases which transfer to the Group substantially all risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are recognized as assets
and labilities in the consolidated statement of financial position at amounts equal to the
fair value of the leased property at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance costs and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance costs are recognized in profit or loss. Capitalized leased assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the estitnated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Finance lease obligations, net of finance charges, are included in Interest-beating Loans
and Borrowings account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (net
of any incentive received from the lessor) ate recognized as expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs, such as repairs and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
incurred.

(b) Groxp as Lessor

Leases wherein the Group substantally transfers to the lessee all risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are
presented as receivable at an amount equal to the Group’s net investment in the leasc.
Finance income is recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of
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return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the tisks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on the
substance of the atrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfilment of'the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.

2.16 Foreign Cutrency Transactions and Translations

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. F oreign currency
transactions duting the year ate translated into the functional currency at exchange rates
which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and labiliies
denominated in foreign cutrencies are recognized in profit ot loss.

2.17 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s propetty and equipment, investment in an associate, drydocking costs
(presented as part of Other Non-curtent Assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position), goodwill and other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing.
Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, except
for goodwill that is tested for impaitment at least annually.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level,
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are identified according to
operating segiment. ‘

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its tecoverable amounts which is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, managetnent
estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the
suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount
factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect manapement’s
assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk factors.

Except for goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss, except
impairment loss on goodwill (see Note 2.13), is reversed if the asset’s or cash generating
unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its catrying amount. )



2.18 Employee Benefits

- 26 -

.

The Group provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit

plan and a defined contribution plan, and other employee benefits which are recognized as
follows:

@

)

Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one ot more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for
any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the Group, even if
plan assets, if any, for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assets, if
any, may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as
qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s post-employment benefit pension plan covers
all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is tax-qualified, noncontributory and
administered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for a defined
benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaties using the projected unit credit method.
"The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate derived from the intetest rates of a
zero coupon government bond as published by Philippine Dealing and Exchange
Cotporation, that are denominated in the cutrency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-
employment liability.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses atising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets
(excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, taking account of any changes
in the net defined benefit liability or asset duting the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest is reported as part of Finance Costs or Finance
Income account in the counsolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit o loss in the period of a plan
amendment.

Post-employment Defined Contribution Plans

A defined conttibution plan is a post-employment plan under which the Group pays
fixed conttibutions into an independent entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. The
contributions recognized in respect of defined contribution plans ate expensed as they
fall due. Liabilities and assets may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or cutrent assets as they ate normally of a
short-term nature.

- (ef
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(¢) Termination Benefirs

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group, before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the earlier
of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits and when it recognizes
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due mote than 12 months after the reporting petiod
are discounted to their present value.

(4) Profit-sharing and Bonns Plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based
on a formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
shareholdets after certain adjustments. The Group recognizes a provision whete it is

contractually obliged to pay the benefits, or where there i is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

(¢) Compensated Absenes

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days

(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They ate
included in Ttade and Othet Payables account in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a result
of the unused entilement.

2.19 Borrowing Costs

Botrowing costs ate recognized as expenses in the petiod in which they ate incurred, except
to the extent that they ate capitalized. Bortowing costs that ate attributable to the
acquisition, construction ot production of a qualifying asset (i.c., an asset that takes a
substantial petiod of titne to get ready for its intended use ot sale) ate capitalized as part of
cost of such asset. The capitalization of botrowing costs commences when expenditures
for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that ate necessaty to
ptepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when
substantially all such activities are complete.

Investrnent income earned on the temporaty investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

2.20 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit ot loss comptises the sum of defetted tax and curtent tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income ot ditectly in equity, if any. i
Current tax assets ot liabilities comptise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authotities relating to the current or ptiot repotting petiod, that are uncollected or unpaid
at the end of reporting period. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.

%
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All changes to curtent tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expensc
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on temporary differences at the end
of reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions,
deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferted tax
assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the catryforward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will
be avatlable to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
pertiod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For purposes of
measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for land held for sale and land
development costs, the carrying amount of such properties is presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted, that is when the land held for sale
and development costs are held within the business model whose objective is to codsume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority. )

2.21 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered
as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the consolidated staterment of
financial position when the Group currently has legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and
settle the ltability simultaneously. The rdght of set-off must be available at the end of the
reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on future event. It must also be enforceable in
the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or
bankruptey; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterpatties to the
financial instruments.
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2.22 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party ot
exercise significant influence ovet the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. This includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control of are controlled by, or undet common control with the Grqup;

(b} associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power
of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close members of
the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group’s funded retirement plan.

In consideting each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not metely on the legal form. '

2.23 Segment Reporting

Operating segments ate reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group’s BOD and management committee responsible for allocating
‘resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s products
and service lines as disclosed in Note 29 which represent the main products and setvices

provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these setvice lines
tequires different technologies and other resources as well as marketing approaches.
All inter-segment transfers are cartied out at arm's length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial statements, except that post-employment
benefit expenses are not included in arriving at the operating profit of the operating
segments.

In addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

There have been no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit of loss.

2.24 Equity

Preferred and common stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of capital
stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from
additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Revaluation resetves comprise of gains and losses arising from the revaluation of the
Group’s tankers and from the remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit
obligation, net of applicable taxes.
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Other resetves pertain to the difference between the Parent Company’s cost of investment
and the acquired net assets of CSC accounted for under the pooling-of-integest method
(see Notes 2.3 and 2.13).

Retained earnings include all current and ptior petiod results of operations as repotted in
the profit or loss section of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, reduced
by the amounts of dividends declared.

2.25 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income atttibutable to common
shateholders by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding,
adjusted retroactively for any stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split declared during
the curtent period.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential shares.

2.26 Events After the End of the Reporting Petiod

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, ate disclosed when
matetial to the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS
tequires management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(a) Distinguishing Operating and Finance Leases

The Group has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was exercised
by management to distinguish each lease agreement, either as a lessor or a lessee, as
either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure
to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement ot understatement of
assets and liabilities. Certain hauling and heavy equipment are accounted for undet
finance lease. ‘

Wl
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(b)  Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed
in Note 2.12 and disclosures on relevant contingencies are presented in Note 30,

() Quwalifying Assets on Borrowing Costs

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Determining if an asset is a qualifying asset will
depend on the circumstances and requires the use of judgment in each case. In
making judgment, the management takes into account its intention when it determines
whether the asset is a qualifying asset and considers the facts and circumstances and
uses its judgment to determine whether an asset takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Based on the facts and circumstances affecting
the Grroup’s qualifying asset, the management concludes that the Group’s retail station
depot facilities, tankers and land held for sale and development costs are qualifying
assets 4s the management assesses that it takes substantial petiod of time for the
completion of those assets.

3

(d)  Revensue Recognition for Charter Fee Arrangements

In determining the appropriate method to use in recognizing the Group’s revenue
from TC, CVC and BB, management considers the following critetia: (1) whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific vessel; and,

(2) whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the vessel. Management
determined that if both criteria are met, the revenue should be recognized using the
straight-line method over the term of the contract (see Note 2.14). Otherwise,,
revenue will be recognized based on contract terms when substantial agreed tasks have
been rendered.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concetning the future, and other key soutces of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting petiod, that have a significant risk of
causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period:

(@) Tmpairment of Trade and Other Recetvables and Due from Related Parties .

Adequate amount of allowance for impaitment is provided for specific and group of
accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates the
amount of allowance fot impairment based on available facts and circumstances
affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including, but not limited to, the length of
the Group’s relationship with the customers, the customers’ current credit status,
average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss experience. The
methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash flows are reviewed
teguiarly by the Company to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experence.

The cartying value of trade and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 7. The carrying value of due
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from related parties is shown in Note 26.4. The Group has determined that no

impairment loss on Due from Related Parties account should be recognized in 2014,
2013 and 2012.

Determining Net Realigable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable value of inventories, management takes into account
the most reliable evidence available at the times the estimates are made. Future
realization of the carrying amounts of inventories, as presented in Note 8, is affected by
price changes and action from the competitors. Both aspects are considered key
sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s
inventories within the next financial reporting petiod.

Desermining Net Realizable Value of Land Held for Sale and I.and Develgpment Costs and and
Held for Fuiure Development

In determining the net realizable value of land held for sale and land development costs
and land held for future development, management takes into account the most reliable
evidence available at the time the estitnates are made. Future realization of the carrying
amounts of land held for sale and development costs and land held for future
development is affected by price changes and demand from the target market segments.
Both aspects are considered key sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause
significant adjustments within the next financial reporting period.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Drydocking Costs

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and drydocking costs
based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of property and equipment and drydocking costs are reviewed
petiodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits
on the use of the assets. .

The carrying amounts of property and equipment and drydocking costs are analyzed in
Notes 12 and 15, respectively. Based on management’s assessment as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, thete is no change in the estimated useful lives of the
property and equipment and drydocking costs during those years. Actual results,
however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above.

Fair Value Measurement of Tankers

The Group’s tankers, presented as part of the Property and Equipment account, are
carried at revalued amount at the end of the reporting period. In determining the fair
values of these assets, the Group engages the setvices of professional and independent
appraisers applying the relevant valuation methodologies as discussed in Note 5.4.

For tankers with appraisals conducted ptior to the end of the current reporting petiod,
management determines whether there are significant citcumstances during the
intervening period that may requite adjustments or changes in the disclosute of fair
value of the Group’s tankers.

T
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A significant change in these elements may affect prices and the value of the assets.

The amounts of revaluation and fair value gains recognized on the Group’s tankers are
disclosed in Note 12.

Determining Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized. Management assessed that the deferred tax assets recognized as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013 will be fully utilized in the coming years. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is disclosed in Note 25.

Estimating Liability for Land Development

Obligations to complete development of real estate are based on actual costs and
project estimates of the Group’s contractors and technical personnel. These costs are
reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates. Liability to complete the project for sold units included in the determination
of cost of sales amounting to 0.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, are
presented as part of accrued expenses under Trade and Other Payables account in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 18).

Valnation of Post-ersployneent Defined Bensefit Qbligation

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 23 andinclude,
among others, discount rates and salary increase rate. In accordance with PFRS, actual
results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future
periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation
in such future periods.

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the estimated present value of retirement benefit obligation are
presented in Note 23.2,

Estimating Development Costs

The accounting for real estate requires the use of estimates in determining costs and
gross profit recognition. Cost of real estate sold (under Cost of Sales and Setvices in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive incotne) includes estimated costs for .
future development. The development cost of the project is estimated by the Group’s
contractors and technical personnel. Many factors influence a project development
cost estimate, which include among others, the geographic location of the project,
quantity of materials and item availability, general soil conditions and scheduling of
resources including labor and equipment. At the end of reporting period, these
estimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions, when necessary.
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G} Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset
ot a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate
to discount such. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating
results and the determination of a suitable discount rate (see Note 2.17). Though
management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values .
reflected in the consolidated financial statements are approptiate and reascnable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of
recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse
effect on the results of operations.

Management has assessed that no impairment losses ate required to be recogm7ed on
the Group’s non-financial assets in 2014.

(&) Business Combinations

On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the acquired business and the .
consideration paid for them are included in the consolidated financial statements at
their fair values. [n measuring fair value, management uses estimates of future cash
flows and discount rates. Any subsequent change in these estimates would affect the
amount of goodwill if the change qualifies as a measurement period adjustment. Any
other change would be recognized in profit or loss in the subsequent period.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a vatiety of financial risks in relation tc financial instruments.
The Group’s financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 5. The
main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. .

The Group’s risk management is coordinated with its Patent Company, in close
cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on actively secuting the Group’s
short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most sighificant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described in the succeeding pages.

4.1 Market Risk

The Group is exposed to martket risk through its use of financial instruments and
specifically to foreign currency risk and interest rate tisk which result from both its
operating, investing and financing activities.

(@) Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried cut in Philippine pesos, its functional
currency. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group’s sales to a certain
customer and, fuel and tanker importations, which are primatily denominated in T.S.
dellars (US$). The liability coveting the fuel impottation is covered by letter of credits
which is subsequently closed to Philippine peso trusts receipts (TRs). Further, the Group
has several T.8. dollar loans from certain banks which were used to finance its capital
expenditures (see Note 17). The Group alsc holds U.S. dollar-denominated cash and cash

i
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equivalents.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash flows
are monitored.

Forelgn currency-denominated financial assets and financial liabilities, translated into
Philippine pesos at the closing rate follow:

2014
Financial assets P4,383,654,349
Financial Habilities (_2,988,051,570)
Net exposure P1,395.602.779

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax with respect
to changes in Philippine peso against 1.8 dollar exchange rates. The percentage changes in
rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates, using
standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a 99% confidence level.

2014
Reasonably possible change in rate 27.8%
Effect in profit before tax P 387,977,573
Effect in equity aftet tax 271,584,301

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vaty during the year depending on the volume of
foreign currency denominated transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered
to be representative of the Group’s curtency risk. -

(b) Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term
financing. Long term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates
through its cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings, which are subject to variable
interest rates (see Notes 6 and 17). All other financial assets and liabilities have fixed rates.

Cash in banks are tested on a reasonably possible change of +/-0.96% and +/-1.10% in
2014 and 2013, respectively. Banks loans subject to vatiable interest rates are tested on a
reasonably possible change of ++/-0.68% and +/-1.67% for Philippine peso and

+/-0.31% and +/-0.69% for U.S. dollat in 2014 and 2013, respectively. These percentages
havc been determined based on the average market volatility of interest rates, using
standard deviation, in the previous 12 months estimated at 99% level of confidence, The
sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s financial instruments held at the end of the each
reporting period, with effect estimated from the beginning of the year. All other variables
are held constant.

The changes in percentages would affect profit or loss before tax by +/-P68.2 million year
ended December 31, 2014.
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(¢) Other Price Risk

The Group’s matket price risk arises from its purchases of fuels. It manages its risk arising
from changes in matket prices by monitoting the daily movement of the market price of
fuels and to some extent, using forward and other similar contracts to manage the
fluctuation of the fuel price.

4.2 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the Group.
The Group is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments arising from granting of
loans and selling goods and services to customers including related patties; and placing
deposits with banks.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties,
tdentified either individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit
tisk controls. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy countetparties. In
addition, for a sighificant proportion of sales, advance payments are received to mitgate
credit risk. :

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposute of financial assets is the carrying amount of
the financial assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position ot in the
detailed analysis provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as
summarized below.,

Notes J[une 30,2014 Dec. 31, 2014

Cash and cash equivalents o P 823,258,617 P 555,508,720
Trade and other receivables — net* 7 3,603,851,622 3,789,225,134
Due from related parties 26.4 13,685,843 10,373,356
Restricted deposits 10, 15 70,766,970 71,670,538
Refundable rental deposits 15 155,596,271 172.226.696

P 4,667,150,323 P4.599.004.444
* Bxcludes advances 1o supplier and advances subject to liguidation.

The Group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired
ot past due for each reporting dates are of good credit quality.

None of the financial assets are secuted by collateral ot other cred’it enhancements, except
for cash and cash equivalents as described below.

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The credit risk fot cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the
counterpatties are teputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in the
cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks and shott-term placements which are tnsured
by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a maximum coverage of

P0.5 million for every depositor per banking institution.
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(b)  Trade and Other Reoceivables and Due from Related Parties

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit
risk exposure to any single counterparty or any gronp of counterparties having similar
characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various
industries and geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default
rafes, management considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or
impaired to be good. .

The Group has a Credit Committee which approves credit lines given to its customers.
The Group’s Credit and Collection Department, which regularly reports to the Credit
Committee, continuously monitors customers’ petformance and other countetrparties,
identified either individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credir
tisk controls. Where available at a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on
customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to deal
only with creditworthy counterparties.

Sotne of the unimpaired trade and other receivables are past due at the end of the reporting
date. The age of financial assets past due but not impaired is as follows:

June 30, 2015 Dec. 30, 2014

.

Not more than one month P 380,297,783 T 205924748
More than one month

but not more than two months 28,719,922 152,505,688
More than two months but

not more than six months 39,031,058 87,978,949
More than six maonths but not

more than one year 37,862,012 74,091,227
More than one year 96,840,209 86,449 908

P 582,750,984 P 606950520

In respect of due from related parties, the Group has assessed that these advances are
collectible and the credit risk exposure is considered ro be low.

4.3 Liguidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day projection. Long-term
liquidity needs for a 6-month and one-year period are identified monthly.

"The Group maintains cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requirements for up to
60-day periods. Excess cash are invested in time deposits. Funding for long-term liquidity
needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilitics and the
ability to sell long-term financial assets.

GtV
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As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities which
ate suminarized as follows:

Current Non-current
Within 6to 12 1to 5
6 months months vears

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowings P 7,011,246,094 P 1,692,894,035 P 6,116,547,965
Trade and othet payables

{(excluding tax-related

payables) 3,193 805,959 517,524 441 -
Due to related parties 17,204,725 - - .
Security deposits - - 158,325.351

P10.222.256,778 P_2,210.418.476 P _6,274,873.316

This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of

December 31, 2013 as presented below.

Current Non-current
Within 6to12 1to 5
6 months months years

0

Interest-bearing loans ‘

and borrowings P 6,050,573,611 D 2726331756 P 6,007,722,903
Trade and other payables

(excluding tax-related

payables) 818,142,220 451,750,258 -
Due to related partes 33,991,925 30,169,318 -
Security deposits - - 275,962,723

P 6902707756 P 3208251332 P 6283685626

The contractual maturities of the financial liabilities reflect the gross cash flows, which may
differ from the carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the reporting periods.

.
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See Notes 2.4 and 2.11 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instruments including the determination of fair values. A description of the
Group’s risk management ohjectives and policies for financial instruments is provided
in Note 4. '

5.2 Fair Valvoe Hierarchy .
In accordance with PFRS 13, the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilides
and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring or
non-recurring hasis and those assets and liahilities not measured at fair value but for
which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PERS, are categorized
mnto three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair value. The
fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

{a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities
that an entity can access at the measurement date,

(b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are ohsegvable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and,

(¢ Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is detertnined based on the lowest
level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing setvice, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

5.3 Fair Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value Is
Disclosed

The table below and in the next page summatizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value in the
consolidated statements of financial position but for which fair value is disclosed.

2014
Noes Levell o Level2 Level 3 . To_tg!_
Financial Assets
onns and receivabies:

Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 555508720 P - P - I* 555,508,720
Trade and other receivables - net 7 - - 3,789,225134  3,789,225,134
Due from related parties 26.4 - - 10,373,356 10,373,356
Restricted deposits 10, 15 71,670,538 - - 71,670,538
Refundable rental deposits 15 - - 172,226 696 172,226,696

P 627179258 P - P3,971825186 P4,599.004,444

K
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2014

Nores  __ Leveld

Financial Liabilities
Fiinancial fabilitier al amortised wsi:

Tnterest-beacing loans

Level 2 Tevel 3

Tota

and borrowings 17 P - P - I 13,812,643,307 1 13,842,643 ,397
Trade and other payables 18 - - 3,711,330,400 3,711,330,400
Due to related parties 26.4 - - 17,204,725 17,204,725
Secutity deposits 19 - - 158325351 158325351
B = e = £17,729,503,873 P 17,729,503,87%
2013
Notes level1 Lovel 2 Tovel 3 Total
Financial Assets
Laaits and recefrables:
Cash and cash equivalents [ 1P 357220520 I - r - P 357,220,520
Tradc and other receivables - net 7 - - 6,402,695,635  6,402,695,635
Due from related parties 26.4 - - 2,747,994 2,741,994
Restricted deposits 10,15 96,683,441 - - 96,083,441
Refundable rental deposits 15 - - _180951.286 __ 180,951,286
D_4539003961 b . P 6586304915 PLOAL 208370
Financial Linbilities
Financial liabifites at aprortized wost:

Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings 17 r - P - PABISLIBAT P 13750738817
T'rade and other payables 18 - - 1,269, 892,478 1,269,802,478
Due o related partics 26.4 - - 64,161,243 64,161,243
Security deposits 19 - - 275,262,723 275,963 723
P - P - P 15361755201 115361 755261
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For financial asset with fair value included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amount of this short-term financial instrument approximates its fair value.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities inchuded in Level 3 in the
preceding page, which are not traded in an active matket is determined by using generally
acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the current market
value of another instrament which is substantially the same after taking into account the
related credit risk of counterpatties, or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the
undetlying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market data
whete it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. Since not all
significant inputs required to determine the fair value of the other instruments not included
in Level 1 are observable, these are included in Level 3. '

[}

5.4 Fair Value Measuremeunts for Non-financial Assets
a) Determining Fair VValue of Tankers

The fair values of the Group’s tankers, included as part of the Property and Equipment
account, were determined based on the appraisal repotts of a professional and independent
appraiser with appropriate qualifications and recent expetience in the valvation of similar
properties. To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the appraiser in
discussion with the Group’s management with respect to the determination of the inputs
such as the size, age, and condition of the tanker.

In estimating the fair value of these tankers, management takes into account the tmarket
patticipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in their highest and
best use. Based on management assessment, the best use of the Group’s non-financial
assets indicated above is their current use.

The Level 3 fair value of tankers was determined using the cost approach that reflects the
cost to a market participant to construct an asset of compatable usage, construction
standards, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence. The more significant inputs used
in the valuation include direct and indirect costs of construction such as but not limited to,
labor and contractor’s profit, materials and equipment, surveying and permit costs, |
electricity and utility costs, architectural and engineering fees, insurance and legal fees.
These inputs were derived from various suppliers and contractor’s quotes, ptice catalogues,
and construction price indices. Under this approach, higher estimated costs used in the
valuation will result in higher fair value of the propetties. :

b) Other Fair Valne Information

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of tankers included in Level 3 is presented in
Note 12.2.

Thete has been no change to the valuation techniques used by the Group duting the year
for its non-financial assets. Also, there were no transfers into ot out of Level 3 fair value
hierarchy in 2014 and 2013.

G
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5.5 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following financial assets with net amounts presented in the consolidated statements of

financial position are sub
similar agreements:

ject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and

December 31, 2014

Gross amounts recognized in the
consolidated sratement of
financial position

Netamount  Related amounts nat set off in the
presented in cansolidated statement of

the consolidated financial position

Financial statement of
liabilities fina ncial Financial Cash collateral
Iinancial agscts set ofF position ingtruments received MNet amount,
‘Trade and other
receivables P 4031,673,199 (P 242,448,065 P 37 89,225,134 P - r -

Restricted depaosits 70,406,743

P 3789225134

70,406,743 | 70.406,743)

E__ 4102070042 (B_242.448.065)P 3.850.63L877 (B__T040674NP - P 3789275134

December 31, 2013

Gross amounts recogmzed in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

Tfinancial
liabilities
‘inancial assots set off

JEk 05,419,646 P

Restricted deposits

Net amount Related amounts not set ofF in the
presented in consolidated statement of
the consolidated fiancial position
sritement of
financial Tfinancial

pasition fustroments

.

Cash collateral

regeived Net amount

P

"The following financial liabilities with net amounts presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceabie master netting

arrangements and similar agreements:

December 31, 2014

Gross amounts cecognized in the
consolidated statement of
finangial position

Tinancial
Linaneial asscts

lighilities sct off

Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings

T'rade and other
payables

Security deposits

P 13,842,643397 P

3,769,778,465 ( 58,448,065)
342425351 (___ 134.000.000)

L__17,954,747,213 (P 242,448,065)

Ner amount Related amounts not set off in the
presented in consolidated statement of

the consolidated financial position

statement of

financial Financial Cash collateral
position {nstryments receiyed Net atmount
P 13842,643,307 (P 70.406,743) T : P 13,772.236,654
3,711,330,400 . . 3,711,330,400
158 325351 - - i58.325 351

10,406,743 F

E.17,712,399,148 (P B 17,641,892,405

Dccetnber 31, 2013

Gross amounts recognized in the
consolidited statement of

financial position

Netamount  Related amounis not set off in the
presented in consolidated statement of

the consolidated financial position

Financial statement of *
Financial assets financial Tinancial Cash collateral
liabilities set of position instruments teceived et amount
Interesi-bearing loans
and borrowings B 13,751,738 817 P = P 13,751 738 817 (P 954196460 P -~ P 13656310 171

L
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of June 30:

[une 30, 2015 Dec. 31,2014

Revolving fund r 50,000 P 1,131,815
Cash on hand , 6,647,441 10,335,747
Cash in banks 735,592,761 538,072,742
Short-term placements 80,968,416 5.968,416

P 823,258,617 P 555508720

Cash in banks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from 0.10%
to 3.00% per annum ii all years presented. Short-tern placements are made for varying
periods ranging from 7 to 90 days and earn effective intetest ranging from (1.875% to
1.25% per annum in all years presented. Interest income earned amounted to P0.865
million and P1.001 million in June 2015 and 2014 respectively, and is included as part of
Finance Income in the statements of comprehensive incotne (see Note 22.2).

The balances of cash in banks as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014 exclude
restdcted time deposits amounting to P70.8 million and P71.7 million, respectively, which
are shown as Restricted Deposits account (see Note 10) and restricted ime deposits under
Other Non-current Assets (see Note 15) in the consolidated statements of financial
position. Such amounts are not available for the general use of the Group under the loan
agreement (see Note 17.1).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

Notes Tune 30, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014
Trade recetvables:
Third parties P3,579,875,523 P 3,771,130,305
Related parties 26.1 23,976,099 25,524 583
3.603,851.622 3.796,654.888
Advances to suppliers:
Third parties 30.7 3,133,033,484 4,001,272,283
Related parties 26.2 10,024,800 10,024 800
3,143,058.285 4011.297 083
Non-trade teceivables 334,858,008 242 324 636
Advances subject to liquidation 24,634,435 32189974
Othet receivables 30,080,954 34,636,908

7,137,604,600 8,117,103,489
Allowance for impairment (__290,391,298) ¢ 284391 298)

P6,846,673,302 D17.832.712.191
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All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of
impairment. Certain trade and other receivables, which are due from customers, were
found to be impaired; hence, adequate amount of allowance for unpairment has been
recorded as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. Tmpairment losses amounted to
P3.0 million, P40.1 million as of June 30, 201 and December 31, 2014, respectively, and are
presented as part of Finance Costs under the Other Charges (Income) account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income {see Note 22.1).

A reconciliation of the aliowance for impairment at the beginning and end of June 30,2015
and December 31, 2014 is shown below.

Note June 30,2015 December 31,2014
Balance at beginning of year P 284,391,298 P 244313834
Impairment loss for the year 221 3,000,000 40,077,464

Balance at end of year P 287391298 P _ 284391298

Trade and other receivables do not bear any interest. All receivables are subject to credit
risk exposure (see Note 4.2).

Advances to suppliers include amounts initially paid to foreign corporation amounting to
P89.6 million (US$2.0 million) as of December 31, 2014, in relation to the Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) entered into by PNX — Chelsea for the importation of one unit of oil
tanker vessel (MT Chelsea Denise 11} from China for a total consideration of $7.3 million.

Non-trade receivables mostly pertain to receivable from locators and accrued rent and
franchise income. Non-ttade receivables also include P12.9 million worth of reimbursable
costs incurred by the Group as of December 31, 2014, in relation to its TC agreement with
a certain third party.

Other receivables include partial claims from an insurance company amounting to

P32.9 million as of December 31, 2014, which is related to an incident encountered by
certain vessels of the Group and one of FTC’s tugboats. The amount represents the actual
costs incurred for the vessels, net of the applicable deductible clause. In 2014, the Group
received a notice of the final amount to be settled by the insurance company based on the
computations provided by the adjuster. Out of the outstanding claim of the Group of
P32.9 million, only P29.0 million will be coliectible; hence, the remaining balance of P3.9
million was recognized as Loss on settlement of insurance claims, which is presented as
part of Finance Costs in the 2014 consolidated statement of comprehensive income (see
Note 22.1).

Certain trade receivables amounting to P33.3 million as of
December 31, 2014, were used as collateral to the Group’s
interest-bearing loans and borrowings [see Notes 17.5(z), 17.5(3) and 17.5(¢]].
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8. INVENTORIES

Inventories which atre stated at cost are brolken down as follows:

[une 30,2014 Dec. 31, 2014

Fuel P3,240,996,599 P 2,564,506,748
Lubricants 261,135,355 306,133,400
Others 125,107 98,921

P3,502,257,061 P_2870829 069

Under the terms of agreements covering the liabilities under trust receipts, inventoties with
cartying amount of P2,138.5 million and P3,554.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
respectively, have been released to the Group in trust for the bank. The Group is
accountable to the bank for the trusteed inventories or their sales proceeds (see Note 17.1).

2

There were no inventory write-down in all of the years presented.
An analysis of the cost of inventories included in the cost of fuels and lubticants sold in each
year is presented in Note 20.1.

9. LAND HELD FOR SALE AND LAND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The land held for sale and land development costs stated at cost relate to the following as of
June 30 and December 31:

June 30, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014

Land held for sale P 450,786,035 P 450,786,035
Land development costs 35,199,776 35,199,776

P485,985.8i1  P485,985.811

The land held for sale was used as security for the Group’s installment payable with Land
Bank of the Philippines (LBP) [see Note 17.2(a)).

Land development costs pertain to expenditures for the development and improvement of
the land held for sale of the Park.

10. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

This account pertains to the time deposits that are used as securities for various banking
credit facilities covered by hold-out agreements (see Notes 6 and 17.1) amounting to

P70.8 million and P70.4 million as of June 30, 2015 and December 31,2014, respectively. As
such, these are restricted as to withdrawals. The proceeds from availment of the banking
credit facilities by the Group are used for the purpose of purchasing fuel and lubricant
supplies(see Note 17.1). Interest rates for this type of deposit range from 2.40% to 5.98%
per annum for all the years presented.

23
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11. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account as of June 30 and December 31 is shown below:

Prepayments

Creditable withholding tax
Supplies

Others

Tune 30, 2015

Dec. 31, 2014

P 443,389,696

P 577,645,850

397,557,074 353,395,385
112,216,368 215,476,323
155,221,009 114,982

L1,108,384,147 P 1146632540

(KL
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12.1 Acquisition of Vessel — MT Chelsea Donatela

In 2013, PNX — Chelsea entered into a MOA with a foreign corporation for the
importation of one unit of oil tank vessel (MT Chelsea Donatela) from China for
US$21.2 million [see Note 17.2(g)]. The construction of the vessel was completed in
2014 and had its first voyage on July 15, 2014.

As of December 31, 2013, the vessel is still under construction. Since the vessel is hot yet
ready for use, the contract price of the vessel, costs incurred for the major improvements
made to the vessel and other incidental costs totaling P418.6 million are recognized as
construction in progress and presented as part of Property and Equipment - net in the
2013 consolidated statement of financial position. The whole amount was then
reclassified to tankers in 2014 upon completion of the vessel.

MT Chelsea Donatela is used as collateral to secure the payment of interest-bearing loan
obtained to finance the agquisition of the vessel [see Note 17.2(g)].

12.2 Fafr Value of Tankers

The Group’s tankers are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes, is presented as part of
Revaluation Reserves account in the equity section of the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 27.5).

The infottmation on the fait value measurement and disclosures related to the revalued
tankers are presented in Note 5.4,

If the tankers were catried using the cost model, the cost, accumulated depreciation and
carrying amount as of December 31 would be as follows:

2014
Cost P 5,905,411,437 .
Accumulated deprediation (___848,386,914)

5,057,024 523
12.3 Borrowing Costs

Construction in progress includes accumulated costs incurred on the various depot
facilities and retail stations being constructed as part of the Group’s expansion prograrm,
including capitalized botrowing costs of P70.7 million and P71.4 million as of
December 31, 2014 representing the actual borrowing costs incutred on borrowings
obtained to fund the retail stations and depot facilities. The average capitalization rate
used was 8.5% both in 2014 and 2013.
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2.4 Collaterals

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, certain tankers owned by the Group with catrying
value of P1,483.7 million and P1,420.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, were used as collaterals for the interest-beating loans from various local
commercial banks [see Notes 17.2(), 17.4, 17.5(z) and 17.5(b)].

Moreover, certain service vehicle of the Group with carrying value of P3.0 million and
P40.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was used as collateral for
mortgage payable (see Note 17.7).

12.5 Finance Lease

The carrying amount of bauling and heavy equipment held under finance lease amounted
to P19.5 million and P23.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 17.6).

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
The Group has 45% equity interest in NMPSC which management considered to be
material to the Group. The investment in NPMSC is accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated financial statements.

The summatized financial information of NPMSC is shown below.

2014
Total assets P 15,860,855
Total labilities 5,699,029
Total equity 10,161,826
Total revenues 36,353,600
Net profit (loss) 6,043,958

The Group did not recognize its share of the net profit (loss) of NPMSC in the Group’s
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as the Group’s management deemed it
to be insignificant.

No dividends were received from NPMSC in 2014 and 2013.

NPMSC is a ptivate company and there are no quoted prices available for its shates of
stocks.

LAND HELD FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Land held for future development represents the Group’s land property totaling to
44 hectares in Phase 2 and 3 of the Park that is intended for sale once developed.

The Group’s land held for future development was used as collateral for the Group’s.
installment payable with LBP was fully paid in 2014[see Note 17.2(2)}.

(&0
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OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account as of June 30 is shown below.

Notes June 30,2014 Dec. 31,2014

Refundable rental deposits 26.3 P 159,433,271 P 172,226,696
Advances for future

Investment in a

joint venture - 67,750,000
Diydocking costs — net 62,045,860 58,281,453
Deferted minimum

lease payments 35,398,096 34,379,811
Restricted time deposits 6 - 1,263,795
Others 193,079,432 2,208,763

P 449.956,660 D _336.110.518

Refundable rental deposits represent deposits of the Group for the lease of various parcels
ofland. These deposits are refundable at the end of the term of agreement and are
measured at amortized cost. The fair values on initial recognition of the lease deposits
were determined by calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows
anticipated until the end of the lease terms using the matket interest rate of comparable
financial insttument at the inception of the lease. Meanwhile, interest on subsequent
amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method amounted to P0.6 million in
2014 and is presented as part of Finance Income in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 22.2).

The excess of the principal amount of the rental deposit over its present value is
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as Deferred Mintmum Lease
Payments. Rent expense on subsequent amortization of the deferred minimum lease
payments amounted to P0.9 million in 2014and is presented as part of Rent under Selling
and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 21).

Advances for future investment in a joint ventute represent the Group’s payment to a
certain third party for the Group’s partial share in the investment in future joint venture
per memorandum of agreement entered into with the said third party. The Group and
the third party, through the futute joint ventute, are committed to construct a terminal
and storage facility.

Restricted time deposits represent cash deposited with a local bank as an environmental
trust fund set aside in compliance with the tequirements of the Department of

Environment and Natural Resources.

Presented below s a reconciliaon of the cartying amount at the beginning and end of

2014 of drydocking costs.

Notes 2014

Balance at beginning of year P 46,588,245

Transfer from construction
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in progress 12 53,328,043
Additions 8,229,538
Amortization duting the year  20.2,21  ( 49,764,310)
Disposal { 100,063)
Balance at end of year P 58,281,453

Amortization pertaining to dtydocking costs is presented as part of depreciation and
amortization under Cost of Sales and Setvices in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 20.2).

Diydocking costs are being amortized over two years or until the occutrence of the next
drydocking, whichever comes earlier.

GOODWILL

Goodwill amounting to P84.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, represents the
excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s share in the fair value of identifizble net assets
of the acquired subsidiaries at the date of the acquisition. Tn 2012, the Parent Company
assessed that the goodwill pertaining with PGMI is impaired, hence, full impairment loss
amounting to P1.3 millton was recognized.

.

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-beating loans and borrowings are broken down as follow:

June 30,2015 Dec. 31,2014
Cutrent:
Liabilities under letters of credits
and trust receipts P2,829,483,261 P 3,640,151,291
Installment and notes payable - 2,163,017,181
Liabilities undet short-term
commercial papers 3,422,742,503 1,942,752,503
Banlk loans 3,719,875,859 364,293,475
Term loans - 359,737,069
Obligations undet finance lease - 7,462,297
Mortgage payable 573,031 1,611,934
P9,972,684,654 P 8479025750
Non-current:
Installment and notes payable P - $4,319,927,159
Term loans 5,832,547,323 1,036,612,418
Obligations under finance lease - 5,671,371
Mortgage payable - 1,406,699
Bank loans - -
P5,832.547,325 D 5.363.617.647
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17.1 Liabilities under Letters of Credits and Trust Receipts

The Group avails of letters of credit (LC) and TR lines with local banks to finance its
purchases of inventories (see Note 8). These short-term trust receipts bear interests based
on prevailing market interest rates at an average of 5.00% per annum in 2014

‘The Group is required by the banks to maintain cettain collaterals for the credit line facility
provided to the Group for working capital requitements. The collaterals are in the form
of compensating deposits and a surety of a stockholder [see Notes 6, 10 and 26.6(a)].

17.2 Installment and Notes Payable
(a) Installment Loan with LBP

On Aprl 16, 2010, the Group availed the P580.0 million loan with LBP. 'The loan
with LBP was used to refinance the installment payable with PHINMA Group via
take-out of the outstanding installment payable to PHINMA Group. The tefinanced
installment payable is payable for seven years with one year grace period on ptincipal
and bears an interest rate based on the prevailing LBP rate at the time of availment
subject to quartetly repricing with reference to a three month PDST-F rate plus
minitmum spread of 2.5%. The installment payable with LBP is secuted by the
Gtoup’s parcel of land with cartying value of P326.7 inillion as of

December 31, 2013, which is presented as patt of land held for sale (see Note 9) and
land held for future development {(see Note 14), and pott expansion facilities with
carrying value of P192.9 million as of December 31, 2013, which is presented as patt
of buildings, depot and pier facilities (see Note 12.4). These securities were released
upon full payment of the loan in 2014.

(b) Notes Facility Agreement with BDO Group

In 2011, the Group availed of a P750.0 million clean loan under the notes facility
agreement entered into with BDO Capital & Investment Cotporation, Banco De Oro
Unibank, Inc. (BDO), Maybank Phihppines, Inc., Robinsons Bank Corporation and
Banco de Oro Unibanlk, Inc. — Trust and Investment Group. The long-term loan
amounting to P700.0 million with interest rate of 7.35% annually is payable on
August 24, 2016 and the remaining P50.0 million with interest rate of 7.66% is
payable on August 23, 2018.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P727.5 million.

(¢) Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (OLSA) with PBComm

On February 10, 2012, the Group entered into a loan agreement with PBComm
amounting to P107.0 million to partdy finance the double hulling and dtydocking of a
vessel owned by the Group. In February and May 2012, PBComm released the loan
amounting to P65.0 million and P42.0 million, tespectively. The loan is subject to
annual interest rate of 9.5% and is payable in 36 equal monthly installments with one
quarter grace petiod from date of each release.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage on two of the tankers (MT Chelsea
Resolute and MT Ernesto Uno) of the Group with net book value amounting to

v
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P332.1 million and P317.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
{see Note 12.4).

The loan agreement requites the Group to maintain a debt-to-equity ratio of not
more than 4:1. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its
debt covenants with the bank.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P8.0 million.

(d) OLSA with BDO — MT Chelsea Thelma

On Aptil 26, 2011, the Group entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Cotporation for the impottation of one unit of oil tanker (MT Chelsea
Thelma) in the amount of US$19.8 million.

In connection with the MOA, the Group entered into an OLSA amounting to
1US$14.5 million with BDO, the proceeds of which was used to partly finance the
importation of the vessel. The loan is payable into 27 consecutive equal quartetly
principal tnstallments starting in August 2012. The loan is subject to interest
computed at one-year LIBOR plus applicable margin of 3.50% per annum.

The loan is secured by a chattel mottgage on cettain tankers (MT Chelsea Thelma
and Vela) of the Group with a net carrying amount of P1,100.4 million and
P1,059.8 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Related debt issuance costs amounted to P8.2 milliof of which 1.4 million and

P2.3 million was amortized in 2014 and 2013, respectively, using effective interest rate
of 5.02%. Amortized debt issuance costs wete recognized as part of interest expense

on bank loans under Finance Costs under the Other Charges {Income) account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1). The unamortized
debt issuance costs are included as part of the current and non-current portion of the

telated loan.

The outstanding balance of the ptincipal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P404.4 million and P496.9 million, respectively.

(e) Convertible Notes Facility Agreement with BDO

On July 11, 2012, the Parent Company executed a Convertible Notes Facility
Agreement worth P500.0 million with warrants offeting amounting to P180.0 million
with BDO. The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 7.6% and is payable
quarterly in arrears over its three years tern. The issuance of the convertible note 1s
patt of the Group’s plan to raise long-terin capital, to refinance short-term debt and
finance capital expenditures.

BDO is pranted the option to convert all or any portion of the unpaid principal
amount of the notes held by it into the conversion shares exetcisable at any time
upon wiitten notice by BDO to the Parent Company specifying the time and date of
the conversion. Also, BDO has the option to elect one nominee to the Parent
Company’s BOD which option may be exercised anytime after signing date and on or
before conversion date.

(70
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For and in consideration of the subscripticn of BDO to the convertible notes issued
by the Parent Company, the latter also granted the former the right to subscribe to the
warrants to be issued by the Parent Company which is convertible into common
shares of the Parent Company up to the aggregate principal amount of P180.0 millicn.
‘The availment of the convertible note and the issuance of the warrant were apprbved
by the Parent Company’s stockholders during a special stockholders” meeting held on
September 6, 2012. The Parent Company’s stockholders alsc authorized the
execution, delivery and performance of Subsctption Agtreement between the Parent
Company and BDO in relation to the issuance of the warrants.

"The exercise price of the option to convert the note to the Parent Company’s
common shares and the warrant is equivalent to a determined price base plus a
premium of fifteen percent. The exercise based used was the 30-day
volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company’s share on the PNX PM
Equity HP page of Bloomherg from May 24, 2012 to July 5, 2012 which is equal to
P8.3 per share. The exercise period consists of a two-year pericd commencing on the
third anniversary date of the convertible notes issue date and expiring five yeats
thereafter.

Considering that a fixed nutber of shates will be issued for options and warrants, the
warrants and options may qualify as an equity instrument to be recorded as a separate
component in the equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
Group’s management , however, assesses that at the date of the initial recognition, the
equity component has no value since the interest rate to be chatged by the lendet on
the convertible note with watrants is similar to the interest rate of the note had it
been issued without conversion options and warrants. As such, the fair value of the
hybrid convertible note and the host instrument is the same resulting in the nil value
of the equity component at the date of initial recognition.

Minimum financial ratios to maintain are as follows: (i) debt to equity ratic not to
exceed 3:1; (ii) current ratic not to fall below 1:1 and (iii) debt service coverage ratio
not to be less than 1.5:1,

‘The cutstanding baiance of the principal of the note as of both December 31, 2014
and 2013 amounted to P500.0 million,

As of December 31, 2014 the Group has complied with its debt covenants.
(D) Notes Facility Agreement with China Banking Corporation and
Pentacapital Investment Corporation

On November 8, 2012, the Parent Company entered into a notes facility agreement
with China Banking Corporatdon and Pentacapital Investment Corporation totaling
P2,500.0 million. ‘The loan is subject to a fixed annual interest rate of 7.75% which is
payable in twenty quarterly payinents. The net proceeds of the loan were used by the
Parent Company for the roll out of the retails stations, for debt financing, to support
capital expenditures and for other general corporate putposes.
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By virtue of the notes facility agreement, the Parent Company affirms that it shall
maintain the listing of its common shares with PSE and shall not declare or pay any
dividends to stockholdets (othet than dividends payable solely in shares of its cafnital
stock) ot retain, retire, purchase or otherwise acquire any class of its capital stock, or
malce any other capital ot other asset distribution to its stockholders, unless all
payments due under the notes are current and updated.

Minimum financial ratios to maintain are as follows: (i) debt to equity ratio not to
exceed 3:1; (1) current ratio not to fall below 1:1 and (iii) debt service coverage ratio
not to be less than 1.5:1.

The outstanding balance of the ptincipal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P2,476.2 million and P2,468.5 million, respectively.

As of June 30,2015 and December 31, 2014, the Group has complied with its debt
covenants.

(2) OLSA with BDO — MT Chelsea Donarela

In 2013, the Group entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding & Exports
Corporation for the importation of one unit oil tanker (MT Chelsea Donatela) of
PNX - Chelsea in the amount of US$21.2 million (see Note 12.1). In connection
with the acquisition of an cil tank vessel, the Group entered into an OLSA
amounting to US$14 million with BDO, the proceeds of which was used to partly
finance the importation of the vessel. In September 2013, the local bank granted
the loan and released the first tranche amounting to US§4 million. The second
tranche amounting to US$10 million was availed of by the Group in 2014. "The
loan is payable for a petiod of five years from the initial drawdown date in
US$560,000 quarterly principal installments and any unpaid balance on maturity
date, with two quatter grace period, cominencing after the second tranche. The
loan bears effective interest rate of 5.25% per annum.

Interest incurred on these loans amounted to P29.2 million and P3.3 million in 2014
and 2013, respectively, and is shown as part of Finance Costs under Other Charges
(Income) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive incomme. Related debt
issuance costs ammounted to P9.6 million of which P1.5 million and P0.1 milliod was
amortized during 2014 and 2013, respectively, using effective interest rate of 5.58%
and 5.54%, respectively. Amortized debt issuance cost was also recognized as part
of the Finance Costs under Other Charges (Income) in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1). Unamortized debt issuance costs are
included as part of the current and non-cutrent portion of the related loan.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage of M'I' Chelsea Donatela upon its delivery
and registration with the Maritime Industry Authority. The cartying amount of

MT' Chelsea Donatela, presented as patt of construction it progtess, amounted to
P1,091.0 milion and P418.6 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 12.1). o

The OLSA requires the Group to maintain debt to equity ratio of not more than
1.5:1 and debt coverage ratio (DCR) of at least 1.20, except on dtydocking year
where minimum DCR shall be 1.00. The Group filed a waiver with the local bank

for the debt covenant ratios.

Il
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'The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P595.1 million and P171.6 million, respectively.

() Notes Payable

'The Group availed of borrowings from various local banks with interest rates ranging
from 7.0% to 10.2% per annum and will mature within five to seven years. The
loans, which are secured by the Groups’s certain buildings, depot and pier facilities
and hauling and heavy equipment, is payable quarterly (see Note 12.4).

17.3 Liabilides under Short-term Commercial Papers

On October 23, 2014, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s registration, licensing and
issuance of short-term commercial papers up to P2.0 billion. ‘The short-term commercial
papers bear annual interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.5%, which is already deducted in
advance from the proceeds, and will mature on various dates until October 31, 2015. In
2014, the Parent Company fully issued and received the proceeds of the P2.0 billion
shott-term commercial papers, which were used to finance the Parent Company’s working
capital requirements.

On Febtuary 18, 2015, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s registration, licensing and
issuance of additional short-term cominercial papers up to P1.5 billion. 'The short-term
commercial papers bear annual interest rates ranging from 3.875 to 4.125%, which is
already deducted in advance from the proceeds, and will mature on October 13, 2015. In
eatly 2015, the Parent Company fully issued and received the proceeds of the P1.5 billion
short-term commercizl papers, which were used to finance the Parent Company’s working
capital requirements.

17.4 Bank Loans

The bank loans represent secured loans from local commetcial banks for working capital
putrposes. ‘The loans bear annual interest rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.0% in 2014 and
2013, subject to monthly repricing. These loans are secured by certain vessels

(MT Chelsea Intrepid, M'T BMI Patricia and MT Etnesto Uno) owned by the Group with
net revalued amount of P212.1 million and P201.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively (see Note 12.4), and by certain stockholders [see Note 26.6(3]].

17.5 Tern Loans

(2) Termm Loan Agreement (TLA) with Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBP)

On September 12, 2007, the Group entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Corporation for the construction of one unit of oil tanker in the amount of
US$15.0 million. In connection with the MOA, the Group entered into a TT.A
amounting to US$13.0 million with DBP, the proceeds of which shall be exclusively
used to finance the construction of the vessel. In February 2008 and May 2009, DBP
granted the loan amounting to US$3.9 million (P159.0 million) and US$9.1 million
(P432.5 million), respectively. The loan is payable over five years in equal quartetly
principal installments, with one quatter grace period on ptincipal, commencing
November 2009 and was subject to 10.5% interest rate pet annuin. The loan was
fully setted in 2014.

ag
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On October 30, 2014, the Group entered into a loan agreement with DBP amounting
to 140.0 million to finance the drydocking and repaits and maintenance expenses of
MT Chelsea Resolute, MT Chelsea Cherylyn, M'T Chelsea Denise and MT Jasaan.
The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 5.0% and is payable in eight equal
quarterly installments commencing on the first quarter from the initial drawdown.

In addition, the Group obtained P160.0 million loan for CSC’s working capital ~
requirements. The loan bears a fixed interest rate of 5.0% pet annum and is payable
in ten equal quattetly installments comnmencing on February 28, 2015.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage on certain vessel (M1 Chelsea Cherylyn) of
the Group with net book value amounting to P824.8 million and P776.5 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The loan is also secured by certain
collateral on receivables of CSC and guaranteed by cettain stockholders

[see Notes 7 and 26.6(5)].

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P300.0 million and P222.1 million, respectively.

(b} Loan Agteement with Robinsons Bank Corpoiration (RBC)

In 2014, the Group obtained three bank loans from RBC totaling P62.2 million to
finance the drydocking costs of MT Chelsea Denise. The loan is subject to annual
intetest rate of 6.3% and is payable in twelve equal monthly installments commencing
on the first month from the initial drawdown. :

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage on one of the vessels (MT Chelsea Denise)
of the Group with net book value amounting to P114.7 million and P124.2 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and receivables of CSC from certdin
customert (see Note 7). The loan is also guaranteed by certain stockholders

[see Note 26.6(5)].

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P56.8 million.

(c) TLA with Maybank Philippines, Inc.

On July 18, 2012, the Parent Company signed with Maybank Philippines, Inc. a five
year clean term loan amounting to P300.0 million to be used exclusively for capital
expenditure and permanent working capital. The loan is subject to annual interest
tate of 6.0% and is payable in twenty equal quarterly installments.

In connection with the TLA, all existing and future advances to the Parent Company
by its stockholders ot related parties are subordinated to the loan. The Parent
Company agrees that any and all of its obligations telative to the TLA shall be settled
first before any of its financial obligations to such shatreholders” and related parties’
advances are paid.
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The TLA also requires the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not
mote than 3:1, current ratic of at least 1:1 and debt coverage ratic of at least 1.5.

The outstanding balance of the loan as of December 31, 2014 amounted to
P165.0 million.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt covenants
with the bank.

On October 28, 2014 and November 4, 2014, the Group obtained unsecured,
interest-bearing loans from Maybank Philippines, Inc. amounting to P100.0 million
for C8C’s working capital requirements,

(d) TLA with Maybank International Labuan Branch

On November 20, 2012, the Parent Company entered into 2 TLA amounting to

US$ 24.0 million with Maybank International Labuan Branch. to fund various capital
expenditures. The total amount of the loan is broken down into US$14.0 million
(tranche 1) which is due in five years and US$10.0 million (tranche 2) with a term of
three years.

The loan is subject to interest cotnputed at one-year LIBOR plus applicable margin
of 4.25% per annum, or cost of funds plus 2 margin of 2.0% per annum, whichever is
higher. Interest payments are to be serviced quarterly in arrears. Maybank
International Labuan Branch. reserves the right to vaty, at its absolute discretion from
time to time, such rate of interest, which variation tnay take place by varying the
LIBOR ot the margin ot spread above the LIBOR, or both.

The TLA also requires the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not
more than 3:1, current ratio of at least 1:1 and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5.

Moteover, Maybanlk International Labuan Branch has the right of first refusal and right
to match any fund raising exercise that may be required to refinance the U.S. dollar-
denominated term facility either via follow-on offering of the Patent Company’s shares
ot a syndicated tetm loan,

The balance of the ptincipal of the loan amounted to P451.2 million and
P723.9 million, translated into Philippine Peso using the closing rate as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt covenants
with the bank.

On April 29, 2015, the Parent Company enteted into another TLA amounting to USH
10.0 million with Maybank International Labuan Branch, to fund various capital
expenditures.

The loan is subject to interest computed at 90 day LIBOR + 3.75% per annum {p.a.).
Interest shall be paid quarterly in arrears,

The TLA also requires the Parent Company to maintain debt-to equity ratio of not
more than 3:1, current ratio of at least 1:1 and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5x.

(5
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TLA with Asia United Bank (AUB)

In 2013, the Group obtained interest-bearing loans from AUB to partially finance
the acquisition of tug boats amounting to P100 million. The loan bears fixed
interest rate at 7.00% for the first three years from the initial drawdown date, and
shall be repticed at the end of the third year from the initial drawdown date

(the “Repricing Date). The repriced rate shall be based on the relevant

2Y PDST-I as of the Repricing Date, plus a spread of 2.00% subject to a floor of
7.00%. The loan is payable in 18 quarterly installments over a period of five years.
'The first payment will commence on the third intetest payment date from the initial
drawdown date. The last quarterly installment of the loan is due on

Novembet 6, 2018.

The interest-bearing loans amounted to P88.9 milhon and P100.0 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, of which P22.2 million and

P11.1 million, respectively, was presented under current liabilities section in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Interest expense related to the loans amounted to P7.3 million and P1.1 million in
2014 and 2013, respectively, and is shown as part of Finance Cost under Other
Charges (Income) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Certain trade receivables amounting to P20.2 million and P8.2 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were assigned to secure the payment of
these interest-bearing loans (see Note 7).

The outstanding balance of the ptincipal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P88.9 mullion.

(¢) Loan Agreerﬁent with Multinational Investment Bancorporation (MIB)

On December 29, 2014, the Group obtained an unsecured, interest-bearing loans
from MIB totaling to P166.8 million for the CSC’s working capital requitements.
The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 4.3% and is payable in 30 days.

.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P166.8 million.

17.6 Obligations under Finance Lease

'The finance lease liability has an effective intetest rate of 5.1% which is equal to the rate
mmplicit in the lease contract (see Note 30.5). Lease payments ate made on a monthly
basis.

17.7 Mortgage Payable

The mortgage payable represents secured loans which bear interest rates ranging from
7.6% to 11.4% per annum, and with terms ranging from 18 months to 36 months. The
mortgages are secured by certain service vehicles of the Group, presented as part of
Property and Equipment account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 12.4).
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17.8 Credit Line

The Parent Company has an available credit line of P22.6 billion under T.C/TR. These
lines obtained from various banks ate being utlized by the Parent Company for
procurement of inventories both local and foreign. The credit Jine is secured by the
following:

{#) Assignment of future receivables;

(k) Suretyship of PPHI and pledge of its shate in the Parent Company amounting
to P46.9 million (at P1 par value);

(c) Joint several signatute of certain stockholders; and,

(d) Negative pledge over the remaining shares of PPHI in Parent Commpany in favor
of the bank amounting to P1.1 billion.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

Notes June 30, 2015 Dec.31, 2014

Trade payables:
Third parties P1,202,880,076 P 3,375,091,069
Related patties 20.3,26.5 - 9,156,631
1,202,880,076 3,384,247 700
Accrued expenses 333,294,150 211,559,670
Retention payable 44,660,058 42,699,144
Advances from customers 79,241,138 19,003,143
Income tax payable 1,514,944 4,236,452
Non-trade payables 127,874,999 2,986,179
Othets 30.8 134,773,198 69,837,707
P1.924,238,563 P3.734,569,995

Acerued expenses mostly pertain to payables to various contractors for the construction of
retail stations that remain unpaid at the end of the year. In addition, this comptises
amounts to be paid in relation to charter hire cost, repairs and maintenance, interest
expense arsing from loans and professional fees.

Retention payable is the amount withheld by the Group from its contractors for the
construction of buildings, depot and pier facilities. The amount of retention, which is
equivalent to ten petcent of the total contract price, is payable upon the completion and
tarnover by the contractor of a construction project and the acceptance thetcof by the
Group.

Advances from customers pettain to the advance payment of the various customets for
their fuel purchases. Advances from customers are measured at the amount of cash
recetved from the customers and are offset against trade receivables once the related
sales transactions are consummated.
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OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

‘This account consists of:

Note june 30,2015 Dec. 31 2014

Security deposits P 144,894,637 P 158,325,351
Unearned rent 50,220,150 48,922 071
Post-employment defined

benefit obligation 23.2 66,216,823 76,396,193

P_263111,273 P 283,644,395

Security deposits represent deposits received from dealers for the lease of retail stations
and equipment that are installed in retail stations. These deposits are refundable at the end
of the lease terms and are measured at amortized cost. The fair values on initial
recognition of the security deposits were determined by calculating the present value of the
estimated future cash flows anticipated until the end of the lease terms using the market
interest rate of comparable financial instrument at the inception of the lease. Meanwhile,
interest on subsequent amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method
amounted to P1.0 million in 2014 and is presented as part of Finance Costs in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1),

"The excess of the principal amount of the security deposit over its present value is
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as unearned rent.
Subsequent amortization of the unearned rent amounted to P1.1 million

in 2014and is presented as part of Rent and Storage Income in the consolidated
statermnents of comprehensive income.

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES
This account is composed of the following as of June 30:

Notes June 30,2015 Tune 30,2014

Cost of fuels and

lubticants sold 201 P 12,598,779,281 P 16,613,172,431
Cost of services 20.2 59,328,428 267,478,531
Cost of real estate sold 21 - 7,215.,476

262 P _12.658,107,708 P 16.887 866438

20.1 Cost of Fuels and Lubricants Sold

The cost of fizels and lubricants sold are broken down as follows:

Note June 30,2015 June 30,2014

Inventories at
beginning of year & P 2,870,829,069 P 3.812,532,673
Net purchases '
during the year 13,230,207,273 16,945,815,181
Goods available for sale 16,101,036,342 20,758,347 854
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Inventories at
end of year 8 ( .3,502,257.061) { 4145175423

P 12,598,779,280 P 16,613,172.431

21. COSTS AND EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of the Group’s costs and expenses by nature are shown below.

Notes June 390, 2015 June 30. 2014

Cost of sales:

Fuels P 12,486,205,484 P 16,520,258,357

Lubticants 112,573,796 92,914,074

Cost of Real Estate Sold 7,215,476

Services 59,328,428 267,478,531
Depreciation

and amortzation 12,15 240,481,811 195,330,985
Rent 15,263,303 214,704,593 169,891,491
Salaries and

employee benefits 231 137,278,302 102,838,188
Taxes and licenses 31,729,446 32,926,283
Advertising and

promotions 55,593,546 71,569,393
Repairs and maintenance 30,847,645 34273746
Rebates 40,150,932 20,403,982
Service fees 35,179,601 28,795,276
Insurance 20,465,618 18,050,843
Bank Charges 4,134,830 2,710,450
Fuel, oil and lubricants 5,425,286 32,341,521
Utlides 28,343,871 22,031,457
Professional fees 28,994,818 22.353,749
Provision for Bad Debts 3,000,000 600,000
Security fees 26,887,005 23,884,089
Dues and Subsctiption 7,225,757 4,042 434
Travel and transportation 17,929,542 20,226,974
Other expenses 14,574,630 5,722.269
Freight charges 8,335,818 -
Representation 5,407,482 5,100,383
Oftfice supplies 4,673,225 2,747,945
Sales incentives 5,429,683
Trucking charges - 29,561,817
Documentary Stamps 44,173,378 51,961,466
Miscellaneous 26.8 1,455,380 3.904.348

P 13.676,349,907 P 17.789.096,177

67
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The expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as
follows:

Note June 30,2015 une 30,2014

Cost of sales and

services 20 P 12,658,107,708 P 16,887,866,438
Selling and

administrative

expenses 1.012.242.198 901,229,739

P 13,670.349,907 P 17,789,096 177

22. FINANCE INCOME (COSTS)
The breakdown of these accounts follows;
221 Finance Costs

Notes 2014

Interest expense on

bank loans and

other borrowings 17 P 728,178,099
Impairment losses

of trade and

other receivables 7 40,077,464
Foreipn currency

exchange

losses — net 19,247,244
Banlt charges 9,455,061
Loss on settlement of

insurance claims 7 3,898,441
Interest expense from

post-employment

defined benefit

obligation — net 232 2,296,995
Interest expense from

security deposits 19 984,592

P__ 804,137,896
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222 Finapnce Income
Notes 2014

Interest income from
cash in banks ) P 2,750,097
Interest income on
amortization of
rental deposits 15 644,746
Foreign currency
exchange gains — net -

P 3,394,843

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
23.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are presented below.

Notes June 30,2015 une 30,2014

Short-term benefits:

Salaries and wages P 109,591,488 I 81,033,822
Employee welfare
and other benefits 20,622,288 11,813,813
13" month pay and
bonuses 7,064,526 6,470,584
Post-employment
defined benefit 23.2 3,519,969

21 P 137,278,302 P 102.838,188

23.2 Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan
(@)  Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plan

In 2014, the Group has maintained a partially funded, tax-qualified, noncontributory
post-employment defined benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee bank that
is legally separated from the Group. The trustee bank managed the fund in coordination
with the Group’s management who acts in the best intetest of the plan assets and is
responsible for setting the investment policies. The post-employment plan covers all
regular full-time employees.

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of 5 years of credited service. Normal
tetirement benefit is an amount equivalent to 75% of the final monthly covered
compensation (average monthly basic salary duting the last 12 months of credited
service) for every year of credited service.
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(b)  Expianation of Amounts Presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Actuatial valuations are made annually to update the retitement benefit costs and the
anount of contributions. All amounts presented below ate based on the actuarial
valuation report obtained from an independent actuary in 2014 and 2013.

The amounts of post-employment defined benefit obligation, which is presented as part
of Other Non-current Liabilities account (see Note 19) in the consolidated statements of
financial position, are determined as follow:

2014
Present value of obligation P 88,610,880
Fair value of plan assets ( 12,213,907)
P__76.396,973

The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined benefit obligation
recognized in the books are as follows:

2014
Balance at beginning of year P 51,100,685
Cutrent service cost 10,977,276
Interest expense 2,751,078
Remeasurements:
Actuarial losses (gains) atising from:

Experience adjustments 14,461,165

Changes in financtal assumptions 6,981,384

Changes in demogtaphic assumptions 3,643,648
Benefits paid ( 1,304,356)
Balance at end of year P 88,610,880

The movements in the fait value of plan assets ate presented below.

2014
Balance at beginning of year P -
Contributions to the plan 18,661,947
Retutn on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) | 6,131,556)
Benefits paid ( 770,567}
Intetest income 454,083

Balance at end of year P 122
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‘The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period by
category and risk charactetisticsis shown below.

2014 )
Cash and cash equivalents | 100,624
Quoted equity securities:
Telecommunications 2,460,120
Manufacturing 2.449.440

Unit investment trust funds (UTTF) 7,203,723

P 12,213,907

The fair value of the above investment is determined based on quoted market prices in
active markets (classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy).

The plan assets incurred a negative return of P6.1 million in 2014.

Plan assets do not comprise any of the Group’s own financial instruments or any of its
assets occupied and/or used in its operations.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income in respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan ate as follows:

Notes 2014

Reported in profit or loss:
Current service cost  23.1 P 10,977,276

Net interest .
expense 221 2,296,995
P_15274271
Reported in other
comprebensive income:
Actuarial losses ’
(gains) arising
from changes in:
Expernience
adjustments P 14,461,165
Financial )
assumptions 6,981,384
Demographic ‘
assumptions 3,643,648
Return on plan
assets (excluding
amounts included .
in net interest
expense) 6,131,556
P 31217,753

1%
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Current service cost is presented as part of salaries and employee benefits under Selling

and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 23.1).

The net interest expense is included as part of Finance Costs under the Other Charges
(Income) account (see Note 22.1). .
In determining the amounts of the defined benefit post-employment obligation, the
following significant actuatial assumptions were used:

2014
Discount rates 4.49% to 4.78%
Expected rate of salary
increases 5.00% to 8.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality expetience are based on published statistics and
mortality tables. These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance
of an independent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to the end of each
reporting period by reference to the interest rates of a zero coupon government bond
with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the retirement obligation. Other
assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s historical
experience.

(c) Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate 1isk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

.

(@) Investment and Interest Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using 2 discount
rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a
decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bond will increase the plan
obligation. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on
the plan’s investments and if the return on plan asset falls below this rate, it will
create a deficit in the plan. Cutrently, the plan has investment in cash and cash
equivalents, quoted equity securities and UITF.

(i) Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after
their employment, and to their futute salaries. Consequently, increases in the life
expectancy and salary of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan
obligation.
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(d}  Ouber Information

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions
and the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows related to the retitement plan are
described below.

(i} Sensitivity Analysis

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the post-employment defined benefit

obligation as of December 31: ;
2014
Impact on Post-employment Bepefit Obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate +/-1.0% (P 8,001,285) P 9,813,193
Salary increase rate +/-1.0% 8,761,574 ( 7,364,342)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding
all other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the
actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions
may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position. :

The methods and types of assumptions used in prepating the sensitivity analysis did
not change compared to the previous years.

.

(ii} Asset-liabikity Matshing Stralegies

To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Group through its BOD, ensures
that the investment positions are managed in accordance with its asset-lability
matching strategy to achieve that long-term investments are in line with the
obligations under the retirement scheme. A large pottion of the plan assets as of
Decembet 31, 2014 is allocated to UITF.

(i) Funding Arrangements and Excpecied Contributions

As of December 31, 2014, the plan is underfunded by P76.4 million based on the
latest actuaral valuation. While there ate no minimum funding requirement in the
country, the size of the may pose a cash flow risk in about 21 years' time when a
significant number of employees is expected to retire.

The Group expects to make contribution of P1.9 million to the plan duting the
next tepotting period.
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The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan.
within ten years as of December 31, follows:

2014
Within one yeat P 18,890,357
More than one year to five years 21,183,125
More than five years to ten years 39,055,703
P 79129185

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period is 21 years. '

24. REGISTRATION WITH THE BOARD OF INVESTMENTS
24,1 BOI Registration as New Industey Participant — Batangas Depot

The Parent Company was registered with the Board of Investments (BOI) on
February 26, 2010 as a new industry participant with new investment in storage,
marketing and distribution of petroleumn products under Republic Act (RA) 8479,
Downstream Oil Industry Deregulation Act, for its storage tanls in Calaca, Batangas. Under
its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific
terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of
1987.

Under its registration, the Parent Company is also entitied to certain tax and non-tax
incentives as follows:

(@) Income tax holiday (ITH) for five years from February 26, 2010, without extension
or bonus year from the date of registration;

(6) Additional deduction from taxable income of 50% of the wages corresponding to
the incrément in the number of ditect labor for skilled and unskilled workers in the
year of availment as against the ptevious year if the project meets the prescribed
ratio of capital equipment to number of wotkers set by the board of not more than
US$10,000 to one worker and ptovided that this incentive shall not be availed of
simultaneously with the ITH;

(¢) 'The Parent Company may qualify to import capital requirement, spare parts and
accessories at zero percent (0%0) from the date of registration up to June 16, 2011
pursuant to the Executive Order No. 528 and its implementing rules and
regulations.

Special transport equipment such as but not limited to tanks, trucks/lorries may be
imported with incentives subject to land transportation operation tequirements;

(d) Tax credit on domestic capital equipment shall be granted on locally fabticated
capital equipment;

(¢) Importation of consigned equipment for a period of five years from the date of
registration, subject to posting of a te-expott bond; and,
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(/)  Other non-fiscal incentives, which may be applicable.
24.2 BOI Registration as New Industry Participant — Zamboanga Depor .

The Parent Company was also registered with the BOT on November 25, 2010 as a new
industty participant with new investment in storage, marketing and distributiont of
petroleum products under RA 8479 for its storage tanks in Talisayan, Zamboanga City.
Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to obsetve certain general and

specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code
of 1987.

Under its registration, the Parent Company’s transaction relatng to Zamboanga Depot is

also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned in Note 24.1. The

ITH will expite five yeats from November 25, 2010. .

24.3 BOI Registration for the New Investment in Downstream Oil Industry
Activities — Davao Expansion

On May 14, 2010, the Parent Company was tegistered with the BOT for the new
investment in downstream oil industty activites under RA 8479 for the additional two
storage tanks for petroleum products with storage capacity of 7.4 million liters in Davao
depot. Under its registration, the Parent Company shall be entitled to avail of the
incentives as cited 1n the previous page. However, [TH for five years from May 14, 2010
is subjected to the base figure of 148.2 million liters representing the Parent Company’s
highest attained sales volume of its extsting depot facilities {in Davao Depot) prior to the
filling of application for registration of new investment.

24.4 BOI Registration for New Investment — Bacolod Storage Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new industry
participant with new investment in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk
marketing of petroleum products under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Bacolod
City. Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general
and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus [nvestments
Code of 1987,

Under its registration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating to Bacolod storage
terminal is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned in the
ptevious page. The ITH will expire five yeats from May 10, 2012.

24.5 BOI Registration for New Investment — Cagayan De Oro City Storage
Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new industry
patticipant with new investment in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk
marketing of pettoleum products under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Bacolod
City. Undet its registration, the Parent Company is requited to observe certain gengral
and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments
Code of 1987,

Under its registration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating Cagayan de Oro City

ht
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storage terminal is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned
in the previous page. The ITH will expire five years from May 10, 2012.

24.6 BOI Registration for MT Chelsea Thelma and MT Cherylyn

On November 23, 2011 and December 10, 2008, CSC had registered its activity for
MT Chelsea Thelma and MT Cherylyn, respectvely, with the BOI under Executive
Order No. 226, otherwise known as the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987 as a new
operator of domestic/interisland shipping on a pioneer status. As a registered entity,
CSC is entitled to tax and non-tax incentives which include a six-year ITH. For

MT Cherylyn, the related tax incentives started in April 2009, Meanwhile, the tax
incentive for MT Chelsea Thelma started in November 2011, I'I'H incentives shall be
limited only to the revenues generated by the registered project.

24.7 BOI Registration for MT Chelsea Donatela

On September 3, 2013, PNX — Chelsea had registered its activity for MT Chelsea
Donatela with the BOT under Executive Oxder No. 226 as a niew opetator of
domestic/intet-island shipping on a pioneer status. As a registeted entity, the

PNX — Chelsea is entided to tax and non-tax incentives which include a six-year ITH.
The related tax incentives statted in January 2014. I'TH incentives shall be limited only
to the revenues generated by the registered project.

TAXES

The components of tax expense as reported in the consolidated profit or loss and in the
consolidated other comprehensive income follow:

2014
Reported in profit or loss:
Current tax expense:
Regular corporate income
tax (RCIT) at 30% P 32,174,095
Minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) at 2% 3,998,694
Final tax at 20% and 7.5% 494.713
36,783,485
Deferred tax expense {income)
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
diffferences ( 33.992.758)

P 2,790,727

Reported in other comprehensive inconse:
Defetred tax expense
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary

differences P 29334251

¢
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The amounts of NOLCO and the applicable years these are valid and deductible from
the taxable income are shown below.

Original Valid

Taxable Years Amount Tax Effect Until
2014 P 111422978 P 33426893 2017
2013 14,139,899 4,241,970 2016
2012 18714721 5614416 2015

P 144277 598 P 43283279

Deferred tax asset on NOLCO of PGMI amounting to P0.1 million and P0.2 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was not recognized since management
assessed that this is not recoverable as PGMI does not expect any taxable income tn the
coming years.

The Group is subject to the MCIT which is computed at 2% of gross income, as defined
under the tax regulations or RCIT, whichever is higher. SPTT’s MCIT was higher than
RCIT in 2014. PPIPC’s MCIT was higher than RCIT for the years 2013 and 2012. PPMTI’s
MCIT was higher than RCIT for all the years presented.

The 2mounts of MCIT and the applicable years that are valid and deductible from future
regular income tax payable are shown below.

Excess of
Normal MCIT over Valid
Taxable Years Income Tax MCIT Income Tax Tax Fffect Until
2014 P - P 3,998,964 P 3,998,964 P 3,998,964 2017
2013 - 6,433,147 6,433,147 6,433,147 2016
2012 - 88,177 88177 88.177 2015

- Pi16,520,288 P 160,520,288 P10,520,288

In 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Group claitned itemized deductions in computing for its income
tax due,

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s telated patties include the ultimate parent company, the parent company,
stockholders, the Group’s key management personnel, entities under common
ownership by the ultimate patent company and others as described in the succeeding

pages.
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The summary of the Group’s transactions with its related parties as of
June 30, 2015, December 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the years ended June 30, 2015,
December 31, 2014, and 2013 is presented below.

Related Party Amount of Transactions Quistanding Bakance
Category Notes 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014

Other rclated parties
under common
owncrship
Sale of goods 7,261 P 11,348212 P 1473214 P 39,139,112 P 24,003,299 P 25524583
Purchascs of services  26.2 - - - - -
Advances to

sappliers 7,26.2 10,024,800 10,024,300 - " 10,024,800 10,024,300
Rentals 18,26.3 40,207,058 66,398,252 43,119,800 3,338,432 7.145631
Due from related
parties 26.4 8,727,609 7625362 (5,552,006) 13,685,843 10373356
Due to related
partics 26.4 - { 46956518} (21,390,502) 17,204,725 " 62,161,243
Donations 26.8 200,000 1,500,500 - -
Associate
Technical ship
Services  18,20.2, 26.5 - 33,584,854 15,842,825 2,011,000
Other rclated party
Duc to related
partics 264 - - - - -
26.1 Sale of Goods .

The Group sells products to certain related parties undetr common ownership. Goods
are sold on the basis of the ptice lists in force with non-related parties. Revenues arising
from these transactions are presented as part of Sale of Goods in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. The outstanding receivables from sales of goods
to other related parties are presented as part of Trade Receivables under the Trade and
Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position

(see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from related parties are unsecuted, do not beat any interest
and collectible in cash on demand. No tmpairment loss was recognized in 2014, 2013
and 2012 based on management’s assessment.

26.2 Purchases of Setvices

In 2012, the Group purchased services from related parties under common ownership
on the basis of price lists in force with non-related parties. The amount of transaction is
presented as patt of the Cost of Sales and Services account in the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income (see Note 20). There is no related outstanding
payable as of June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014
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In 2014, the Group advanced a certain amount to a related party under common
ownership for the purchase of services. The amount is ctedited upon the performance
of the contractual obligation by the related party. The outstanding advances, which are
unsecured and non-interest-bearing, are presented as part of advances to suppliers under
Trade and Other Receivables account in the 2014 consolidated statement of financial
position (see Note 7).

26.3 Rentals

.

The Group has the following lease agreements with the following related parties under
common ownership:

{a) Udenna Cotporation — of which total rent expense incurred in the years 2014
amounted to P7.4 million. The outstanding rental payable amounting to P3.3 million
and P7.1 million in June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, is presented
as part of trade payables under Trade and Other Payables in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 18).

(6) Udenna Development (UDEVCO) Corporation — of which total rent expense in
2014amounted to P47.3 million. Rental deposit for the lease amounted to P6.4+
million as of December 31, 2014 and is presented as part of refundable rental
deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated statements of financial
position (see Note 15).

(¢} Valueleases, Inc. — of which total rent expense in 2014amounted to P11.7 million.
Refundable Rental Deposits amounted to P6.1 million as of December 31, 2014 is
presented as part of refundable rental deposits under Other Non-current Assets in

the consolidated staternents of {inancial position
(see Note 15).

The rent expenses aforementioned are presented as part of Selling and Administrative
Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Notes 21 and 30.3).

20.4 Due from and Due to Related Parties

The Group grants and obtains unsecured advances to and from related parties under
common ownership for working capital requirements and other purposes.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding receivable and payable balances
from these advances are shown as Due From Related Parties and Due to Related Parties,
respectively, in the consolidated statements of financial position. Due from Related
Parties and Due to Related Parties - cutrent are either receivable in cash or paid through
offsetting, unsecured non-interest-bearing liabilities and are expected to be paid within
one year. Non-current Due to Related Parties, on the other hand, are unsecured
non-interest-bearing liabilides. These are stated at their cartying value since the date of
repayment is not currently determinable.
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Due from related patties represent outstanding advances to PhoenixPhilippines

Foundation, Inc. (PPFI), a foundation created by the Group, amounting to P10.4 million

as of December 31, 2014
The movement of Due from Related Parties as of June 30 is as follows:

June 30,2015 _Dec. 31,2014

Balance at beginning of year P 10373356 D 10,373,356
Additions 8,727,609 10,373,356
Collections ( 5.,415.122) 2.747.994)
Balance at end of year P 13685843 P 0.373.356

No impairment loss is recognized in 2015 and 2014 related to advances to
related parties.

The breakdown of the Due to Related Parties as of June 30 is as follows:

June 30, 2014 Dec. 31,2014

Related parties under
cotnmon ownership P - P 17,204,725
Other related party - _

P - P 17.204.725

The movement of Due to Related Parties in 2014 and 2013 follows:

June 30, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014

Balance at beginning of year P 17,204,725 P 064,161,243
Payments (__17,204,725) ¢ 46.956,518)
Balance at end of year P ~ P 17204725

26.5 Technical Ship Services Agreement

On Aptil 1, 2013, the Group entered into a Technical Ship Services Agreement

(the Agreement) with NPMSC, a newly incorporated associate of CSC. Under the
Agreement, NPMSC shall carry out technical services in respect of CSC’s tanket vessel
as agents for and on behalf of the CSC. NPMSC’s responsibilities include crew
management, technical management, accounting services, and the arrangement for the
supply of provisions.

Total technical ship setvices fee incurred amounting to P33.6 million in 2014, is
presented as part of Setvice Fees under the Cost of Sales and Services account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income

(see Note 20.2), while the related outstanding liability (unsecured and non-interest
bearing) of P2.0 million as of December 31, 2014 is presented as part of Trade and
Other Payables in the consolidated statements of financial position

(see Note 18).

L
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26,6 Loan Collateral

{a)  Surety and a negative pledge over the remaining shares of a stockholder secuted the
liabilities under L.C and TR (see Note 17.1). )

(6)  The TLA with DBP, OLSA with BDO and PBComm, loan agreement with RBC
and certain banks loans of the Group were guaranteed by certain stockholders
thtough a surety agreement with the tespective banks.

27. EQUITY
27.1 Capital Stock

Capital stock consists of:

Shares Amoung
Jlane 30 2015  Dec 31, 2014 June 30.3015  Dee 31,2014

Preferred — cumulative,

nonvolng,

non-participaling,

non-convertible into

common shares -

P1 par value
Authorized: —504000,000 ___50.000,000 L..50,000,000 E__50.004.000
Issued and outstanding —5:000,000 ___ 5,000,000 E__5.000,000 I._5000000

Common shares — 1 par value
Authorized:
Balance at beginning of yeae  2,500,000,000  2,500,000,000 P2,506,000,000 P2,500,000,000

Increase in anthorized stock - - - -

Bulncestend of o 2500.000,000 2,500,000,000 P 2500.000.0000 2500000000P
Tssued: .
Balance at heginning of year  1,428,777,232 1,428,777,232 P 1,428,777,232 P1,428,777,232

Issnance during the year - - - -
Stock dividends . - - - -

Teclassification - - - -

Balance at cod of year AA28,777,232 142877703 E_1428777,232 D1.426777232

On April 23, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s inctease in authorized
capital stock from P800.0 million divided into 750.0 million common shares with a par
value of P1 and 50.0 million preferred shares with par value of P1 per share into
P2,550.0 million divided into 2,500.0 common shares with par value of P1 per share and
50.0 million preferred shares with par value of P1 per share.
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The pteferred shates shall have the following features:
() Non-convertible into common shares;

(6) Non-participating in any other corporation activities or other further dividends,
non-voting, except in cases specified by law;

(¢) No pre-emptive tights over the holdets of common shares as to distribution of net
assets in the event of dissolution or liquidation and in the payment of dividends at a
specified rate. The BOD shall deterinine its issued value at the time of issuance and
shall determine its dividend rates and the dividends shall be paid cumulatively; and,

(d) The preferred shares shall be redeemable at the Parent Company’s option under
such terms as the BOD may provide at the time of issuance. It shall also be re-
issuable when fully redeemed.

Moreover, preferred shates have the following features among others as provided in the
subscription agreement;

‘(a) Dividends on the Preferred Shates shall have a fixed rate of 11.50% per annum
calculated in respect of each shate with reference to the Issue Price thereof in
respect to each dividend period.

(b) Dividends shall be payable every September 21, December 21, March 21 and
June 21 of each year (each a “Dividend Payment Date”). 'T'he dividends on
the Preferred Shares shall be caleulated on a 30/360 day basis and shall be
paid quatterly in arrears on the last day of each 3-month dividend petiod
{each a Dividend Payment Date), as and if declared by the BOD. If the Dividend
Payment Date is not a banking day, dividends shall be paid on the next succeeding
banking day, without adjustiment as to the amounts of dividends to be paid.

(z) ‘'The Preferted Shares shall have priority in the payment of dividends at the
stipulated rate at the time of issuance and in the disttibution of corporate assets in
the event of liquidation and dissolution of the Parent Company. As such, the BOD
to the extent permitted by law shall declare dividends each quarter sufficient to pay
the equivalent dividend. Dividends on the shates shall be cumulative. If for any
reason the Parent Company’s BOD does not declare a dividend on the Preferred
Shares for a particular dividend period, the Patent Company shall not pay a
dividend for said dividend period. However, on any future Dividend Payment-Date
on which dividends are declared, the holders of the shares shall receive the
dividends accrued and unpaid to the holders of the Preferred Shares prior to such
Dividend Payment Date. Holders of Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to
participate in any other further dividends beyond the dividends specifically payable
on the Preferred Shares.

Moreover, the subscription agreement requires that the Parent Company undertakes to
maintain a long-term debt to equity ratio of 1:1 throughout the life of the preferted
shares.

On Decembet 20, 2013, the Parent Company redeemed the preferred shares issuedin
2010 and re-issued the same amount and features of preferred shares except for the rate,
which was reduced to 8.25% per annum

HY
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Based on its plans, the BOD of the Patent Company will also declare and disttibute cash

dividends in 2015 out of the Parent Company’s retained earnings as of
December 31, 2014,

27.2 Listing with PSE

On July 11, 2007, the Parent Company offered a portion of its stocks for listing with the
PSE. Nutnber of common shares registered was 29.0 million with an issue price of
P9.80. As of December 31, 2014, the number of holders of such securities is 62. The
market price of the Parent Company’s shares as of December 31, 2014 is P3.09. The

total number of issued shares not listed with the PSE atnounted to P116.0 million
shares.

The history of public offerings and private placéments of the shares of the Parent
Company lodged at PSE are as follows:

Transaction Subscriber Issue Date Number of Shares
Initial public offering Various July 11, 2007 29,000,000
30% stock dividends Vatious August 6, 2008 43,000,198
40% stock dividends Various August 3, 2009 73,660,476
Placement Social Secutity System  November 13, 2009 7,500,000
40% stock dividends Various October 20, 2010 107,664,266
30% stock dividends Various May 6, 2011 113,047,475
50% stock dividends Various April 26, 2012 244.936,203
Shares issuance for

CSC acquisition UMRC September 6, 2012 171,250,798
Placement Various March 11, 2013 130,000,200
30% stock dividends Various June 10, 2013 329,717,816
Payment of

subscription PPHI October 8, 2013 63,000,000

_ 1312777232

27.3 Additional Paid-in Capital

In 2013, the Parent Company issued 130.0 million of its common shares at P9.40 per share
and 63.0 million comimon shares at P5.10 per share. The excess of the par value for such
subscriptions amounting to P1,350.3 million was recorded as part of Additional Paid-in
Capital account. In addition, direct cost of the share issuances amouniing to

P34.1 million was deducted from the Additional Paid-in Capital account.

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171,250.8 million shares in favor of UMRC in
relation to the share-for-share swap acquisition of CSC {see Note 1.3). The business
combination under common control was accounted for under pooling of interest-type
method. The excess of par value of such issuance amounted to P1,248.9 million was
recorded as part of the beginning balance of the Additional Paid-in Capital account.



-~ Bf -

In 2010, the Parent Company issued 5.0 million of its preferred shares at P100 per share.
The excess of par value for such subscription amounting to P495.0 million was recorded
as part of Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial
position. In addition, the excess of the selling price over the acquisition cost of the
treasury shares sold in 2010 also constitutes the Additional Paid-in Capital account. The
preferred shares issued in 2010 were redeemed on December 20, 2013 and on the same
date, the same share and value of preferred shares were issued, except for the reduced rate.

In 2009, the Social Secutity System has bought an initial 2.83% stake in the Parent
Company representing 7.5 million subsctibed common shares for P42.0 million or at
P5.60 per share. The excess of par value for such subscription amounting to P34.5 million
was recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

In 2007, the Parent Company listed its shares of stock with PSE. Premiums recetved in
excess of the pat value duting the public offering amounting to P227.1 million were
recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of
financial position. '

27.4 Other Reserves

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171,250.8 million common shares plus cash of
P157.8 million in exchange of the net assets of CSC. The acquisition of CSC is accounted
for under business combination using pooling-of-interest method wherein the difference
between the consideration given up over the catrying value of the net assets of CSC is
recognized as Other Reserves {sec Note 2.3).

27.5 Revaluation Reserves
The components and reconciliation of ttems of other comprehensive income presented in

the consolidated statements of changes in equity at their aggregate amount under
Revaluation Reserves account, are shown below and on the succeeding page.

Defined ‘
Property and Benefit
Equipment Obligation Total

Balance as of January 1,2014 P 286,554,327 (P 13,932,556) P 272,621,771
Remeasurements of defined :
post-employment

obligation - ( 31,217,753) ( 31,217,753)
Revaluation of tankers 180,637,550 - 180,637,550
Depreciation transfer to

retained earnings —

revalued tankers ( 29.384.,140) - { 29.384.140)
Other comprehensive '

income (loss) before tax 151,253,410 31,217,753) 120,035,657
Tax mcome {expense) ( 29 884 334) 9,365,325 ( 20,519,009
Other comprehensive

income {loss) after tax 121,369,076 ( 21,852,428) 99,516,648
Balance as of

December 31, 2014 P 407923403 (P 35784984) P 372138419

He
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27.6 Retained Earnings

The Board of Directors approved the declaration of cash dividend of P0.05 per share. It
was disclosed last March 04, 2015, the date of record is March 08,2015 and the payment
date is Apsl 16, 2015.

Further, it also declared 8.25% dividend to preferred stockholders with record date of
February 24, 2015 and the payment date of March 20, 2015.

On January 29, 2014, the BOD approved the declaration of common share cash dividend
of 10 centavos per share totaling to P142.9 million to stockholders of record as of

March 17, 2014. In addition, total cash dividends declated and distributed to preferred
stockholders amounted to P41.2 million in 2014. No stock dividends were declared and
distributed in 2014. :

On March 8, 2013, the stockholders ratified the BOD approval of 30% stock dividends
(or a toral of 329.7 million shates), valued at par and disttibuted on June 10, 2013 to
stockholders of record as of May 15, 2013. Cash dividends of 10 centavos per common
shares totaling to P103.6 million were also declared and paid in 2013. In addition, total
cash dividends decdlared and disttibuted to prefetred stockholders amounted to

P57.5 million in 2013.

On March 8, 2012, the stockholders ratified the BOD’s approval of 50% stock dividends
{or a total of 244.9 million shares), valued at par and distributed on April 26, 2012 to
stockholders of record as of Matrch 28, 2012. In addition, cash dividends of 10 centavos
per common shares totaling to P49.0 million were also declared and paid in 2012. In
addition, total cash dividends declared and disttibuted to preferred stockholdets amounted
to °57.5 million in 201 2.

27.7 Capiral Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

e To ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern; and,

s To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and setvices
commensurately with the level of sisk.

The Group monitots capital on the basis of the cartying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting
peticds under review is summarized as follows:

June 30, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014

Total liabilities P 18,134,862,615 P 17,949,934.696
Total equity 7.399,112.586 7.050.226.099
Debt-to-equity ratio 2.45 : 1.00 2.55:1.00

The increase of the total liabiltties in 2014 is the result of the additional borrowings for the
procurement of petroleum and construction of depot facilities, tankers and retail stations.
The increase in equity is due to the accumulated earnings.

The Group’s internal goal in capital management is to maintain a debt-to-equity

HF
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structure ratio not in excess of 2.7 to 1. All externally imposed key ratios have been
complied with in all the years presented, otherwise, bank waivers had been obtained
(see Note 17).

‘The Group sets the amount of capital in propottion to its overall financing structute, i.e.,
equity and financial liabiliies. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the fisk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce delt.

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE
EPS were computed as follows:

June 30, 2015 June 30,2014

a) Net profit pertaining to
cominon shares P404,596,850 P 381,208,211

b) Net profit attributable to
comimon shares and
potential common shares 404,596,850 381,208,211

¢) Weighted average number of
outstanding common shares 1,428,777,232 1,428,777,232

d) Weighted average number of
outstanding common and

potential common shates 1,428,777,232 1,428,777;232

Basic EPS (a/c) P 028 P 027

Diluted EPS (b/d) P 028 P 0.27

The options and warrants attached on the convertible notes do not have dilutive effect
since the average market price of the common shates of the Parent Company during the
year does not exceed the exetcise ptice of the options or warrants [see Note 17.2(z].

29. SEGMENT REPORTING

- 29.1 Business Segments

In identifying its opetrating segments, management generally follows the Group’s setvice
lines, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group, namely
fuels, lubricants, depot services and real estate. These are also the bases of the Group in
reporting its ptimary segment information.

(a) ‘Trading segment is engaged in marketing, merchandising, purchasing, selling, dealing,
acquiting, disposing and distribution of goods and wares such as but not litnited to
petroleumn products (on wholesale basis), adhesives, glues, bonding agents, epoxy
resins, lubricants and other products.
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(b)) Depotand logistics services segment is engaged in operating of oil depots, storage
facilities and provides logistics setvices to various entities.

{¢) Shipping and catgo setvices segment is engaged in hauling of petroleum products,
operation of inter-isiand going vessels for domestic trade, chartering in and out any
such vessels and providing complete marine services, either as principal or agent to
ship owners, operators and managers.

(d) Real estate segment is involved in real estate development, management and
operations.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
30.1 Capital Commirments

As of June 30, 2015, the Group has commitments of more than P900 million for
expansion on petroleum retail network, depot, terminalling and logistics facilities,
information technology infrastructire and other major expansions related to its business
development. The Group has a network of 443 operating retail service stations as of
June 30, 2015, An additional of 61 retail service stations are under various stages of
completion as of June 30, 2015.

In this year, the Group plans to expand further its pettoleum retail service stations and
carry out its investments in its subsidiaties to put up depot and terminalling facilities in
strategic locations and complete its chain logistics suppott to strengthen its foothold in the
industry.

30.2 Letters of Credits

As of June 30, 2015 and December 31,2014, the Parent Company has unused LCs
amounting to P 8,242.4 million and P7,131.0 million, respectively.

30.3 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee under several operating leases. The leases have terms ranging
from 2 to 25 years, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates ranging
from 2.00% to 10.00%. The future minimum rentals payable under these cancelable
operating leases are presented as follows:

2014
Within one year P 306,965,591
After one year but not
mote than five years 1,019,563,212
More than five yeats 3,054,218,327
P4,380,747,130

Total rent expense for the years 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P390.4 rm]hon
P 364.4 million and P240.9 million, respectively (see Note 21}

H
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30.4 Operating Lease Commitments ~ Group as Lessor

The Group is a lessor under several operating leases with third parties. The leases have
terms ranging from 2 to 15 years, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates
ranging from 2.00% to 10.00%. The future minimum rentals receivables under these
cancelable operating leases are presented below: '

2014
Within one year P 77,559,213 )
After one year but not
mote than five years 241,175,866
More than five years 2,254,311

Rent income in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounting to P94.5 million, P47.5 million and

P54.3 million, respectively, is presented as part of Rent and Storage Income account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

30.5 Finance Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is 2 lessee under several finance lease covering certain hauling trucks with a
lease term of 2 to 5 yeats. The leases provide options to putchase the transportation
equipment at the end of the lease terms. Future minimum lease payments (MLP) under

the finance leases together with the present value (PV) of the net minimum lease payments
(INMLP) is as follows:

2014
Future PV of
MLP NMLP

Within one year P 8,284,913 P7,462,297 .
After one year but not morc than five years 5,926,334 5,671,371
14,211,747 13,133,668

Amonnts representing finance charges (_1078,079) -
Present value of MLP P15,153,668 P15,133,668

The liabilities relating to the finance leases are shown as part of Interest-bearing Loans and
Botrowings (see Note 17.6).

30.6 Charter Agreements

The Group has existing commitments to charterers under TC, CVC and BB agreements
for the use of its tankers in transporting oil products for 2 fixed period. Also associated
with these charter agreements is the obligation to keep the Group’s tankers in good
working condition and compliant with all the shipping regulations as required by the
Philippine Maritime Industry Authority.
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30.7 Purchase Commitm ents

On September 4, 2014, PNX — Chelsea entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Corporation for the importation of one unit of oil tanker (MT Chelsea

Denise 1I) for a total consideration of US$7.3 million. As of December 31, 2014,

PNX — Chelsea has made an initial downpayment of US$ 2.0 million and is presented as
part of Advances to suppliers under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the 2014
consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 7).

30.8 Legal Claims

The Group filed a complaint for a sum of money against one of its customers for unpaid
charter fees including damages. A Writ of Garnishiment on the customer’s funds for the
amount of P16.0 million has been issued by the trial court in favor of the Group.

The same customer filed a suit against the Group for reimbursement and damages,
amounting to P13.7 million, for the loss it incutred from the contamination of its cargo,
which was on board on one of the Group’s vessels in 2010. In the satme yeat, the Group
made a provision in the amount of P6.9 million for the amount of probable liability that it
could answer for such claim. ‘The related liability is presented as part of Others under the
Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position
{see Note 18). No additional loss was recognized related to this claim in the succeeding
years.

30.9 Others

In May 2011, the Bureau of Customs (BOC) filed before the Department of Justice {DO])
a complaint against the Group’s President and Chief Executive Officer and other
respondents for alleged violation of Sections 3602, 2501(1)(1) & (5), 1801, 1802 and 3604
of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines. In November 2012, the DO]
dismmissed the case for lack of probable cause against all respondents. In April 2013, the
DO}, upon moton for reconsideration filed by the BOC, reversed its earlier resolution
and recommended the filing of Criminal Information against the respondents. Criminal
Information for alleged violations of Section 3602, in relation to Sections 3601,

25301 () & 5, 1801 and 3604 of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines were
filed before the Regional Trial Courts (RTC) of Batangas and Davao City in August 2013,
Separately, in September and October 2013, RTC Batangas and Davao City, respectively,
have dismissed all charges against the Parent Company’s President and Chief Executive
Officer.

On October 7, 2013, the DOYJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for
Inhibition of Judge Ruben A. Galvez dated October 7, 2013 with RTC Batangas. On the
other hand, on November 15, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with
Motion for Inhibition of Judge George A. Omelio dated November 15, 2013 with RTC
Davao. On December 6, 2013, RTC Batangas issued an Otrder dated December 6, 2013
denying the DOJ’s Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition. On

Tuly 7, 2014, RTC Batangas issued a Certificate of Finality of even date stating that its®
Order dated December 6, 2013 affirming the Order dated September 17, 2013 is now final
and executory since no appeal was filed.
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On August 18, 2014, RTC Davao issued an order of even date denying the DOJ’s Motion
for Reconsideration. The Office of the Solicitor General, on behalf of the People of the
Philippines, filed the Petition for Certiorari dated October 27, 2014 with the Court of
Appeals seeking the reversal of the Orders dated October 4, 2013 and August 18, 2014
issued by public respondents Judges Omelio and Hon. Loida 8. Posadas-Kahulugan. The
Petition for Certiorari, with Docket No. CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN, is now pending
with the Court of Appeals.

"There 1s also a pending Motion for Reconsideration filed by the DOJ and the BOC,
seeking the reversal of the decision dated 25 July 2014 of the Court of Appeals’ Special
Former Special Tenth (10™) Division in the Consolidated Petitions of Dennis Uy,
docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 131702, and Jotlan Cabanes, docketed as CA-G.R. SP
No. 129740, with the Court of Appeals, which involve the same basic facts and issues as
those raised in CA-G.R. SP No, 06500-MIN.

In the normal course of business, the Group makes various commitments and incurs
certain contingent liabilities that are not given recognition in the consolidated financial
statements. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the management believes that losses, if
any, that may arise from these commitments and contingencies will not have material
effects on the consolidated financial statements.
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Item II - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Comparable discussion on Material Changes in Results of Operaﬁons for the three
Months’ Period Tinded June 30, 2015 vs. June 30, 2014.

Revenues

The Group generated total revenues of £ 14.408 billion in 2015 which is 22% lower than its
2014 level of £ 18.514 billion, primarily due to the decline in average fuel prices in 2015 by
40% of the comparative period. This is in spite of the increase by 28% on 2015 fitst half
volume compared to the same period of last year. The revenue decline was marginally
mitigated by higher revenues from fuels service, shipping, storage and other revenue, which
grew by 50% from the same period in 2014,

Sales revenues from trading and distribution of petroleum products decreased by 23% from
£14.134 billion in 2014 to £ 18.332 billion in 2015 resulting principally from the decrease in
average selling prices. The effect was however mitigated by a 31% increase in in retail
{station) volurme salesdue to a wider disttibution network and growth in same store sales..
The Commercial and industrial segment also increased by 29% despite lower sales to
wholesalers and distrabutors. The Parent Company had four hundred forty three {443)
Phoenix retail service stations as of March 31, 2015 compared to four huandred five (405)
retail stations as of the same period last year. The Parent Company has a number of retail
stations undergoing construction and projected to be opened within the year.

The Group generated 2 273 million in net income from its fuels service, storage, port and
other income in 2015 versus £ 182 million in 2014, a 50% increase compared to the same
petiod last year. This due to a XX% increase in revenues from storage services and hauling
and into-plane services compared with the same period last year.

Cost and expenses

The Group recorded cost of sales and setvices of £ 12.558 billion in 2015, a decline of
25.68% from its 2014 level of £ 16.898 billion ptimary due to a 40% decrease in the average
ptice of petroleum products but mitigated by the 25% increase volume.. This year, the ratio
of retail compared to commetcial/industrial {C&I) accounts improved from XX% to XX% .
Retail volume as a percentage to total sales grew from 33% in 2014 to 39% in 2015. Retail
sales margins are generally higher vs. commercial/industrial sales due to the latter's higher
sales mix of gasoline products in lieu of diesel.

Selling and administrative expenses increased by 13.58% as a result of higher rentals,
depreciation, salaties & wages as a result of the continuous expansion of the Group’s
business operations. With its growing retail presence nationwide and the scaling-up of
operations, the Company incurred increases in manpower, and logistics costs thus resulted to
the aforementioned increase.

Ner Income
‘The Group’s net income for the first half of 2015 was £ 425.2 million versus £ 401.8 million

or a 6% increase vs. the same period last year,. Despite lower selling prices by 40%, the
Company was able to grow profit as a result of its improving sales mix and higher

327
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efficiencies in its trading and supply management. In summary, the growth in net income was
a combination of the 25% increase in volume and a better sales mix in favor of the more
profitable Retail sales volume..

The Parent Company is registered with the Board of Investments on November 16, 2005 as a
new industry participant with new investments in storage, marketing and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 (Downstrearn Qil Industty Regulation Act) and, as such,
continues to enjoy an income tax holiday for five (5) years from November 16, 2005.

The Parent Company obtain additional registration approval from the Board of Investments
(BOI) under R.A. 8479 or Oil Industry Deregulation Law for its Calaca, Batangas Terminal..
‘This entitles the Parent Company to an Income Tax Holiday (ITH) on the revenue activities
from this additional storage capacity for five (5) years starting February 2010. Another BOI
registration was granted for the Davao Terminal Expansion facility effective February 2010
thus entitling the Parent Company another set of incentives including the five (5) year ITH in
its Davao Terminal Marketing and Storage activities. These additional ITH incentives will
allow the Company to enjoy an effective income tax rate well below 30% as it continuously
expands its storage and obtains further incentives from the BOL

The Parent Company was also registered with the BOI on November 25, 2010 as new
industry participant with new investment in storage, marketing and distribution of petroleum
products under RA 8479 (Downstream Oil Industry Deregulation Act) fot its storage tanks in
Talisayan, Zamboanga City. Under its registration, the Company is required to observe
certain general and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus
Investments Code of 1987.

The Parent Company gets new approvals with the BOI for its two (2) new facilities. Both the
Cagayan de Oro City and the Bacolod City were registered and issued certification by the
BOI last May 12, 2012. The registration entitles the Parent Company ITH for five years
from registration plus other fiscal and non-fiscal incentives accorded to BOIT registered entity.

Financial Condition
{As of June 30, 2015 versus December 31, 2014)

Total resources of the Group as of June 30, 2015 stood at Php 25.5 billion, higher by 12%
compared to the Php 25.0 billion as of December 31, 2014. 'T'his is mainly due to increase in
Property, Plant, and Equipment driven by the continuous expansion in retail stations, storage
and shipping assets.

Cash and cash equivalents this year increased by 48% from Php 556 million in December 31,
2014 to Php 823 million due to timing of collection of receivables as against payment of various
liabilides and the maintenance of a minimum daily cash balance..

Trade and other receivables increased marginally by 12.59% from Php 7.832 billion as of ,
December 31, 2014 to Php 6.847 billion as of June 30, 2015, this due to lower receivable as a
result lower prices.

Inventories increased by 22% at Php 3.502 billion as of June 30, 2015 from Php 2.871 billion
as of December 31, 2014. This is due to the timing of the artival of traditional imports
combined with additional inventory for an additional product line. The Company targets to
maintzin an average of one month worth of inventory to ensure stable supply in retail stations
and commercial/industrial clients. However, the actual level varies depending on the timing of
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the actual arrival dates of the fuel tankers.

Due to related parties increased by Php 3.312 million or 32% from Php 10.373 million to .Php
13.685 million in June 30, 2015 vs. December 31, 2014 due to higher charges made during the
quarter.

Input taxes-net decreased by 4.42% in June 30, 2015 is the result of offsetting of higher output
taxes this year due to input taxes on capital expenditures, and increase in paid input taxes from
higher inventory levels.

Other current assets amounted to Php 1.108 billion and Php 1.147 billion as of June 30, 2015
and December 31, 2014 respectively. The increase tepresents prepaid rentals on leased retail
service stations properties and depot sites, prepaid insurance, creditable withholding taxes, and
other current assets.

As of June 30, 2015, the Group’s ptoperty and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation,
increased to Php 11.257 billion compared to Php 10.869 billion as of December 31, 2014 due
to investments in a new marine tanker to support domestic logistics requirements, additional
depot capacity in existing and new areas, and new retail stations in vanous stages of completion
in Luzon, Mindanao, and Visayas as part of the Company’s objective to further expand its retail
station network.

Loans and Borrowings, both current and non-current, increased by 14% from Php 13.843
billion as of December 31, 2014 to Php15.821 billion as of June 30, 2015. The increase of Php
1.978 billion was a result of the timing of availments of working capital lines to finance
inventories, accounts receivable and decline in trade payables. In addition, a Php 500 million
long-term debt was availed during the year to partly finance this year's capital expenditures.

Trade and other payables decreased by 48% from Php 3.735 billion as of December 31, 2014 to
- Php 1.924 billion as of June 30, 2015 mainly due to lower prices and timing of booking trust
receipts.

Total Stockholders’ Equity increased to Php 7.399 billion as of June 30, 2015 from Php 7.050
billion as of December 31, 2014 as a result of the period net income for the three quarters less

the cash dividend declared and paid during the period for both common and prefetred shares.

Key Performance Indicators and Relevant Ratios
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The Company’s key performance indicators and relevant ratios and how they ate computed are
listed below:

June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014
Cutrent Ratio' 113:1 1.11:1
Debt to Equity-Total* 245:1 255:1
Return on Equity-Common® 5.89%* 9.01%%*
Net Book Value Per Sbare® 5.05 4.93
Debt to Equity-Interest Bearing® 214:1 1.96:1
Earnings Per Share-Adjusted © 0.% 0.40%*

Notes:

1 - Total current assets divided by current liabilities

2 - Total liabilittes divided by tangible net worth

3 - Period or Year Net income divided by average total stockholders’ equity
4 - Total stockholdert’s equity (net of Preferred) divided by the total number

of shares issued and outstanding
5 - Interest Bearing Debts divided by Total stockholdet’s equity (net of
Preferred)
6 - Petiod or Year Net income after tax divided by weighted average -
nurmber of cutstanding common shares

* two (2) quarters figure

** One (1) year figure

These key indicators wete chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Company’s financial strength {Cutrent Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the Company’s
ability to maximize the value of its stockholders” investment in the Company (Return on
Equity, Net Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per Share). Likewise, these ratios are used
to compare the Company’s performance with similar companies.

The Company’s debt to equity (DE) ratio for 2015 improved to 2.45 : 1 as a result of the
petiod earnings..

The foregoing ey indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Group’s financial strength {Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the Group’s ability to
maximize the value of its stockholders” investment in the Group’s (Return on Equity, Net
Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per Share). Likewise these ratios are used to compare
the Group’s petformance with its competitors and similat-sized companies.

Matenal Changes to the Group’s Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2015 compared to
December 31, 2014 {Increase/decrease of 5% ot more)

48% increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
This is a result of the timing of collections and disbursements during the petiod. Minimum
levels of Cash are also maintained to support day-to-day requirements. .

13% decrease in Trade and othet receivable
This 1s a result of lower prices and improved collection
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22% increase in inventory
Build-up due to timing of importations and an additional product Line.

32% increase in Due from related parties
Various charges and billings during the period-net.

5% increase in property, plant and equipiment '

Due to vessel acquisition, retail network expansion, storage expansions and other capital
expenditures.

34% Increase in othet non-cutrent asset
Increase in deposit for capital expenditures.

48% decrease in Trade and other payables

Factor of lower prices and timing of booking to trust receipts the trade Payable to foreign
suppliers for purchases of inventory

100% decline on Due to related parties )
Settlement of various advances from ptior years.

98% increase in Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Assets on Vessel Appraisals

7% reduction on non-current liability
Due to some retirement of cash secutity deposits in favor of other form of security.

Material changes to the Group’s Income Statement as of June 30, 2015 compated to June
30, 2014 {(Increase/decrease of 5% ot more)

23% decrease in Sales for petroleum products
Principally due to 40% lower selling prices compared to 2014 in spite of the 25% increase
in volume this year. However, it was pattly offset by the higher setvice revenue

50% increase in fuel service, shipping, storage income, and other revenue
Higher turnover on service volume specifically on storage volume of new terminal,
additional revenue from time charters, port operations and tughoat revenue.

26% dectease in cost of sales
Primarily due to decreased sales of petroleum products and lower unit prices this year
compated to 2014. )

27% increase in Finance Costs {net)
Due to interest on the installment payables, bank term loans used for expansion, plus

Trust receipts availed to finance inventory.

321% decrease in other income/Costs
Due to improvement petiodic inventory losses duting the period plus othet various costs.

7% increase i income tax
Due to the inctease of income not telated to its BOI registered activity.

E/58
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There ate no other material changes in the Group’s financial posidon {5% ot more) ahd
condition that will warrant a2 more detailed discussion. Furthermore, there are no material

events and uncertainties known to management that would impact or change the reported
financial information and condition of the Group.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

The Parent Company held its annual stockholders” meeting last March 11, 2015 at the Marco
Polo Hotel, Davao City, Philippines.

The Board of Directors approved the declaration of cash dividend of P 0.05 per share. As
disclosed last March 04, 2015the record datewas March 08, 2015 with the payment date on
Apnl 16, 2015.

Furthermore, it also declared an 8.25% dividend to preferred stockholders with a record date of
February 24, 2015 and payment date of March 20, 2015.

In February 20, 2015, the Secutity and FEzchange Commission (SEC) approved the
Company's additional Php 1.5 billion shott term commercial paper (STCP)

As of June 30, 2015, there are no known trends or demands, commitments, events or
uncertainties that will result in, or that are reasonably likely to result, in increasing or
decreasing the Group’s liquidity in any material way. The Group does not anticipate having
any cash flow or liquidity issues. The Group is not in default or breach of any note, loan,
lease or other indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring it to make payments.

‘There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relationships of the Parent Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures, events or uncertainties that have
had or that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the continuing operations of
the Parent Company.

There wete no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results
of operations of the Parent Company.

37
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undetsigned thereunto duly authorized.

Registrant P-H-OrE-N-1-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.

By:

(i../)
DENNIS A. UY
President and Chief Executive Officet

1

JOSEPH JOHN L. ONG'
*hief Finance Officer



EXHIBIT No. 13

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT



LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

At present, the Company has five (5) wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely:

P-h-o-e-n-i-x Global Mercantile, Inc. (“PGMI") was
incorporated on July 31, 20086. It was previously engaged in the
manufacture, production and creation of all kinds of motor, and all
other transportation lubricants, fluids and additives of all kinds
and other petroleum products purposely for motor vehicles and
other transportation. PGMI temporarily ceased its operation and
is currently dormant.

PFL Petroleum Management Inc. (“PFL or PPMI") was
incorporated on January 31, 2007 and is currently engaged in
the management of the three retail service stations which are
being used as training sites and stations for prospective dealers.

Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial Park Corp. (PPIPC)
Formerly Bacnotan Industrial Park Corporation (BIPC) is
engaged in real estate development. PPIPC was registered with

the SEC on March 7, 1996. PPIPC is also registered with the

Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board (HLURB) under
Executive Order No. 648 and was granted a license to sell
parcels of land on March 31, 2000 covering 25.4 hectares for
Phase 1 of the Phoenix Petroterminals & Industriat Park (formerly
Batangas Union Industrial Park) (“PPIP") located at Km. 117,
National Highway, Calaca, Batangas. PPIPC owns, manages
and develops the PPIP, which occupies 94 hectares and is
situated within three Calaca barangays of Salong, Puting Bato
West and Lumbang Calzada and has its own port facilities.
PPIPC was granted a permit to operate permanent and non-
commercial pott by the Philippine Ports Authority on April 6,
1999 until the expiration date of the Foreshore Lease Contract
on July 22, 2022.

Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport Phils., Inc. (SPTT)
was registered with the SEC on February 20, 2007 and is
engaged in the buying and selling, supply and distribution,
importation and exportation, and the storage and delivery of all
types of petroleum for industrial, marine, aviation and
automotive use. It does not carry any inventory at any given
time. SPTT is duly registered with Subic Bay Metropoiitan
Authority (“SBMA”™) and was issued the Certificate of
Registration and Tax Exemption on 01 June 2012, which is

1

7%



effective until 31 May 2013 and renewable by SPTT. It is
classified as a Subic Bay Freeport Enterprise for the purpose of
and with permit to operate the business of engaging in the
business of importation, warehousing, transshipment, export,
distribution of liquor, wines and spirits, tobacco and cigarettes
and general merchandise and commodities such as but not
limited to groceries, canned goods and pre-paid cards;
convenience store for selling and distribution of gasoline and
other petroleum products and other liberalized items.

Chelsea Shipping Corporation {(CSC) was incorporated in the
Philippines on July 07, 2006 and started operations on January
1, 2007. It is engaged in maritime trade through conveying,
carrying, loading, transporting, discharging, and storing
petroleum products, goods and merchandise of every kind, over
waterways in the Philippines and in the Asia-Pacific region. CSC
has 10 vessels in its fleet, two of which serve the regional trade
route (Taiwan to Philippines. Chelsea owns the largest
Philippine-registered oil tanker "M/T Chelsea Thelma" with 9366
GRT. With a total fleet size of 19,561 GRT, Chelsea is among
the top 5 major petroleum tanker owners in the country.

132



EXHIBIT No. 14

CONSENTS OF EXPERTS AND INDEPENDENT COUNSEL



Punbngbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth”

Consent of Independent |
Certified Public Accountants 19th and 20th Floors, Tower 1

The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Avenue
1200 Makati City
Philippines

T 463 2 988 2288
F +63 2 BB6 5506
www._puncngbayan-araulic.com
The Board of Ditectors
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc.
Stella Hizon Reyes Road
Batrio Pampanga, Davao City

We consent to the inclusion of our audit report dated Februaty 11, 2015 on the
consolidated financial statements of P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2014 in the prospectus.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

t
By: Rpmuald Murcia I11
Pargner

CPA Reg. No. 0095626
TIN 906-174-059 :
PTR No. 4748317, January 5, 2015, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0628-AR-2 (until Sept. 5, 2016)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-4 (until Apr. 30, 2018}
BIR AN 08-002511-22-2013 (until Nov. 7, 2016)
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2015)

August 24, 2015

Cerliled Public Accountants

P&A is a member firm within Grant Thornlon International Ltd Z
Offices in Cebu, Davao, Cavite

BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. Me. 0002
S£C Group A Accreditation No. 0002-FR-3



EXHIBIT No. 15

CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TOGETHER WITH
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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P-HO-E-N-I-X Petroleumn Philippines, Inc, and Subsidiaties
Schedule I - Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend, Déclaration

Drecember 31, 2014
UNAFPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING P 3.046,541,766
Net Incoirie based on the face of AFS 616,562,972
Less: Non «actual/unrealized mecome, net af tax: )
Deferred fax income { 33,992,758 1
‘Wet Income Actual/Realized ‘ i 582,370,214

Lesst. Changes in Retained Eamings for the Year
Lividend decliations during the period

Commen shares cash dividends (P 142877723)
Trafeired shares cash dividends ( 41,250,000) .
Transfer of revaluation resefves to.fetnined eamings 20,568,898 (. 163,558,825 3

UNAPPROERIATED RETAINEL BARNINGS,
AS ADJUSTED, ENDING P 2.465,353,185

¥4



P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE J - MAPPING. OF THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE
‘ DECEMBER 31, 2014

UDENNA CORPORATION
(Ultimate Parent Company)

Udenna Maragerdent
B Resourcas Gorp. *

Phnenii'Pe'trnleum
Holdings Tng

{Parent Company}

¥ Phaenix Petroleum Philipplnes inc. (PPPT}
41% pwned by PPHI
28% owned by Udenna & UMRC
31% owned by Investing Public

Udenna Trade
Corpdratlon*

Glohal Synergy Trade
& Distrlbution
Corporatlon *

Value Leases Inc. *

PIX-UDENNA
Irsurance Brokers, Ine. |
L]

udenna Energy
Corporatlon *

PEL Petroleurm
Managemént lhc..
[Subsidiary)

Phoentx Global
Mercantile Inc,

(subsidiary)

'SuHEc Patroleum.

Phoenix Petroterminal

" Udenna Foundatlon, .
Inc

Udenna
Envirgrimental

Sarvices Inc*

Trading-and- Beindustrial Park
Transport Phils. Corporation
 {Subsldiary} {Subsldiary) : “Udenna Cajltal Inc. * 4
2y . Udenna Bevelopment ’

(UDEVCO) Corporation
i

phoenlx Foundation
Phiflppines {PPFI)

Chelsea Shipping
Corp.

(Subsidiary)

Udenna Tower Corp, *

I ]

. ‘ ‘ Chelsea Shlg “( Morse/Phil Marine
< Michael Inc. (V) Bunkers Manila PNX-Chelsea Managarnent & Fortis Tugs Services Corjr.
(Subsidiary) : Inc. (Subsidiary} Shipping Corp. Marire Services- Carporation (assacinte)
— (Subsidiary) Corp. (Subsidiary) ;

45% owned by €5t

‘ (Subsidlary)

*Related party uncer common control
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PAe0-E-N-1-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPIRES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Sehedule K « Sehedule of Philippine Birsagial Reporting Scandards and fiverpretitions
Adapad by the Seeqtitics-and Exchasge Commisston and the
Tinahcial Weporting Standarda Couscii 2w at Decymbzer 31, 2004
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Philippios detoantiog Sieadardy (PAS)

R
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P-H10-E-MN-I.X Pewroleum Philippines, Inc, and Subsidiaries

Financial Soundness Indicators
December 31, 2014

A) LIQUIDTTY RATIOS

1 Guzeent Ratio: Cucrent Assers
Current Liahilities

2 Quick Ratio: Currenr Assets - Invenroriey

Cureent Liabities

3 Cdsh Rétio: Cash sund Cash Hquivalents

Carrent Liablitics
I} SOLYENGY RATIOS

1 Solvency Ratio: Afrer Tax Net Profit + Depreciation

Long rerm Liabilites + Short teom Linbilities

2 Debt to Eguity Ratio: Total Liablivies

Equity

€) ASSET TCO EQUITY RATIO
Toml Agsets

Equiry
D) INTEREST RATE COVERAGE RATIO

Harnings Defore Interese and Taxes

Intgrest Expense

E) PROFITABILITY RATTOS

1 Gioss Profit Margim: Sales - Cost of Goods Sold
Sales
2 Return on Assets: Ner [neome

Total Assers

3 Retun on Equity: Net [ncome

Byuicy

2014 2013
1.41 1.33
(.58 0.94
0.05 0.04
0.07 0.08
2,55 2.4
3.55 .44
1.85 2,08
B.10 0.08
.03 0,03
010 010

et
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Punongbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth”

REPOI" tof I I’Idependent AUdltOI 8 15th 3nd 201 Fcds, Tower |
' The Enterprise Canler
GZ56. Ayala Avenue
1200 Makati Gy
Philippines

T +63 2 988°2288
F 483 2 886 5506
w\w.purio;igua;_ran-é'rauuqmm

‘The Boatd of Directors

- P-H«Q-E-N:I.X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaties
- Brellz Hizon Reyes Road. ’

Bartio Pampanga, Davao City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statenyenits of
P-H-O-E-N-1.X Pettcéleumn Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiares the Group), which
- eOmprise thi_’:‘cansﬁolidated‘smtemen,ts of 'Eqan':ial'pps'irioﬂ as at December 31, 2014
- and 2013, and the comsolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
</ stitements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of
- the thtee yeats in the petiod ended Decembes 31,2014, and n summary of significant
" accouating policies arid.other explanatory information.

Maﬁagm*mﬂr .R!@an.rz’[:fli_f.}' ' Jfor the Consalidated ‘P}'f}ar;’.c;'dl Statendesits

- Managementis responsible for the prepatation and¥fair prgsentation of these

" consolidated ﬁgancial,stammmt‘s dnaccordance wily ?hg"pme Financial Reposting |,
Standards, and for-sucl intémal control as managemyy bdetérmibies is necessary to
enable the prepatation of consolidated financigl'statemessh that ase Free fror material

misstatement, whether due to faud or error, N

uditors’ Regpomsitidity ] ‘ ‘ B
Our tesponsibility fs to. éxpress an opinion on these cotolihted! jancial staternents
based on our dudits. We conducted out gudits jn accordance with Philippine
Stantdirds on Auditing, Those standards fequire }ﬁlatﬁW@cgqui}d‘?ﬁfm ethieal
" requirements-and plaq and. performr-the audic to ohtair: z4asonable avsurance aboirt
whether the consolidated fma_ncinlr,’ 'stlr.atqmmts‘ are free from material trisstavernent,

I3
i

Corttied Pk Accouniants i

PAAE & niembér T weltich Bl Thambon Intemelivna 14
Odices it Cabs, ryvas, Eatg

HOAPEC Car "ol g 1y, prip

BEC G 1 Accroctl{latr No, 0002-F43



Punongbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth”

~2-

Auy andit invalves performing procedures to olitain audit evidence about the amousits ‘
and disclosures in the vonsalidated finangial statements. ’I"hc‘px‘:occ&ures salected
depend on the sudifor’s judgment, fncluding the assessment of the risks of material
thisstatement of the consolidated financial staterpents, whether-due to fraud or BLLOL.
In making those risk assessments; the auditor considets internal control telévant to
_the entity’s preparation-and fair preséntation of the conselidated financial staternents
in order to design audit procedurés chat are appiopriate in the circumstances, but not
far the purpose of exptessing an. opinion on the effectiveness of the entty’s intcrnal *
control, An audit also inchides cvaluating the appropziateness of accounting policies
used dnd the reasonableness of accountin g estimates made by management, as -well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

 Webelieve that the audit eviderice we have obtained js sufficient and appropriate to
‘provide a’'basis for our audit opinion.

. Opidifon

In our. opiniof, the cansolidated financial statemnents present faitly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of P-H-O:E-N-I-X Petrolenin
Philippines; Inc. and Subsidiaries as at Deceniber 31, 2014 and 2013, and theit
cofisolidated financial petformaice znd their cash'flows for each of the three years in”
the period ended December 31, 2014 in secordance. with Philippine Finativial ‘
Repaorting Standatds. : ‘ o

‘ PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO'

(I
4 V. Murcia 111

CPA Reg. No. 0095626
TIN $08-174-059 . ‘
PIR No. 4748317, January 5, 2015, Makat City
SEC Group 4 Accreditation
. Pariner -No. 0628-AR-2 (umil Sept. 5, 2016),
. Firm - Np. 0002:FR-3 (untll Mar. 31, 2015)
BIRAN 08-002511-22.201% (yntl Now. 7, 2016
. Fitn’'s BOA/PRC Cert..of Reg, No. 0002 fuatl Dec. 31,2015)

 Febivary 11, 2015

-/ CaRlled Pubflc Aceotritants '
FEA L - miber Brm within Granl Thomle: Ittt Lt
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To be an jucispunsabis partier b the journey of evaryoig
Whose Ifie we fowe,

FRQERIX

Fasfr iz

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
- FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

" The inanageme'nt of P-H-0-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, In¢. and Subsidiaries (the Group), is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation, of the consolidated fnancial statements for the
years ended Decembeér 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 in actordance with Phi]_fippr‘ne Financial Reporting

. Standards, including the. following additipmal supplementary information which is filed separately
~ from.the basic consolidated financial statements:

) - Supplementary schedule réquired under Annex 68-E of the SRC.
'b) Map showing the relationship between and among related entities
- €} Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations adopted by the
-Securities and Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Standards Councils as of 31
December 2014 ‘
d) Schedule showing financial soundness indicators
e) Schedule showing reconciliation. of Retained Earnings avatiable for dividend declaration

Management's responsibility includes designibg and implementing internal controls relevant to the
- preparation and f&ir presentation of cansolidated financial statements ‘that are. free from material
misstatement, whether due'to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate acconnti ng policies,

- and mak[n'g;pccmmt_i_ng estimates thal are reasonabie in the circumstances.

- The Eanfd.df’Direqtnrs reviews and approves. the co.nsolidategmﬂ‘ancial-gfétements, and the additipial
- supplementaryinformation, and submits the same to the stqe‘li@]’ij?rsf‘ e

" Punongbayan-& Araullo; the independent. auditors appointed” by : the Kiblikholders far the, period

- December 31; 2074, 2013 and 2012, has examined the t:onsalidg;qd;ﬁhaﬁé‘ié%-statemenm of the Group

“in sccordance with Philipping Stanidards on Auditing and, and i its rﬁgp’g’ijaitggg the Board of Directors

- and stoekholders, has expressed its opimion on the fairness of p_r_f)es‘!en.ta'ﬁ':)’ Cupoen compléetion of such
examination; o I

~ Signed Llnt: 16th day of February 2015, Davao City S

‘ . a. e

Chiel Financial Officer
| WEADOFFICE: Phornly Buk Dopet; Lofong; D Gy $700,. MAMILA OFEfER: wrmi.egcndTmm,mns.&mmm‘g'a\sgg;_ . CERL DIRICE: nrg-[ix,uaggnm;&udﬁnusprm.l.i._c.mweq_a_‘.., .
U iy v oema SR MANILA o Fort Dorlhucip Giohsl Gy, Togaig Gly 1639, Molipgies. Hologe! i, Megia, B . ot 114,
inoy 453 [z 2359k K Tirfine: B2 402048 s : .
. l’:}mjx;ﬁ]&zﬁﬁw oo . ri.é’iguﬁfqﬁ . T ey #EH(AN 2IATRE 1 2305108
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PHOEN]

Rords 148

Republic of the Philippines)
City of Davao ) 8.5,

L L LT -X

~ SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on FEB 16 zms in Davao City,
Philippines.. Affiants have confirmed their identities by presenting competent evidence of id enlity, viz:

Name’ ‘ Competent Evidence of [dentity
Dominga T, Uy TIN 140-162-193

DennisA. Uy - TIN-172-02 0-135

Joseph Joln L. Ong TIN 101-116-899

and thal 'they.m'rtherratr.est' that the same are true and correct,

~ Doe.Ne, 12}

Page No, 4+ ATT 41, DAEI
Book Mo, 1~ Mo Datso CIO 5 .
ardae o201 F Exph e 3,201
Saries of ;Dla. el ¥
F 3 1208143 0.0
15 Mo, G647 7 1303494; QL’Q
ofl et Attorooys Neo. 47886
: p ir .- B ‘ ", C: ‘. . Y 13 o ¥ P 3 : i 13 x ;1 Qe - k‘."l‘ ', k.
T B e Ao g S S men [ et e s
S Yrunkes: +63(57) 2352808 Tamidine, <BY24054037 ‘ Plidizppes.

Fand (B2) 2330109 : . Emcapidaniam .

TH.Ho: B2 (230 3tde £ 2dtaen-
. Al
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B-H-0-E-.EX PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Natey 2014 2013
ASSETS
CURHENT ASSETS
" Caslkr und cash equivalents ] ¥ 555,508,720 I 357,220,520
Trade-and.orher receivables - not i 7,832,712,191 7,343,793, 926
" Inventories . 8 2,870,829,069 3,812,532,473
" Lahd:held for sale and land deveélopment costs Ll 485,985,811 503,672,474
Due from related parties 26 10,373,356 4.747,994
Kestricttd deposis: 10 70,466,743 05 418 646
“Toput valos-edded s - net 603,608,784 448,836,093
léltip:lymt:nfs and other cocrent assets. & 1,146,632,540 : 483 912177
Total Cucrent Assets’ 13,576,057,214 13,05)1.,1-38,503
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Propesty and Egnipinnt- net 12 10,688,608,904 8;628,490,459
Land Luld for future develtpment 1" 312,617,4% 297,942,281
Tnvestment in an associate 13 2,250,000 2,250,000
Geodwil] - net 16 84,516,063 84,516,663
- Chther non-curgent assets 15 336,110,518 270,215,050
Total Nop-ourreat Assets 11,424,103,581 - 9,283 414,443
- TOTALASSETS P 25000160795 P 32,337,552806
C CURBENT LIABILITIES c .
Intetest-bearing loany ind hifrowiogs 17 P B,479,025,756 P g,207229 484
Trade and cther pityables 18 3,734,569,595 1,570,427,327
- Dut wirelated partes 26 17,204,725 64,167,243
Tustal Cuprent Lialilitios 12,230,800,470 _ L 9R4B18,054
~ NON:-CURRENT LIABILITIES -
Intercst-beating loans and Bortowings A7, “5,363,617,647 - 5‘,54 4,500,333
Deferred tax ubilities - net P 71,872,184 76,530,671
* Okher non-carcent lizhiliGes” 19, 283,044,395 376,789,584
Tl Non-cuesent Liabilities 8,719,134,226 © 5.997.829.608
Teoea! Tinbilities. - 17,048934.585 - 15839647662
EQUITY # o
' J:’-rt:ful"mti sthchk S,UQU,DOD 3,000,600
Cemmun.stock 1,428,777,332 1,428,777, 232
Additional prid-in capital 3,367,916, 774 3,367.916.774
© Revalmtion resecvs 372,138,419 212,621_,1?1
" Ofhertmerves ( 622.952239)  ( © 622952,239)
Rétained eaenings ' 2499,345813 2046541766
ol g 050,226,099 6,497, 905.204
. LOTAL LIABILTTTES ANIY EQUITY P 25000160795 - P 22357552066

Sec Nutes to Consglidarcd Finuncial Staterpea.

3



‘B-I1:0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM FPHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE 1 NCOME
FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER, 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012
. (Amounts i Philippie Pons)

See Notes tor Consolidated Snancinl Statemerits,

Maten 2014 2013 anz
REVENUES , : . ‘ 3
Sale of goods 2% P 34,106,257,928 P 43,139,691,419 P 34,080,171,520
Chactet Fees 2 392,681,626 205,235,733 2FLR13,941
Renz and storge income 30 109,583,267 79,208,786 113,205,470
Portrovtines 2 84,647,031 65,206,403 54,385,910
" luel seryice and other Tevenyes 2 56,184,604 62,643,613 135,885,455
34,734,384, 496 43,551,086 554 34,585,552,305
‘COST AND EXPENSES
CoitnF sales and séevicis 20 31,404,503,935 49,248, 166,004 31,9651,74:413
Sedling and sdrainistrtive exjenses : Kl . 1,9)6,826,177 1,991,460,138. 1.433,641,606
33,321,330,143 42,239,626 202 33,435411.019
OTHER CHARGES (INCOME) .
Finance costa . 2 804,137,896 664,030,064 519,720,443
Finanee income: 22 ¢ 3304,843) ¢ BABLETTY  { 24,620,351
Qe ‘ { 6,842,368 14,675,113y ( - 16,133,556}
793,900,583 . 45973374 478,957,546
FROFIT FEFORE TAX ’ 619,183,699 666,436,758 671,183,700
. TAX EBXPENSE : ] 2,790,727 — 1,379,153 19,873,548
 NETPROFIT = D 616,362,072 665,057,605 651,310,152
QIHERaCOMPREI;ENSN'E INCOME (LOSS}, .
* Hémd that will not e reclaspified o
‘nubaequently to.poofit or loss ) ) ‘ )
:lliii'nlualjm‘r-(if-lankcrx ' . : 2 180,637,550 6,847,358 331,807,097
Remessucements of post-gmployrment :
defined benelit Ghligrriun- . ' el ¢ AM27,753)  f A147.836)  ( 13,306,797
Lux; Gxprense - . o2 2903435y [ _ L9855y ( 95,550,091
: Oﬁbr Compretienzive Incomie - nie of tax. o - . 120,085,546 . 589,667 222,050 209
TOTAL COMPREMENSIVE INCOME P 736448818 P 667,647,272 B 87426030
Baslc: and Difited Picnings per sbar o 7 P W p L pesop D98



PHGE-N-L'X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUSSIDIARIES

CONSDLIDATED STATEMENTS OF [TASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEARS BNDED DECEMBER 31; 2014, 2013 AND 2012

(Amountr in Philippine Perop)

Déoiey
. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIGS

" Prafitbafure. (6t
Adivstrrenu for

Intécest nipense . E

Bepreciption aexlwriorization 2L

Impaiement fumses ‘a3

[Jateregt ifecume : H

Operating prolit befose working capitel changes
Ancrzric in weade and other receivables .
eorease fincrvmnd) fic jnven e
Dacrense Gnenease] in Tand held for.ale and tand

develupment tosty
Deceéase (increase) in. restwgeed deposite
Inceeaye i inpot vahig-added mg
Inereuse it prepayments and nther currenic aises
- Dezrease injnstaliment contvct reoajvable ©
Inarease (dearenses in toadz and other pafables
. Cash gendraned frgen-{used i) opcraiins
. Llash paid Fair income. xes

ez ek From (itsed ) Operating Activitiey

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIYITIES ‘
a\pqnisifiuhru{prqperl} sid cquipnionr 2
ncedate in acher non-turcent sastis
Incrvase. in Jind held for futuc devetopiment.

Advances 1 relalgd) parties 2
Inuetédt recefved
Cullettions (rmm releted pacics 26

- Freugrrdd feog distroral of property aid Equipmeny
B Tarh Uped in Invgsting Ackiviics

- CASHLFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES,
- Pargungts fpm addditions) intorest-bearing i and bunrowings

Repagmenty ul Tnvesestilaring Joans and bormyrings
Interesr paicl . . .

g enty nfmliﬁ-lu’yyﬁign;is ' S o
batcenge {décreaie) in athey ;iun-:ﬁtrﬂﬁt liabsitivies,

‘R_cpa_vﬁumr'iq‘xclated parties 2
Fruceedy eom issoance of shares of stogk . oA

Rrtireds; i bocrswings Rom flated pasiics

Net Lash fram (Useid i) linancing Actvilies . -
'NET YNGREASE (DECREASE) 1N CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
'CASHLAND CASH EQUIVALENTS -

AT DEGINNING OF YRAR .

| GASM:ANT CASH EQUIVALEN'TS
AT BND OF YEAR .

Bupplemen ml Informativn-on Nb_nvr:lns.h'flvlcnli'ng‘and' Financing Activities: -~

" 1 Susek diviiléndjr duclatad dnd ditsiiurea b e o wntuoicil to i in U4, P22923 millivo in 2013 and #2444

% Ga Juty-6, 2002, the Pozrd uf Diceston o the Tarent Compusip approved the nequisiton ol 1K Vs shens of,
shard for-shade swap. The dgred purchase price amosnied te PUSTEM milliun payabie a3
cashy Accurdingly, 1713 willivs, mew cummihazes were isnicd i Favor of Uildana My

i YD wecounted-for ad tusiness combinarion g pirdingeofinterest me

gecpulitign of

(

Ne 122,883,739 ¥
{
(

014

a1

P KI%1E3.600

¥ 605,436, 758-

park)

B A1

728,178,099 BT 451,897 467,338, 20%
. 650,281,913 528,400,077 AN5,815, 564
40,077,464 17,059,162 ITH51,057
[ 3,304,843y ¢ BAB15TY ¢ 1asa7pen)
2,044,296, A3 1 821,766,257 1,511,040,530
{ ey (. BB04TEONAYY T2308,204 )
941,703,604 £ 123702807y 1,536,137,271 )
17,686,863 { OIS 50448491)
25,012,005 { 12728017) 13,657,152)
(. 1dmoeey | S5HRATIS 166,461,101 3
{ 656,719.363) ¢ 207,552458) ¢ 76,150,578 F
N . 9,602,784
169,142,668 ] 322,143 { 1,525,182,833 )
3,882,385,385 { 2361224304) ¢ ZEAB,057,090 )
¢ BIASS)  (_ 165260)  { 5640323
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Punongbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth”

Report of Independent

Certified Public Accountants

to Accompany Supplementary Information nsm e
Required by the Securities and Exchange E;Eéﬁaf&‘
Commission Filed Separately from the Y +832 B0 2208
Basie Financial Statements e O oo

v

"The Board of Directors

P-H-0-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Stellx Hizon Reyes Raoad

Bagrio Pampanga, Davao City

")
We have audited in accordance with Philippine btani;cls en Anditing, the
consolidated financisl statements of PH-0O-1&-N-J- }Q,l%etiolcum I}];n}appmcs Inc. and
Zubsidiaries {the Group) for the year ended Decembenst, 2004y zm which we have
zendered oux tepirt dated February 11, 2015, Ous audit wis mddmfoz thic purpose of
forming an opinion on the basic. Lnﬂbcllld ated fiancial Fratements faken as a whole.
The applicable supplementary ifnformation (eee List of ‘-suppfcn ¢ ; Informatmn)
ot presented for putposes of additional analysis in wmjglzancc_ Wﬁ} thie requirements
of the Secutides Regulation Code Rule 68 (as amended), @emci; ibfa required patt of
the busic consolidated finaricial starements prepated in A8tos ith Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards, Such supplementary 111fo£m{1&éﬁ ¢ responsibility
of the Group’s matiagernentt. The supplementary informggenk e cen subjected to
the duditing proccdurea apphcd in the audit of the basic éehsolidatetfinancidl
statements and, in cur opiniion, are faitly stated in all marerial respects in relation to
 the basic consolidited finaneial staternents taken as a whole,

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

. Murcia 111

CPA Reg, No: (095626
Tk $06-174-039 .
PTR Mo, 4748317, Januazy 5; 2015, Makaiti Cify
SEC Group A Accréditation
Pariner - No. 0628-5R2 (tntil Sept 5, 2016
Fum No, UD02-FR-3 funtil Mar. 31, 2015)
BIR AN 08-002511-22-2013 (ot New. 7 2016) ‘
Fizin’s BOAJPRE Gert. of Reg, No: 0002 (opdl Dee. 51, 2015)

Certifiad Public Accgtmtants i

PEA {5 0 nmaimkar finn, e Srmd Thanton i alizngl Lig

Gffizes i Cebn. [ssn, Cavitg FE{'JIHRIE 11, 2015
2

DOARRE Gt of Reig' Nek opoz -
SEC Group A Acceslilathn Mo, ADOZFR-3
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P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiuries
LIST QF SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

DECEMBER 31, 2014

Dasription D
Financial Asses N/A
Amiounts Recervable from Dliremtors, Oificers, Employees, Relared Parties,
and Principal Stockholders {Ocher than Relared Pacties) . 1
Amounts 0.‘1" Receivable [rom Related Pagsies which are Elintnated during:
the Consolidation of Finaneial Statements 2
Tatangible Assats - Other assers 3
Long-Term Debt 4.7
Indelstedness to Related Parties {Long-tert loans from related Companies)  N/A
Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers N/A
Capital Stock 5
Reconcilintion of Retrined Earnings Available. [or Dividend Declaration 7
Mapping of the Organization Shuerure 8
Schedule of Philippine Finaaciil Repordag Standands 9-11
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P-H-0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash cquivalents

“I'tade and other receivables - net

Inventosics

Land held for sale and land development costs
e from related partics

Restricted deposits

Toput value-added tax - net

Prepayments and other current asscts

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and cquipment - net
Land held for future development
lnvestrent in an associate
Goodwill - net

Other non-cusrent assets

Total Non-cucrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND UITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-beading loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Due to telated partics

Total Curcent Liabilitios

NON-CURENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilives - net

Other non-eurrent liabilitics
Tota! Non-current Linbilitios
Total Liabilities

EQUITY
Preferred stock
Common stoel
Additional paid-in capital
Revalation reserves
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITTES AND EQUITY

Notes

25,000,160,795

2014 2013
555,508,720 P 357,220,520
7,832,712, 191 7,343,793.926
2,870,829,069 3,812,532,673
485,985,811 503,672,474
10,373,356 2,747,994
70,406,743 95,419,646
603,608,784 448 838,093
1,146,632,540 489 913,177
13,576,057,214 13,054,138,503
10,688,608,904 8,628,490 469
312,617,496 297,942,281
2,250,000 2,250,000
84,516,663 84,516,663
336,110,518 270,215,050
11,424,103,581 9,283 414,463

.
22,337,552,966

8,479,025,750
3,734,569,995
17,204,725

'P

8,207,220 484
1,570,427,327
64,161,243

12,230,800,470

9,841,818,054

5,363,617,647 5,544,500.333
71,872,184 76,530,694
283,644,395 376,789,584
5,719,134,226 5,997,829,608
17,949,934,696 15,83%,647.662
5,000,000 5,000,000
1,428,777,.232 1,428,777,232
3,367,916,774 3,367,916,774
372,138,419 272,621,771
622,952,239 ) 622,952,230 )
2,499,345.913 2,046,541,766
7,050,226,099 6,497,905,30%

P 25,000,160,795

P

22,337 552,066

See Notes to Consolidated Fipancial Statements,



P-H-0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPFINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 ANT 2012
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2014 2013 2012
REVENUES
Sale of goods 26 P 34,100,287,928 P 43,139,691,819 P 34,080,17(,520
Charrer fecs 2 392,681,626 205,235,733 201,813,941
Rent and storage income 30 100,583,267 79,208,786 113,295,479
Port revenucs 2 84,647,031 05,206,403 54,385,910
Truel service and other revenues 2 50,184,644 - 62,643,613 135,8H5,455
34,734,384,496 43,551,986,354 34,585,552,305
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 20 31,404,503,935 40,248,166,084 31,961,749,413
Selling and administrative expenyes 2 1,916,826,177 1,991,460,138 1,473,661,606
33,321,330,112 42,239,626,222 33,435,411,019
OTHER CHARGES (INCOME)
Tirance casts 2 804,137,896 669,030,064 519,720,493
linance income 22 ( 3,394,843 ) { 8,481,577) ( 24,629,351)
Others { 6,842,368  ¢( 14,625,113) | 16,133,556 )
793,900,685 (15,923,374 478,957,586
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 619,153,699 606,436,758 671,183,700
TAX EXPENSE 25 2,790,727 1,379,153 19,873,548
NET PROFIT 616,362,072 665,057,605 " 651,310,152
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (1.0OSS)
Tterns that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Revaluadon of tankers 27 180,637,550 6,847,358 331,807,097
Remeasurements of post-cmployment
defined benefit obligation 23 ( 31,217,753 ( 3,147,836 ) { 13,306,797
Tax expense v ( 20,314,251)  ( LIDVSSE) ¢ 95,550,001 )
Cther Comprehensive Inco-me -netof tax 120,085,546 2,589,667 222,950,2_09
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 736,448,518 P 667,647,272 P 874,260,361
Basic and Diluted Bamings per share 28 r 0.40 P 0.45 P 0.48

Sce Notes to Consolidared Financial Statements,

Yt
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P-H-O-E-N-1-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIGS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS .
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2014, 2013 AND 2012
‘(Amovnis in Philippive Pesos)

Noreg 2014 23 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tx P 619,153,699 P 666,436,758 P 671,183,700
Adjustmena fia

Tterost expense 2 728,178,109 617451597 167,358,205
Depreciation and amanjzation 2 660,281,515 538,100,077 105,815,569
Impaivinent losses z 40,077,464 17,959,002 37,851,057
Inrerest ingome 22 ( 3,394,843 ) { BAR1577) { 10,567,992 )
Operating profir before working capiral changes 2,044,296,334 1,821,766,257 1,571,640,539
Incresse in bade and other meeivahles ( 528,995,729 3 { 3,804,750,049) { 729,368,300 )
Decrease (increase) in inventorics 941,793,604 { 123,772,907) { L536,137,271 )
Leerease {increase) in lad held for sale and Ling
development cost 17,686,663 ( 1,611,915) { 30,413,441
Deeresse (incrense) in rostricred depasie 25,012,903 { 12,725,617) ( 15,657,192
Inerease in input wmlue-added fx { 154,770,691 ) { 55,869,171 ) { 166,462,101
Ine in prepayments and other current nasets { 656,719,363 ) { 207,552,655 ) ( 76,150,578 )
Decrease in ingrallment conteaer caceivahle - - 9,002,765
Increase {deerense) in rade and other pagables 2,164,142,668 23322143 { 1.536.482,333 )
Canbh gencrared from (used in) operations 3,852,356,389 ( 23612243043 ( 2,548,057,093 )
Cash paid for inceme tes { 610,696 ) { 1,635,260 ) { 56,0333
Net Cash Fiyom {Used in) Operating Activiries 3,851,745,693 ( 2,362,859,504 ) ( 2,548.621,126)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions af property and squipmene 12 { 2,473,554,558 ) ( 2,053,008,624) ( 1.401,021.187)
Increase in other non-corrent assets ( 122,883,739 ) ( 149,078,003 ) ( 181,693,102 )
Inerease in land held for fuure development ( 4,675,215 ) ( 8861054 ) { 17,096,393 )
Advances to related palica 26 { 10,373,356 ) { 17,362,078 ) { 9467.416)
Tarerger veceived 2,750,097 7831603 9,406, 4-10
Callecrions from celared pacties 26 747,994 22901084 27479.102
Praceeds érom dispasal of property anc equipsnent 949,543 1,834,386 2,734,603
Net Cash Used in fiwves ting, Aclivitics { 2,615,039,234 ) { 2,196,632,686 ( 1,572,657,953)
.
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds From additions| inrerest-hearing loans and hormwings 35,866,969,673 29,837,923 969 20,255,892,070
Repayments of unterene-beaving loans and boreowings { 38,776,065,093 ) ( 26,101,508,949 ) ( 16,217,848,445 )
Ineerest paid ( 798,899,417)  ( GBB.B63A3) 545,207,465 }
Payments of cash dividends 2 ( 184,127,723 ) { 161,105.942) ( 106,487,242}
Inccense (deceensc) in other non-current liabilities { 99,338,981 ) 2951722 225,101,428
Repayments 1o rekited partics % ( 46,956,518 ) { 21,390,502 { 133,064,039 )
Troceeds Eroin issuanee of shares of stock n - 1.500,192.980 -
PPeaceeels fron borrowings from related parties . - - 177,435,185
Net Cash From (Used in) Finaneing Activities 4 1,038,418,259 3 178,201,833 3.633,781,501
NET INCREASTE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASII EQUIVALENTS 198,288,200 ( 81,290,417) { 85497 57R )
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OP YEAR 357,220,520 -133,510,937 921008515
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N
AT END OT YEAR P 555,508,720 I 37,220,520 )i 438,510,937

Supplemenal Information ou Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:
1) Stock dividends deckined and disiributed hy the Geoup amaeunted 1o il in 2014, P329.7 million in 2013 and P244.8 million in 212 (sec Note 27.6)

2 On July 6, 20012, the Board of Directors of the Paent Company approved the acquisition of LO0% shares of stock of Chelsen Shipping Conp. (C3€) via
shave-for-share swap, The agreed purchase price amounted 1o P1,578.0 million payable a5 90% istuance of new common shares of the Parene Company and 10%
ensh. Accordingly, 171,35 million new commeon shares were issued in frvor of Udenna Munageinent & Resources Corp., a related pacty under common control,
‘The acquisirien of C5C is accounted fur s husiness combination using posling-of-intevest method {sce Note 1.3 and 27.).

3 Cettain hauling and heavy equipmient with canying ameuat of F18,5 million, 723.7 million aned P25,5 nillian as of Decerber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, reapectively,
are earried vnder Bnance leaser (see Notes 12,5, 17.6 and 30.5).

4
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The Group's tankers were revahied by an independent appraiser in each year from 2009, Revaluarion reserves amounted 1o PABLY million, P2856 milion
nadd P20 T million o of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Notes 12.2 and 27.5).

=

Intcrest payments amounting to P70.7 milkion, PH.4 nulliny and P77.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respecrively, were capitalized a8 part N
of the cosr of property and equipment (see Notes 12,3 and 17).

See Notcs o Consolidated Financinl Strtetnents.



P-H-0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014, 2013 AND 2012
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
11 Incorporation and Operations

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petrolenm Philippines, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the
Philippines on May 8, 2002 and is 41% owned by P-H-O-E-N-I-X Pettolenm Holdings, Inc.
{PPTID), a company organized in the Philippines.

The Parent Company’s shates of stock are listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).
The Parect Company is presently engaged in trading of petroleun products on wholesale and
retail basis and operating of gas stations, oil depots, starage facilities and allied services. The
registered office of the Parent Company, which is also its principal place of business, is
located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bartio Pampanga, Davao City. :

PPHI was incorporated in the Philippines on May 31, 2006. PPHT’s primary prirpose is to
provide management, investinent and technical advice for commercial, industrial,
manufacturing and other kinds of entetprises. PPHT’s registered office 1s located at Stella
Hizon Reyes Road, Batrio Pampanga, Davao City.

"The ultimate parent is Udenna Corporation, which is primarily organized to purchase,
acquire, take over and manage all or any patt of the tights, assets, business and property,
undertake and assume the liabilities of any person, firm, assodiation, partnership, syndicate of
cotporation; and to engage in the distribution, selling, importation, installation of pollution
control devices, nnits and services, and all other pollution control related products and
emission test servicing. The ultimate parent company’s registered office is Jocated at Stella
Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

‘The Parent Company has a total of 418 operating retail service stations, compnsing of 141
service stations in Luzon, 56 in the Visayas and 221 in Mindanao and a total of 61 service
stztions under construetion 2s of December 31, 2014.



-2-
12 Subsidiaries, Associate and their Operations

The Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following entities as of December 31
(the Parent Company and the subsidiaties are collectively referred to as “the Group™):

2014 2013

P-F-L Petroleum Management, Inc. (PPMI} 100% 100%
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Global

Mercantile, Inc. (PGMI) 100% 100%
Phoenix Petroterminals & Industrial

Patk Corp. (PPIPC) 100% 100%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport

Phils,, Inc. (SPTT) 100% 100%
Chelsea Shipping Corm. (CSC) 100% 100%
Bunkers Manila, Inc. (BMI)* 100% 100%
Michael, Ine. (MIy* 100% 100%
PNX — Chelsea Shipping Corp.

(PNX — Chelseay* 100% 100%
Chelsea Ship Management Marine

Services Corp. (CSMMSC)* 100% 100%
Fortis Tugs Corp. (FTC)* 100% 100%
Norse/Phil Marine Services Corp. (NPMSC)** 45% : 45%

* Wholly-owwed subsidiarier of CSC
A rociate of CSC

All the subsidiaries were orgasized and incotporated in the Philippines.

PPMI is primarily engaged in organizing, managing, administering, running and supervising
the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-oriented companies such as
petrolenm service statons. PPMI was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on January 31, 2007. .

PGMI was registered with the SEC on July 31, 2006 to engage in the manufacture,
production aud creation of all kinds of motor, and all other transportation lubricants, fluids
and additives of all kinds and other petrolenm products pusposely for motor vehicles and
other transportation. PGMI has tempotarily ceased its operation since 2008.

PPIPC is engaged in real estate developtnent. PPIPC was registered with the SEC on
March 7, 1996. PPIPC is also registered with the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(HLURB) under Executive Order No. 648 and was granted to sell parcels of land on the
Group’s project, the Phoenix Petrolenm Industrial Patk (the Park).

SPTT was registered with the SEC on February 20, 2007 and is engaged in buying and
selling, supply and distribution, importation and exportation, storage and delivery of all
types of petroleum for industrial, marine, aviation and automotive use. It does not carry
any inventory at any given time.

CSC was incorporated in the Philippines on July 17, 2006 and started commercial
operations on Januaty 1, 2007 and is engaged in inaritime trade through conveying,
carrying, loading, transporting, discharging and storing of petroleun products, goods and
metrchandise of every kind, over waterways in the Philippines.



-3-

BMI was registered with the SEC on March 7, 2000 to serve the growing demand of marine
fuel (bunker) of foreign vessels calling on the ports of the Philtppines. Aside from
international bunkering, BMI also ventures into hauling of marine fuel and petrolenm
products for major oil companies.

MI, which was registered with the SEC on December 26, 1957 and whose corporate life
was approved to be extended for another 50 years by the SEC on May 6, 2008, is engaged
in the business of acquiring and operating floating equipment for charter or hire and for the
conveyance and carriage of goods, wares, and merchandise of every description in the
Philippines coastwise traffic without any fixed schedule. MI is also engaged in the trading
of fuel il

PNX — Chelsea was incorporated on February 2, 2011 and is engaged in the owaership and
operation of vessels for domestic trade for the purpose of conveyance or carriage of
petroleum products, goods, wares and merchandise of every kind and description.

CSMMSC was incorporated on March 30, 2012 to carry on the business of ship
management and to act as agent, broker, ship chandler or representative of
foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals for the purpose of managing,
opefating, supervising, administering and developing the operation of vessels.

FTC was incorporated on April 8, 2013 and started commercial operations on
November 8, 2013. Itis engaged in the towage and salvage of marine vessels and other
crafts including their catgoes upon seas, lakes, rivers, canals, bays, harbours, and other
waterways between the vatious potts of the Philippines, and to acquite by purchase,
charter, lease or modes recognized by law of obtaining title to or use of such equipment
and properties, real ot personal, which may be necessary to achieve such putpose.

NPMSC was incorporated on January 30, 2013 to engage in the business of providing
technical ship services and to act as agent, broket, ship handler or representative of
foreign/domestic shipping corporations and individuals for the purpose of operating,
supervising, administering and developing the operation of vessels belonging to or which
ate or may be leased or operated by said shipping corporations and individuals, and to
equip any and all kinds of ships, barges and vessels of every class and desctiption owned by
any shipping cotporation. NPMSC started commercial operations on June 10, 2013,

PPMT’s registered office is located at Penthouse, Valero Tower, 122 Valero Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati City and its principal place of business is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road,
Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

The registered office of PGMI, CSC, BMI, MT and PNX — Chelsea, which is also their
principal place of business, is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Battio Pampanga, Davao

City.

PPIPC’s registered office is located at 4™ Floor, Phinma Plaza, 39 Plaza Drive, Rockwell
Center, Makati City and its principal place of business is located at 26" Floor, The Fort
Legend Tower, 3" Avenue corner 31 Street, The Fort Global Ciry, Taguig Ciry.

The registered office of SPTT, which is also its principal place of business, is Jocated at Units
113 and 115 Subic International Hotel, Alpha Building, Rizal Higbway, Subic Bay Freeport
Zone, Zambales.
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The registered address of CSMMSC and FIC, which is also their principal place of business, is
located at the 26 /F, Fort Legend Towers, 3 Ave. corner 31% St., Bonifacio Global City,
Taguig City.

The registered office of NPMSC, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
2/F Harbor Centre IT Bldg., Railroad and Delgado Sts., Sonth Harbor, Port Area, Manila.

13 Acquisition of CSC

On September 6, 2012, CSC became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company
upoen the approval of the Parent Company’s stockholders of the acquisition of the 100% of
C5C’s outstanding shares from Udenna Management Resources Corp. (UMRC), a related
patty under common ownership (see Note 27.3). The acquisition was initially approved by
the Parent Company’s Board of Ditectors (BOD) on July 6, 2012 and was subsequently
tatified by the Parent Company’s stockholders on September 6, 2012.

14 Approval of Consolidated Financial Staterments

The consolidated financial statemnents of the Group as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2014 {including the comparative consolidated financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012) were authorized for issue by the Parent Company’s
BOD on February 11, 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are summarized below and in the succeeding pages.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of Prepacation of Consolidated Financial Statements
(@) Statement of Compliarce with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PEFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the proncuncements issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the Philippine Board
of Accountancy (BOA).

"The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement ,
bases specified by PFRS for each type of assets, liabilities, income and expense. The
measutement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(b)  Presestation of Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Staiements. The Group presents

all items of income and expenses in a single consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

765
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The Group presents a third consolidated statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively,
or makes a retrospective restatement ot reclassification of items that has 2 material
effect on the information in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
beginning of the preceding petiod. The related notes to the third consolidated
statement of financial position are not required to be disclosed.

Functional and Prasentation Currency

These consolidated fimancial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Group’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values tepresent absolute amounts cxcept
when othetwise indicated.

Ttems inchuded in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measuted
using its functional currency. Functional cutrency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

" Eiffactive in 2074 that are Relwant to the Groxp .
In 2014, the Group adopted for the first time the following amendments and
interpretation to PFRS that ate relevant to the Group and eftective for the

consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning on ot aftex
January 1, 2014

PAS 32 (Amendment) :  Pinancial Insgruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

PAS 36 (Amendment) ¢ Impaitment of Assets — Recoverable

Amount Disclosures for
Non-financial Assets

PAS 39 {Amendment) ¢ Financial Instrument: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

v

PERS 10, 12 and PAS 27
(Amendments) : Consolidated Financial Statements,
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities, Separate Financial
Statements — Exemption from
Consolidation for Investment Entities
Philippine Interpretation ' .
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 21 : Levies

Discussed in the succeeding pages aze the relevant information about these amended
standards and interpretation.
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PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Finanicl
Aurets and Financial Lighilities. The amendment provides guidance to address '
inconsistencies in applying the criteria for otfsetting financial assets and
ftnancial habilities. It clarifies that an entity must currently have a right of set-
off that is not contingent on a futute event, and must be legally enforceable in
the normal course of business; in the event of default; and, in the event of
insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the counterparties. The
amendment also clarifies that gross settlement mechanisms (such as through 2
cleating house) with features that both elitninate credit and licuidity risks and
process receivables and payables in a single settlement process, will satisfy the
criterion for net settlement. The amendment has been applied retrospectively
in accotdance with its transitional provisions. The Group’s existing offsetting
and settlement arrangements for its financial instraments with its .
counterparties ate not affected by the amendment; hence, such did not have an
impact on the presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for any petiods presented.

PAS 36 (Amendment), Inpairment of Assetr — Recoverable Amount Dislossres Jor
Non-financial Assets. The amendment clatifies that disclosure of information
about the recoverable amount of individual asset (including goodwill) or a
cash-generating unit is required only when an impairment Joss has been
recognized or reversed during the teporting period. If the recoverable amount
is determined based on the asset’s ot cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost
of disposal, additional disclosures on fair value measurement required under
PERS 13, Fair Valye Meassrement, such as but not limited to the faic value
hietarchy, valuation technique used and key assumptions applied should be
provided in the consolidated financial statements. This amendment did not
tesult in additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements since
the Group did not recognize or reverse impairment losses on its non-financial
assets during the year,

PAS 39 (Amendment), Hinanesal Tnsivuments: Recognirion and Measuremant ~
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Acconnting. The amendment
provides some relief from the requirements on hedge accounting by allowing
entities to continue the use of hedge accounting when a detivative is novated
to a clearing counterparty resuiting in termination ot expitation of the otiginal
hedging instrument as a consequence of laws and regulations, or the '
introduction thereof. As the Group neither entets into transactions involving
derivative instruments nor does it applies hedge accounting, the amendment
did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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(iv) PERS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27 (Amendments), Consofidated Financial Statsments,

Divelosmres of Interests in Qther Bntities, § sparate Dinancial Siatements — Escemnpition Jroms
Consolidation for Investment Entities. The amendments define the term
“investment entity” and provide to such an investment entity an exemption
from the consolidation of particular subsidiarics and instead require to measuge
investment in each eligible subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with PAS 39, Financial instraments: R ecognition and Measnrement, or
PERS 9, Financial Instruments, both in its consolidated or separate financial
statements, as the case maybe. The amendments also require additional
disclosutes about the details of the entity’s unconsolidated subsidiaries and the
nature of its relationship and certain transactions with those subsidiaries. This
amendment had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have investment entities.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Ievies. This interpretation clarifies that the
obligating event as one of the criteria under PAS 37, Prowisions, Contingent
Liabilsties and Contingent Assets, for the recognition of a liability for levy imposed
by a government is the activity desctibed in the relevant legislation that triggers
the payment of the levy. Accordingly, the liability is recognized in the
consolidated financial statements progressively if the obligating event occurs
over a period of time and if an obligation is triggered on reaching a minimum
threshold, the liability is recognized when that minimum threshold is reached.
This amendment had no significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
frnancial statetnents,

(b)  Effective Subsegsient Yo 2014 but not Adopted Harly

There are new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing standards
effective for annual periods subsequent to 2014 which are adopted by the FRSC,
subject to the approval of the BOA. Management will adopt the following televant
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions, and, unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements:

@

PAS 19 (Amendment}, Employee Densfits — Defined Benefit Plans — Emplayee
Contribusions (effective from July 1, 2014). The amendment clarifies that if the
amount of the contributions from employees ot third parties is dependent on the
number of years of service, an entity shall attribute the contributions to periods
of service using the same attribution method (i.e., either using the plan’s
contribution formula ot on a straight line basis) for the gross benefit. .
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PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Dischosure Initiatine
(effective from January 1, 2016). The amendment cncourages entitics to apply
professional judgment in presenting and disclosing information in the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, it clatifies that materiality
applies to the whole consolidated financial statements and an entity shall not
reduce the understandability of the consolidated financial statements by
obscuring material information with immaterial information or by aggregating
material items that have different natares or functions. Moreover, the
amendment clarifies that an entity’s share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method should be
prescnted based on whether or not such other comprehensive income item will
subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss. It further clarifies that in
determining the ordcr of presenting the notes and disclosures, an entity shall
consider the undetstandability and comparability of the consolidated Anancial
statements.

PAS 16 (Amendinent), Praperty, Plant and Fquipment — Clarification of Acceptable
Metbods of Depreciation and Amortization (effective from January 1, 2016). The
amendment in PAS 16 clarifies that a depreciation method that is based on
revenue that is generated by an activity that includes the use of an asset is not
appropriate for property, plant 2nd equipment. The amendmeant also provides
guidance that the expected futute reductions in the selling price of an item that
was produced using the asset could indicate an expectation of technological ot
commercial obsolescence of an asset, which may reflect a reductdon of the futute
economic benefits embodied in the asset.

PAS 28 (Amendment), Investrents in_Associatss and Joini Ventures — Investment
Eintitier — Applying the Consolidation Fisception (effective from January 1, 201 6). This
amendment addresses the concerns that have arisen in the context of applying
the consolidation exception for investment entities. This amendment permits a
non-investment entity investor, when applying the equity method of accounting
for an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, to retain the fair'
value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint ventire to
its nterests in subsidiaries.

PFRS 10 (Amendment), Consolidated Financial Statersents and PAS 28
(Amendment), [nvestments in Asseciates and Joint Ventures — Salke or Contribution of
Asiets between an Investor and its_Associates o Joint Venture (effective from
Januwary 1, 2016). The amendiment to PFRS 10 tequires full recognition in the
investor’s financial statcments of gains or losses arising on the sale or
contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3, Busirarr
Combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the partial recognition of gains or losses (i.e., to the extent of the uprelated |
investor’s interests in an associate or joint venture) only applies to those sale of
contribution of assets that do not coastitute a business. Corresponding
amendment has been made to PAS 28 to reflect these chanpes. In addition,
PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when determining whethet assets that
are sold or contributed constitute a business, an entity shall consider whether the
sale or contribution of those assets is part of muitiple arrangements that should
be accounted for as a single transaction.



-9.

(viy PERS 9 (2014), Finanvial Insirements (effective from January 1, 2018). This new
standard on financial instraments will eventually replace PAS 39 and PFRS 9
(2009, 2010 and 2013 vessions). This standard contains, among others, the
following:

¢ three principal classification categoties for financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its financial instraments;

* an expected loss model in determining impairment of all financial assets
that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (I'VIPL), which
genesally depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
tisk since initial tecognitiou of a financial asset; and,

* anewmodel on hedge accounting that provides significant improvements
principally by aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk
management activities undertaken by entities when hedging their financial
and non-financial risk exposures.

In accordance with the financial asset classification prnciple of PFRS 9 (2014,
a financial asset is classificd and measured at amortized cost if the asset is held
within a bustness model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPL) on the principal outstanding. Moreover, 2 finaneial asset is
classified and subscquently measured at fair value through other .
comprehensive incotme if it meets the SPPI ctiterion and is held in a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash Aows
and selling the financial assets. All other financial assets are measured at

FVIPL

In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows entities to make an itrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument that is not
held for trading in other comprehensive income.,

The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are finaneial
assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or not
they ate closely related, and, in most arrangements, does not require separation
from the host contract.

Por liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accoun ting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation
of embedded derivatives. The amendment also requires changes in the fair
valne of an entity’s own debt instruments cansed by changes in its own credit
quality to be recognized in other comprehensive income rather than in profit
or loss.

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt any version of PERS 9 until
its effective date. In addition, management is cucrently assessing the impact of
PERS 9 on the consolidated financial statements of the Group and it will
conduct a comptehensive study of the potential impact of this standard priot to
1ts mandatory adoption date to assess the impact of all changes.
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FERS 12 (Amendment), Discdosures of Interests in Other Entities — Investment Fontitier:
Apphing the Consolidation Bscgption (cffective from January 1, 201 6). The
amendment clarifies that an investment entity that measures all its subsidiaries at
fair value should provide the disclosures tequired by PFRS 12, .
Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual improvements to PFRS

(2010-2012 Cycle) and PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle) effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2014, and to PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle) effective for
annual petiods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, made minor amendments
to a number of PFRS. Among those improvements, the following amendments
ate relevant to the Group but management does not expect those to have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

Annual Improvements to PERS (2010-2012 Cycle)

fa} PAS 16 (Amcndmmt), Property, Plant and Eauipmeny. 'The amendment -+
clarifies that when an item of property, plant and equipment is tevalued, the
gross carrying 2imount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with a
tevaluation of the cariying amount of the asset.

() PAS 24 (Amendment), Relared Party Disclpsiser. The amendment clarifies
that an entity providing key management services to a reporting entity is
deemed to be a related party of the latter. It also requires and clarifies that
the information tequired to be disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are the amounts incurred by the reporting entity for key
management personnel services that ate provided by a separate management
entity and not the amounts of compensation paid or payable by the
management entity to its employees ot directors.

¢} PIRS 3 (Amendment), Business Combinations. The amendmest clartifies that
an obligation to pay contingent consideration which meets the definition of
4 financial instrument 15 classified as a financial liability or as equity in
accordance with PAS 32, Tt also clarifies that all non-equity contingent
consideration should be measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

(@) PFRS 8 (Amendment), Operating Segmenis. The amenciment requires
disclosure of the judgments made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments. This includes a description of
the segments which have been aggregated and the economic indicators
which have been assessed in determining that the aggregated segments share
similar economic characteristics. Tt Auther clarifies the requirement to
disclose for the reconciliations of segment assets to the entity’s assets if that
amount is regulatly provided to the chief operating decision malker.

T
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PFRS 13 (Amendment), Fuir Vale Measwurement The amendment, through a
revision ouly in the basis of conclusion of PFRS 13, dlarifies that issuing
PFRS 13 and amending certain provisions of PERS 9 and PAS 39 related to
discounting of finaneial instruments, did not remave the ability to measure
short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate on an
undiscounted basis, when the effect of not discounting is itntnaterial.

Annual Improvesents to PFRS (20171-2013 Cyels)

(@)

)

©

PERS 3 (Amendment), Business Combinations. 'The amendment clarifies that
PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of any joint
arrangement under PERS 11, foint Arrangement, in the financial statcments
of the joint atrangement itsclf.

PERS 13 (Amendment), Fair Vialue Meaisrement. The amendment clarifies
that the scope of the exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis (the portfolio
exception) applies to all contracts within the scope of and accounted for
in accordance with PAS 39 or PFRS 9, regardless of whether they meet
the definition of financial asscts or financial liabilities as defined in

PAS 32, .

PAS 40 (Amendment), Jnvestment Property. The amendment clarifies the
interrelationship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 in determining the classification
of property as an investment property or owner-occupied property, and
explicitly requires an entity to use judgment in determining whether the
acquisition of an investment property is an acquisition of an asset or a
group of assct in accordance with PAS 40, or a business combination in
accordance with PFRS 3. -

Amaual Improvements to PERS (2072-2074 Cyele)

(a)

N

PYRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Insiruments — Disclosures. The amendment
ptovides additional guidance to Lelp entities identify the citcumstances
under which a contract to “service” financial assets is considered to be a
continuing involvement in those assets for the putrposes of applying the
disclosure requirements of PFRS 7. Such circumstances commonly atise
when, for example, the servicing is dependent on the amount or timing of
cash flows collected from the transferred asset or when a fixed fee is not
paid in full due to non-petformance of that asset.

PAS 19 (Amendment), Esmpioyee Bengfits. The amendment clarifies that the
currency and term of the high quality corporate bonds which were used to
determine the discount rate for post-employment benefit obligations shall
be made consistent with the currency and estimated term of the
post-employment benefit obligations.
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2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements compiise the accounts of the Patent
Company and its subsidiaries (see Note 1) after the elimination of intercompany :
transactions. All intercompany assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between entities under the Group, are climinated in full on
consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from mtercompany transactions that ate

recognized in assets are also eliminated in full Intercompany losses that indicate
impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries and an associate as
follows:

()

Investments iy Subsidiarier

Subsidiaties are entities (including structured entities) over which the Pagent
Company has control. The Parent Company controls an entity when it is cxposed, or
has rights to, variable retums from its mvolvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those retutns through its power over the entity. Substdiaries are
consolidated from the date the Parent Company obtains control. -

The Parent Corapany reassesses whether ot not it controls an entity if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control indicated above. Accordingly, entities are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiarics. This requitcs
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the Labilities assumed and
any non-controlling intcrest in the acquiree. The consideration tansferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transfereed, the liahilities
mcurred and the equity interests issued by the Parent Company, if any. The
consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a condngent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consideration is
recognized directly in profit or loss,

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination ate mcasured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate shate of the tecognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling  *
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity
interest in the acquiree over the acquisition-date Fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiabie net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill (see Note 16). If the
consideration reeeived is less than the faic value of the net assets of the subsidiaty
acquived in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly as gain
in profit or loss (see Note 2.13).

On the other hand, business combinations atising from transfers or acquisition of
interests in entities that are under the common control of the shareholder that
controls the Groups are normally accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method
and reflected in the consolidated financial statements as if the business combination
had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative petiod presented, or if lzztcr,
at the date that common control was established; for this purpose, comparatives ate
testated. The assets and liabilitles acquired are recognized in the Group’s
consolidated financial staterments at the cartying amounts previously recognized. The
difference between the consideration transferred and the net assets of the sub sidiacy
acquired is recognized as Other Reserves as part of the equity (see Notes 2.13 and
2.24).

Investment in on Assowate

Associates are those entities over which the Parent Company is able to exert
significant influence but which ate neitlier subsidiaies nor interests in a joint venture.
Investments in associates are initially recognized at cost and subsequently accounted
for using the equity method.

Acquired investment in associate is subject to the putchase method. The purchase
method involves the recognition of the acquiree's identifiable assets and liabilities,
including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they were recorded in the
financial statements priot to acquisition. Goodwill represents the excess of
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Parent Company's share of the identifiable
net assets of the acquiree at the date of acquisition. Any goodwill or faic value
adjustment attributable to the Parent Company's share in the associate is included in
the amount recognized as investment in an associate.

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the investment in
an associate will not be recovered (see Note 2.17).

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associate ot items
tecognized directly in the associate’s equity ate secognized in other comprehensive
income or equity of the Group, as applicable. However, when the Pazent Company’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Parent Company does not recognize further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
If the associate subsequently repoxts profits, the investor resumes recognizing its
shatc of those profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the accumulated share

of losses that has previously not been recognized.

m
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Distributions received from the associates are accounted for as 2 reduction of the
carrying value of the investment.

The Parent Company holds interests in various subsidiarics and in an associate as presented
in Notes 1 and 13.

2.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of
the financial insteument. Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
financial assets at FVIPL, loans and recetvables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by
management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their teade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initially
recorded at fair value and the related transaction costs ate recognized in profit or loss.

Cutrently, the financial assets category relevant to the Group is loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides‘
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no inteation of trading the receivables.
They are included in curtent assets, except for those with maturities greater thar 12 months
affer the end of each reporting period which are classified as non-current assets,

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented as Cash and
Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Due from Related Parties, Restricted
Deposits, and Refundable Rental Deposits (presented as part of Other Non-Current Assets
in the consalidated statement of financial position). Cash and cash equivaleats include cash
on hand, savings and demand deposits and short-term, highly liguid investments with
original matutities of three months or less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. .

Refundable rental deposits ate initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the rental
deposits arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the cffective interest
method and is presented as part of Finance Income under Other Charges (Income) in the
cousolidated statement of financial position. The excess of the ptincipal amount of the
deposit aver its present valne is immediately recognized as deferred minimum lease
payments (presented as part of Other Non-Current Assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position). Meaawhile, rent expense arising from subsequent amortization of
deferred minimum lease payments is accounted for using the straight-line method over the
lease term and is presented as part of Rent under Selling and Administrative Expenses in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

77



- 15

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impaitment loss, if any. Impairment loss is provided when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in
accordance with the original tetms of the receivables. The amount of the impaitment loss is
determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying arount and the present value of
estitnated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been mcugred),
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate or current effective interest
fate determined under the contract if the Joan has a vatiable interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or loss. .

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the itnpaitment was recognized (such
a5 an improvement in the debtor’s credir rating), the previonsly recognized impairment loss
Is teversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is tecognized in
profit or loss,

Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from helding financial assets ate
reeognized jn profit or loss when eatned, regardless of how the related carrying amonnt of
fmancial assets 1s measured.

The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to another patty. 1f the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the tisks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the
1isks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
recerved.

2.5 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lowet of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined
using the moving average method. The cost of inventories include all costs directly
attributable to acquisitions, such as the purchase price, import duties and other taxes that
are not subsequently recoverzhle from taxing authorities.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the otdinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.6 Land Held for Sale and Land Development Costs

Land held for sale and land development costs are valied at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Land held for sale and land development costs includes the cost of land
and actoal development costs incurred as at the end of reporting period. Interest incurred
dusing the development of the project is capitalized (see Note 2.19),
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Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of developing and the estimated costs ficcessary o make the sale.

2.7 Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as
a tesult of past cvents. They ate recognized in the consolidated financial statemesnts when it
is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost
or value that can be measuted reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar natore, where futire economic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting period o in the normal
operating cycle of the business, if longer, are classified as non-current assets.

2.8 Land Held For Furnre Development

Land held for future development is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost of land held for future development includes purchase price and other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of land.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of developing and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. )

2.9 Property and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value. Tankers are measured at revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation. All other property and equipment ate carried at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impaitment in
value,

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and ditectly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additons, majot
improvements and renewals ate capitalized while expenditures for repairs and maintenance
are charged to expense as incurred, except for periodic drydocking costs petformed at least
every two years on the vessel, which are capitalized (see Note 2.10).

Foliowing initial recognition, tankers are cartied at revalued amounts which are the fair
values at the date of revaluation, as determined by independent appraisers, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impaitment losses.

Revalued amounts represent fair values determined based on appraisals by external
professional valuer once every two years unless more frequently if martket factors indieate a
material change in fair value {see Note 5.4).

#C
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Any revaluation surplus is recognized in other comprehensive income and credited to the
Revaluation Reserves account in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any
revaluztion deficit directly offsetting a previous surplus in the same asset is charged to other
comprehensive income to the extent of any revaluation surplus in equity relating to this
asset and the remaining deficit, if any, is recognized in profit or loss. Annually, an 2mount
from the Revalnation Reserves is transferred to Retained Earnings for the depreciation
relating to the revaluation surplus. Upon disposal of the revalued assets, amounts included
in Revaluation Reserves is transferred to Retained Earnings.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Marine Tankers 30 years
Buildings, depot and pier facilities 5-25 years
Transportation and other equipment 1-10 years
Vessel equipment 5 years
Hauling and heavy equipment 1-5 years
Gasoline station equipment 1-5 years
Office furniture and equipment 1-3 years

Leasehold and land imptovements are amortized over the terms of the related leases or Yhe
useful fives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Hauling and heavy equipment held undet finance Jease agreements (see Note 2. 15) are
depreciated over their expected useful lives (determined by reference to comparable owned
assets) or over the term of the lease, if shorter.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and on-going major
repair wotls and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, applicable borrowing
costs (see Note 2.19) and other direct costs. The account is not depreciated until such time
that the assets are completed and available for use.

An asset’s catrying amount is written down imnediately to its tecoverahle amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estirnated recoverable amount (see Note 2.17).

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of propesty and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reportting petiod.

An item of property and equipment, mcluding the related accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to atise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying atnount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the yeat the item is derecognized. . .
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2.10 Drydocking Costs

Drydocking costs are considered major repairs that preserve the life of the vessel. As an
industry practice, costs associated with drydocking are amortized over two years or until the
next drydocking occurs, whichever comes earlier. When significant drydocking
expenditures occur prior to their expity, any remaining unamortized balance of the
preceding drydocking costs is expensed in the month of the subsequent diydocking.

Amottization of drydocking costs stacts only when the process has been completed and the
related vessel is ready for use.

The carrying amount of drydocking costs, presented as part of the Other Non-cutrent Asset
account in the consolidated statement of financial position, is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the canying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (see Note 2.17).

The carrying amount of drydocking costs is derecognized upon detecoguition of the related
tanker. The computed gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the tanker takes into
consideration the carrying amount of drydocking costs and is included in profit ot loss in
the year the related tanker is derecognized (see Note 2.9).

.

2. 11 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables (excluding tax-related payables), due to related parties and secu tity deposits
(presented under Other Non-Current Liabilitics in the consolidated statement of financial
position), are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of the
instrument. All interest-related charges incurred on financial liability are recognized as an
expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated statement of
comprchensive income.

Tnterest charges that are attuibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a *
qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of such asset (see Note 2.19). All
other interest related charges ate recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income uader the caption Finance Costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are raised for support of long-term funding of
operations. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redempiion and
direct issne costs, ate charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method and are added to the earrying amount of the instrument to the extent that these are
not settled in the period in which they arise.

Obligations under finance lease (included as part of Interest-bearing Loans and
Borrowings) are recognized at amouats equal to the fait value of the leased propetty

or, if lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments, at the inception of the lease
(see Notes 2.15 and 30.5).

e
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Trade and other payables (excluding tax-related payables), due to related parties and security
deposits are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measuted at amortized
cost, using effective interest method for maturities beyond one year, less settlement
payments.

Security deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the security deposits
ausing from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method
and is presented as part of Finance Costs. "The excess of the principal amount of the
deposit over its preseat value is immediately recognized as uneatned rent {presented as part
of Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position},
Meanwhile, the tent income arising from subsequent amortization of unearned vent is
accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented as part of
Rent and Storage Income in the consolidated statement of compreliensive income.
Dividend distributions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon
declaration by the Parent Company.

Financial liabilities are classified as curreat liahilities if payment is due to be settled within
one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business, if longet), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
Otherwise, these are presented as non-curreat liabilities,

Financial labilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position
only when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference between the cartying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are tecognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
econotnic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncestain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive obligation that has resulted from past eveats.

Provisions ate measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting pegiod,
including the risks and uncerrainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in setilement
1s determined by considering the class of obligations as a2 whole. When time value of
money is materiai, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a
pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as intetest expense. Provisions
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the
recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized
in the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the
Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with tespect to the obligation is
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision. .

2.13 Business Combinations

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of acconnting and
poolmg-of-interest method.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fait value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the datc of
acquisition. Subsequent to inifial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impaitment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed
(see Note 2.17). )

Negative goodwill which is the cxcess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost is charged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating 1tuits or
gronps of cash-generating units that axe expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
are identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrylng amount
of goodwill relating to it. .

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is requited to remeastire its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognize
the resulting gain or loss, if any, in the profit or loss or other commprehensive incomne, as
appropiiate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37, either in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingeut consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasuted, and its subsequent settlement is accounted fos

within equity. .

Under the pooling-of-interest method, similar accounts of the entities are combined on a
line-by-line basis except for the equity accounts which were offset with the new shares
1ssued by the new entity in which the difference between the net assets received and the
amount of the consideration (shares issued and casl) is accounted for as Other Resetves.

9
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2.4 Revenue and Expense Recoguition

Revenue comprises revenue from the sale of goods and rendering of services measured by
reference to the fair value of consideration received ov receivable by the Group for goods
sold and setvices rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT), rebates and trade discounts.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable
that the economic benefits will fllow to the Group; and the costs incurred or to be incurted
can be measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition ctiteria must also
be met before revenue is recognized:

(@) Sale of goods - Revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, i.e. generally when the customer has acknowledged
delivery of goods or when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of goods.

(b) Charter foes — Revenue, which consists mainly of charter income arising from the charter
hire of tankers, is recognized based on the type of chatter atrangement entered into,
cither under a time charter (T'C), a continuing voyage charter {CVO), or a bareboat
agreement (BB) jsce Note 3.1()]. Under a TC and BB, revenue is recognized based on
the terms of the contract, with the distinction that in a2 BB, no administration or technical
maintenance is included as part of the agreement. Under a CVC, revenue is recognized
upon completion of the voyage; however, appropriate accrual of revenue is made at the
end of the reporting petiod.

() Futel service and other revensies, port revensies and storage income — Revenue is reco gnized when the
performance of contractually agreed tasks has been substantially rendered. This account
includes franchise income, which has minimal amount. In addition, this includes revenue
atising from port and cargo handling services. :

(@) Rent inome — Revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(see Note 2.15).

.

(¢) Interest inwome — Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the
effective yield on the asset. ‘

Cost and expenses are recogaized in the profit or loss upon utilization of goods or services
or at the date they are incurred. All finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an acerual
basis, except capitalized borrowing costs which are included as part of the cost of the
telated qualifying asset (see Note 2.19).

The cost of real estate sold, if any, before the completion of the development is determined
based on the actual costs incurred to date which include the cost of land plus estimated
costs to complete the project development. The estimated expenditures for the
development of sold real estate, as determined by project engineers, are charged to Cost of
Sales and Services account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income with a
corresponding credit to accrued expenses presented under the Trade and Other Payables
account in the consolidated statement of financial position. Effects of any revisions in the
total project cost estimates are recognized in the year in which the changes become known.
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215 Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:

(@

Group ar I zriee

Leases which transfer to the Group substantially all risks and benefits incidental to
ownetship of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are recognized as assets
and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position at amounts equal to the
fair valuc of the leased property at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of minimum lease payments. Lcase payments are apportioned betwecn the
finance costs and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
Interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance costs 2re tecognized in profit or loss. Capitalized leased assets ase depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Finance lease cbligations, net of finance charges, are included in Intetest-bearing Loans
and Borrowings aecount in the consolidated staternent of financial position.

0

" Leases which de not transfet to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of

%)

ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments {net
of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense in the consclidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Associated costs, such as repairs and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
incurred.

Geroup ar I 2rsor

Leases wherein the Group substantally transfers to the lessee all risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are
presented as receivable at an amount equal to the Group’s net investment in the leade.
Finance income is recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment ocutstanding in respect of the finance lease.

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the tisks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income fiom operating
leases is recognized in profit ot loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a leasc based on the
substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement

conveys a Light te use the asset.

3%
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2.16 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreiga cuttency
transactions duting the year are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates
which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the setdement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

2.17 Impaicnent of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property and equipment, investiment in an associate, drydocking costs
(presented as part of Other Non-curtent Assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position}, goodwill and other non-financial assets ate subject to impaitment testing.
Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the catrying amount may not be recoverable, except
for goodwill that is tested for impairment at least annually.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which:
there arc separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets
are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to henefit from the husiness combination in which the goodwill atose. The
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating wnits are identified according to
operating segment.

Impairment loss is recopnized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the
suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impaitment testing procedutes ate directly linked to the Group’s latest approved
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount
factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect manapement’s
assessment of respective risk profiles, such as matket and asset-specific risk factors.

Except for goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss, except
impairment loss on goodwill (see Note 2.13), is reversed if the asset’s or cash generating
unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its cartying amount.
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Z2.18 Employee Benefits

‘The Gtoup ptovides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit
plan and a defined contribution plan, and other employee benefits which are recognized as
follows:

(@) Post-erploymeent Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of '
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for
any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the Group, even if
plan assets, if any, for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assets, if
any, may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as
qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s post-employment benefit pension plan covers
all regular full-time employees. The pension plan is tax-qualifted, noncontributory and
adsministered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for a defined
benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the .
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligaticn is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit methed.
The ptesent value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate detived from the interest rates of a
zero coupon government bond as published by Philippine Dealing and Hxchange
Corporation, that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid
and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-
employment liability.

Remeasurements, comptising of actuarial gains and losses atising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the return on plan assets
(excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a chatge or credit recognized in cther
comprehensive income in the petiod in which they atise. Net interest is calculated by
applyiog the discount rate at the beginning of the period, taking account of any changes
in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest is reported as part of Finance Costs or Finance
Income account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incame.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment.

7
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Posi-employment Defined Comtribution Plans

A defined conttibution plan is a post-emplogment plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into an independent entity. The Group has no legal or construetive
obligations to pay further conttibutions after payment of the fixed contribntion. The
contributions recognized in respect of defined conttilyution plans are cxpensed as they
fall due. Liabilities and assets may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has
occurted and are included in current liabilities or cnrrent assets as they are normally of a
short-term nature.

Termination Bensfits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the eatlier
of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of such benefits and when it recognizes
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Profit-shating and Bonue Pilans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, hased
on a formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognizes a provision where it is
conttactually obliged to pay the benefits, or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Compensaied A bsences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days

{including holiday entitlernent) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They are
included in Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a rebull
of the unused entitlement.

2,19 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (Le., an asset that takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale} are capitalized as part of
cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures
for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when_
substantially all such activities are cotnplete.
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization,

220 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Cutrrent tax assets or liabilities comprise those claitns from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected o unpaid
at the end of reporting period. "They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognizcd as a component of tax expense
in proft or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the Hability method on temporary differences at the end
of reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and theit carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions,
dcferred tax liabilitics are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the camryforward of
unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will he available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at the end of each reporting period
and are recognized to the extent that it has becotne probable that future taxable profit will
be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting petiod
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxablc profit will be available to
allow all or patt of the deferred tax asset to be udlized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and asscts reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and labilities. For purposes of
measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for land held for sale and land
development costs, the cartying amount of such properties is presumed to be rccovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted, that is when the land held for sale
and development costs are held within the business model whose objective 15 to consume
substantially all of the cconomic benefits embodied in the propetty over time, rather than
through sale,

Most changes in deferred tax assets or labilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other.
comprchensive income ot directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Decferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally )
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferrcd
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.21 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Fimancial assets and financial liahilities arc offset and the resulting net amount, considered
as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group eutrently has legally enforeeable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and
settle the lability simultaneously. The right of set-off must be available at the end of the
reporting period, that is, it is not eontingent on future event. It must also be enforceable in
the novmal coutse of business, in the event of default, and in the event of insolveney or
bankruptey; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties to the
financial instruments.

2.22 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions ate transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other patty or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. This includes: (a) individuals owning, direetly or indirectly through one or mbre
intermediaries, control or ate controlled by, or under common control with the Group;

(b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power
of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close members of
the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group’s funded retirement plan.

In considering each possible related patty relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.23 Segrnent Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Group’s BOD and management committee responsible for allocating
resoutces and assessing performance of the opetating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s products
and service lines as disclosed in Note 29 which represent the main products and services
provided by the Group.

Hach of these opcrating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines
requires different technologies and other resources as well as marketing approachcs.
All inter-segment transfers are carried out at atm's length prices.

‘The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PIRS 8 are the *
same as those used in its consolidated financial statements, except that post-employment
benefit expenses are not included in arriving at the operating profit of the opcrating

segments .
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In addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not allocated to 2 segment.

Theze have been no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss.

2.24 Equity
Preferred and common stock represents the nominal value of shatres that have been issued.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issnance of capital
stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from
additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Revaluation reserves comprise of gains and losses arising from the revaluation of the
Group’s tankers and from the remeasurements of post-employment defined benefit
obligation, net of applicable taxes.

Other reserves pertain to the difference between the Parent Company’s cost of investment

and the acquired net assets of CSC accounted for under the pooling-of-interest method
{see Notes 2.3 and 2.13).

Retained earnings include all current and prior period tresults of operations as reported in
the profit ot loss section of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, rednéed
by the amounts of dividends declared.

2.25 Barnings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income atttibutable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding,
adjusted retroactively for any stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split declared during
the current period.

Diluted EPS is computed by ad]ustlng the weighted average number of ordinary shmcs
outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential shares.

2.26 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Gronp’s position at
the end of the reporting period {adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when
material to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requites management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factots, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circurnstances.
Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Acconnting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

{a}  Distinguishing Operating and Finance X soves

The Group has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was exercised
by management to distinguish each lease agreement, either as a lessot ot a lessee, as
either an operating or finance lease by looking at the ttansfer or retention of significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure
to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of
assets and liabilities. Certain hauling and heavy equipment are accounted for undec
finance lease.

b} Recognition of Provisions and Contingenies .

Judgment is exercised by management to distingrish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed
in Note 2.12 and disclosures on relevant contingencies are presented in Note 30

(¢} Owalifying Assets on Borrowing Costs

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessatily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready forits intended use or sale.  Determining if an asset is a qualifying asset will
depend on the circumstances and requires the use of judgment in each case, In
making judgment, the management takes into account its intention when it determines
whether the asset is a qualifying asset and considers the facts and circumstances and
tses its judgment to determine whether an asset takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Based on the facts and circumstances affecting
the Group’s qualifying asset, the management concludes that the Group’s retail station,
depot facilities, tankers and land held for sale and development costs are qualifying
assets as the management assesses that it takes substantial petiod of time for the
completion of those assets.
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(d}  Revenue Recognition for Charter Fee Arrangements

In determining the appropriate method to use in recognizing the Group’s revenue ’
from TC, CVC and BB, management considers the following criteria: (1) whether the
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific vessel; and,

(2) whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the vessel. Management
determined that if both criteria are met, the revenue should be recogmized using the
straight-line method over the term of the contract (see Note 2.14). Otherwise,
revenue will be recognized based on contract terms when substantial agreed tasks have
been tendered.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of |
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustument to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period:

(a)

(b)

Ispairnent of Trade and Other Receivabler and Due from Related Parties

Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and group of
accounts, where objective evidence of impainment exists. The Group evaluates the
amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and circumstances
affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including, but not limited to, the length of
the Group’s relationship with the customers, the customers’ curtent credit status,
average age of accounts, collection experience and histotical loss expetience. The
methodaology and assumptions used in estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regulatly by the Company to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets are shown in Note 7. The carrying value of due
from related parties is shown in Note 26.4. The Group has determined that no
impairment loss on Due from Related Parties account should be recognized in 2314,
2013 and 2012,

Determining Net Realizable Value of Inventories .
In determining the net realizable value of inventories, management takes into account
the most reliable evidence available at the times the estimates are made. Future
realization of the cartying amounts of inventories, as presented in Note 8, is affected by
ptice changes and action from the competitors. Both aspects are considered key
sources of estimation uncertaioty and may cause significant adjustments to the Group’s
inventories within the next financial reporting period.

T
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() Determining Net Realizable 1V akue of Land Held for Sale and Iand Development Costs and Iand
Held for Duture Develypment

In determining the net tealizahle value of Iand held for sale and land development costs
and land held for future development, managernent takes into account the most reliahle
evidence availahle at the time the cstimates are made. Futute realization of the carrying
amounts of land held fot sale and development costs and land held for futute
development is affected by price changes and demand from the target market segments.
Both aspects ate considered key sources of estimation ancertainty and may cause
significant adjustments within the next financial teporting period.

(@) Estimating Usefid Lives of Property and Equipment and Drydocking Costr

The Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and drydocking costs
-hased on the period over which the assets are expected to he availahle for use. The
estimated useful lives of property and equipment and drydocking costs are reviewed
petiodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous cstimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal ox other limits
on the use of the assets.

"The carrying amounts of property and equipment and drydocking costs ate analyzed in
Notes 12 and 15, respectively. Based on management’s assessment as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, there is no change in the estimated useful lives of the
property and equipment and drydocking costs during those years. Actual resuls,
however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought ahout hy changes in factors
mentioned ahove.

(¢)  Fair Value Measwrement of Tankers

The Group’s tankers, presented as part of tlie Property and Equipment account, are
carried at revalued amount at the end of the reporting petiod. In determining the fair
values of these assets, the Group engages the services of professional and independent
appraisets applying the rclevant valuation methodologies as discussed in Note 5.4,

For tanleets with appraisals conducted prior to the end of the cugrent reporting period,
management determines whether there are significant citcumstances during the
intervening period that may require adjustments or changes in the disclosutc of fair
value of the Group’s tankers.

A significant change in these elements mey affect prices and the value of the assets.
"The amounts of revaluation and fait value gains recognized on the Group’s tankers arc
disclosed in Notc 12.

+70
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Determining Realizuble Amount of Deferved Tave Assety

The Group reviews its deferzed tax assets at the end of each teporting period and
reduces the catrying amount to the extent that it is no longet probahle that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized. Management assessed that the deferred tax assets recognized as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013 will be fully utilized in the coming years. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 is disclosed in Note 25.

Estimating Liability for Land Development

Obligations to complete development of real estate are based on actual costs and
project estimates of the Group’s contractors and technical personnel. These costs are
reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates. Liahility to complete the project for sold units included in the determination
of cost of sales amounting to P0.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, are
presented as part of accrued expenses under Trade and Other Payables account in the
consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 18}

Valtuation of Post-esuployraent Defined Bengfit Obligation

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefit 1s dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 23 and include,
among others, discount rates and salary increase rate. In accordance with PFRS, actual
results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future.
periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation
in such future periods.

The amounts of retitement benefit obligaton and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the estimated present value of retirement benefit obligation are
presented in Note 23,2,

Eistimating Developmeni Costs

The accounting for real estate requires the use of estimates in determining costs and
gross profit recognition. Cost of real estate sold (under Cost of Sales and Services in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income) includes estimated costs for *
future development. The development cost of the project is estimated by the Growp’s
coniractors and technical personnel. Many factors influence a project development
cost estitmate, which include among others, the geographic location of the project,
quantity of materials and item availahility, general soil conditions and scheduling of
resources including labor and equipment. At the end of reporting period, these
estimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions, when necessary.
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Impairment of Non-Finansial Assety

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset
o1 a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate
to discount such. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future opetating
results and the detertmination of a suitable discount rate (see Note 2.17). Though
management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values
teflected in the consolidated financial statements are appropiiate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of
recoverabie values and any resulting impaiement loss could have a matetial adverse
effect on the results of operations.

Management has assessed that no impairment losses are tequired to be recognized on
the Group’s non-financial assets in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Business Combinations

On initial recognitdon, the assers and liabilities of the acquired business and the
consideration paid for them are included in the consolidated financial statements at
their fair values. In measuring fair value, management uses estimates of future cash
flows and discount rates. Any subsequent change in these estimates would affect the
amount of goodwill if the change qualifies as a measurement petiod adjustment. Any
other change would be recognized in profit ot loss in the subsequent period.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a vatiety of financial tisks in relation to financial instraments.
The Group’s financial assets and liabilities by categoty are summarized in Note 5. The .
main types of risks are market sk, credir risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s risk management is coordinated with its Parent Company, in close
cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on actively securing the Group’s
short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.

"The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it wtite options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described in the succeeding pages.

M
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4.1 Marker Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk through its nse of financial instruments and
specifically to foreign crurency risk and interest rate risk which resnlt from both its
operating, investing and financing activities.

(@) Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are catried out in Philippine pesos, its functional .
aurrency. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group’s sales to a certain
customer and, fuel and tanker importations, which are primarily denominated in U.S.
dollars (US$). The liability covering the fuel importation is covered by letter of credits
which is subsequently closed to Philippine peso trusts receipts (TRs). Further, the Group
has several U.S. dollar loans from certain banks which were used to finance its capital
expenditures (see Note 17). The Group also holds U.S. dollar-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

"To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non Philippine peso cash flows
are monitored.

Poreign eurrency-denominated financial assets and financial liabilities, translated into
Philippine pesos at the closing rate follow:

2014 2013
Financial assets P4,383,654,349 P 1,174,762,469
Financial liabilities (.2.988,051,570) (_ 1.465,688449)
Net exposure P1,395,602,779 (P 290,925980)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Gronp’s profit before tax with respect
to changes in Philippine peso against U.5 dollar exchange rates. The percentage changes in
rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates, using
standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at 2 99% confidence level .

2014 2013
Reasonably possible change in rate 27.8% 23.4%
BEffect in profit before tax P 387,977,573 (P 68,076,679)
Effect in equity after tax 271,584,301 ¢ 47,653,675)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of
toreign currency denominated transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered
to be representative of the Group’s currency risk.

(b) Insterest Rate Rirke : :

The Group’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term
financing. Loog term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. Asof
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates
through its cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings, which are subject to variable
interest rates (see Notes 6 and 17), All other financial assets and liabilities have fixed rates.
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Cash in banks are tested on a reasonably possible ehange of +/-0.96% and +/-1.10% in
2014 and 2013, respectively. Banks loans subjeet to variable interest rates are tested on a
reasonably possible ehange of +/-0.68% and +/-1.67% for Philippine peso and

+/-0.31% and +/-0.69% for U.S. dollar in 2014 and 2013, respectively. These percentages
have been determined based on the average market volatility of intetest rates, using
standard deviation, in the previous 12 months estimated at 99% level of confidenee. The
sensitivity analysis is based on the Group’s financial instruments held at the end of the eaeh
reporting petiod, with effeet estimated from the beginning of the yeat. All other variables
ate held constant.

The ehanges in percentages would affect profit or loss before tax by +/-P68.2 million and
+/- P85.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respeetively.

fe) Other Price Risk

The Group’s market priee risk arises from its purehases of fuels. Tt manages its risk arising
from ehanges 1n market prices by monitoring the daily movement of the market price of
fuels and to some extent, using forward and other stmilar eontraets to manage the
fluetvation of the fuel price,

4.2 Credit Risk

Credit 1isk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the Group.
The Group is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments arsing from granting of
loans and selling goods and serviees to eustomers including related parties; and placing
deposits with banks.

The Group eontinuously monitors defaults of eustomers and other eounterparties,
identified either individually or by proup, and neorporates this information into its eredit
risk eontrols. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In
addition, for a significant proportion of sales, advance payments are received to mitigate
credit risk.

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the earrying amount of
the financial assets as shown in the eonsolidated statements of finandial position or in the
detatled analysis provided in the notes to the eonsolidated financial statements, as
sumtnatized below,

Notes 2014 2013
Cash and eash equivalents 6 P 555,508,720 P 357,220,520
Trade and othet receivables —net 7 3,789,225,134 6,402,695,635
Due from related parties 26.4 10,373,356 2,747,994
Restrieted deposits 10,15 71,670,538 96,683,441
Refundable rental deposits 15 172,226,696 180,951,286

P 4,599,004.444 DP7,040,205.87¢

The Group’s management eonsiders that all the above financial assets that are not impaired
or past due for each reporting dates are of good credit quality.

79¢
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None of the financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements, except
for cash and cash equivalents as described below.

(@) Caih and Cash Equivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in the
cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks and shost-term placements which are insured
by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Cotporation up to a maximum coverage of

P0.5 million for every depositor per banking institution.

() Trade and Other Receivables cnd Daue from Related Parties

In respect of trade and other recetvables, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit
risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in vatious
industries and geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default
rates, management considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or
impaired to be good.

The Group has a Credit Committee which approves credit lines given to its custotners.

The Group’s Credit and Coliection Department, which tegulatly reposts to the Credit
Committee, continuously monitors customers” performance and othet counterparties,
identified cither indwvidually or by group, and incorporates this information into irs ceedit
risk controls. Where available at a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on
customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Gronp’s policy is to deal
only with creditworthy counterparties.

Some of the unimpaired trade and other receivables are past due at the end of the reporting
date. The age of financial asscts past due but not impaited is as follows:

2014 2013

Not more than one month P 205,924,748 T 182,306,369
More than one month

but not mote than two months 152,505,688 149,532,251
More than two months but

not more than six months 87,978,949 120,856,868
More than six months but not

more than one year 74,091,227 69,157,737
More than one yeat 86,449,908 45.598,603

P 606,950,520 P 567451828

In respect of due from relatcd parties, the Group has assessed that these advances are
collcetible and the credit risk exposure is considered to be low.

4.3 Ligquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day
business. Liquidity needs ate monttored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and
week-to-week basis, as wcll as on the basis of a rolling 30-dzy projection. Long-term
liquidity needs for a 6-month and one-year pertod ate identified monthly.
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The Group maintains cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requitements for up to
60-day periods. Excess cash are invested in time deposits. Funding for long-term liquidity
necds is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to sell long-term financial asscts, '

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual maturities which
are stunmatized a5 follows:

Cugrent Non-current
Within 6to 12 15
6 months months vears

Interest-bearing loans

and horrowings P 7,011,246,094 P 1,692,894,035 T 6,116,547,965
Trade and other payables

{excluding tax-related

payables) 3,193,805,959 517,524,441 -

Due to related parties 17,204,725 - -
Security deposits - - 158,325,351
210,222,256 778 B 2,210,418 476 P_6.274 873 316

This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of

December 31, 2013 as presented below.

Current Non-current
Within 6to 12 lteb
6 monthsg months years .

Interest-heating loans

and borrowings P 6,050,573,611 P 2726,331,756 P 6,007,722,903
Trade and other payables

(excluding tax-related

payables) 818,142,220 451,750,258 -

Due to related partics 33,991,925 30,169,318 -
Security deposits - - 275962,723
P_6902,707,756 D 3208251332 D_6,283,685626

The contractual maturities of the financial liabilities reflect the gross cash flows, which may
differ from the carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the reporting petiods,



Sarqoind pagprai-xpg sapmpax Ty

T9ZSSL 195 G1 RYATTRCIA CTLET0S6eLLL d LB E0c6elil 4
TZL 296 Cle T2l 06 Cle 159E°525 851 15¢°52¢ 85T 61 susodap Lrmoag
CFTTITHD CHZIOT'F9 SZLBPOZ LY CTLPOT LY 92 senzed pajeras o3 angy
8LVT6869TT 8L T669TT 00F° 0SS TIL S 00F 0SEIILE 81 +59[quded ByRo pue apery,
LT89CLTSLET LI'BELTGLET LOEEPITHRCT  d  LGECHOTHSET  d LT s3umorroq pue sueo] Bunmuagysariug
11500 ﬁvUNﬂhOEm Je muﬂz..ﬁ.mﬁ ﬁm.muﬂmﬂmm
SIITIGELT [EFITLLT
5L B6C0F0 L 973 800 OF0 L R0 66a ¥ A Fob P00 66S b d
932156081 T8 156 081 9697922 24T 969°92¢ eLT <1 sysodep [puar 9qepungay
TrH' €896 IHF'€89°96 85 0L9°TL 8CS0LITL ST 01 sysodap patomisay
P66 LYLT v66°LPLT 9E L 0L 95¢°CLE 0L ¥9Z sonred paje(ar woif angy
5¢9°56920E 9 GEY'Ca9TOFD PE1'SzZ 68L E FEI'STT 68LE L 1PU-S9[qEATI09Y JAYRO PUR IPEIY,
0TS0z L5¢ 0Z5°02Z°15¢ 074805555 d  0TL°804°§5¢ d 9 sjus[eamba yses pue 1yse])
..muﬂﬁmbmvuuu _.udd mﬂﬁO\H
m.uwm.mvwﬁm.ﬁuﬂwﬁ.ﬂ.m.
muj?u\w uﬂ.d =i moﬂjw»\r UQEHGU wu—u—.m A H.__m .mm mwﬁ_...m A m_u..—bkumo mu.._.oz
TIoZ ¥r0C

“mo[eq paruasaxd
aze gomrsod [erueuy JO SIUATIRIEIS PAAEPIOSTOD 9 UF paluasazd SORIIQEN PUL 519558 JO SO08213 SU) JO SIT[EA ITE] PUE SIUNOUTE SWIAITED oY,

AroFarer) Ag sanfe s e poe sjonoury Sopdnery [¢

SHIITTIEVIT TVIONVNIA
NV §,LISSV TVIDNVNIA 40 SHYNSOTISIA ANV SINHIWTENSVAN ANTVA HIVA ANV ONILLLASAIO ‘SATHOOHAIVD 'S

- %m.rl



-390

See Notes 2.4 and 2.11 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instruments including the determination of fait values. A description of the
Group’s risk management objectives and policies for financial instruments is provided
n Note 4, '

5.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recutring or
non-recurring basis and those assets and labilities not measured at fair value but for
which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, ate categotized
into three Jevels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair value. The
fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

(ay Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) it active matkets for identical asscts ot liahilities
that an entity can access at the measuretment date;

(b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that ate observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from
prices); and, .

{c) Level 3: inputs for the asset or hability that are not bascd on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest
level of significant input to the fair value measurement.

For putposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if
quoted ptices ate readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pticing service, of tegulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occutring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

5.3 Fair Instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value Is
Diisclosed

The table below and in the next page summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liahilities which are not measured at fair value in the
consolidated statements of financial position but for which fair value is disclosed.

2014
Notea Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Figancial Assets
Lantws anel receivabies:

Cash and cash cquivalents G P 553,508,720 T - P - P 555,5(!8,726
Trade and other recetvables -net 7 - - 3,789,225,134  3,788,225,134
Diue from retated pactics 26.4 - - 10,373,356 180,373,356
Resticted deposits 10,15 71,670,538 - - 71,670,538
Refundable rental deposits 15 - - 172.226.696 172,226,696

P 67479258 P - [P3.971,825.186 P4,5909,004,444
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2014
Notes Leyeld Leyel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liahifitics
Fhwanetal lizhilitier et amoriieed cost:
interest-beariing loans
and botrowings 17 P - I - P 13512643397 P 13,812,6415,397
Trade and other payables 18 - - 3,711,330400 5,711,336.400
Duc to related partics 26.4 - - 17,204,725 17,204,725
Security deposits 19 - - 158325351 138325331
r__. - RUIIOSIAE PLLTIO503473
2013
Notes fTevell Tevel 2 Loveld Totgl
Finaneial Asscis
Laanns and ncedobler:
Cash and cash equivalents G T 357220520 P - P - T 357,220,520
Trade and other receivables - net 7 - - 6,402,695,635  6,402,695,635
Due rom related partics 26.4 - - 2,747,994 2,747,994
Resticted deposis 10, 15 06,683,441 - - 96,683,441
Refundable ental deposits 15 - - 180951286 _ 180.951.286
D_453903961 P - PL5R6304915 P7040,208.876
Financiaf Linhilities
Tiisanginl liahilitier al amortized wour:
Interese-beating loans
and borrowings 17 P . » - P 13751738817 P 13751738817
Trade and othee paynbles 18 - - 1,269,892 478 1,269,802478
Due to related parties 264 - - 64,161,213 6,161,243
Secmrity deposits 19 - - 275,962,723 273,562,723

hid - E = Li5361,755261 [ 15361755 261
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For financial asset with fair value included in Level 1, management considers that the
carrying amount of this short-term financial instrument approximates its fair vahue.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in Tevel 3 in the
preceding page, which ace not rraded in an active macket is detetmined by using generally
acceptable pricing models and valaation techniques or by teference to the current marlket
value of another instrument which is substantially the samne after taking into account the
related credit risk of counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the
underlying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of obscrvable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. Since not all
significant inputs required to determine the faiv value of the other instruments not included
in Level 1 are observable, these are included in Level 3.

5.4 Fair Value Measurements for Non-financial Assets
a) Determining Fatr Vabue of Tankers

The fair values of the Gronp’s tankers, included as part of the Property and Equipment
account, were determined based on the appraisal reports of a professtonal and independent
appraiser with appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties. To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the appraiser in
discussion with the Group’s management with respect to the determination of the inputs
such as the size, age, and condition of the tanker,

In estimating the fair value of these tankers, management takes into account the market
patticipant’s bility to generate economic benefits by using the assets in their highest and
best use. Based on management assessiment, the best use of the Group’s non-financial
assets indicated above is their cutrent nse.

The Level 3 fair value of tankers was determined using the cost approach that reflects the
cost to a market participant to constinct an asset of comparable usage, construction
standards, design and layout, adjusted for obsolescence. The mote significant inputs uséd
in the valmation include direct and inditect costs of construction such as but not limited to,
labor and conteactor’s profit, materials and equipment, susveying and permit costs,
electricity and utility costs, architectural 2and engineering fees, insurance and legal fees.
These inputs were derived from various suppliers and contractor’s quotes, price catalogues,
and construction price indices. Under this approach, higher estimated costs used in the
valuation will result in higher fair value of the properties,

b) Other Fair Valve Information

The reconciliation of the carrying amount of tankers included in Level 3 is presented in
Note 12.2. ,
There has been no change to the valuation techniques used by the Group during the year
for its non-financial assets. Also, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
hierarchy in 2014 and 2013.
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5.5 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

0

The following financial assets with nct amounts presented in the consolidated statements of
finandal position are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and

sitnilar agreements:

December 31, 2014

Gross ameunty recognized in the
cansalidated gmtgment of
financial position

Financial

Netamount  Related amovnts nat set off in the
consolidated statement of

the consolidated finangial pokiion
statement of

presented in

liabilitics fina ncial Financial Cash collateral
Financial assets st off position ingtruments seceived Neramount
Treade and other
veceivables P 4,031,673,199 (* 242,448,065 P 3,789,225,134 P - P - P 3,789,225,154
Restricted deposits 70,406,743 70,406,743 ( 70,404,743 - -
02,079,942 (P 242448,065)P_3,859,631,877 (B _T0M067ADP___ - P 3,780.225134
Becember 31,2013
Groks amontts recoguixed in the Neramount  Related amounts not set off in the
consolidated statement of presented in cansolidated statement of
financial positiog the consolidated financial position
Financial sttement of
Tiabilities financial Financial Cash collateral
_ Financialassers  _ setoff  _ posiion  __ingtuments received ot amonnt
Rewtricted deposits P 95419046 P - P 95,419,646 (P 08 19646 2 - P -~

The following {inaneial liabilities with net amounts presented in the consolidated
staternents of financial position ate subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements:

Dccember 31, 2014

Gross amounts recognized in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

Fimancial

Netamount  Related amounts not sct nffin the
presented in consolidated statement of

the consolidated financial position
statement, of

Financial assels fnancial Financial Cash collateml
labilities sct oif pasition nstruments - received __Ngtampunt
Interest-hearing lounsg
and borrowings P 13,842,643,397 P - P 13,842,643,397 (P T0406,745 T - P 13,772.236,654
Trade and other
payabley 3,769,778,465 ( 58,448,005  3,711,330,430 - - 3,711,330,400
Secudty deposits 342,325,351 { 184.000.000) 158.325.351 - - 1581325,351
L__17,954,747.213 (I __242.448.065) P 17,712,290 148 (P____7¢.406,74) P - P 17.641,892.,405

December 31, 2013

Geoss amonnts cecognized in the
congolidated stalement of
financial position

Financial

Related amounts not set offin the
consolidated statement of

financial positicn

Net amount
preseted mn
the consolidaced

statement of

Tinancial agacts financial Francial Cash collatceal
liabilitics set off poORIton instruments ._icceived Net amount
Tuterest-bearing loans
and borrowings B__13.751.738.817 2 PA12TN 238817 95418646 1 - u 219,171,
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6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of December 31:

2014 2013
Revolving fund P 1,131,815 P 21,213,984
Cash on hand 10,335,747 7,731,306
Cash in banks 538,072,742 249 585,435
Short-term placements 5,968,416 78 689.795

P_ 555,508,720 P_ 357220520

Cash in bauks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from 0.10%
to 3.00% per annum in all years presented. Shott-term placements are made for varying
periods ranging from 7 to 90 days and earn effective interest ranging from 2.10% to 7.10%
per annum in all years presented. Interest income eatned amounted to P2.8 million,

P7.8 million and P9.4 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, tespectively, and is included as part
of Fihance Income in the statements of comprehensive income {see Note 22.2). .
The balances of cash n banks as of Deceinber 31, 2014 and 2013 exclude restricted time
deposits amounting to P71.7 million and P96.7 million, respectively, which ate shown as
Restticted Deposits account (see Note 10) and restricted time deposits under Other Non-
current Asscts (see Note 15} in the consolidated statements of financial position. Such

amounts are not available for the general use of the Group under the loan agreemcnt (see
Note 17.1).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following:

Notes 2014 2013
T'rade receivables:
Third parties P3,771,130,305 P 6,323,073,299
Related parties 26.1 25,524,583 37.334.222

3.796,654,888 6,360,407.521

Advances to suppliers:

Third parties 30.7 4,001,272,283 924,304,898
Related parties 26.2 10,024,800 2.000.000
4,011,297,083 926,304,898

Non-trade receivables 242,324,636 237 344 364
Advances subject to licuidation 32,189,974 14,793,393
Other receivables 34,636,908 49 257 584

8,117,103,489 7,588,107,760
Allowance for itnpairment (__284,391,298) ( 244313.834)

N2
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All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have heen reviewed for indications of
tmpairment. Certain trade and other receivables, which ate due from customers, wete
found to be impaired; hence, adequate amount of allowance fot impairment has been
recorded as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. Impairment losses amounted to

P40.1 million, P18.0 million and P37.9 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are
presented as part of Finance Costs under the Other Charges {Income) acconnt in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Notc 22.1).

A reconciliation of the allowance for impaitment at the beginning and end of 2014 and
2013 is shown below, ’

Note 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 244,313,834 P 226,354,832
Impairment loss for the year 22.1 40,077,464 17,959,002
Balance at end of year P 284391298 P 244313334

Trade and other reccivables do not bear any interest. All receivables are subject to credit
risk exposure (see Notc 4.2).

Advances to suppliers include amounts initially paid to foreign corporation amounting to
P89.6 million (US$2.0 million) as of December 31, 2014, in relation to the Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) entered into by PNX — Chelsea for the itnportation of one unit of ofl
tanker vessel (MT Chelsea Denise IT} from China for a total consideration of $7.3 million.

Non-trade receivables mostly pertain to receivable from locators and accrued rent and
franchise income. Non-trade receivables also include 12.9 million and P12.7 million worth
of relmbursable costs incurred by the Group as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, in relation to its TC agreement with a cettain third party.

Other receivables include partial claims from an insurance company amounting to

P32.9 wmillion and P31.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, tespectively, which is
related to an incident encountered by certain vessels of the Group and one of FTC’s
tugboats. The amount represents the actual costs incurred for the vessels, net of the
applicable deductible clause. In 2014, the Group received a notice of the final amount to
be settled by the insurance company based on the computations provided by the adjustet.
Out of the outstanding claim of the Group of P32.9 million, only 2.0 million will be
collectible; bence, the remaining balance of P3.9 million was recognized as Loss on
settlement of insurance claims, which is presented as part of Finance Costs in the 2014
consolidated statement of comprehensive income {see Note 22.1).

Certzin trade receivables amounting to P33.3 million ard 15.5 million as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were used as collateral to the Gi‘oup’s
interest-beating loans and bortowings [see Notes 17.5(), 17.5(8) and 17.5())]. .

k0%
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8. INVENTORIES

Inventories which are stated at cost are broken down as follows:

2014 2013
Fuel ~ P2,564,596,748 I 3,589,175,766
Lubricants 306,133,400 223,353,772
Others 98.921 3,135

P2,870,829,069 P 3.812.532.673

Under the tetns of agreements covering the liabilities under trust receipts, inventores with
carrying amount of P2,138.5 million and P3,554.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
tespectively, have been released to the Group in trust for the bank. The Group is '
accountable to the bank for the trusteed inventories or their sales proceeds (see Note 17.1).

"There were no inventory write-down in all of the years presented.
- An analysis of the cost of inventoties included in the cost of fuels and lubricants sold in each
year is presented in Note 20.1.

9. LAND HELD FOR SALE AND LAND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

"The land held for sale and land development costs stated at cost relate to the following as of
December 31;

2014 2013
Land held for sale P 450,786,035 P 483927707
Land development costs 35,199,776 19744767

P 485985811 P 503672474

"The land held for sale was used as security for the Group’s installment payable with Land
Bank of the Philippines (LBP) [see Note 17.2(z)).

Land development costs pertain to expenditures for the development and improvement gf
the land held for sale of the Pagk.
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10. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

11

This account pertains to the time deposits that ate used as securities for vations banking
credit facilities covered by hold-our agreements (see Notes 6 and 17. 1) amounting to
P70.4 million and P95.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. As such,
these ate testricted as to withdrawals. The plocecds from availment of the banking eredi
facilities by the Group are used for the purpose of purchasing fuel and lubricant supplies

(see Note 17.1). Interest tates for this type of deposit range from 2.40% to 5.98% per annum
for all the years presented.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

"The composttion of this account as of December 31 is shown belown

2014 2013
Prepayments P 577,645,850 P 167,721,208
Creditable withholding tax 353,395,385 174,300,564
Supplies 215,476,323 144,038,688
Others 114,982 3852717

P1146,632,540 P 489913177
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121 Acquisition of Vessel - MT Chelsea Donatela

In 2013, PNX — Chelsea entered into a MOA with a foreign cotporation fot the
importation of one unit of oil tank vessel (MT Chelsea Donatela) from China for
US$21.2 million [see Note 17.2(g)]. The construction of the vessel was cotnpleted in
2014 and had its first voyage on July 15, 2014,

As of December 31, 2013, the vessel is still under construction, Since the vessel is not yet
ready for use, the contract price of the vessel, costs incucred for the major improvements
made to the vessel and other incidental eosts totaling P418.6 million are tecognized as
consttuction in progress and presented as part of Propetty and Equipment - net in the
2013 consolidated statement of financial position. 'The whole amonnt was then
reclassified to tankers in 2014 upon completion of the vessel.

MT Chelsea Donatela is used as collateral to secure the payment of interest-beating loan
obtained to finance the acquisition of the vessel [see Note 17.2()].

12.2 Fafr Value of Tankers

The Group’s tankers are stated at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date’
of revaluation, less any subsequent accunmulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes, is presented as part of
Revaluation Reserves acconnt in the equity section of the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 27.5).

The information on the fair value measnrement and disclosures related to the revalned
tankers are presented in Note 5.4,

Tf the tankers were earried using the cost model, the cost, acenmulated depreciation and
carrying amount as of December 31 would be as follows:

2014 2013
Cost P5,905,411,437 T 4,843,4006,123
Accumulated depreciation (___848,386.914) (_ 671.334763)

P5,057,024,523 P 4.172,071.360

12.3 Borowing Costs

Construction in progress incndes accumulated costs incurred on the varions depot
facilities and retail stations being consttucted as part of the Group’s expansion program,
including capitalized borrowing costs of P70.7 million and P71.4 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, representing the actual botrowing costs
incurred on borrowings obtained to fund the retail stations and depot facilities. The
average capitalization rate used was 8.5% both in 2014 and 2013.

ol
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124 Collaterals

Port expansion facilities with catrying value of P192.9 million as of December 31, 2013, ate
used to secute the Group’s installment payable with LBP [see Note 17.2(4)]-

Certain propetty and equipment with an aggregate carrying value of ail and P24.2 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are mortgaged with local banks
[sec Note 17.2¢4)].

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, certain tankers owned by the Group with carrying
value of P1,483.7 million and P1,420.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, .
tespectively, were used as collaterals for the interest-bearing loans from various local
commercial banks [see Notes 17.2(}, 17.4, 17.5(7) and 17.5%)1.

Moteover, certatn service vehicle of the Group with carrying value of P3.0 miliion and
P40.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was used as collateral for
mortgage payable (see Note 17.7).

12.5 Finance Lease

The carrying amount of hauling and heavy equipment held under finance lease amounted
to P19.5 million and P'23.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(sce Note 17.6).

12.6 Depreciation and Amortization

The amount of depreciation and amortization is allocated as follows:

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Cost of services 20.2 r 201,694,106 T 149,726,182 P 122,984,227
Selling and
administrative
expenses 408,823,499 334,253 594 258.443 669

21 P 610,517,605 P 483979776 P 381,427 596

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the cost of fully-depreciated property and equipment
still used in operations amounted to P247.0 million and P146.7 million, respectively.
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
The Gtoup has 45% equity interest in NMPSC whieh management eonsideced to be
matetial to the Group. The investment in NPMSC is accounted for using the equity

method in these consolidated finanefal statements.

The sunmmarized finaneial information of NPMSC is shown below,

2014 2013
Total assets P 15860,855 P 11,823327
Total liabilities 5,699,029 7,705,459
Total equity 10,161,826 4,117,368
Total revenues 36,353,600 19,659,530
Net profit (loss) 6,043,958 ( 882,132)

The Group did not recognize its shate of the net profit (loss) of NPMSC in the Group’s
consolidated statements of eomprehensive ineome as the Group’s management deemed it
to be insignifieant.

No dividends were received from NPMSC in 2014 and 2013.

NPMSC 15 a private eompany and there ate no quoted prices available for its shates of
stoeks.

LAND HELD FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Land held for future development represents the Group’s land property totaling to
44 hectares in Phase 2 and 3 of the Park that is intended for sale once developed.

The Group’s land held for future development was used as eollateral for the Group’s
installment payable with LBP [see Note 17.2(a/l.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The eomposition of this aceount as of December 31 is shown below.

Notes 2014 2013 .

Refundable rental deposits 26.3 P 172,226,696 P 180,951,286
Advanees for future

investmentin a

joint venture 67,750,000 -
Dirydoeking costs — net 58,281,453 46,588,245
Deferred minimum

lease payments 34,379,811 34,554,625
Restricted time deposits 4 1,263,795 1,263,795
Others 2,208,763 6,857,099

P 10,518 P 27021505

76
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Refundable rental deposits represent deposits of the Group for the lease of vatious patcels
of land. These deposits are refundable at the end of the term of agreement and ate
measuted at amortized cost. The fair values on initial recognition of the lease deposits
wete determined by calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows
anticipated until the end of the lease tertns using the matket interest rate of comparable
financial instrument at the inception of the lease. Meanwhile, interest on subsequent-
amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method amounted to P0.6 million
both in 2014 and 2013, and P1.2 million in 2012, and is presented as part of Finance
Income in the consolidated staterents of comprehensive income (see Note 22.2).

The excess of the principal amount of the tental deposit over its present value is
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as Deferred Minirmum Leasc
Payments. Rent expense on subsequent amortization of the deferred minimum lease
payments amounted to P0.9 million, P0.8 million and P1.4 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and is presented 2s part of Rent under Selling and Administrative Expenses in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income {see Note 21).

Advances for future investment in a joint venture represent the Group’s payment to a
cestain third party for the Group’s partial shate in the investment in futute joint venture
per memotandum of agreement enteted into with the said third party. The Group and »
the third pacty, through the future joint venture, are committed to construct 4 terminal
and storage facility.

Restricted time deposits represent cash deposited with a local bank as an environmental
trust fund set aside in compliance with the requirements of the Depattment of
Environment and Natural Resources.

Presented below 1s a reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning and end of
2014 and 2013 of drydocking costs.

Notes . 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 46,588,245 TP (4,433,228
Transfer from construction
in progress 12 53,328,043 -

Additions 8,229,638 26,597,993
Amottization duting the year  20.2, 21 { 49,764,310y ( 44.420,301)
Disposal ( 100.063) ( 22.673)
Balance at end of year P_ 58281453 D 46588245

g1/



16.

17.

-53-

Amortization pertaining to drydocking costs is presented as patt of depreciation and
amortization under Cost of Sales and Services in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 20.2).

Drydocking costs are being amortized over two years or until the occutrence of the next
drydocking, whichever comes earlier.

GOODWILL

Goodwill amounting to P84.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, represents the
excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s share in the fair value of identifiable net assets
of the acquired subsidiaries at the date of the acquisition. Tn 2012, the Parent Company
assessed that the goodwill pertaining with PGMI is impaired, hence, full impairment loss
amounting to P1.3 million was recognized.

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Interest-beating loans and borrowings are broken down as follow:

2014 2013

Cutrent:
Liabilities under letters of credits
and trust receipts
Installment and notes payable
Liabilities under short-term

P 3,640,151,291 P 6,777,195,674
2,163,017,181 1,104,979,911

commercial papers 1,942,752,503 -

Bank loans 364,293,475 55,923,184
Tetm loans 359,737,069 255,841,741
Obligations under finanee lease 7,462,297 7,559,190
Mortgage payable 1,611,934 5729784

E8,479,025,750  P8,207,229.484

Non-current;

Installment and notes payable P 4,319,927,159 T 4,678,622,549
Term loans 1,036,612,418 799,094,377
Obligations under finance lease 5,671,371 13,226,187
Mortgage payable 1,406,699 3,553,774
Bank loans - 50,012.446

P5,363,617,647  D.5.544,509.333

17.1 Liabilities under Letters of Credits and Trust Receipts

The Group avails of letters of credit (LC) 2nd TR lines with local banks to finance its
purchases of inventories {see Note 8). These short-term trust teceipts bear interests based
on prevailing imarket interest rates at an average of 5.00% per annum in 2014 and 6.50%
per annum both in 2013 and 2012,

«n
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"The Group is requited by the banks to maintain certain collaterals for the credit line facility
provided to the Group for working capital requitements. The collaterals are in the form
of compensating deposits and a surety of a stockholder [see Notes 6, 10 and 26.6()].

17.2 Installment and Notes Payable

(a) Installment Loan with LBP

.

On April 16, 2010, the Gronp availed the P580.0 million Joan with LBP. The loan
with LBP was used to refinance the installment payable with PEIINMA Group via
take-out of the outstanding installment payable to PHINMA Group. The refinanced
installment payable is payable for seven years with one year grace period on principal
and bears an interest rate based on the prevailing LBP rate at the time of availment
subject to quartetly repricing with reference to a three month PDST-F rate Jplus
minimum spread of 2.5%. 'The installment payable with LBP is secured by the
Group’s patcel of land with carrying value of P326.7 million as of

December 31, 2013, which is presented as part of land Teld for sale {(see Note 9} and
land held for future development (see Note 143, and port expansion facilitics with
catrying value of P192.9 million as of December 31, 2013, which is presented as part
of buildings, depot and pier facilities (see Note 12.4). Thesc securities were released
upon full payment of the loan in 2014 !

The outstanding balance of the principal of the loan as of December 31, 2013
amounted to P67.5 million.

(b} Notes Facility Agreement with BDO Group

In 2011, the Group availed of a P750.0 million clean loan under the notes facility
agrecment enteted into with BDO Capital & Investment Corporation, Banco De Oro
Unibank, Inc. (BDO), Maybank Philippines, Inc., Robinsons Bank Corporation and
Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. — Trust and Investment Group. The long-term loan
amounting to P700.0 million with interest rate of 7.35% annually is payable on
Angust 24, 2016 and the remaining P50.0 million with interest rate of 7.66% is )
payable on August 23, 2018,

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amouated to P727.5 million and P742.0 million, respectively.

{c) Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (OLSA) with PBComm

On February 10, 2012, the Group entered into a loan agreement with PBComm
amounting to P107.0 million to partly finance the double hulling and drydocking of a
vessel owned by the Group. In February and May 2012, PBComm released the loan
amounting to P65.0 million and P42.0 million, respectively. The loan is subject to
annual interest rate of 9.5% and is payable in 36 equal monthly installments with one
quarter grace period from date of each release.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage on two of the tankers (MT Chelsea
Resolute and MT Ernesto Uno) of the Gronp with net book value amounting to
P332.1 million and P317.5 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively
(see Note 12.4).

&3
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The loan agreement requires the Group to maintain a debt-to-equity ratic of not
morte than 4:1. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with irs
debt covenants with the bank.

The outstanding balance of the prindpal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P8.0 million and P41.2 million, respectively.

(d) OLSA with BDO — MT Chelsea Thelma

On April 26, 2011, the Group eateted into 2 MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Ixportts Corporation for the i itnpottation of one unit of oil tanker {MT Chelsea
Thelma) in the amount of 1J$$19.8 million.

In connection with the MOA, the Group entered into an OLSA amounting to
US$14.5 million with BDO, the proceeds of which was used to partly finance the
importation of the vessel. The loan is payable into 27 consecutive equal quartesly
piincipal installments starting in August 2012. The loan is subject to interest
computed at one-year LIBOR plus applicable margin of 3.50% per annum.

The loan 1s secured by a chattel mortgage on certzin tankers (MT Chelsea Thelma
and Vela) of the Group with a net cartying amount of P1,100.4 million and
P1,059.8 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. )

Related debt ssuance costs amounted to P8.2 million of which P1.4 million and

P2.3 million was amortized in 2014 and 2013, respectively, using effective interest tate
of 5.02%. Amottized debt ssuance costs were recognized as part of interest expense
on bauk loans under Finance Costs under the Other Char ges {Income) account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22.1) ). The unamortized
debt ssuance costs are included as part of the current aud non-current porticu of the
related loan.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P404.4 milliou and P496.9 million, respectively.

(e) Convertible Notes Facility Agteement with BDO

On July 11, 2012, the Parent Company executed a Convertible Notes Facility
Agreement worth P500.0 million with warrants offeting amounting to P180.0 million
with BDO. The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 7.6% and is payable
quarterly in atteats over its three years termn. The issuance of the convertible note is
part of the Group’s plan to raise long-term capital, to refinance short-term debt and
finance capital expenditures.

BDO is granted the optiou to couvert ali or any pottion of the unpaid priucipal
amount of the notes held by it into the conversion shares exerctsable at any time ~ +
upou written notice by BDO to the Parent Compauy specifying the time and date of
the conversiou. Also, BDO has the optiou to elect one nominee to the Parent
Company’s BOD which option may be exercised anytime aftet signing date and on or
before couversion date.
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For ard in consideration of the subsctiption of BDO to the convertible notes issued
by the Parent Company, the latter also granted the former the right to subsctibe to the
watrants to be issued by the Parent Company which is convertible into common
shares of the Parent Company up to the aggregate principal amount of P180.0 million.
The availment of the convertible note and the issuance of the warrant were approved
by the Parent Company’s stockholders during a special stockholders’ meeting held on
September 6, 2012. 'The Parent Comnpany’s stockholders also authorized the
execution, delivery and performance of Subscription Agreement between the Parent
Company and BDO in relation to the issnance of the warrants.

The exercise price of the option to coavert the note to the Parent Company’s
common shares and the warrant is equivalent to a determined price base plus a
premium of fifteen percent. The exercise based used was the 30-day
volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company’s share on the PNX PM
Equity HP page of Bloomberg from May 24, 2012 to July 5, 2012 which is equel to
P83 per share. The exercise period consists of a two-year period commencing on the
third anniversary date of the convertible notes issue date and expiring five yeats
thereafter.

Considering that a fixed number of shares will be issued for options and warrants, the
watrants and options may qualify as an equity instrutnent to be recorded as a separate
component in the equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
Group’s management , however, assesses that at the date of the initial recognition, the
equity component has no value since the interest rate to be charged by the lender on
the converible note with watrants is similar to the interest rate of the note had it
been issued without conversion options and warrants. As such, the fair value of the
hybrid convertible note and the host instrument is the same resulting in the nil value
of the equity component at the date of initial recognition.

Minimum financial ratios to maintain ate as follows: () debt to equity ratio not to
exceed 3:1; (i) cutrent ratio not to fall below 1:1 and (4} debt service coverage ratio
not to be less than 1.5:1.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of both December 31, 2014 )
and 2013 amounted to P500.0 million.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt
covenants.

(D)  Notes Facility Agreement with China Banking Corportation and
Pentacapital Investment Corporation

On November 8, 2012, the Parent Cempany entered into a notes facility agreement

- with China Banking Comperation and Pentacapital Investinent Corporation totaling
P2,500.0 million. The loan is subject to a fixed anaual intetest rate of 7.75% which is
payable in twenty quartetly payiments. The net proceeds of the loan were used by the
Parent Company for the roll cut of the retails stations, for debt financing, to support
capital expenditures and for other general corporate purposes.
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.

By virtue of the notes facility agreement, the Pacent Company affirms that it shall
maintain the listing of its common shares with PSE and shall not declare ot pay any
dividends to stockholders (other than dividends payable solely in shares of its capital
stock} or retain, retite, purchase or otherwise acquire any class of its capital stock, or
make any other capital or other asset distribution to its stockholders, unless all
payments due under the notes are current and updated.

Minimnm financial ratos to maintain are as follows: (1) debt to equity ratio not to
exceed 3:1; (1) current ratio not to fall below 1:1 and (i) debt service coverage tatio
not to be less than {.5:1.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P2,476.2 million and P2,468.5 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt
covenants.

(g2) OLSA with BDO — MT Chelsea Donatela

In 2013, the Group entered into 2 MOA with China Shipbuilding & Exports
Corporation for the importation of one vnit oil tanker (MT Chelsea Donatels) of
PNX - Chelsea in the amount of US$21.2 million (see Note 12.1). Tn connection
with the acquisition ofan oil tank vessel, the Group entered into an QLSA.
amounting to US$14 million with BDO, the proceeds of which was used to partly *
finance the importation of the vessel. In September 2013, the local bank granted
the loan and released the first tranche amounting to US$4 million. The second
tranche amounting to US$10 million was availed of by the Group in 2014. The
loan is payable for a period of five years from the initial drawdown date in
US$560,000 quarterly priacipal installnients aad any unpaid balance on maturity
date, with two quarter grace period, commencing after the second tranche. The
loan bears effective interest ratc of 5.25% per anaum.

Interest incuered on these loans amounted to P29.2 million and P3.3 million in
2014 and 2013, respectively, and is shown as part of Finance Costs under Other
Charges (Income) i the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Related debt issuance costs amounted to P9.6 million of which P1.5 million and
P0.1 million was amortized duting 2014 and 2013, respectively, using effective
interest rate of 5.58% and 5.54%, respectively. Amortized debt issuance cost was
also recognized as part of the Finance Costs under Other Charges (Tncome) in the
consolidated statements of comptehensive income (see Note 22.1). Unamortized

debt issuance costs are included as patt of the current and non-cwrrent porton of
the related loan.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage of MT Chelsea Donatela upon its delivery
and registration with the Maritime Industry Authority. The cacrying amount of

MT Chelsea Donatela, presented as part of construction in progress, amounted to
P1,091.0 million and P418.6 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, tespectively
(sce Note 12.1).

£
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The OLSA requires the Group to maintain debt to equity ratio of not more than
1.5:1 and debt coverage ratio (DCR) of at least 1.20, except on drydocking year
whete minimum DCR shall be 1.00. The Group filed a waiver with the local bank
for the debt covenant ratios.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P595.1 million and P171.6 million, respectively.

(h) Notes Payable

The Group availed of borrowings from various local banks with interest tates ranging
from 7.0% to 10.2% per annum and will mature within five to seven years. The
loans, which are secured by the Groups’s certain buildings, depot and pier facilities
and hauling and heavy equipment, is payable quatterly (see Note 12.4),

17.3 Liabilities under Short-retrn Commercial Papers

On October 23, 2014, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s registration, licensing and
issuance of short-term commercial papers up to P2.0 billion. The shott-term cominercial
papets bear annual interest tates ranging from 4.0% to 4.5%, which is already deducted in
advance from the proceeds, and will mature on various dates until October 31, 2015. In
2014, the Parent Company fully issued and received the proceeds of the P2.0 billion
short-term commercial papess, which were used to finanee the Parent Company’s working
capital requirements.

17.4 Bank Loans .

The bank loans represent secured loans from local commercial banks for working capital
purposes. The loans bear annual interest rates ranging fron 7.5% to 14.0% in 2014 and
2013, subject to monthly repricing. These loans are secured by certain vessels

(MT Chelsea Intrepid, MT BMI Patricia and MT Esnesto Uno) owned by the Group with
net revalued amount of P212.1 million and P201.9 million as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively {see Note 12,4}, and by certain stockholders [see Note 26.67%)].

17.5 Term Loans

(3} Term Loan Agieement (TLA) with Development Bank of the
Philippines (DBP) '

On September 12, 2007, the Group entered into a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Bxports Corporation for the constiuction of one unit of oil tanker in the amount of
US§15.0 million. In connection with the MOA, the Group entered into a TLA
amounting to US§13.0 million with DBP, the proceeds of which shall be exclusively
used to finance the construction of the vessel. In February 2008 and May 2009, DBP
granted the loan amounting to US§3.9 million (P159.0 million) and US$9.1 million
(P432.5 million), respectively. The loan is payable over five years in equal quarterly
principal mnstallments, with one quatter grace period on principal, commencing
November 2009 and was subjeet to 10.5% interest rate per annum. The loan was
fully settled in 2014.
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On October 30, 2014, the Group entered into a loan agteement with DB amountiag
to P140.0 million to finance the drydocking and tepaits and maintenance cxpenses of
MT Chelsea Resclute, MT Chelsea Cherylyn, MT Chelsea Denise and MT Jasaan. -
The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 5.0% and is ]ayable in cight equal
quarterly installments commencing on the first quarter from the initial drawdown.

In addition, the Group obtained 7160.0 million loan for CSC’s working capital
requirements. The loan bears a fixed interest rate of 5.0% per annum and is payable
in ten equal quarterly installments commencing on February 28, 2015.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage on certain vessel (MT Chelsea Cherylyn) of
the Group with net book value amounting to P824.8 million and P776.5 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The loan is also secured by certain
collateral on receivables of CSC and guaranteed by certain stockholders

[see Notes 7 and 26.6(b]]. )

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of Decetnber 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to ’300.0 million and P222.1 million, respectively.

(b) Loan Agreement with Robinsons Bank Cotporation (RBC)

In 2014, the Group obtained three bank loans from RBC totaling P62.2 million to
tinance the drydocking costs of MT Chelsea Denise. The Joan is subject to annual
interest rate of 6.3% and is payable in twelve equal monthly installments commencing
on the first month from the initial drawdown.

The loan is secured by a chattel mortgage on one of the vessels (MT Chelsea Dcnisej
of the Group with net book value amounting to P114.7 million and P124.2 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and receivables of CSC from certain
customer (see Note 7). The loan is also guaranteed by certain stockholders

[see Note 26.6(5]].

‘The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amonnted to P56.8 million.

(c) TLA with Maybank Philippines, Inc.

On July 18, 2012, the Parent Company signed with Maybank Philippines, Inc. a five |
year clean tertm loan amounting to P300.0 million to be used exclusively for capital
expenditure and permanent working capital. The Joan is subject to annual interest
rate of 6.0% and is payable in twenty equal quarterly installments.

In connection with the TLA, all existing and future adwances to the Patent Company
by its stockholders or related parties are subordinated to the loan. The Parent .
Cotnpany agrees that any and all of its obligattons relative to the TLA shall be settled
fiest before any of its financial obligations to such shareholders’ and refated parties’
advances are patd.
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The TLA also requires the Parent Company to maintain deb t-to-equity ratio of not
more than 3:1, current ratio of at least 1:1 and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5.

The outstanding balance of the loan as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
P165.0 million and P225.0 million, respectively. .
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has complied with its debt covenants
with the bank.

On October 28, 2014 and November 4, 2014, the Group obtained unsecured,
interest-bearing loans from Maybank Philippines, Inc. amounting to P100.0 million
for CSC’s working capital requirements,

(d) TLA with Maybank Intemational L.td.

On November 20, 2012, the Parent Company entered into a TLA amounting to
US$ 24.0 million with Maybank International Ltd. to fund various capital
expenditures. The total amount of the loan is broken down into TS$14.0 million
(tranche 1) which is due in five years and US$10.0 million (tranche 2) with a term of
three yeats.

The loan is subject to interest computed at one-year LIBOR plus applicable margin
of 4.25% per annun, or cost of funds plus a margin of 2.0% per annum, whichever is
higher. Interest payments are to be serviced quarterly in arrears. Maybank
Intetnational Ltd. reserves the right to vary, at its absolute discrerion from time to
time, such rate of interest, which vatiation may take place by varying the LIBOR ot
the margin or spread above the LIBOR, or both.

"The TLA also requites the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not
mote than 3:1, current ratio of at Jeast 1:1 and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5.  »

Moreover, Maybank Interaational Ltd. has the right of first refusal and right to match
any fond raising exercise that may be required to refinance the U.S. dollar-denominated
term facility esther via follow-on offering of the Parent Company’s shates or a
syndicated term loan.

The balance of the principal of the loan amounted to P451.2 million and
P723.9 million, translated into Philippine Peso using the closing rate as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respeetively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has eomplied with its debt covenants
with the bank.

17
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(e) TLA with Asia United Bank (AUB)

In 2013, the Group obtained intetest-bearing loans from AUB to partially finance
the acquisition of tug boats amounting to P100 million. The loan bears fixed
interest rate at 7.00% for the first three years from the initial drawdown date, and
shall be repriced at the end of the third year from the initial drawdown date

(the “Repricing Date™). The repriced rate shall be based on the relevant

2Y PDST-F as of the Repricing Date, plus a spread of 2.00% subject to a floor of
7.00%. The loan is payable in 18 quarterly installments over a period of five years.
"The first payment will commence on the third interest payment date from the initidl
drawdown date. The last quarterly installment of the loan is due on

November 6, 2018,

The interest-bearing loans amounted to P88.9 million and P100.0 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, of which P22.2 million and

P11.1 million, respectively, was presented under current liabilities section in the
consalidated statements of financial position.

Interest expense related to the loans amounted to P7.3 million and P1.1 million in
2014 and 2013, respectively, and is shown as patt of Finance Cost under QOther
Charges (Income) in the consolidated statements of compichensive income.

Certain trade recetvables amounting to P20.2 million and P8.2 million as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, were assigned to secure the payment of
these interest-beating loans (see Note 7).

The cutstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 amounted to P88.9 million and P100.0 million, respectively.

(D Loan Agreement witly Multinational Investment Bancorporation (MIB)

On December 29, 2014, the Group obtained an unsecuted, interest-bearing loans
from MIB totaling to P166.8 million for the CSC’s working capital requitements.
The loan is subject to annual interest rate of 4.3% and is payable in 30 days.

The outstanding balance of the principal of the note as of December 31, 2014
amounted to P166.8 million.

17.6 Obligations nnder Finance Lease

The finance lease liability has an effective interest rate of 5.1% which is cqual to the rate
implicit in the lease contract (see Note 30.5). Lease pagments are made on a monthly
bass.

17.7 Mortgage Payable

The mortgage payable represents secured loans which bear interest rates ranging from
7.6% to 11.4% per annum, and with terms ranping from 18 months to 36 months. The
maortgages are secnred by certzin service vehicles of the Group, presented as past of
Property and Equipment account in the consolidated statements of financial position
{see Note 12.4).
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17.8 Credir Line

"The Patent Company has an available credit line of P16.3 billion under LC/TR. These
lines obtained from vatous banks are being utilized by the Parent Commpany for
procutement of inventories both local and foreign. The credit line is sccured by the
following:

(@) Assignment of future receivables;

() Suretyship of PPHI and pledge of its share in the Parent Company amounting
to P46.9 million {at P1 par value);

(¢ Joint several signapure of certain stockholders; and,

(4) Negative pledge over the remaining shares of PPHI in Parent Company in favor
of the bank amounting to P1.1 billion.

Interest expense for 2014, 2013 and 2012 presented as part of Finance Costs in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to P728.2 million, P617.5
million and P467.4 million (see Note 22.1), respectively, net of the capitalized borrowing
cost of P70.7 million, P71.4 million and P77.8 million as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively (see Note 12.3).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists ofs

MNotes 2014 2012

Trade payables:
Third parties P3,375,09L,069 P 744,975,896
Related pacties 26.3, 26.5 9,156,631 1,981,597
3,384,247,700 746,957,493
Accrued expenses 211,559,670 362,111,496
Retention payable 42,699,144 106,903,516
Advances from customers 19,003,143 290,926,769
Income tax payable 4,236,452 9,608,080
Non-trade payables . 2,986,179 22,462,466
Others 30.8 69,837,707 31.457,507
P3.734,569,995 P 1,570,427.327

Accrued expenses mostly pertain to payables to various contractors for the construction of
retail stations that remain unpaid at the end of the year. In addition, this compiises
amounts to be paid in relation to charter hire cost, repairs and maintenance, interest
expense arising from loans and professional fees.

Retention payable is the amount withheld by the Group from its contractors for the
construction of buildings, depot and pier facilitics. The amount of retention, which is
equivalent to ten percent of the total contract price, is payable upon the completion and
tornover by the contractor of 2 construction project and the acceptance thereof by the
Group.
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Advances from customers pertain to the advance payment of the various customers for
their fuel purchases. Advances from customers are measured at the amount of cash
recelved from the customets and are offset agatnst trade receivables once the related
sales transactions ave consummated.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITTES :

This account consists of:

Note 2014 2013
Security deposits P 158,325,351 P 275,962,723
Unearned tent 438,922,071 49,726,176
Post-employment defined
benefit obligation 23.2 76,396,973 51,100,685

P 283644395 DI 376789584

v

Sccutity deposits reptesent deposits received from dealers for the lease of retail stations
and equipment that are installed in retafl stations. These deposits are refundable at the end
of the lease terms and are measured at amortized cost. The fair values on initial
recognition of the secutity deposits wete determined by calculating the present value of the
estimated future cash flows anticipated until the end of the lease terms using the market
intetest rate of comparable financial instrument at the inception of the lease. Meanwhile,
interest on subsequent amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method
amounted to P1.0 million, P0.8 tmllion and P1.0 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and is presented as patt of Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 22.1).

The excess of the principal amount of the secusity deposit over its present value is
recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as unearned rent. '
Subsequent amortization of the unearned tent amounted to P1.1 miilion, P0.8 million and
P0.9 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and is ptesented as patt of Rent and
Storage Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

e
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20. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

This account is composed of the following as of December 31:

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Cost of fuels and
lubricants sold 20.1 P 30,730,192,895 P 39,785,623,650 P 31,444710,716
Cost of services 20.2 658,586,000 460,109,294 517,038,697
Cost of real estate sold 21 15,725,034 2433131 - .
26.2 31.404,503,935 P 40248 166,084 P_31.961749.413

20.1 Cost of Fuels and Lubricants Sold
The cost of fuels and lnbticants sold are broken down as follows:

Note 2014 2013 2012

Inventories at

beginning of year 8 P 3,812,532,673 P 3688759676 P  2,132,622,405

Net purchases

duting the year 29,788.489,291 39.909,396,656 33.000.847 987
Goods available for sale 33,601,021,964 43 598,156,332 35,133,470,392
Inventoties at

end of year 8 (__2.870.829.069) (_ 3.812.532.673) (___3,688.759,676)

P 30,730,192,805 P 39785623650 P 31444710716

20.2 Cost of Services

Dietails of cost of services are shown below:

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Depreciation and

amortization 126,15 P 251,458,416 P 194146483 P 147,371,900
Salaries and

craployee benefits 72,059,949 50,522,176 29,065,941
Charter hire fees 69,693,786 34,795,266 71,143,057
Repairs and

maintenatce 49,642,029 24,474,791 19,611,488
Port expenses 45,644,274 23,934 889 58,257,723
Bunkering 42,813,138 11,540,954 106,973,168
Professional fees 38,960,794 43,589,983 42,067,106
Insurance 36,861,986 34,095,778 25,320,701
Setvice fees 26.5 33,584,854 20,611,959 - .
Taxes and licenses 11,384,037 11,593,974 7,745,126
Qutside services 1,772,671 1,487,408 -
Security setrvices 1,755,920 1,644,570 1,210,469
Fuel, gas and lubricants 119,716 4,798,629 4,974 245
Others 2,834,436 2472434 3288683

P___ 658,586,006 P 460109294 P 217,038,697
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21, COSTS AND EXPENSES BY NATURE

"The details of the Group’s eosts and expenses by natute are shown below.

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Cost of sales:

Fuels P 30,543,127,456 D 39,571,822572 P 31,046,564,548

Lubtieants 187,065,439 213,801,087 398,146,168
Depreciation

and amottization 12,15 660,281,915 528,400,077 405,815,569
Rent 15, 26.3,30.3 390,370,058 364,369,594 240,876,571
Salaries and

employee benefits 231 329,362,174 287,613,201 208,734,347
Taxes and licenses 149,610,326 118,231,983 132,946,735
Advertising and

promotions 123,571,860 176,373,387 84,473,675
Repairs and maintenance 117,868,813 69,675,294 61,023,908
Rebates 112,198,227 49,470,808 40,802,132
Service fees 105,133,477 81,910,722 81,392 862
Tnsutance 85,836,811 62,357,917 49,923 821
Charter hitre fees 69,693,786 34,795,266 33,546,169
Fuel, oil and Iubrieants 54,440,905 33,792,075 49339252
Utilities 51,773,260 49,221,472 33,806,011
Professional fees 49,116,948 02,185,195 85,399,457
Port expenses 45,644,274 23,559,968 59,299 038
Secutity fees 45,583,946 33,738,550 26,108,756
Bunkering 42,813,138 13,420,044 62,899,266
Travel and transportation 40,475,571 40,005,732 35,184,779
QOutside services 31,638,406 6,853,856 9,585,134
Freight charges 16,800,518 56,992,995 50,386,551
Representation 16,729,142 18,658,934 12,761,925
Cost of real estate sold 20 15,725,034 2,433,131 -
Office supplies 10,052,801 10,668,819 12,775,030
Sales incentives 5,491,456 17,133,225 960,783
Ticking charges - 267,300,218 130,451,226
Handling and

processing fees - - 9,285,094
Miscellaneous 26.8 20,924,371 14,840,100

72922212

P 33.321,330,112 P 42239626232 P 33435411019

g2y
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The expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as

follows:
Note 2014 2013 2012
Cost of sales and
services 20 P 31,404,503,935 P 40,248,166,084 T 31,961,749,413
Selling and
administrative
expenses 1,916.826,177 1.991,460.138 1,473 661,606

P _33.321,330,112 D 42239626222 P 33435411019

22, FINANCE INCOME (COSTS)
The breakdown of these accounts follows:
22,1 Finance Costs

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Interest expense on
banlt ioans and
other horrowings 17 P 728,178,099 P 617,451,097 P 467,358,205
Impairment losses
on trade and .
other receivables 7 40,077,464 17,959,002 37,851,057
Foreign currency
exchange
losses — net 19,247,244 27,100,014 -
Bank charges 9,455,061 3,343,182 11,969,046
Loss on settlement of ‘ ‘
insurance clzims 7 3,898,441 - -
Interest expense from '
post-employment

defined benefit

obligation — net 23.2 2,296,995 2,413,691 1,499,078
Interest expense from .

security deposits 19 984,592 762,178 1,043,107

P 804,137,896 P 669030064 P 519,720,493
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22 2 Financc lncome

Notes 2014 2013 2012

.

Interest income from

cash in banks 6 P 2,750,097 P 7831603 P 0406440
Interest income on

amortzation of

rental deposits 15 644,746 649,974 1,161,552
Foreign cutrency
exchange gains —net - - 14.061.359

P 3394843 P __R481577 D 24629351

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
23,1 Salaties and Employee Beneffts Expcnse

Lxpenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are presented below.

Notes 2014 2013 2012
Short-term benefits:
Salaries and wages P 283,624,069 P 225401,424 P 91,118,445
Employee welfare
and other benefits 23,142,795 42,348,608 101,719,266
13" month pay and
bonuses 11,618,034 10,645,506 10,975,301
Post-employment
defined benefit 23.2 10,977,276 9,217,663 4921335

21 PB_329362,174 P 287,613.201 P 208734347
23.2 Post-employmcnt Defined Benefir Plan '

(@) Characteristics of the Defined Bengfit Plan

In 2014, the Gronp has maintained a partially funded, tax-qualified, noncontribntory
post-employment defined benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee bask that
is legally separated from the Group. The trustee bank managed the fund in coordination
with the Group’s management who acts in the best interest of the plan assets and is
responsible for setting the investment policies. The post-employment plan covers all
regular full-time employees.

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of 5 years of credited service. Normal
retitement benefit is an amount equivalent to 75% of the final monthly covered
compensation {average monthly basic salary during the last 12 months of credited
service) for every year of credited service.

ez
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(b)  Exiplanation of Amonnts Presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the setirement benefit costs and the
amount of contributions. All amounts presented below are based on the actuarial
valuation report obtained from an independent actuary in 2014 and 2013,

The 2mounts of post-employment defined benefit obligation, which is presented as part
of Other Non-current Liabilities account {see Note 19} in the consolidated statements of
financial position, ate determined as follow:

2014 2013
Present value of obligation P 88,610,880 P 51,100,685
Fair value of plan assets ( 12,213,907) -

P 76,396,973 P_51100.685

The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined besefit obligation
recognized in the books ate as follows: )

204 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 51,100,685 P 36,440,105
Current service cost 10,977,276 9,217,663
Interest expense 2,751,078 2,413,691
Remeasutements:
Actuarial losses (gains) atising from:

Experience adjustments 14,461,165 37,016,452

Changes in financial assumptions 6,981,384 7,880,254

Changes in demographic assumptions 3,643,648 {  41,748,870)
Benefits paid ( 1,304,356) { 118,610)
Balance at end of year P 88610880 P 51100685

The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below.
2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year )i - P -
Contributions to the plan 18,661,947 -
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) ( 6,131,55G) -

Benefits pad ( 770,567) -
Interest mncome 454,083 - '
Balance at end of year P 1221397 P -
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The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting petiod by
category and risk characteristics is shown below.

2014 ‘ 2013
Cash and cash equivalents r 100,624 T -
Quoted equity securities:
Telecommunications 2,460,120 -
Manufacturing 2.449.440 -
4,909,560 -
Unit investment trust funds (UITI) 7,203,723 -

P 12213907 I -

The fair value of the above investment is determined based on quoted market prices in
active markets (classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy),

The plan assets incurred a negative return of P6.1 million in 2014

Plan assets do not comprise any of the Group’s own financial instruments or any of its
assets occupied and/or used in its operations.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income in respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows:

Notes 2014 2013 2012

Reported in profit or foss:
Current service cost 231 P 10,977,276 P 9,217,663 P 4,921,335
Net interest
expense 221 2,296,995 2,413,691 1,499.0178

P 13274271 P 11631334 P 6420413

Reported in otber
comprebensive invonse:
Acmartal Iosses
(gains) arising
from changes in:
Experience
adjustments P 14461165 P 37016452 P 13,678,177
Financial
assumptions 6,981,384 7,880,254 ( 371,380)
Demographic )
assumptions 3,643,648 ¢ 41,748,870) -
Retutn on plan
assets (excluding
amounts included
in net interest
expense) 6,131,556 - -

P 31217753 D 3147836 P 13306797
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Cutrent service cost is presented as part of salaries and employee benefits under Selling
and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated staternents of comprehensive income
{see Note 23.1).

The net interest expense is included as paitt of Finance Costs under the Other Charges
(Income) account (see Note 22.1).

In determining the amounts of the defined benefit post-employment obligation, the
following significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2014 2013 2012
Discount rates 4.49% to 4.78% 4.60% to 5.32% 5.20% to 6.20%
Hxpected rate of snlary
incteases 5.00% to 8.00% 5.00% to 8.00% 5.00% to 7.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on published statistics and
mortality tables. These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance

of an independent actuary. Discount factors are determined close to the end of each
reporting period by reference to the interest rates of a zero coupon government bond
with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the retirement obligation. Other
assumptions are based on curtent actarial benchmarks and management’s historical
expetience.

{t) Rivkr Avsociated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, intecest rare risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

(i) Investment and Iniereit Rivk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated wsing a discount
rate determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a
decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bond will increase the plan
obligation. owever, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on
the plan’s investinents and if the return on plan asset falls below this rate, it will
create a defrcit in the plan, Currently, the plan has investment in cash and cash
equivalents, quoted equity securities and UTTF.

() Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the defincd benefit obligation is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both duting and after
their employment, and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the Jife
expectancy and salary of the plan patticipants will result in an increase in the plan
obligation.

.

.
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() Other Information

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions
and the titing and uncertainty of futute cash flows related to the retirernent plan are
described below.

(i) Seniittvity Analysis

"The following table summarizes the effects of changes i the significant actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of the post-employment defined benefit
obligation as of December 31:

2014

Impact on Poy t-emplovment Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Assumption

Discoint rate +/-1.0% (P 8,001,285) P 9,813,193
Salary increase rate +/-1.0% 8,761,574 ( 7,364,342)
2013
Impacet on Post-employment Benefit Qbligation
Change in Increase in Di¢erease in

Assumption Assumnption Assnmption

Discount rate +/-1.0% (P 4520,745) P 5438812
Salary increase rate +/-1.0% 4,865,011 ( 1,166,542

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding
all other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the
actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one anothet as some of the assumptions
may be corrclated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in
the consolidated staternents of financial posttion.

"The methods 2nd types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did
not change compared to the previous years.




=72

(#) Asser-liability Matuhing Strategies

To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Group through its BOD, ensures ‘
that the investment positions are managed in accordance with its assct-liability
matching strategy to achieve that long-term investments are in line with the
obligations under the retitement scheme. A large portion of the plan assets as of
December 31, 2014 is allocated to UTTF.

(15} Funding Arrangements and Fisgpected Contributions

As of December 31, 2014, the plan is underfunded by P76.4 million based on the
latest actuarial valuation. While thete are no minimum funding trequitement in the
country, the size of the may pose a cash flow risk in about 21 yeats' time when a
significant number of employees is expected to retire. .

The Group expects to make contribution of P1.9 million to the plan during the
next reporting period.

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected henefit payments from the plan
within ten years as of Deccmber 31, follows:

2014 2013
Within one yeat P 18,890,357 P 11,722,940
More than one year to five yeats 21,183,125 101,885,698
More than five yeats to ten years 39,055,703 34.341,627

P 79129185 D 56950265

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period is 21 years.
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24, REGISTRATION WITH THE BOARD OF INVESTMENTS

24.1 BOI Registeation as New Industry Participant — Batangas Depot

The Parent Company was registered with the Board of Investments (BOI} on

February 26, 2010 a5 a new industry participant with new investment in storage, .
marketing and distribution of petroleum products under Republic Act (RA) 8479,
Downitreans Ol Indusiry Dereguiation Ae, for its storage tanks tn Calaca, Batangas. Under
is registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific
terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Gode of
1987,

Under its registration, the Parent Company is also entitled to certatn tax and non-tax
ineentives as follows:

{a) Income tax holiday (ITH) for five yeats from February 26, 20190, without extension
or bonus year from the date of registration;

() Additional deduction from taxable income of 50% of the wages corresponding to
the iecrement in the number of direct Iabor for skilled and unskilled workers in the
yeat of availment as against the previous year if the project meets the prescribed
ratio of capital equipment to number of workers set by the board of not more than
US$10,000 to one worker and provided that this incentive shall not be availed of
simultaneously with the ITH;

(¢ 'The Parent Company may qualify to import capital requirement, spare parts and
accessories at zero percent (0%) from the date of tegistration up fo June 16, 2011
pursuant to the Executive Order No. 528 and its implementing rules and
regulations, .

Special transport equipment such as but not limited to tanks, trucks/lorries may be

imported with incentives subject to land transportation operation recuirements;

(d) 'l'ax credit on domestic capital equipment shall be granted on locally fabricated
capital equipment;

() 1mportation of consigned equipment for a period of five years from the date of
registration, subject to posting of a re-export bond; and,

(/) Othet non-fiscal incentives, which may be applicable.

24.2 BOI Registration as New Industry Participant — Zam boanga Depor

The Patcnt Company was also registered with the BOI on November 25,2010 as a new
industry participant with new investment in storage, marketing and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 for its storage tanks in Talisayan, Zamboanga City.
Under its registration, the Parent Company is tequired to observe certain general and
specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code
of 1987.
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Under its registration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating to Zamboanga Depot is
also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned in N ote 24.1. The
ITH will expire five years from November 25, 2010,

24.3 BOI Registration for the New Investment in Dovwnstream Oil Industry
Activities — Davao Expansfon

On May 14, 2010, the Parent Company was tegistered with the BOI for the new
investment in downstream oil industty activities under RA 8479 for the additional two
storage tanks for petroleum products with storage capacity of 7.4 million liters in Davao
depot. Under its registration, the Parent Company shall be entitled to avail of the
incentives as cited in the previous page. However, ITH for five years from May 14, 2010
is subjected to the base figure of 148.2 million liters representing the Parent Company’s
highest attained sales volume of its existing depot facilities (in Davao Depot) prior to the
Glling of application for registration of new investment.

24.4  BOI Registration for New Investment — Bacolod Storage Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOT as a new industry
patticipant with new investment in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk
matketing of pettoleum products under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Bacolod
City. Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general
and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments
Code of 1987.

Under its tegistration, the Parent Company’s transaction relating to Bacolod storage
tetminal is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned in the
previous page. The I'TH will expite five years from May 10, 2012.

24.5 BOI Registration for New Investment — Caga wvan e Oro City Storage
Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOT as 2 new industry
participant with new investment in storage, marketing and disttibution and bulk
marketing of petroleum products under RA 8479 for its stotage terminal in Bacolod
City. Under its registration, the Parent Company is tequired to observe certain general
and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments
Code 0f 1987,

Under its registration, the Parent Company’s transaction telating Cagayan de Oro City
storage terminal is also enfitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned
in the previous page. The ITH will expire five yeats from May 10, 2012.
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24.6  BOI Registration for MT Chelsea Thelma and MT' Cherylyn

On Nevember 23, 2011 and December 10, 2008, CSC had registered its activity for
MT Chelsea Thelma and MT Cherylyn, respectively, with the BOI under Executive
Order No. 226, otherwise known a5 the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987 as a new
operator of domestic/interisland shipping on a ploneet status. Asa registered entity,
CSC 15 entitled to tax and non-tax incentives which include a six-year TTH. For

MT Cherylyn, the related tax incentives started in April 2009, Meanwhile, the tax
incentive for MT Chelsea Thelma started in November 2011, TTH incentives shafl be
limited only to the revenues generated by the registered project.

24.7 BOI Registtation for M Chelsea Donatela

On September 3, 2013, PNX — Chelsea had registered its activity for MT Chelsea -
Donatela with the BOT under Executive Order No. 226 as 2 new operator of
domestic/inter-island shipping on a pioneer status. As a registered entity, the

PNX — Chelsea is entitled to tax and non-tax incentives which include a six-year ITH.
The related tax incentives started in January 2014. TTH incentives shall be litnited only
to the revenues generated by the registered project.

25. TAXES

The compaonents of tax expensc as reported in the consolidated profit or loss and in the
consolidated other comprehensive income follow:

2014 2013 : 2012
Reporied in profiz or loss:
Current tax cxpensc:
Regular corporate income
tax (RCIT) at 30% P 32,174,095 P 28,432.954 P 14,677,522
Minimum corporate income ,
tax (MCIT) at 2% 3,998,694 1,822,943 462,671
Final tax at 20% and 7.5% 610.696 1,509,944 1,564,032
36,783,485 31,765,841 16,704,225
Deferrcd tax expense (income) .
relating to ofigination and
reversal of temporary
differences { 33,992,758) ( 30,386.688) 3,169,323

P 2,790,727 I 1,379,153 P 19,873,548

Reporszd in oiber comprebensive income:
Deferred tax expense
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary

differences P 29,334.251 P 1109855 P 95.550.091
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A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax
expense reported in the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

2014 2013 2012

Tax on pretax profit at 30% P 185,746,110 P 199,931,027 P 201,355,110
Adjustment for income

subjected to lower

income tax rates ( 330,316) 839,537)( 1,257,900)
Tax effects of

Adjustiment for income and

expenses under ITH ( 189,717,081) ( 201,393,953) ( 186,809,228)
Derecognition of previously

unrecognized deferred

tax assets 2,812,324 - -
Non-deductible expenses 2,554,185 3,633,628 11,600,817
Reversal of net operating .

loss carry over (INOLCQO) 1,097,619 - 354,713

Reversal of MCIT 673,510 - -
Non-taxable income ( 102,149) - ( 5,392,024
Unrecognized defetred tax

asset 56,525 47,988 22,060

Tax expense tepotted
in profit ot loss P 2,790,727 P 1379153 P 19,873,548
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The amounts of NOLCO and the applicable years these are valid and deductible from
the taxable income are shown below.

Qriginal Valid
Taxable Years Atnount Tax Fffect Until
2014 P 111,422978 P 33,426,893 2017
2013 14,139,899 4,241,970 2016
2012 18,714 721 5614416 2015

44 2 D 43283279

Deferred tax asset on NOLCO of PGMI amounting to P0.1 million and P0.2 million as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was not recognized since management
assessed that this is not recaverable as PGMI does not expect any taxable income in the
coming years.

The Group is suhject to the MCIT which is computed at 2% of gtoss income, as defined
under the tax regulations or RCIT, whichever is higher. SPTT*s MCIT was higher than
RCIT in 2014. PPIPC’s MCIT was higher than RCIT for the years 2013 and 2012. PPMI’s:
MCTT was higher than RCIT for all the years presented.

The amounts of MCIT and the applicable years that are valid and deductible from future
regular income tax payable are shown below.

Excess of .
Normal MCIT over Valid
Taxable Years Income Tax MCIT Income Tax Tax Effect Until

2014 P P 3998964 P 3998964 P 3998064 2017

2013 - 6,433,147 6,433,147 6433147 2016

2012 - 88177 88177 88177 2015
P__- P10,520.288 P 10520288 P10,520,288

In 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Group claimed itemized deductions in computing for its income
tax due.

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include the ultimate parent company, the parent company,
stockbolders, the Group’s key management personnel, entities under common
ownership by the ultimate parent company and others as deseribed in the succeeding

pages. .
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The summary of the Group’s transactions with its related parties as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the years ended Diecember 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 is presented below.

Related Party Amount of Transactions Outstanding Balance
Category Notes 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013

.

Other related parties
under common

ownership
Sale of goods 7,261 P 1473214 P 39,139,112 P 125553735 P 25,524,583 P 37,334,220
Purchascs of services  26.2 - - 654,413,710 - -
Advances to
suppliers 7,262 10,024,800 - - 10,024,800 2,000,000
Rentals 18,263 66,398,252 43,119,800 53,004,744 7,145,631 -
Due from related
pattics 26.4 7,625,362 ( 5,552,006)(  15,311,686) 10,373,356 2,747,924
Due to related
[atties 264 ( 46,956,518)( 21,390,502) 24371146 17,204,725 62,161,243
Donations 26.8 200,000 1,500,500 5,208,172 . .
Associate '
Teehnieal ship
Setvices 18,20.2, 26.5 33,584,854 15,842,825 - 2,011,000 1,981,597
Other related party
Due to telated
pattics 26.4 - - - - 2,000,000
Key management
personnel
Salaries and
emplayec
bencfits 26.7 54,692,790 50,027,748 45,610,775 - -
26.1 Sale of Goods |

The Group sells products to certain related parties under common ownership. Goods
are sold on the basis of the price lsts in force with non-related parties. Revenues aristng
from. these transactions are presented as part of Sale of Goods in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. The outstanding receivables from sales of goods
to other rejated parties are presented as part of Trade Receivables under the Trade and

Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position
{see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from trelated patties are unsecured, do not bear any interest
and collectible in cash on demand. No impairment loss was recognized in 2014, 2013
and 2012 based on management’s assessment. .

26.2 Purchases of Setvices

In 2012, the Group purchased services from related parties under common ownership
on the basis of price lists in force with non-related parties. The amount of transaction is
presented as part of the Cost of Sales and Services account in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 20). There is no related outstanding
payable as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
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In 2014, the Group advanced a certain amount to a related party undet comnmon
ownership for the purchase of services. The amonnt is credited upon the performance
of the contractual obligation by the related patty. The outstanding advances, which are
unsecured and non-interest-bearing, are presented as patt of advances to suppliers undcr
Trade and Other Receivables account in the 2014 consolidated staterment of financial
position (see Note 7).

26.3 Rentals

The Group has the following lease agreements with the following related parties under «
common ownetship:

{a) Udenna Corporation — of which total rent expense incurred in the years 2014, 2013
and 2012 amounted to P7.4 million, P6.5 million and P6.6 million, respectively. The
outstanding rental payable amounting to P7.1 million and nil in 2014 and 201 3,
respectively, is presented as part of trade payables under Trade and Other Payables
in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 18).

() Udenna Development (UDEVCO) Corporation — of which total rent expense in
2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P47.3 million, P28.5 million and P26.4 million,
respectively. Rental deposit for the lease amounted to P6.4 million and P7.1 million
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is presented as part of
refundable tental deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 15).

(5 Valueleases, Inc. — of which total rent expense in 2014, 2013 aad 2012 amounted to
Pi1.7 million, P8.1 million and P20.0 million, respectively. Refundable Rental
Deposits amonnted to P6.1 million and P0.1 million as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively, and is presented as patt of refundable rental deposits under Other
Non-cutrent Assets in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 15).

The rent expenses aforementioned ate presented as past of Selling and Administrative
Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Notes 21 and 30.3). :

26.4 Due from and Due to Related Parties

The Group grants and obtains unsecured advances to and from related parties undet
common ownership for working capital requirements and other purposes.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding recetvable and payable balances
from these advances are shown as Due From Related Parties and Due to Related Parties,
respectively, in the consolidated statements of financial position. Due from Related
Parties and Due to Related Parties - curzent are either receivable in cash or paid through
offsetting, unsecured non-interest-bearing liabilities and are expected to be paid within
one year. Non-current Due to Related Parties, on the other hand, are unsecured .
non-interest-bearing Habilities, These are stated at their carrying value since the date of
repayment is not currently determinable,
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Due from related parties represent outstanding advances tc PhoenixPhilippines
Feundatien, Inc. (PPFL), a foundaticn created by the Group, amounting to P10.4 million
as of December 31, 2014, and outs tanding advances to Udenna Environmental Services,
Inc., an entity under common ownership, amounting to P2.7 million as of

December 31, 2013.

The movement of Due frem Related Pasties as of December 31 is as follows:

2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 2747994 P 8,300,000
Additions 10,373,356 17,362,078
Collections ( 2,747,994) ( 22.914.084)
Balance at end of year P_ 1037335 P 2.747,994 )

Ne impairment loss is recognized in 2014, 2013 and 2012 related to advances to
related partes.

The breakdown of the Due to Related Parties as of December 31 is as follows:

2014 2013

Related parties under
common ownetship P 17,204,725 P 62,161,243
Other related party - 2.000.000
The movement of Due to Related Parties in 2014 and 2013 follovws:

2034 2013
Balance at beginning of year P 064,161,243 P 85,551,745
Payments ( 46,956,518) ( 21.390,502)
Balance at end of year P 17204725 P 64161243

26.5 Technical Ship Services Agreement

© On April 1, 2013, the Group entered into a Technical Ship Services Agreement

(the Agreement) with NPMSC, a newly incorparated associate of CSC. Under the
Agreement, NPMSC shall carry out technical services in respect of C5C’s tanker vessel
as agents for and on behalf of the CSC. NPMSC’s responsibilities include crew
management, technical management, accounting services, and the arrangement for the
supply of provisions.
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Total technical ship services fee incurred amounting to P33.6 million and P15.8 million
in 2014 and 2013, respectively, is presented as part of Service Fees under the Cost of
Sales and Setvices account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 20.2), while the refated outstanding liability (unsecured and non-interest
bearing) of P2.0 million as of both December 31, 2014 and 2013 is presented as part of
Trade and Other Payables in the consolidated statements of financial position ;
(see Note 18).

26,6 Loan Collateral

() Surety and a negative pledge over the temaining shates of a stockholder secured the
liabdlities under LC and TR (seec Note 17.1).

) The TLA with DBP, QLSA with BDO and PBComm, loan agreement with RBC
and certain banks Joans of the Group were guaranteed by certain stockhalders
through a surety agreement with the respective banks,

26.7 Key Management Compensations

The compensation of key management personnel are broken down as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Salaries and wages P 43,955,837 P 40,724,453 P 36,822,265
13" month pay and bonuses 5,567,610 4,586,418 4.129,412
Honoratla and allowances 4,894,118 4,447,058 4,416,398
Post-employment benefits 275,225 269,819 242,700

P 54,692,790 P 50027748 P__45610.775

3

26.8 Others

The Group has made donations amounting to P0.2 million, P0.5 million and P1.5 million
in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, to Udenna Foundation, Inc., a non-stock, non-profit
organization established by the ultimate parent company. In addition, the Group has also
made donations amounting to nil, P1.0 million and P3.8 million in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, to PPFI, a non-stock non-profit organization established by the Parent
Company. The donations are presented as part of miscellaneous under Selling and

Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of compyrehensive income
(see Note 21}



27. EQUITY

27.1 Capital Stock

Capital stock consists of:

Treefereed — cumulative,
nonvoting,
nen-participating,
non-convertible jnte
common sharms -

P1 par value

Authovized:

Issued and outstanding

Common shares ~ 1 par vatue
Authorized:
Balnce at beginning of year

Increase in authorived stock

Balance at end of year
Trgued:

Balance at begioning of year

Iasusnce during the year

Stesck dividends

Reclassification

Balance at end of yeac
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Shares ‘Amount
2014 2013 22 2014 2015 2012
.
—50.000,000 __S6000060 __ 50600000 B_S0.000000 [_50.000.009 P __50000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000 500000 I 5000000 P__ 5000000 P 5.000.000
2,500,000,000  2,500,000,000 750,000,000 P2,500,000,000 P2,500,000,000 P 750,000,000
- - 1,750,000,000 - - 250, [
£,500,000,600 2500000000 2500000000 P2,500000,060 PAS00,000000 P ),
1,428,777,232 906,059,416 480,872215  P1,428,777,232 I 006,050,416 1 489,872,215
- 193,600,000 171,250,799 - 193,0N0,000 171,250,799
- 329,717,816 244,936,202 - 329,717,816 214,936,202
- - 200 - - 200
48777232 1428777202 906050415 PL426771.232 PIAZBIIIZA2 P 906059;

P1433,777.432 P1413,777.232

P_911059.416

On April 23, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s increase in authorized
capital stock from P800.0 million divided into 750.0 million common shates with a par

value of P1 and 50.0 million preferred shares with par value of P1 per share into

¥

P2,550.0 million divided into 2,500.0 common shares with par value of P1 pet share and
50.0 million preferred shates with par value of P1 per share.
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The prefetred shares shall have the tollowing features:
(@) Non-convertible iato common sbares;

(5) Non-patticipating in any other cotporation activities or otber further dividends,
non-voting, except i cases specified by law;

(z)  No pre-emptive rights over the bolders of common shares as to distaibution of net
assets in the event of dissolution of liquidation and in the papment of dividends at a
specified rate. The BOD shall determine its issued value at the time of issuance and
shall determine its dividend rates and the dividends shall be paid cumulatively; and,

(4) "Tbe preferred shates shall be redeemable at the Parent Company’s option under
stch terms as the BOD may provide at the time of issuance. It shall also be re-
isstiable when fully redeemed.

Moreover, preferted shates bave the following features among others as provided in the
subscription agreement;

(@) Dividends on the Preferred Shares shall have a fixed rate of 11.50% per annnm
calculated in respect of each share with reference to the Issue Price thereof in
respect to each dividend period.

(5) Dividends shall be payable every September 21, December 21, March 21 and
June 21 of each year (each 2 “Dividend Payment Date™). The dividends on
the Preferred Shates shall be calculated on a 30,/360 day basis and shall be
paid quarterly in arrears on the last day of each 3-month dividend period
(each a Dividend Payment Date), as and if declared by the BOD. If the Dividend
Payment Date is not a banking day, dividends shall be paid on the next succeeding
banking day, without adjustment as to the amounts of dividends to be Jraid,

(¢ The Preferred Shates shall have priotity in the payment of dividends at the
stipulated rate at the time of issuance and in the distribution of cotpotate assets in
the event of liquidation and dissoluton of the Parent Company.” As such, the BOD
to the extent permitted by law shall declate dividends each quarter sufficient to pay
the eqnivalent dividend. Dividends on the shares shall be camulative. If for any
reason the Parent Company’s BOD does not declate a dividend on the Preferred
Shares for a particular dividend period, the Parent Company shall not pay a
dividend for said dividend period. However, on any future Dividend Payment Date
on which dividends are declared, the holders of the shares shall receive the
dividends accrued and unpaid to the holdets of the Preferred Shares ptiot to such
Dividend Payment Date. Holders of Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to
participate in any other further dividends beyond the dividends specifically payable
on the Preferred Shares.

"

Moteover, the subscription agreement requires that the Parent Company undertakes to
maintain a long-term debt to equity ratio of 1:1 throughout the life of the preferred
shares.

On December 20, 2013, the Parent Company redeemed the preferred shares issued in
2010 and re-issued the same amount and features of preferred shares except for the rate,
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which was reduced to 8.25% per annum

Based onits plans, the BOD of the Parent Company will also declare and distribute cash
dividends in 2015 out of the Patent Company’s tetained earnings as of

December 31, 2014,

27.2 Listing with PSE

On July 11, 2007, the Parent Company offered a portion of its stocks for listing with the
PSE. Number of common shares registered was 29.0 million with an issue price of
P9.80. As of December 31, 2014, the number of holders of such securities is 62. The
matket price of the Parent Company’s shares as of December 31, 2014 is P3.09. The
total number of issued shares not listed with the PSE amounted to P116.0 million

shares,

"The history of public offerings and private placements of the shares of the Parent
Company lodged at PSE are as follows:

Transaction Subscriber Issue Date Number of Shiares
Initial public offering ~ Various July 11, 2007 29,000,000
30% stock dividends Various August 6, 2008 43,000,198
40% stock dividends Various August 3, 2009 73,660,476
Placement Social Security System  November 13, 2009 7,500,000
40% stock dividends Various QOctober 20, 2010 107,664,266
30% stock dividends Various May 6, 2011 113,047 475
50% stock dividends Various Apiil 26, 2012 : 244 936,203
Shares issuance for
CS3C acquisition UMRC September 6, 2012 171,250,798
Placement Various March 11, 2013 130,000,000
30% stock dividends Varlous June 10, 2013 329,717,816
Payment of
subscription PPHI Qctober 8, 2013 63,000,000
1,312 232

27.3 Additional Pard-in Capital

In 2013, the Parent Company issued 130.0 million of its common shates at P9.40 per share
and 63.0 million commuon shares at P5.10 per share. The excess of the par value for such
subscriptions amounting to P1,350.3 million was recorded as part of Additional Paid-in
Capital account. In addition, direct cost of the share issuances amounting to

P34.1 million was deducted fiom the Additional Paid-in Capital account.

In 2012, the Parent Company issaed 171,250.8 million shares in favor of UMRC in
relation to the shate-for-share swap acquisition of CSC (see Note 1.3). The business
combination under commeon control was accounted for under pooling of interest-type
method, The excess of par value of such issuance amounted to P1,248.9 million was
secorded as part of the beginning balance of the Additional Paid-in Capital account.
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In 2010, the Parent Company issued 5.0 million of its preferred shares at P100 per share.
The excess of pat value for such subscription amonnting to P495.0 million was recorded
as patt of Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial
position. In addition, the excess of the selling pricc over the acquisition cost of the
treasury shases sold in 2010 also constitutes the Additional Paid-in Capital account, The
preferred shares issued in 2010 wete redeemed on December 20, 2013 and on the same
date, the same share and vahie of preferred shares were issued, except for the reduced ratc.

In 2009, the Social Secutity System has bought an initiai 2.83% stake in the Parent
Company representing 7.5 willion subscribed common shares for P42.0 million or at
P5.60 per shate. The excess of par value for such subsctiption amounting to P34.5 million
was recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

In 2007, the Pareut Company listed its shares of stock with PSE. Premiums received in
excess of the par value during the public offering amounting to P227.1 million werc
recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

274 Other Reserves

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171,250.8 million commeon shares plus cash of
P157.8 million in exchange of the net assets of CSC. The acquisition of CSC is accounted
for under business combination using pooling-of-intetest method whetein the difference
hetween the consideration given up over the carying value of the net assets of CSC is
recognized as Other Reserves (see Note 2.3).

27.5 Revaluation Reserves

‘The components and veconciliation of items of other comprehensive income presented in
the consolidated statements of changes in equity at their aggregate amount under
Revaluation Reserves account, are shown below and on the succeeding page.

Defined
Property and Benefit

Equipment Obligation Total -

Balance as of Januvary 1, 2014 D 286,554 327 (P 13,932.556) P 272621771

Remeasurements of defined
post-employment

obligation - 31,217,753) ( 31,217,753y
" Revaluation of tankers 180,637,550 - 180,637,550

Depreciation transfer to

tetained earnings —

revalued tankers { 29.384.140) - ( 29.384.140)
Other comprehensive

income {Joss) before tax 151,253,410 ( 31,217,753) 120,035,657
'l'ax income (expense) { 29.884.334) 9.365,325 ( 20,519,009
Other compxehensive

income (loss) after tax 121,369,076 ¢ 21,852.428) 59,516,648

Balance as of

December 31, 2014 P 407,923,403 (P 35,784,984) P 372,138,419

249
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Defined
Property and Benefit .
Equipment Obligation Total

Balance as of January 1, 2013 P 294152102 (P 11729079 P 282,423 030
Remeasnrements of defined
post-employment

obligation - 3,147,836) ( 3,147,836)
Revaluation of tankers 6,847,358 - 6,847,358
Depreciation transfer to

retained earnings —

revalued tankers ( 17.701.323) - { 17,701.323)
Other comprehensive

loss before tax ( 10,853,965) ( 3,147,836) ( 14,001,801)
Tax income 3,256,190 944,352 4,200,542
Other comprehensive

loss after tax ( 1.597.775) ( 2,203 484) ( 9.801.259)
Balancc as of

December 31, 2013 P 286,554 327 (P 13,932,556) P 272621771

Balance as of Jannary 1, 2012 P 73,957,965 (P 2414314 P 71.543.651
Remeasurements of defined
post-employment

obligation - 13,306,797) ( 13,306,797)
Revaluation of tankers 331,807,097 - 331,807,097
Depreciation transfer to

retained earnings —

revalued tankers ( 17,244.043) - ( 17.244 043)
Other comprehensive income

{loss) before tax 314,563,054 ( 13,306,797) 301,256,257
Tax income (expense) { 94 368.917) 3.992.039 { 90,376.878)
Other compreheasive income

(loss) after tax 220,194.137 ¢ 9.314.758) 210.879.379
Balance as of

December 31, 2012 P_ 204152102 (P 11729072 P 282,423 030

27.6 Retained Earnings

On January 29, 2014, the BOD apptoved the declatation of common shate cash dividend
of 10 centavos per share totaling to P142.9 million to stockholders of record as of

March 17, 2014, In addition, total cash dividends declared and distributed to preferred
stockholdess amounted to P41.2 million in 2014, No stock dividends wete declated and
distributed in 2014,

On March 8, 2013, the stockholders ratified the BOD approval of 30% stock dividends
(or a total of 329.7 million shares), valued at par and distributed on June 10, 2013 to
stockholders of record as of May 15, 2013. Cash dividends of 10 centavos per common
shares totaling to P103.6 million were also declared and paid in 2013. In addition, total
cash dividends declared and distributed to preferred stockholders amounted to

P57.5 million in 2013.
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On March 8, 2012, the stockholders ratified the BOD’s approval of 50% stock dividends
(or a total of 244.9 million shares), valued at par and distributed on April 26, 2012 to
stockholders of record as of March 28, 2012. In addition, cash dividends of 10 centavos
pet cominon shares totaling to P49.0 million were also declated and paid in 2012, In
addition, total cash dividends declared and distributed to preferred stockholders amounted
© P57.5 million in 2012.

27.7 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

¢ To ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern; and,
* To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting
periods under review is summarized as follows:

2014 2013
Total liabilities P 17,949,934,696 P 15,839,647,662
Total equity 7.050,226,099 6,497 905,304
Debt-to-equity tatio 2.55: 100 ‘ 2.44 . 1.00

The increase of the total liabilities in 2014 is the result of the additional borrowings for the
procurement of petroleum and construction of depot facilities, tankers and retail stations.
The increase in equity is due to the accumulated earnings.

The Group’s internal goal in capital management is to maintain a debt-to-equity
structute ratio not in excess of 2.7 to 1. All externally imposed key ratios have been
complied with in all the years presented, othetrwise, bank waivers had been obtained
(see Note 17).

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, Le.,
equity and financial liabilities, The Group manages the capital structare and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the gisk characteristics
of the undetlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

v
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29.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
EPS were computed as follows:

2014

2013 2012

a) Net profit pertaining to
common shares

P 575,112,972

&) Net profit attributable to
common shares and

P 608,047,331 P 593,810,152

potential common shares 575,112,972 608,047 331 593,810,152
¢} Weighted average number of
outstanding common shares 1,428,777,232 1,357,005,010 1,235,777,232
a) Weighted average number of
outstanding common and
. potential common shares 1,428,777,232 1,357,005,010 1,235,777,232
Basic EPS (a/c) P 040 P 045 P 0.48
Diluted EPS (b/d) P 040 P 045 P (.48

The options and watrants attached on the coavertible notes do not have dilutive effect
since the average market price of the common shates of the Parent Company during the
year does not exceed the exetcise price of the options or warrants [see Note 17.2)].

SEGMENT REPORTING

29.1 Business Sepgments

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s service
lines, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group, namely

reporting its pritnary segment information.

-+ fuels, lubricants, depot services and real estate. These are also the bases of the Group in

@) Trading segment is engaged in matketing, merchandisin , purchasing, selling, dealing,
g scgm £ag 5 8 1 £ g g
acquiring, disposing and distribution of goods and wares such as but not limited to
pettolewn products (on wholesale basis), adhesives, glues, bonding agents, epoxy

resing, lubricants and other products.

{8/ Depot and logistics services segment is engaged in operating of oil depots, storage
facilities and provides logistics services to various entities.

.

{c) Shipping and cargo services segment is engaged in havling of petroleum produets,
opetation of inter-island going vessels for domestic trade, chartering in and out any
such vessels and providing complete matine services, either as principal or agent tc

ship cwners, operators and managers.

(@) Real estate segrnent is involved in real estate development, management and

opetrations.
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29.2 Segment Assets and Liabilitics

Segment assets include all opetating assets used by a segiment acd consist principally of
operating cash, teceivables, inventories and ptoperty and equipment, and other assets,
net of allowances and provisions. Segment liabilities include all opetating liabilities and
consist principally of trade payable, trust receipts, wages, and accrued liabilities. Segment
assets and liabilities do not include deferred tax assets ot liabilities.

29.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and perfotmance include sales and jpurchases hetween
segments and between geographical segtments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated,
upon combination.

The tables presented in the next pages present revenue and profit information tegarding
business segments of the Gtoup for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
and certain asset and lability information regarding industry segments as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands).
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29.4 Reconciliations

-92.

Presented below is a reconciliation of the Group’s segment information to the key

financial information presented in its consolidated financial statements (in thousands).

Revenues
Total segment revenues
Elimination of in tetsegment
revenues

Revenues 15 reported
in profit ot loss

Profit or loss

Segment operating
profit

Other unallocated ineome

Other unalloeated expense

Operating profit as reported
in profit or loss

Finance costs

Finance income

Profit before tax as reported
in profit or loss

Assets
Segnient assets
Elimination of intercompany
accounts

Total assets reported in the
consolidated statements of
financial position

Liahilities
Segment liahilities
Deferred tax liahilities - net
Elimination of in tercompany
accounts

Total liahilities 4s reported in the

consolidated statements of
frnancial position

2014 2013

P39,279,160 P 48,887,042

(_4.544.776) (__5.135,056)

2012

P 46,839,991

(12254430

P34,734384 P43551986 P34.585.552
P 1,420,829 P 1315283 D 1,i64,62
6,842 22,845 5,863

( 7074)  ( 11.143) | 4.214)
1,419,897 1,326,985 1,166,275

( 804,138) ( 669,030) (  519,720)
3,395 8482 24,629

P 619154 P 666437 P 671184

P27,854,676 25771975

(2.854.518) (3434422

P25,000,361 P22337,553
P20,732,578 119,197,539
71,872 76,531

(__2854,515) (_ 3434422)

B17.549,935 P15.839,648

«
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30. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
30.1 Capital Comnmitments

As of December 31, 2014, the Group has commitments of more than 11,000.0 million for
expansion on petroleum retail netwarlk, depot, terminalling and logistics facilities,
information technola oy infrastructire and other major expansions related to its business
development. The Group has a network of 418 operating retail service stations as of
December 31, 2014. An additional of 61 retail service stations are under various stages
of completion as of December 31, 2014

In 2014, the Group plans to expand further its petroleum retail service stations and carry
out its investments in its subsidiaties ta put up depat and terminalling facilities in strategic

locations and complete its chain of logistical support to strengthen its foothold in the
industry.

30.2 Letters of Credits

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Parent Company has unused L.Cs amounting to
P7,131.7 million and P1,021.0 million, respectively.

30.3 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee under several operating leases. The leases have terms ranging
from 2 to 25 years, with renewal options, 2nd include annual escalation rates ranging
from 2.00% to 10.00%. The future minimum rentals payable under these cancclable
operating leases ate presented as follows:

2014 2013
Within one year P 306,965,591 P 259337311
After one year but not
more than five years 1,019,563,212 1,042.366,014
Mote than five years 3,054,218,327 2,009.559.064

£4,380,747,130 P3.311.262.389

Total rent expense for the yeass 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to P390.4 million,
P 364.4 million and P240.9 million, respectively (see Note 21).

12
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30.4 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessor

The Group is a lessor under several operating leases with third parties. The leases have
terms ranging from 2 to 15 years, with renewal options, and inclade annual escalation rates
ranging from 2.00% to 10.00%. The future minimum rentals receivables under these
cancelable operating leases are presented below:

.

2014 2013
Within one year ‘ P 77,559,213 P 45535652
After one year but not
more than five years 241,175,866 100,847,748
More than five years 2,254,311 3.499.057

P 320,989 390 13_ 151.882 457

Rent income in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounting to P94.5 million, P47.5 million and
P54.3 million, respectively, is presented as part of Rent and Storage Tncome account in the
consolidated staternents of comprehensive income.

30.5 Finance Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee under several finance lease coveting certain hauling tricks with a
lease term 0f 2 to 5 years. The leases provide options to purchase the transportation
equipment at the end of the lease terms. Future minimum lease payments (MLP) under
the finance leases together with the present value (PV) of the net minimum lease payments
(NMLP) is as follows:

2014 2013
Future IV of [future PV
— MLP = _NMIP MLP nf NMLP

Within one year P 8284913 P7,462,297 Po9,007,42¢ P 7,559,190 °

After one year but not more than five years 5,926,834 _ 5,671.371 14253842 _ 13,226,187
14,211,747 13,133,668 23,261,271 20,785,377

Amouunts representing fnance charges (__1,078,079) - (2475894 -

Prescnt value of MID PA3133.668 PI3I33.668 P 20785377 D 20785377

"The liabilities relating to the finance leases are shown as part of Interest-bearing Loans and
Borrowings (see Note 17.6).

30.6 Chartter Agreements

The Group has existing commmitments to charterers undet TC, CVC and BB agreements ,
for the use of its tankess in transporting oil products for a fixed peniod. Also associated
with these charter agreements 1s the obligation to keep the Group’s tankers in good
wotking condition and compliant with all the shipping regulations as required by the
Philippine Maritime Industry Authority.
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30.7 Purchase Commitments

On September 4, 2014, PNX -- Chelsea enteted into a MOA with China Shipbuilding &
Exports Corporation for the importation of one unit of oil tanker (MT Chelsea

Denise II) for a total consideration of US$7.3 million. As of December 31, 2014,

PNX — Chelsea has made an initial downpayment of US$ 2.0 million and is presented as
part of Advances to suppliers under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the 2014
consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 7).

30.8 Legal Claims

"The Gtoup filed a complaint for a sum of money against one of its customers for unpaid *
charter fees including damages. A Wiit of Garnishment on the customer’s funds for the
amount 0f P16.0 million has been issued by the trial court in favor of the Group.

"The same customer filed 2 suit against the Group fot reimbursement and damages,
amounting to P13.7 million, for the loss it incurred from the contamination of its cargo,
which was on board on one of the Group’s vessels in 2010, In the same yeat, the Group
made 2 provision in the amouat of P6.9 million for the amount of probable liability that it
could answer for such claim. The related liability is presented as part of Others under the
Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 18). No additional loss was tecognized related to this claim in the succeeding
years.

30.2 Others

In May 2011, the Bureau of Customs (BOC) filed before the Department of Justice (DO])
a complaint against the Group’s President and Chief Executive Officer and other
respondents for alleged viclation of Sections 3602, 2501(T(1) & (5), 1801, 1802 and 3604
of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines. Tn November 2012, the DO
dismissed the case for lack of probable cause against all respondents. In April 2013, the
DO, upon motion for reconsideration filed by the BOC, reversed its eatlier resolution
and recommended the filing of Criminal Information against the respondents. Criminal
Information for alleged violations of Section 3602, in relation to Sections 3601,

25301 () & 5, 1801 and 3604 of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines were
filed before the Regional Trial Courts (RT'C) of Batangas and Davao City in August 2013»
Separately, in September and Qctober 2013, RTC Batangas and Davao City, tespectively,
have dismissed all charges against the Parent Company’s President and Chief Executive
Officer.

On Octobet 7, 2013, the DO filed 2 Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for
Inhibition of Judge Ruben A. Galvez dated October 7, 2013 with RTC Batangas. On the
other hand, on November 15, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with
Motion for Inhibition of Judge George A. Omelio dated November 15, 2013 with RTC
Davao. On December 6, 2013, RTC Batangas issued an Order dated December 6, 2013
denying the DOJ’s Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition. On

July 7, 2014, RTC Batangas issued a Certificate of Finality of even date stating that its .
Order dated December 6, 2013 affirming the Otder dated September 17, 2013 is now final
and executory since no appeal was filed.
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On August 18, 2014, RTC Davao issued an order of even date denying the DOJ’s Motion
for Recansideration. The Office of the Solicitor General, on behalf of the Peaple of the
Philippines, filed the Petition for Certiorati dated October 27, 2014 with the Court of  °
Appeals seeking the reversal of the Orders dated October 4, 2013 and August 18, 2014
issued by public respondents Judges Omelio and Hon, Loida S. Po sadas-Kahulugan. The
Petition for Certiorari, with Docket No. CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN, is now pending
with the Court of Appeals.

Thete is also a pending Motion for Reconsideration filed by the DOJ and the BOC,
seeking the reversal of the dedision dated 25 July 2014 of the Court of Appeals’ Special
Former Special Tenth (10") Division in the Consolidated Petitions of Dennis Uy,
docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 131702, and Jotlan Cabanes, docketed as CA-G R, SP
No. 129740, with the Court of Appeals, which involve the same basic facts and issues as
those raised in CA-G.R. SP No. 06500-MIN,

In the normal course of business, the Group makes various commitments and incurs
cettain contingent liabilities that are not given recognition in the consolidated financial
statements. As of Decernber 31, 2014 and 2013, the management believes that losses, if
any, that may arise from these commitiments and contingencies will not have material
effects on the consolidated financial statements.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Comparable discussion on Material Changes in Results of Operations Period Ended
December 31, 2014 vs. December 31,2013

Revenues

The Group generated total revenues of Php 34.734 billion in 2014, which is 20% lower than
its 2013 level of Php 43.552 billion, primarily due to the 18% decrease in sales volume of
refined petroleum products plus the decline in average price in 2014. However, this was
minimized due to the higher revenues from fuels service, shipping, storage and other
revenue by 54%.

Sales revenues from trading and distribution of petroleum products decreased by 21%
from Php 43.14 billion in 2013 to Php 34.10 billion in 2014 resulting principally from a
decline in volume for the wholesale. The effect was however minimized as volume in retail
(station sales) increased by 22% due to wider distribution network and growth in same
store sales. The decrease on wholesale account is a conscious effort of the Company to
manage resources and profitability. The Parent Company had four hundred eighteen (418)
Phoenix Fuels Life retail service stations as of December 31, 2014 compared to three
hundred sixty-eight (368) retail stations as of the same period last year. The Parent
Campany has a number of retail stations undergoing construction and projected to be
opened within the year and early next year.

The Group generated Php 634 million from its fuels service, storage, port and other income
in 2014 versus Php 412 million in 2013, a 54% increase compared to the same period last
year. This is due to the increase in turnover of storage service compared to last year,
additional service of charter hire to third party, and revenue from tug-boat operations for
the year.

Cost and expenses

The Group recorded cost of sales and services of Php 31.405 billion, a decline of 22% from
its 2013 level of Php 40.248 billion, primary due to an 18% decrease in the sales volume of
petroleum products. The higher decline in percentage of costs of sales by 22% compared to
the decline of 18% in volume is a result of lower average costs of petroleum products for
this year. This year's average for the three major petroleum products such as Gasoil
(Diesel), MOGAS (Gasoline) and Kerosene (JETA1) is lower by 8% compared to the same
period of 2013. Furthermore, for 2014, the ratio of retail compared to
commercial/industrial (C&I} accounts improved compared to the same period in 2013 due
to the Company’s strategy to push more volume in Retail. Retail stations normally sell more
premium products like gasoline as opposed to C&I which is more diesel.

[



Selling and administrative expenses declined by 3.5% as a result of lower variable costs but
minimized by the increase in rentals, depreciation, salaries & wages as a result of the
continuous expansion of the Group's business operations. With its growing retail presence
nationwide and the scaling-up of operations, the Company incurred increases in manpower
and logistics costs, resulting to an increase in operating costs.

Net Income

The Group’s net income for the year 2014 is Php 616 million versus 2013 net income of
Php 665 million, a decrease of 7%. Despite the lower volume by 18%, the Company was
able to temper the drop in profit by improving its sales mix in favor of retail as well as
increased efficiencies and savings particularly from its trading and supply management
operations. With the better sales mix, the net income to sales ratio {return on sales)
improved to 1.77% in 2014 compared to 1.53% in 2013.

The Parent Company is registered with the Board of Investments on November 16, 2005 as
a new industry participant with new investments in storage, marketing, and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 (Downstream Oil Industry Regulation Act) and, as
- such, continues to enjoy an income tax holiday for five (5) years from November 16, 2005,

The Parent Company obtained additional registration approval from the Board of
Investments (BOI) under R.A. 8479 or 0il Industry Deregulation Law for its Calaca,
Batangas Terminal. This entitles the Parent Company to an Income Tax Holiday (ITH) on
the revenue activities from this additional storage capacity for five (5) years starting
February 2010. Another BOI registration was granted for the Davao Terminal Expansion
facility effective February 2010, thus entitling the Parent Company another set of
incentives including the five (5) year ITH in its Davao Terminal Marketing and Storage
activities. These additional ITH incentives will allow the Company to enjoy an effective
income tax rate well below 30% as it continuously expands its storage and obtains further
incentives from the BOL

The Parent Company was also registered with the BOI on November 25, 2010 as new
industry participant with new investment in storage, marketing, and distribution of
petroleum products under RA 8479 (Downstream Oil Industry Deregulation Act) for its
storage tanks in Talisayan, Zamboanga City. Under its registration, the Company is required
to observe certain general and specific terms and conditions stated in the provisions of the
Omnibus Investments Code of 1987.

The Parent Company also received new approvals from the BOI for its two (2) new
facilities. Both the Cagayan de Oro City and the Bacolod City facilities were registered and
issued certification by the BOI on May 12, 2012. The registration entitles the Parent
Company ITH for five years from registration plus other fiscal and non-fiscal incentives
accorded to BOI registered entity. '

Financial Condition
{As of December 31, 2014 versus December 31, 201 3)



Total resources of the Group as of December 31, 2014 stood at Php 25 billion, higher by
12% compared to the Php 22.338 billion as of December 31, 2013. This is mainly due to
increase in Property, Plant, and Equipment with the continuous expansion on retail
stations, storage and including shipping assets. The increase by 4% on current assets also
contributed to the total increase in assets.

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 56% from Php 357 miilion in December 31, 2013
to Php 556 million due to timing of collections of receivables as against payment of various
liabilities and the objective of the Company on certain level of cash and cash equivalent
needed for day to day operations.

The Group’s liquidity position, though lower against last year, thus continued to be strong
with Current Assets amounting to Php 13.576 billion as of December 31, 2014, compared to
Php 13.054 billion as of December 31, 2013. The increase in Cash contributed to the
increase in Current Assets.

Trade and other receivables increased by 7% from Php 7.344 billion as of December 31,
2013 to Php 7.832 billion as of December 31, 2014, which were mainly due to Company
receivables from various customers and suppliers. The Group continues to enhance its
credit policies to minimize overdue accounts.

Inventories declined by 25% at Php 2.871 billion as of December 31, 2014 from Php 3.812
billion as of December 31, 2013. The volume yedr on year is comparably same level for
both years. However, the average unit price in 2014 year-end inventory is lower by 37%
compared to 2013. The Company maintains an average of one month worth of inventory to
ensure stable supply in retail stations and commercial/industrial clients. However, this
may go higher than the desired level due to vessel arrival timing.

Due to related parties in December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is Php 10.373 million
and Php 2.748 million respectively. The decrease of Php 7.625 million or 277% is due to
charges made during the year.

Input taxes-net decrease by 34% in December 31, 2014 is the result of offsetting of higher
output taxes this year due to increased level of inventory, as well as input taxes of capital
expenditures and increase in inventory level in which input taxes have been paid.

Other current assets are at Php 1,147 million and Php 489.9 million as of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013 respectively. The increase represents prepaid rentals on
leased retail service stations properties and depot sites, prepaid insurance, creditable
withholding taxes, and other current assets.

As of December 31, 2014, the Group’s property and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation, increased to Php 10.689 billion compared to Php 8.628 billion as of December
31, 2013 due to investments in additional shipping vessel, depot capacity in existing areas,
and new sites. In the first quarter, the Parent Company took delivery of a brand new

i
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marine tanker for fuel importation, plus costs to ongoing storage facility expansions.
Additional retail stations were also constructed and or under construction in Luzoen,
Mindanao and Visayas as part of the Company objective to further expand retail network.

Loans and Borrowings, current and non-current, increased merely by 1% from Php 13.752
billion as of December 31, 2013 to Php13.843 billion as of December 31, 2014. The slight
increase of Php 90 million was a result of timing of availment of working capital lines.

Trade and other payables increased by 138% from Php 1.570 billion as of December 31,
2013 to Php 3.735 billion as of December 31, 2014. This is the result of longer suppliers'
credit to finance inventory.

Total Stockholders’ Equity increased to Php 7.050 billion as of December 31, 2014 from
Php 6.498 hillion as of December 31, 2013 as a result of the period net income for the three
quarters less the cash dividend declared and paid during the year for both common shares

and preferred shares.

Key Performance Indicators and Relevant Ratios

The Company’s key performance indicators and relevant ratios and how they are computed
are listed below:

December 31, December 31, 2013

2014
Current Ratio? 1.11:1 1.33:1
Debt to Equity-Total? 2.55:1 244:1
Return on Equity-Common3 9.01% 12.10%
Net Book Value Per Share? 4.93 4.54
Debt to Equity-Interest Bearing® 1.96:1 2.12:1
Earnings Per Share-Adjusted © 0.40 0.45

Notes:

1 - Total current assets divided by current liabilities

2 - Total liabilities divided by tangible net worth

3 - Period or Year Net income divided by average total stockholders’ equity

4 - Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferred) divided by the total number of
shares issued and outstanding

5 - Interest Bearing Debts divided by Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferred)
6 - Period or Year Net income after tax divided by weighted average number of
outstanding common shares



These key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Company's financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity} and the Company’s ability
to maximize the value of its stockholders’ investment in the Company (Return on Equity,
Net Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per Share}. Likewise, these ratios are used to
compare the Company’s performance with similar companies.

The Company’s debt to equity (DE) ratio for 2014 is higher at 2.55 : 1 due to higher
accounts payable trade. However, interest bearing DE this year improved to 1.96 : 1,
compared to 2,12 : 1in2013.

The foregoing key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the
Group's financial strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the Group’s ability to
maximize the value of its stockholders’ investment in the Group’s (Return on Equity, Net
Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per Share). Likewise these ratios are used to compare
the Group’s performance with its competitors and similar-sized companies.

Material Changes to the Group’s Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014 compared to
December 31, 2013 (Increase/decrease of 5% or more)

56% increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
This is a result of collection and disbursement timing during the period. Certain levels of
Cash are also maintained to support maturing obligations.

7% increase in Trade and other receivables
Primarily due to increase in advances to suppliers as a result of various shipment in transit
and final price computation,

25% decrease in inventory
Aresult of lower average price per unit by 37% in 2014.

277% increase in Due from related parties
Various charges and billings during the period-net.

47% increase in other current assets
As a resuilt of increased prepayments e.g. rental, insurance, etc. plus the creditable
withholding taxes.

34% increase in Value Added Tax-net
Increase in Input VAT as a result of higher inventory plus accumulated Input Taxes on
capital expenditures.

134% increase in other current assets
Increase in Prepayments, Creditable Withholding Taxes and Supplies Inventories.



24% increase in property, plant and equipment
Due to vessel acquisition, retail network expansion, storage expansions and other capital
expenditures.

138% increase in Trade and other payables
Trade Payable to foreign suppliers for purchases of inventory.

73% decline on Due to related parties
settlement of various advances from prior years.

6% decrease in deferred tax liability
As aresult of decline on the deferred tax liability for tanker vessel appraisals increments.

25% reduction on non-current liability
Due to some retirement of cash security deposits in favor of other form of security.

Material changes to the Group’s Income Statement as of December 31, 2014
compared to December 31, 2013 (Increase /decrease of 5% or more}

21% decrease in Sales for petroleum products

Principally due to 18% lower sales volume compared to 2013. However, it was minimized
by the higher service revenue.

54% increase in fuel service, shipping, storage income, and other revenue

Higher turnover on service volume specifically on storage volume of new terminal,
additional revenue on charter hire, and tugboat revenue.

22% decrease in cost of sales
Primarily due to decreased sales of petroleum products minimized by the effect of the
lower unit prices this year compared to 2013.

20.2% increase in Finance Costs (net)
Due to interest on the instaliment payables, bank term loans used for expansion, plus Trust
receipts availed to finance inventory. '

53.2% increase in other income /Costs
Due to periodic inventory losses recorded during the period plus other various costs.

102% increase in income tax
Due to the increase of income not related to its BOI registered activity.

There are no other material changes in the Group’s financial position (5% or more) and
condition that will warrant a more detailed discussion. Furthermore, there are no material
events and uncertainties known to management that would impact or change the reported
financial information and condition of the Group. '

Qof



- PENTACAPITAL INVESTMENT CORPORATION
‘ An Investment House

SECURITIES s nMarghcQ9, 2015

Phoenix Petrolenm Philippines, Inc. COMMISSION

25" Floor, Fort Légend Tower S5, ‘"[% o
3" Avenue corner 31 St, AUG 2 4 2015 Y
Fort Bonifacio Global City, "R E‘,
Taguig City 1634 ISV T

MARKET REGULATION DERT
. 4 . I3Y: TIME é—: a\g,
Attention: Mr. Dennis A. Uy .2,

President and Chief Executive Qfficer

Gentlemen,
PentaCapital Investment Corporation (“Penta”) is ppleased to confirm hereunder our interest to act
as the Issue Manager and.Lead Underwriter for the planned PhP1.0 billion Perpetual Preferred
Shares (the “PPS™). offer by your company Phoenix Petroleum Phils., Ine. (“Phoenix” or the
“Issuer™) by way of a Public Offer with .an over-subscription option. for an additional PhP1.0
billion, The general Terms and Conditions of the new PPS offer are.detailed in Annex A hereof,
PROPOSED SERVICES :
As your Issuc Manager and Lead Underwriter, we are prepared to perform the following services
and target 10 have-a financial closing on June:30, 2015, This target financial. closing date may be
extended upon our fuill compliance with all SEC regulations for its issuance and all PSE listing
requirements. :

1) Identify and contact prospective investors;

2) Arrange and organize investor presentations;

3) Assist the Issuer in preparirig a Prospectis for the issue;

4) Facilitate and manage the book building process;

o) Assist the Issuer in preparing all the necessary documentation to implement the PPS

isspance including coordinating with the legal counsel and auditors: on documentary

‘matters;

6) Assist the Issuer in other activities leading to the financial closing of the PPS including

the siibmission of required registration forms and documents to the SEC and coordinate

meetings with the'SEC; and,

7) Assist the Issuer in having the new PPS listed in the PSE on Issue-Date, This would
involve arranging meetings and coordinating activities with the PSE on having the Issue

listed and -assist further in submitting the necessary’ documents to meet. the necessary

requirements of the PSE for the listing.

10/F, ACT ‘Tower, 138 Sen. Gil Puyal Ave., Saleeds Village, Makati City « Tel. (632) 815-8066 Fax (632) 818-4853 « 813-0409
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PROPOSED FEES :

In consideration for the above. services, we. propose to charge you a one-time. success fee
indicated below based on the amount of PPS successfully raised for Phoenix, payable on
financial elosing :

a) lssue Management Fee 0.50%
b) Underwriting and Selling Fees 1.50% * (these include the ceding of fees to
Total Fees 2.00% participating investors)

In additien, all minor out-of pocket expenses up to 10,000 related to this fund raising will be for
your account: Major expenses (in excess of P10,000) including, but not limited to legal, facility
agency, registry and paying agency and other professional expenses, if and when applicable, will
be subject to your pre-clearance and will also be for your account.

CONFIDENTIALITY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY:

It is understood that any and all information regarding the financial information that you relesse
to us will be kept by us, our representatives and consultants in strictest confidence. and will be
divulged by us to other parties only with your consent and only to implement. the fund raising
activity contemplated in this mandate letter.

In turn, you, your representatives and: consultants, if any, agree to keep all financing models and
structures, prospectuses and deal structures that may be developed by us in strictest confideice,
to keep the same:as our Joint inteliectual property and to use them:only in implementing the. fund

raising activity in this mandate letter.

CONDITIONS OF THE MANDATE ;

The commitment of PentaCapital Investment Corporation as Issue Manager and Lead
Underwriter will be contingentupon {i) completion of satisfactory due diligence; (ii).the receipt
of complete relevarit internal apprevals; (iii) execution of all appropriate documentation, in form
and substance satisfactory to the Issue Manager and Joint Lead Arrangers; (iv) there having
been, in the reasonable opinion of the. Issue Manager and Lead Underwriter, no material change
in the financial: condition, assets or business of the Issuer from the date hereof unless disclosed in
advance; and (v). there being no material adverse change in both the local and global financial
markets. which, in the reasonable opinion of the Issue Manager-and Lead Underwriter, could
adversely affect the successful completion of this transaction; (vi) there having complied with
all requirements of the: SEC and the PSE for the issuance and for the listing of the PPS
contemplated under this mandate.

It is understood that during the effectivity period of the mandate or.until coimpletion of the Issue,
the Issuer will not approach banks and or other financial institutions for the arrangement of
refinancing of any new or existing facilities in the domestic capital market without the prior
written consent of the Issue Manager and Lead Undetwriter,




MANDATE :

Should you find the indicative terms and all of the foregoing be acceptable to you, please signify
your conformity by signing on the space provided below and returning a copy. of this letter to us
together with a Phoenix board resolution authorizing the mandate, on or before March 20, 2015,
whereupon this letter shall become out exclusive mandate to act as Issue Manager and Lead
Underwriter for the proposed perpetual preferred shares issuance.

TERMINATION :

This mandate shall explre on July 01, 2015; but may be extended if the requirements of the SEC
and the PSE for the issuance and the listing of the PPS have not been met to achieve financial
closing of the transaction; or otherwise mutually extended by us in writing. However, if during
the term of this mandate, should Phoenix decide not to continue with the planned new PPS offer,
Phoenix will have to notify us. formally in writing on their intention to disengage from this
maridate on or before May 31, 2015 and pay a break-away fee of P5.0 million payable within 3
days from the date of notice of termination.

Should you wish to clarify any of the foregoing, please do not hesitate to contact any of the
undersigned.

Thank you fof the- opportumty to be of service, and we look forward to working with you on this
very. iniportant transaction.
Very truly youss,

PENTACAPITAL INVESTMENT CORP.

A I A
JO . MA. A. DE LEON
Exglcutive Vice President Semor Vlce President
CONFORME:
PHOENIX PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.
By:
Name 1 [ A x
Position ¢ Presndent and Chlef Executive Officer

Date




‘SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION

REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES ) . D J
MAKATH CITY )8.8. \ AUG 2 4 2015

MARKET REGULATION DEPT.
UNDERTAKING TO SUBMIT DOCUMENTS __jn/ e <l

I, MA. ROSARIO C.Z. NAVA, of legal ags, Filipiro dncl with office address at the
Mezzanine B, LPL Center, 130 L.P. Leviste Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City, afier
having been duly swom in accordance with law, hereby depose and state:

1. In connection with the filing today by P-H-O-E-N-I-X Fetroleumn Philippines, Ire.
(the “Corporation”) of a Registration Statement under the Securities Regulation Code on SEC
Form 12-1, as amended, for its application for registration of the prirnary issuance of
preferred shares (“12-1 submission™), I, in bebalf of the Corporation, hereby uadertale to
submit the following documents:

) Signed mandate letter of the Sole Issue Mapager and Joint Lead Underwriter,

- Penta Capital and Investment Corporation, as well as that of the other Joint Lead

Underwriters, Muliinational Investment Bancorporation and AR Capital and
Investment Corporation; and

()  Draft Underwriting Agreement covering all three Joint Lead Underwriters.

2. The Company understands that the SEC will not be able o evaluate the Company™s
12-1 submission unless the above documentary requirements have bewn completely
submitted, hence, it undertakes to submit the above documents at the soonest possible tme.
Meanwhile, the SEC shall conditionally accept the 12-1 filing on the basis of this notarized
Undertaking.

3. This notarized Undertaking is executed to attest to the truth of the foregning and for
whatever legal purpose and intent it may serve.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my signature or thds 24% day of

August 2015 in Makati City.
'7
: A{,LZ%L.M“M
OSARID 1.7 NAVA

7 .
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this daﬁyug _"__“ i E‘”@_m in
MAKAT] CITY . affiant exhibiting to me competent evidence of her identity in the form of her
Passport No EB5963851 issued on 20 March 2013 in the Department of Forcign Affairs,

NCR-West and expiring on 19 March 2018.

275,
Doc. No. ATTY, VIRGILIO R, pp o TEA
Page No, i» NOTARY PUBLIC FOR MAKAT L.,y
Book No. {2 ‘ AREOINTIMEN" M0, 0 4%
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Nava & Associates

27 August 2015

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC Building

EDSA, Mandaluyong City .

Attention: Director Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio : &’E
Head, Markets and Securities Regulation Dept.

Re: SEC Form 12-1 filing of
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc.

Gentlemen:

In compliance with our notarized Undertaking to Submit Documents filed with your office on
24 August 2015 in connection with the SEC Form 12-1 filing of P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum
Philippines, Inc. (“Company”), we submit herewith a draft of the Underwriting Agreement
among the Company and its Joint Lead Underwriters for the public offering, Penta Capital &
Investment Corporation, Multinational Investment Bancorporation and AB Capital and
Investment Corporation.

Please be advised that this is only an initial draft and is subject to changes and amendments as
the Company and/or any of the abovenamed Joint Lead Underwriters may subsequently agree
upon prior to execution.

We trust that with this submission, the Company has fully complied with the abovestated
Undertaking. We look forward to the commencement of the Commission’s evaluation of the
above filing as soon as possible.

Thank you.

y truli yours,

A. ROSARIO C.Z. NAVA

Encl.: a/s

Mezzanine B, LPL Center, 130 L.P. Leviste Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City 1227 Philippines Telephane (632) 750-9687 / (632) 346-7181 / {632) 823-1044 Facsimile (632) 750-0498



Draft Only (as 0f 8.25.15)

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

This Underwriting Agreement (the “Agreement™) is made and entered into this day of
2015, by and between:

4} P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC., a corporation duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with principal offices at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bo. Pampanga,
Lanang, Davao City 8000 (the “Company™);

(2) PENTA CAPITAL & INVESTMENT CORPORATION, a corporation duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with principal offices at the 10th Floor, ACT Tower, 135 Sen. Gil J.
Puyat Avenue, Salcedo Village, Makati City, Philippines (the “Sole Issue Manager
and Joint Lead Underwriter” or “PentaCapital,” interchangeably);

3) MULTINATIONAL INVESTMENT BANCORPORATION, a corporation duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with principal offices at the 22™ Floor Multinational Bancorporation
Centre, 6805 Ayala Avenue, Makati City (“Joint Lead Underwriter” or “MIB”); and

4 AB CAPITAL AND INVESTMENT CORPORATION, a corporation duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines, with principal offices at the 10th Floor, Tower One and Exchange Plaza,
Ayala Triangle, Makati City (“Joint Lead Underwriter” or “AB Capitai™).

RECITALS:

(A)  The Company intends to offer and issue up to 20,000,000 cumulative, non=voting,
non-participating, non-convertible, Philippine peso-denominated, perpetual preferred shares
consisting of 10,000,000 preferred shares (“Firm Shares™) with an oversubscription option for
up to an additional 10,000,000 preferred shares having the same features (“Option Shares”),
to any number of qualified buyers in the Philippines (the “Offer™), subject to registration of
the Offer with the SEC and its listing in the PSE as agreed herein. The Firm Shares and the
Option Shares collectively comprise the “Offer Shares.”

(B) The terms and conditions of the Offer are more fully described in the Summary of
Terms and Conditions (the “Terms and Conditions™), which is attached and made an integral
part hereof by reference as Annex “A”,

©) The Sole Issue Manager and Joint Lead Underwriter, PentaCapital, and the other
Joint Lead Underwriters, MIB and AB Capital, have agreed to jointly underwrite on a firm
basis the sale of the Offer Shares in accordance with the Underwriting Commitment as
hereafter defined, and the Company has accepted the same.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in censideration of the foregoing, the Parties hereto agree as
follows:

Underwriting Agreeme
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1. DEFINITION OF TERMS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions

The following terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below:

“Agreement”

“Applicable Laws™

“Applicant”

“Application™

“Banking Day”

“Closing Date”

“Commission”

“Exchange”

“Financial Staternents”

“Governmental Authority”

means this Underwriting Agreement and all amendments,
supplements or addenda hereto;

means any and all laws, regulations, rules, ordinances, grants,
franchises, licenses, directives, guidelines, policies,
requirements, or other governmental restrictions, or any
similar form of decisions of, or determinations by, or any -
interpretation or administration of, any of the foregoing, by the
Governmental Authority;

means any person that duly accomplishes and submits an
Application, together with all the requirements set forth
therein;

means the form of an Application to Subscribe/Purchase a
specified number of the Offer Shares which, when properly
and completely accomplished and signed by the Applicant,
submitted with all the requirements set forth therein, and
accepted and approved by the Company through any of the
Joint Lead Underwriters, shall constitute a purchase agreement
between said Applicant and the Company for the subscription
for or purchase of such number of Offer Shares as approved
and at the time, in the manner, and subject to the terms and
conditions set forth therein and in the Prospectus;

means any day in a week (except Saturdays, Sundays and
holidays) when banks are not required or authorized to close in
Makati City, Philippines;

means [+] 2015 or the last day of the Offer Period as defined
herein

means the Securities and Exchange Commission of the
Philippines or any Governmental Authority that succeeds to
the functions thereof:

means the Philippine Stock Exchange in which the Offer will
be listed

shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 8.1(h);
means the government of the Republic. of the Philippines or

any of its political subdivisions, branches, departments,
agencies or offices, or any person exercising or entitled to

Underwriting Apreement
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“Investor™

“Listing Date™

C‘Oﬁ‘er”

“Offer Documents”

“QOdffer Period”

“Offer Price™

“Offer Shares™

“Prospectus”

“Qualified Buyer”

“Securities Regulation Code”

“SRC Rules”

“Registrar and Paying Agent”

“Terms and Conditions™

“Underwriting Commitment”

Draft Only (as of 8.25.15)

exercise executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or
administrative functions of, or pertaining to, said government;

means a prospective subscriber to, or purchaser of, the Offer
Shares;

means the date of commencement of trading of the Offer
Shares in the Exchange which is expected to be on [+] 2015, or
such other date as shall be agreed upon between the Company
and the Joint Lead Underwriters;

shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Recital A of
this Agreement;

means this Agreement, all purchase agreements, and such
other certificates, documents, agreements and instruments
issued and to be issued by the Company pursuant thereto;

means the period during which the Offer Shares shall be
offered to the public for distribution and sale, which period
shall commence on [+] 2015 at [*] am./p.m. and end on [=]
2015 at [+] a.m./p.m.

means B100.00 per Offer Share;

means the Firm Shares and the Option Shares collectively, that
are the subject of the Offer, as those terms are defined in
Recital A of this Agreement;

means the offering circular or memorandum dated [+] filed by
the Company with the Commission and the Exchange and
circulated in connection with the public offering of the Offer
Shares, as amended and supplemented (if applicable)

means an Investor who is eligible or qualified to subseribe to
or purchase the QOffer Shares;

means Republic Act No. 8799 or the Securities Regulation
Code of the Philippines;

means the Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of
the Securities Regulation Code;

means Banco De Oro Unibank, Inc. — Trust and Investments
Group;

means the Summary of Terms and Conditions of the Offer;

means the ecommitment of the Joint Lead Underwriters to
jointly sell the Underwritten Shares for up to Two Billion
Pesos (B2,000,000,000.00), the aggregate Offer Price of the

Underwriting Agreement
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Offer Shares, in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this Agreement; and

"Underwritten Shares” means the entire number of Offer Shares which the Joint Lead
Underwriters commit to jointly underwrite on a firm basis
pursuant to its Underwriting Commitment as defined herein.

1.2 Principles of Interpretation

(a) The headings in this Agreement are used for convenience of reference only and shall
not Timit or affect the construction of the provisions hereof.

(b) Unless herein otherwise provided for or unless the context shall otherwise require:
(i) Words denoting the singular number shall include the plural and vice versa;

(ii) References to persons include individuals, corporations, partnerships, political
subdivisions, agencies or instrumentalities;

(iii) Words importing gender include both genders and the neuter;

(iv) References to Sections and Annexes are to the sections of, as well as the annexes to,
this Agreement; :

(v) The words “herein”, “hereof”, “hereunder”, “this Agreement™ and words of similar
import shall refer to this Agreement, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified and in effect from time to time;

(vi) Terms of accounting wsed herein shall be construed in accordance with Philippine
Accounting Standards and Philippine Financial Reporting Standards; and

(vii)Save where the contrary is indicated, any reference herein to this Agreement, any of
the Offer Documents, or any other agreement or document shall be construed as a
reference to this Agreerent or, as the case may be, such Offer Document, other
agreement or document as the same may have been, or may from time to time be
(subject to any restrictions herein), amended, varied, novated, supplemented, replaced
or substituted.

2. UNDERWRITING OF THE OFFER AND ALLOCATION OF SHARES

2.1 The Company hereby grants the Joimt Lead Underwriters the authority to offer for
subscription and purchase the Offer Shares to any number of Qualified Buyers in the
Philippines,

22 On the basis of the representations, warranties and undertakings of the Company, and
subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Joint Lead Underwriters hereby
commit to jointly underwrite on a firm basis the entire number of Offer Shares up to the
aggregate amount of its Underwriting Commitment.

Underwriting Agreement
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2.3 The Offer Shares shall be issued in full on a one (1)-time basis on the Listing Date in
accordance with the procedure for the issuance of the Offer Shares as set forth in the
Prospectus. The allocation of the Offer Shares shall be as set forth in the Plan of Distribution
section of the Prospectus.

3. TERMS OF THE OFFER

3.1 The offer, sale and distribution to the public of the Offer Shares shall be in
accordance with the Terms and Conditions which is attached hereto as “Annex A,” the Offer
Documents, the Prospectus, and the Applicable Laws in relation to the offering, sale and
distribution of shares by a Philippine company whose shares are listed in the Exchange.

4. THE PROSPECTUS AND OTHER SELLING MATERIALS

4.1 The Company hereby authorizes the use and/or distribution by the Joint Lead
Underwriters, or aiy other person or entity authorized by them, of the Terms and Conditions,
the Prospectus, the Application, and other sales literature that the Company has approved for
the Offer; Provided, that the Joint Lead Underwriters shall exert reasonable efforts to ensure
that any such person which they have authorized to use and/or distribute the Terms and
Conditions, the Prospectus, the Application, and other sales literature for the Offer shall
comply at all times with relevant Applicable Laws (including, without limitation, the rules
and regulations issued by the Commission and/or the Exchange) and publicity guidelines
issued by the Company.

4.2 The Joint Lead Underwriters agree not to use any selling matertal except the Terms
and Conditions, the Prospectus, the Application, and other sales literature approved by the
Company for the Offer. Likewise, notices or advertisements relating to the offer, sale and
distribution of the Offer Shares shall be subject to the prior approval of the Company.

43 Any and all acts and deeds legally required to be done, or approvals required to be
obtained, before such notices or advertisements relating to the Offer can be made or such
other sales literature can be used and/or distributed, shall be performed, executed, done or
obtained by the Company on or before giving final approval to any such notices or
advertisements and/or other sales literature.

5. RIGHT TO ACCEPT, REJECT OR SCALE DOWN APPLICATIONS

5.1  The actual number of Offer Shares that an Investor/Applicant will be allowed to
subscribe for or purchase shali be subject to the coafirmation of the Joint Lead Underwriters.
The Company, through any of the Joint Lead Underwriters herein authorized, shall have the
right to accept or reject, in whole or in part, any application to subscribe for or purchase any
specified number of Offer Shares, or to scale down the number of Offer Shares for which
such application is made.

3.2 Notwithstanding any other provisions herein, Applications received where cheques
are dishonored upon first presentation and Applications which do not comply with the
requirements set forth therein and/or the terms of the Offer will be rejected. Any payment

Underwriting, Agreement
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received pursuant to an Application shall not be construed as an approval or acceptance by the
Company of the Application.

5.3 An Application, once accepted and approved by the Company through any of the
Joint Lead Underwriters, shall constitute a valid purchase agreement between the Applicant
and the Company for the subscription for or purchase of such number of Offer Shares as
approved and at the time, in the manner, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth
therein and in the Prospectus.

54 Notwithstanding the acceptance by any of the Joint Lead Underwriters of any
Application, the actual subscription for or purchase by the Investor/Applicant of the Offer
Shares shall become effective only upon the listing of the Offer Shares in the Exchange and
upon the obligations of the Joint Lead Underwriters under this Agreement becoming
unconditional and not being suspended, terminated or cancelled, on or before the Listing
Date.

5.5 In the event that the Offer Shares forming part of the Underwriting Commitment shail
be msufficient to satisfy all Applications received, or in the event of an oversubscription of
the Offer, the Company, through the Joint Lead Underwriters, shall have and exercise the
discretion to reallocate the Offer Shares available to Applicants in the manner it deems
appropriate.

6. FULFILLMENT OF UNDERWRITING COMMITMENT

6.1 The Joint Lead Underwriters shall be deemed, as of 11:00 am. on the Closing Date,
to have irrevocably subscribed for and agreed to purchase on the terms set forth herein any
portion of the Underwritten Shares not taken up by Investors.

6.2  The underwriting obligation of each of the Joint Lead Underwriters to the Company
arising from the offer, sale and distribution of the Offer Shares is strictly limited to the
amount underwritten by it.

7. ISSUE MANAGEMENT AND UNDERWRITING AND SELLING FEES

7.1 For and in consideration of the services rendered by the Sole Issu¢ Manager and the
Joint Lead Underwriters under this Agreement, their Underwriting Commitment, as well as
their sefling efforts, the Company shall pay to the Sole Issue Manager issue management fees
and to the Joint Lead Underwriters underwriting and selling fees on the date, in the manner, at
such rates, and subject to the terms and conditions as agreed upon by them in the mandates of
the Sole Issue Manager and of the Joint Lead Underwriters as confirmed by the Company.

72 The fees to be paid to the Sole Issue Manager and to the Joint Lead Underwriters
shall be paid from the gross proceeds of the Offer before the proceeds therefrom are released
to the Company. On Closing Date, the Company shall cause the release to the Sole Issue
Manager and to the Joint Lead Underwriters of their respective shares in the aggregate
amount of issue management fees, and underwriting and selling fees, as applicable, that are
due them under this Agreement. Such fees shall be paid in Philippine Pesos, free and clear of
and without deduction for or on account of any applicable taxes, which shall be for the
accourtt of the Company.

Underwriting Agreement
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8. FEES, TAXES AND EXPENSES

8.1 Except as otherwise specified herein, the Company shall be responsible for (or
reimburse the Joint Lead Underwriters) all fees, taxes and expenses that may be incurred in
connection with or relating to the public offering, sale and distribution of the Offer Shares and
the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to:

(a) fees and expenses of the Company’s and of the Sole Issue Manager’s and Joint Lead
Underwriters’ local legal counsel and other professional fees;

L)) fees and expenses of the Stock Transfer Agent for stock iransfer services in
connection with the Offer;

(c) fees and expenses of the Registrar and Paying Agent;

(d) filing and legal research fees payable to the Commission;

(e) processing and listing fees payable to the Exchange;

H other issuance fees in cormection with the Offer;

(8) documentary stamp tax on the original or primary issuance of the Offer Shares;

(h) expenses relating to the preparation, printing and filing with the Commission and
with the Exchange of the SEC Form 12-1 (Registration Statement) and Prospectus (including
any and all amendments and supplements thereto);

() expenses relating to the marketing and roadshow activities for the Offer;

G fees and expenses to be incurred in connection with the issuance and delivery of stock
certificates for the Offer Shares, and for the lodgment of the Offer Shares with the Philippine
Depository and Trust Corporation and the initial uplifting thereof, in connection with this
Agreement and other related agreements in implementation thereof; and

k) any and all photocopying, printing, courier, messengerial, mailing, transportation and
communication expenses, staff overtime and meals, and other similar out-of-pocket expenses
which may be incurred by the Company and the Joint Lead Underwriters in connection with
the Offer.

8.2 The Company shall pay for the cost of affixing any documentary stamp tax that may
be required by Applicable Law for the issuance of the Offer Shares, and it shall hold the Joint
Lead Underwriters and purchasers of the Offer Shares, their successors and assigns, free and
harmless from amny liability, cost, damage and expense that may arise from any failure of the
Company to discharge this obligation.

9. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF THE

COMPANY

9.1 The Company represents, warrants and covenants to the Joint Lead Underwriters the
following:

Underwriting Agreement
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(a) The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
under and by virtue of the laws of the Philippines, has its principal office indicated in this
Agreement and has the corporate power and authority to conduct its business as presently
being conducted and to own all its properties and assets now owned by it as well as those to
be hereafter acquired by it for the purpose of its business.

[{2)] It has an authorized capital stock of Two Billion Five Hundred Fifty Million Pesos
(£2,550,000,000.00), divided into Two Billion Five Hundred Million (2,500,000,000)
common shares with a par value of One Peso (1.00) per share and Fifty Million (50,000,000)
preferred shares with a par value of One Peso (1.00) per share, of which One Billion Four
Hundred Twenty-Eight Million Seven Hundred Seventy-Seven Thousand Two Hundred
Thirty-Two (1,428,777,232) common shares and Five Million (5,000,000) preferred shares
are outstanding. The issued and outstanding capital stock of the Company has been duly
authorized, validly issued and is fully paid.

(©) It has fuil legal right, power and authority to carry on its present business, to own its
properties and assets, to perform the obligations provided for in the Qffer Documents, to
execute and deliver the same, and to comply, perform and observe the terms and conditions

thereof.

(d) All appropriate and necessary corporate and legal actions have been taken by it to
authorize the execution, delivery and performance of the Oifer Documents.

(e) The Offer Documents, when executed and delivered pursuant thereto, will constitute
its legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms.
The execution and delivery by the Company of the Offer Documents, and the performance by
it of any provision, condition, covenant or other terms therein, and its payment of all amounts
due on the dates and in the currency provided for therein (i) will not violate any Applicable
Laws applicable to the business and operations of the Company; (ii) will not conflict with the
Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws, or other constitutive documents of the Company; (iii)
will pot conflict with, or resuit in the breach of, any provision of, or in the imposition of any
lien under, any agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party or by which it or
any of its properties or assets is bound; and (iv) will not constitute a default or an event that,
with the giving of notice or passing of time, or both would constitute a default under any

such agreement or instrument.

(43) Its obiigations under this Agreement and the Offer Documents shall constitute its
direct, absolute and unconditional obligations.

(g Except as otherwise disclosed by the Company to the Joint Lead Underwriters in
writing on or prior to the date hereof, there is no litigation, arbitration or other proceedings
pending, or to its knowledge threatened against, or affecting it or its properties, the adverse
determination of which might materially and adversely affect its financial condition or
operations or impair its ability to perform its obligations hereunder or any other instrument or
agrecraent required hereunder, or which might enjoin the execution and delivery, or might
affect in any manner the validity and enforceability, of this Agreement and the Offer
Documents.

(h) The audited financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and the interim unaudited
financial statements of the Company as of June 30, 2015 (the “Financial Statements™), and

Underwriting Agreement
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other related statements of income and retained earnings submitted to the Joint Lead
Underwriters in connection with this Agreement, correctly set forth the financial condition of
the Company as of the dates thereof, and since such dates, there has been no material adverse
change in the financial condition or the operations of the Company. There are no substantial
liabilities of the Company, direct or contingent, that are not reflected in the Financial
Statements.

i) Except to the extent disclosed in writing to the Joint Lead Underwriters or reflected
or adequately reserved against in the Financial Statements or in the explanatory notes thereto,
the Company has, as of the date thereof, no material liabilities or obligations of any nature,
whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, including but not limited to, tax liabilities
due or to become due and whether incurred in respect of, or measured by any income for, any
period prior to such date or arising out of transactions entered into, or any state of facts
existing prior thereto, except for such tax liabilities which may be contested in good faith by
the Company, or such tax liabilities, the non-payment of which is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition or the operations of the Company and on its
ability to perform its obligations under the Offer Documents.

§)) The Company is conducting its business and operations in compliance with
Applicable Laws governing the business and operations of the Company and directives of any
Governmental Authority having the force of Applicable Laws.

k) The Company has filed true, complete and timely tax returns which are required to be
filed by it, and has paid all taxes due in respect of the ownership of its properties and assets or
the conduct of its operations to the extent that such taxes have become due, except to the
extent that the payment of such taxes is being contested in good faith and in appropriate
proceedings, and such taxes could not, individually or in the aggregate, be reasonably
expected to have a material and adverse effect on the ability of the Company to perform its
obligations hereunder.

gy Save (i) as otherwise disclosed in the Financial Statements or otherwise in writing by
the Company to the Joint Lead Underwriters on or prior to the date hereof and/or (ii) for liens,
encumbrances and restrictions imposed by law or duly annctated on the covering certificates
of title, the Company has pgood and marketabie title and rights to all its properties, the
ownership of which is reflected in the audited balance sheet contained in its most recent
audited financial statements, free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, restrictions, pledges;
mortgages, security interests or charges.

(in)  All conditions imposed under the Securities Regulation Code, the SRC Rules and this
Agreement have been and will have been complied with by the Company as of the date and/or
time that they are required to be complied with.

n) The Company has provided the Joint Lead Underwriters and its legal counsel with all
financial and other information which the Parties reasonably deemed appropriate for purposes
of the Offer, and all information heretofore or hereinafter given by the Company for, and in
connection with, the Offer or pertaining to the Offer Documents and the Company’s financial
condition, affairs and assets are and will be true and correct in all material respects and are
not and will not be misleading and do not and will not omit material facts; reasonable
inquiries have been made to verify the facts contained therein; there are no other facts the
omission of which would make any fact or statement therein misleading; and all material
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developments in relation to performance or prospects of the Company have been given
immediately as they occur, in particular where these may have an effect on the Offer.

Should any information given by the Company pertaining to the Offer become inaccurate,
incomplete or misleading during the term of this Agreement, the Company shall promptly
notify the Sole Issue Manager and the Joint Lead Underwriters and provide such additional or
corrective information so as to render the existing information accurate and complete in all

material respects.

In giving its Underwriting Commitment herein, the Joint Lead Underwriters are entitled to
rely upon and assume, without any responsibility for independent or additional verification,
the accuracy and completeness of all information publicly available relating to the Company,
and those furnished by the Company, and the Joint Lead Underwriters shall not assume any
responsibility or have any liability for such information.

{0) No order of any court, administrative agency or tribunal of competent jurisdiction
shall have been issued and be in effect, the effect of which would be to make the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any other Offer
Documents illegal or imposing any conditions on the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or any other Offer Documents which are reasonably
unacceptable to the Joint Lead Underwriters.

(13)] The Company shall promptly advise the Joint Lead Underwriters of the issuance by
any Governmental Authority of any stop order suspending the public offering and/or issnance
of the Offer Shares or the initiation of any proceedings for any such purpose, or the issuance
of any other order which affects the public offering and/or issnance of the Otfer Shares.

(1)) No representation or warranty herein, and no certification, document or statement
furnished or to be furnished to the Joint Lead Underwriters pursuant hereto, or in connection
with the Offer (including the Terms and Conditions), contain or will contain as of the date of
execution of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date and the Listing Date, any unfrue
statement of a material fact or omit or will omit to state a material fact necessary in order to
make the statements of fact contained therein not misleading.

(r) The Company warrants that at the Closing Date and the Listing Date, the Offer
Shares shall be duly authorized and validly issued, and when fuily paid shall be non-
assessable. It shall be free and clear of any restrictions on transfers, except as otherwise
provided in the Articles of Incorporation of the Company.

(s) The Company is not on the credit watch of any credit rating agency. nor is it being
considered for credit watch nor is it aware of any reason why it is likely to be placed on credit
watch during the period of forty-five (45) days from the date hereof.

9.2 The above representations and warranties are true and correct as of the date of this
Agreement and shall be deemed made as well on the Closing Date and on the Listing Date
and the entire period between all those dates, fully as if made on such date with respect to the
circumstances of the Company existing at such time.
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0. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE JOINT LEAD
UNDERWRITERS

Each of the Joint Lead Underwriters represents and warrants to the Company the following:

(a) It is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under and by
virtue of the laws of the Philippines, and has the corporate power and authority to conduct its
business as presently conducted, including, but not limited to, engaging in the underwriting of
securities in the Philippines.

(b It has taken all appropriate or necessary corporate actions to authorize its execution
and delivery of this Agreement, and has obtained all governmental consents, licenses,
approvals and authorizations, and has effected all declarations, filings, and registrations
necessary for its valid execution and delivery of this Agreement and its performance of the
terms hereof.

{c) fts execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement shall not violate or
comntravene any provision of Applicable Laws or directive of any Governmental Authority
having the force of Applicable Laws, shall not ‘conflict with its Articles of Incorporation, By-
laws, or other constitutive documents, and shall not conflict with or result in the breach of any
provision of any agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which any of its
properties or assets is bound.

11. CONDITIONS TO THE UNDERWRITING COMMITMENT

11.1 Unless otherwise waived in writing at the Company’s request by the Joint Lead
Underwriters at their sole option, their Underwriting Commitment herein shall be conditioned
on the receipt by the Joint Lead Underwriters of the foliowing docuinents, each in form and
substance acceptable to them, prior to the Closing Date:

(a) Copies of the latest Amended Articles of Incorporation and By-laws of the Company
together with the SEC Certificate of Filing of the same, duly certified by the corporate
secretary of the Company;

(b) Copies of all corporate approvals, duly certified by the corporate secretary of the
Company: (i) authorizing the Offer; (ii) authorizing the Company to execute, deliver and
perform its obligations hereunder; and (iii) designating its signatories hereto to execute and
deliver this Agreement and all other documents incidental hereto;

(e) Copies of the Order of the Commission declaring effective the Registration Statement
and the Permit to Offer Securities for Sale;

(d) Copies of the approval of the Exchange of the listing application for the public
offering, sale and distribution of the Offer Shares:;

(e)  Certificate, under oath, dated as of the Closing Date and executed by a duly
authorized officer of the Company, stating the following:

(i) The Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 9 hereof are true
and accurate as of the Closing Date;
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(ii) The Company has performed its obligations herein to the extent required as of the
Closing Date; '

+ (ili)None of the events set forth in Section 14 hereof has occurred and/or is continuing as
of the Closing Date;

(iv) The conditions to the Joint Lead Underwriters’ Underwriting Commitment set forth
in this Section 11 have been fulfilled and all documents delivered to the Joint Lead
Underwriters pursuant hereto are in full force and effect as of the Closing Date; and

(v) Subsequent to the date of the most recent financial statements in the Prospectus, there
has been no material adverse change in the financial condition or operations of the
Company, nor any development or event reasonably likely to result in a material
adverse effect on such condition or operations, except as described in the Company’s
certificate submitted pursuant to this Section 11.1 (e) and as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

11.2  The Joint Lead Underwriters shall notify the Company in writing in the event that any
of the above conditions are not complied with on the dates that compliance is
required (or, in the absence of any such dates, on the Closing Date), and thereupon,
this Agreement shall, upon prior written notice to the Company, be deemed cancelled
and terminated, with the effect set forth in Section 14 below.

12. LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY OF THE JOINT LEAD UNDERWRITERS

12.]1  The duties and obligations of the Joint Lead Underwriters under this Agreement shall
be determined solely by the express provisions of this Agreement, and the Joint Lead
Underwriters shall not be liable under this Agreement except for the performance of
their duties and obligations specifically set forth herein. The Joint Lead Underwriters
do not assume, and shall be subject to no other obligation or liability under this
Agreement, except for such obligations and duties as are specifically set forth herein
nor shall they be held liable for any action taken or omitted to be taken by their
respective directors, officers, employees and representatives in connection with this
Agreement, except for their own gross negligence and willful misconduct, as may be
decided in a final judgment by a court of competent jurisdiction; provided, that in no
event shall the Joint Lead Underwriters be liable for any special, indirect, incidental
or consequential damages (including without limitation, lost profits) as a result of
taking or omitting to take any action under this Agreement. No implied covenants or
obligations shall be read into this Agreement against the Joint Lead Underwriters.

122 In acting under this Agreement, the Joint Lead Underwriters shall not have any
fiduciary relationship of agency or trust with, and shall have no liability for the
obligations of, the Company.

12.3  If in one or more instances, the Joint Lead Underwriters shall take any action or
assume any responsibility not specifically required to be taken or assumed pursuant to
the provisions of this Agreement, neither the taking of such action nor the assumption
of such responsibility shall be deemed to be an express or implied undertaking on the
part of the Joint Lead Underwriters that they will take the same or similar action or
assume the same or similar responsibility in amy other instance.
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124  The Joint Lead Underwriters shall not be responsible to the holders of the Cffer
Shares for the accuracy or completeness of any representation, warranty, statement or
any other information contained in the Offer Documents or in the Prospectus or any
information related to, or disclosed in connection with, the issuance and offer of the
Offer Shares nor shall the Joint Lead Underwriters be responsible for verifying the
compliance or performance by the Company of its obligations under the Offer
Documents, except as otherwise specifically provided.

125  Without diminishing their underwriting obligations under this Agreement, the Joint
Lead Underwriters may execute any of their duties with respect to the offer, sale and
distribution of the Offer Shares by or through other participating underwriters and/or
selling agents. The Joint Lead Underwriters may consult with legal counsel and other
professionai experts and consuitants selected by them. '

13. INDEMNITY CLAUSE

13.1  The Company shall indemnify and hold each of the Sole Issue Manager and the Joint
Lead Underwriters, its directors, officers, stockholders and employees, free and
harmless from any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses (including
attorney’s fees), or any actions with respect thereto, arising out of or by virtue of: (i)
the failure of the Company to comply with any of its undertakings, covenants or other
obligations in this Agreement and related agreements; (ii) any defect, falsity or
inaccuracy in the representations and warranties of the Company herein or in any
material fact contained in the Registration Statement, Prospectus, and other selling
materials approved by the Company for use and/or distribution for this Offer; or (iii)
any misleading statement of a material fact contained therein, or omission or the
dlleged omission of, a material fact necessary or required to be stated therein for
purposes of fair disclosure or to make such statement not misleading in the light of
the circumstances under which it was made.

The Company will pay for or veimburse within three (3) Banking Days from demand
each of the Sole Issue Manager and the Joint Lead Underwriters for any legal or other
expense reasonably incurred by them in connection with investigating, or defending
against, such losses, claims, damages, expenses, liabilities or actions, save to the
extent that any such loss, claim, damage, expense, liability or action resulted directly
and exclusively from the willful misconduct or gross negligence of the Joint Lead
Underwriters, or any of their directors, officers, shareholders or employees as may be
decided in a final judgment by a cowrt of competent jurisdiction.

13.2  The Company shall indemnify and hold the Sole Issue Manager and the Joint Lead
Underwriters free and harmless from any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities
and expenses (including fees and expenses of counsel), or actions with respect thereto
arising directly out of, or in connection with, the public offering, sale and distribution
of the Offer Shares, except to the extent that said losses, claims, damages, liabilities
and expenses, or actions have resulted directly and exclusively from the Joint Lead
Underwriters’ willful misconduct or gross negligence as may be decided in a final
judgnriésit by a court of ¢oripéterit jurisdiction.
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13.3  The obligations and undertakings of the Company in this Section 13 shall survive or
remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the completion of the Offer and the
complete performance of the other terms and conditions of this Agreement.

4. SUSPENSION, CANCELLATION OR TERMINATION OF UNDERWRITING
COMMITMENT

14.1  The Sole Issue Manager and the Joint Lead Underwriters may suspend, cancel or
terminate the Underwriting Commitment by giving written notice to the Company if,
prior to the Listing Date, any of the following events occurs:

(a) The Company fails to perform any of its undertakings, covenants and
obligations herein, or fails to pay any amount to the Joint Lead Underwriters
on the due date thereof, or if any representation or warranty made by the
Company in this Agreement or any information in the Registration Statement
or the Prospectus, or any other information given to the Joint Lead
Underwriters is untrue or misleading or has become untrue or misleading in
any material respect;

(b) An order cancelling, suspending or terminating the public offering, sale,
distribution or issuance of the Offer Shares is issued by any Governmental
Authority;

(¢}  Trading in the Exchange is closed or suspended for at least [*] consecutive
days, or in such manner or for such period as will render impracticable the
listing of the Offer Shares on or before the Listing Date;

(d) A change or impending change in the law, rule, regulation, policy or practice,
or a ruling, interpretation, decree or order is issued, made or adopted which
shall (1) materially and adversely affect: (i) any of the features, vield or
marketability of the Offer Shares; (ii) the financial condition, operations,
profitability or business prospects of the Company; (iii) the ability of the
Joint Lead Underwriters to perform any of their obligations hereunder or
which shall otherwise increase the taxes on their underwriting or related
income, or materially increase their reimbursable costs in connection with
this Agreement; (iv) any substantive aspect of this Agreement; or (v} the
ability of the Company to perform its obligations under the Offer Documents;
or (2) render illegal the performance by the Sole Issue Manager and the Joint
Lead Underwriters of any of their material obligations hereunder;

(c) There occurs any event or change (whether or not forming part of a series of
events occwring before, on and/or after the date hereof) of a political,
military, economic or ether nature; or there occurs any adverse change in
local, national or international financial, political, economic or stock market
conditions which, in the reasonable opinion of the Joint Lead Underwriters,
would materially affect the Offer;

4} There occurs, or there becomes known to the Sole Issue Manager and the
Joint Lead Underwriters, any material and adverse change or development in
the Company’s management, finances or assets, corporate structure or
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relationships, actual or potential liabilities, investments, revenues, operations,
and the conditions thereof, or business and profitability prospects which, in
the reasonable opinion of the Joint Lead Underwriters, will have a material
adverse effect on the marketability of the Offer Shares;

(g) - The currency or securities market, or the existing financial, political or
economic conditions in the Philippines shall have undergone such change or
shall face an imminent or threatened change including, without limitation,
any substantial change in currency exchange rates or exchange confrols
which, in the reasonable opinion of the Sole Issue Manager and the Joint
Lead Underwriters, will materially and adversely affect the sale and
distribution of the Offer Shares in the Philippines;

(h) The Company is compelled or ordered by a competent Governmental
Authority to cease and desist from continuing its operations;

6] The Company shail be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or shall admit in
writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature, or shall make or threaten
to make an assignment for the benefit of, or a composition or assignment
with, its creditors or any class thereof, or shall declare or threaten to declare a
moratorium on its indebtedness or any class thereof; or the Company shall
apply for, or consent to, the appointment of any receiver, trustee or similar
officer for it or for all or any substantial part of its properties; or such
receiver, trustee or similar officer shall be appointed and such appointment
shall continue undischarged for a period of forty-five (45) days; or the
Company shall initiate or institute (by petition, application or otherwise
howsoever), or consent to the institution of any bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, suspemsion of payment,
dissolution, liquidation or similar proceedings relating to it under the laws of
any jurisdiction; or such proceedings shall be instituted against it without its
consent and shall remain undismissed for a period of forty-five (45) days; or
any judgment, writ, warrant of attachment or execution or similar process
shall be issued or levied against any material asset, or material part thereof, of
the Company and such judgment, writ or similar process shall not be
released, vacated or fully bonded within forty-five (45) days after its issue or
levy; or any event occurs which under Applicable Laws has an effect
equivalent to any of the foregoing; or

G) Any other event, whether or not similar to any of the foregoing, should occur
or be revealed which, in the reasonable determination of the Joint Lead
Underwriters, involves a material change in the circumstances existing when
this Agreement was entered into, which, in each case, in the reasonable
opinton of the Joint Lead Underwriters: (i) makes it impracticable or
inadvisable to proceed with the public offering, sale and distribution of the
Offer Shares on the terms and in the manner contemplated in the Terms and
Conditions; (ii) would be likely to materially prejudice the success of the
Offer; (iii) is or will make it impracticable to proceed with the Offer; or (iv)
is or will make it impracticable or inadvisable for any material part of this
Agreement and/or the Offer to be performed or implemented as envisaged.
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142  The Sole Issue Manager and the Joint Lead Underwriters may suspend, cancel or
terminate the Underwriting Commitment by giving written notice to the Company if,
on or prior to the Listing Date, the performance of, or compliance with, any of the
undertakings of the Sole Issue Manager and the Joint Lead Underwriiers, or their
covenants and obligations herein becomes impossible due to conditions beyond their
control, mcluding, force majeure, natural calamities and disasters, floods, storms,
earthquakes, wars, riots, insurrections, terrorist acts and/or any other causes beyond
the reasonable control of the Sole Issue Manager and the Joint Lead Underwriters.

14.3  The Sole Issue Manager and the Joint Lead Underwriters shall not exercise the right
to suspend, cancel or revoke the Underwriting Commitment for any of the above until
and unless consultation shall have first been held between them and the Company and
the same shall have failed to resolve the situation.

144  The suspension, cancellation or termination of the Underwriting Commitment herein
shall be effected by either party by giving at least fifteen (15) days® written notice to
the other party.

14.5 Upon giving of such written notice of termination, all obligations of the Sole Issue
Manager and the Joint Lead Underwriters hersunder shall cease and terminate, and
each of the parties shall have no claim against the other in respect of any matter or
thing arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, except (i) the obligation to
reimburse expenses provided for in Section 8 hereof; and (ii) the indemnification
obligations contained in Section 13 above.

146 The Company may suspend, cancel or terminate the Offer subject to its compliance
with the terms and conditions of, and acceptance of the consequences set forth in, the
mandates of the Sole Issue Manager and of the Joint Lead Underwriters as confirmed
by the Company.

15. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

15.1 Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by and comstrued in accordance with the laws of the
Republic of the Philippines.

152  Prior Commurications and Other Agreements

All previous communications and other agreements, as well as the terms and conditions
thereof, entered into by ihe Parties are deemed written into this Agreement insofar they are
consistent with the provisions of this Agreement.

15.3 Notices

(@) All commmnications, notices, statements and requests required or provided for under
this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered or transmitted via
electronic mail or facsimile transmission or by registered mail addressed to the
relevant party/ies at its/their address/es (or such other address, contact details or
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contact person as shall be designated by such party in a notice to the other parties in

accordance herewith):
To the Company: Phoenix Petrolenm Philippines, Inc.
Attention : Dennis A, Uy
President and CEO
Telephone No. : (082) 235-8888 loc. 108
Facsimile No. : (082) 233-0168
Email Address: dennis.uy@phoenixphilippines.com
To the Sole Issue Manager and

Joint Lead Underwriter: Pentacapital Investment Corporation
10th Floor, ACT Tower, 135 Sen. Gil J. Puyat Avenue,
Salcedo Village, Makati City, Philippines

Attention : Jose Ma. A, De Leon
Executive Vice President
Telephone No. : (632) 815-6834 or
(632) 815-8066 to 72
Facsimile No. : (632) 813-0409

Email Address: jadeleon@pentacap.com

To the Other

Joint Lead Underwriters: Multinational Investment Bancorporation
22nd Floor, Multinational Bancorporation Centre, 6805
Ayala Avenue, Makati City 1226 Philippines

Attention [
[
[
[

Telephone No. : .
Facsimile No. :
Email Address : [+

et L] Rt Rt i

AB Capital and Investment Corporation 7
10th Floor, Tower One & Exchange Plaza, Ayala Triangle,
Ayala Avenue, Makati City 1226 Philippines

Attention : []

(]
Telephone No. : [-1
Facsimile No, : [+
Email Address (-]

(b) Except as otherwise specified herein, all notices shall be deemed duly given (i) on the
date of receipt, if personally delivered, or (ii) upon receipt of the written confirmation
of receipt by the intended recipient of the electronic mail or facsimile, if by electronic
mail or facsimile transmission, or (iii) seven (7) days after posting if sent by
registered mail, subject to evidence of earlier receipt.
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(c) Any party hereto may change its address for purposes hereof by written notice to the
other parties sent in the same manner stated in this Section.

15.4 Binding Effect

(a) This Agreement shall be binding upon, and shall inure solely to the benefit of, the
Sole Issue Manager, the Joint Lead Underwriters and the Company, their respective officers
and directors, their respective successors-in-interest, and no other person shall acquire or have
any right under or by virtue of this Agresment. .

(b) The Company may not assign its rights or obligations hereunder without the prior
written consent of the Sole Issue Manager and of the Joint Lead Underwriters.

15.5 Non-waiver; Cumulative Remedies

No failure or delay by any party to exercise or to insist upon the performance, in whole or in
part, of any term, condition, covenant, right, legal or equitable remedy or any provision of this
Agreement, shall constitute a waiver of any such term, condition, covenant, right, legal or
equitable remedy or provision, or preclude such party from exercising or insisting upon the
performance, in whole or in part, of any such term, condition, covenant, right, legal or
equitable remedy or provision of this Agreement at any later time. No waiver of the
applicability of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed implied from the execution
by the Sole Issue Manager, the Jomt Lead Underwriters and the Company of this Agreement.
All remedies, rights and options under this Agreement or otherwise afforded a party shall be
cumulative and not alternative, and shall be in addition to, and not in substitution for, or in
derogation of, the rights and remedies conferred bry Applicable Laws. Unless otherwise
required under this Agreement, no notice to or demand on a party in any case shall entitle it to
any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances.

15.6 Dispute Settlement and Venue

(a) In case any dispute shall arise between the Company and any of the Joint Lead
Underwriters or the Sole Issue Manager in respect of this Agreement, or other related
agreements or arrangements, the Company and the relevant Joint Lead Underwriter or
the Sole Issue Manager, as applicable, shall attempt to resolve the dispute amicably
by agreement which shall be in writing. However, if no such agreement is concluded
within [¢] Banking Days from the time the dispute arose, or such period as may be
reasonable under the circumstances, the Parties may have recourse to the usual
judicial action obtaining under the ¢ircumstances.

(b) Any legal action or proceeding arising out of, or connected with, this Agreement shall
be brought in the proper courts of the City of Makati, Philippines, to the exclusion of
any other court.

157  Severability of Provisions

If any ome or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be declared invalid,
illegat or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the
remaining provisions herein shall not, to the extent permitted by Applicable Laws, in any way
be affected or impaired.
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15.8 Counterparts

This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts. If signed in counterparts by
each of the Parties hereto, a full set of counterparts bearing the signature of each of the parties
that have signed- them shall constitute a complete and original agreement which is valid and

enforceable for all intents and purposes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed this Underwriting Agreement on
the date and in the place first abovementioned.

PHOENIX PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.
(The Company)

By:
DENNIS A. UY
President & CEO
PENTA CAPITAL & INVESTMENT CORPORATION
(The Sole Issue Manager and Joint Lead Underwriter)

By:
' JOSE MA. A. DE LEON
Executive Vice-President

NORMANT. PE
Senior Vice-President

The Other Joint Lead Underwriters:

MULTINATIONAL INVESTMENT BANCORPORATION

By:
MARILOU C. CRISTOBAL
President
DINDO ANTONIO T. CAGUIAT
Vice-President
Underwriting Agreement
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AB CAPITAL AND INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: '
SENEN L. MATOTO
President

FRANCISCO JAVIERE. JOSE
Senior Vice-President and Treasurer

Signed in the presence of-
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
}yS. S
BEFORE ME, a Notary Public for and in the above Jjurisdiction, this
in » personally appeared the following:
Name Competeiit _Evidence of Date / Place of Issuance
1dentity
Demnis A. Uy
representing
Phoenix Petroleum Philippines,
Ine,
Jose Ma. A. De Leon
Norman T. Pe
representing
Penta Capital & Investment
Corporation

Marilou C. Cristobal

Dindo Antonio T. Caguiat
Representing

Multinational Investment
Bancorporation

Senen L. Matoto
Francisco Javier E. Jose

representing _ |

AB  Capital and Investment
Corporation

Underwriting, Agreement
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known to me to be the same persons who executed the foregoing Underwriting Agreement,
and they acknowledged to me that the same is their free and voluntary act and deed, as well as
that of the corporations they respectively represent.

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL on the date and in the place first abovewritten.

Doc.No.:
PageNo..___ ;
Book No.: ;
Series of 2015.
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Republic of the Philippines Q
_ ~ Department of Finance
. Securities and Exchange Commission .
. . SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills, Mandaluyong City

MARKETS AND SECURITIES REGULATION DEPARTMENT

IN THE MATTER OF THE - : REGISTRATION OF SECURTIES
P-H-O-E-N--X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.

(Registrant)

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that on August 24, 2015, a sworn Registration Statement ("RS"} has been
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) on behalf -of P-H-O-E-N-I-X
PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. for the vagistration of 20,000,000 perpetual preferred shares with a

- par value of P1.00 per share pursuant to Section 8 and 12 of the Securities Regulation Code. Thes?ére
comprised of the following: ‘ 4

(1) Up to 10,000,000 cumulative, non-voting, non-participating, non-convertible, peso-denominated,
preferred sha-zs to be offered as Firm Shares at the issue price of Php 100.00 per share; and :

(2) Up to 10,000,000 curidlative; non-voting, non-participating, non-convertible, peso-denominated,
preferred shares to be offered as Option Shares at the issue price of Php 100.00 per share.

According to the documents presented on August 24, 2015, the following persons are the key
officersidireciors of the corporation: '

NAME LR FRC POSITION
Dennis A. Uy Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
Domingo T. Uy " | Director and Chairman
Socorro T. Ermac-Cabreros. ggregcr)ar_tea;j;g;:orporate Secretary / Assistant Vice President for
Romeoc B. De Guzman Director and Chief Operating Officer
J.V. Emmanuel A. De Dios Director '
Paul G. Dominguez , .| Director
Jose Manuel R. Quimson = &4 Directoi’
Joseph John L. Ong | Director and Chief Finance Officer
Cherylyn C. Uy ' ~ | Director 9
Manico V. Jacob . | Independent Director "
‘gfr:t‘icaego‘ Consuelo Ynares:‘-_'i independent Director
Gigi Q. Fuensalida *. I"Assigtant Corporate Secretary
Chryss Alfonsus V. Damuy | Treasurer / Vice President for Finance




1

The Registration Statem_q‘fjt;'it_s attachments and any amendments therein are open for inspection
by interested parties during business hours. Copies thereof, photostatic or otherwise, shall be furnished to
every party upon request at such reasonable fees as the Commission may prescribe. Said RS m be
downloaded from the company’'s website: www.phoenixfuels.ph ot

P [N
R R o
o VICENTE GRACIA . FE NﬁNIO, JR
‘ : Director




